
Chelmsford School Department School Committee Organizational Meeting Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DATE:     Tuesday September 16, 2025  TIME: 6:00 p.m.   ROOM:  Conf. Room 1 

PLACE:   CPS Central Administration Office   ADDRESS:   230 North Road 

The Chelmsford School Committee (CSC) intends to conduct an in-person meeting on the date and 
time specified.  The meeting will be live-streamed by Chelmsford Telemedia for interested 
community members to access and watch.  Interested community members may e-mail 
Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Jay Lang, at langj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us prior to 12:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday September 16, 2025 to be scheduled to provide in-person input under the public 
participation portion(s) of the agenda. 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CHAIR OPENING STATEMENT 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular school committee meeting of September 2, 2025

CHS STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS 

GOOD NEWS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  The School Committee will hear from members of the public on items listed  
under New Business on the posted agenda.  Speakers are asked to limit 
comments to 3 minutes to allow others an opportunity to speak.  The School 
Committee will not respond directly to public comments, however will try to 
address comments when the item is reached on the agenda. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion on AI Guidelines and Policy Development

2. FY2024 MA DESE End-of-Year Audit Report

3. Recommended FY2026 Budget Transfers

4. MSBA Designer Selection Process: Parker Middle School Building Project

Chelmsford School Department 
School Committee  

Notice of Public Meeting 
Email Posting to townclerk@townofchelmsford.us  Thank you. 

As required by G.L. c. 30 A, §18-25 

Filed with Town Clerk: 

mailto:langj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:tsoule@townofchelmsford.us


Chelmsford School Department School Committee Organizational Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

5. Update:  Private School Approval Process and Request for Consideration – Drake Academy

6. Tri-Board Meeting Dates

7. Personnel Report: August 2025

8. Valley Collaborative Quarterly Report – FY2025 (4th Quarter)

9. Approval of Field Trip Requests

REPORTS 

1. Liaison Reports

ACTION/NEW ITEMS 

1. Request for Reports & Updates

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  The School Committee will hear from members of the public on general matters 
of education interest.  Speakers are asked to limit comments to 3 minutes to  
allow others an opportunity to speak.  The School Committee will not respond 
directly to public comments, however will try to address comments at future 
meetings. 

ADJOURNMENT 



CHELMSFORD SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING 
September 2, 2025 
Meeting Minutes 

Members Present: Mr. Dennis King (Chair), Ms. Maria Santos (Vice Chair), Ms. Diana Lebeaux 
(Secretary), Ms. Susan Mackinnon and Mr. John Moses. 

Also present:  Dr. Jay Lang (Superintendent), Dr. Linda Hirsch (Assistant Superintendent) 
and Ms. Joanna Johnson-Collins (Director of Business & Finance) 

 Call to Order 
 Mr. King called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Chair Opening Statement 
“This meeting is being live-streamed by Chelmsford Telemedia and posted to the CPS website 
for interested community members to access and watch. In-person public participation will be 
taking place tonight in accordance with the Chelmsford School Committee Public Participation 
Policy. Anyone speaking tonight during the public input portion of this meeting has notified the 
superintendent’s office of their desire to speak and has been provided with these guidelines. 
Upon request written comments received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of this meeting will 
also be read and made part of the record of the meeting during the second public comment 
session.” 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular school committee meeting of August 19, 2025

Ms. Santos moved to approve the minutes of the regular school committee meeting of 
August 19, 2025. Mr. Moses seconded. Motion carries 5-0. 

GOOD NEWS 

Dr. Hirsch shared that there was a very good opening of school! The buildings are back alive! 
“Welcome back to everyone!” 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

None 

Page 1 of 3 



NEW BUSINESS 

1. Opening of Schools for the 2025/26 School Year

Dr, Lang shared that “it was an incredibly smooth opening of school”!  Staff came back the day 
before the students for a day that was building-based and included PD and time to work with 
colleagues. Bus transportation also began smoothly despite 140 new registrants. All teacher 
openings have been filled including a few late summer resignations. There still remain a couple 
of support positions to be filled, but five new support staff started today! The new assistant 
principal for McCarthy has been hired. All capital projects are “wrapping up” with the new secure 
entry ways being in good shape. Fall weather this week contributed to the comfort level in all 
school buildings.  The work on the McCarthy fields (tennis, field hockey, etc.) are running a little 
late but are projected for completion by November 15th and all will be in great shape for the 
spring for public use. 

2. FY2026 Recommended Budget Transfers

Ms. Johnson-Collins included a memorandum in tonight’s agenda packet requesting a budget 
transfer for FY2026. This will cover pay increments for employees who attained a higher 
education degree and are entitled to a “lane change” in salary. This increase will be made 
available to employees in the first pay check of this school year on September 5th. 

Ms. Santos moved to approve this budget transfer for the local operating budget in the 
amount of $111,846 from the salary reserve lane change account to the various labor 
accounts as presented. Mr. Moses seconded. A roll call vote was taken. Motion carries 
5-0.

3. Circuit Breaker Reserve Relief

A memorandum with supporting data is included in tonight’s packet from Ms. Johnson-Collins. 
Dr. Lang explained in great detail the recent history on circuit breaker relief through the present. 
Basically, The Commonwealth is reimbursing the Town of Chelmsford $408.963 which the Town 
is transferring over the School District to cover special education expenses. To appreciate this 
issue fully, I recommend you view Dr. Lang’s clear explanation of this somewhat complex issue 
by watching tonight’s meeting on Chelmsford Telemedia YouTube. No action is required tonight 
by The Committee. 

4. MASC Resolutions - Fall 2025 Membership Meeting

Dr. Lang stated that the MASC Resolutions for the November 2025 Conference were just 
received prior to tonight’s meeting. The eight resolutions may be found in tonight’s agenda 
packet for The Committee to review. At an upcoming meeting in October these will be reviewed 
and voted to support or not support by Committee members. At that time a representative and 
back-up representative will be selected to present The Committee’s decisions at the 
Conference. 

Page 2 of 3 



REPORTS 
 

1. Liaison Reports 

The PTOs and The Chelmsford Council of Schools meetings will happen soon. Committee 
members are looking forward to attending.  

The Chair shared that The Building Committee met with MASC and narrowed the design firms 
from six down to two. On Tuesday both of the firms will be interviewed. The design firm chosen 
will be presented at the next meeting on September 16th. Dr. Lang and Mr. King are pleased 
with the two finalists.  

ACTION/NEW ITEMS 

Ms. Santos would like to see The Committee set their goals for the current school year. Working 
with DM on the five goal areas for the Strategic Plan continues. These goals will be presented in 
October meetings.  

Ms. Mackinnon would like to hear more about AI and begin to work on policies addressing this.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None 

ADJOURNMENT at 6:41 p.m. 

Ms. Santos moved to adjourn. Mr. Moses seconded. Motion carries 5-0. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Sharon Giglio, Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 



Generative Artificial 
Intelligence (GenAI) 

District Updates





GenAI Professional Development Update 

AI TEACHER COHORT AI FOR EDUCATION FOR 
EDUCATION SUMMER 

COURSEWORK

ADMINISTRATOR 
SESSIONS - AI FOR 

EDUCATION

NOVEMBER 4TH FULL-
DAY - AI FOR 
EDUCATION



Day of AI - Teacher Cohort

• TIS, Classroom Teachers, Director of ICT (12 Total)

• Full-day workshops for educators to be trained in using AI 

tools in practice

• Topics included:

• - Lesson planning and differentiation

• - Embedding AI into curriculum

• - Student assessment

• - Family communication

• Resources: https://dayofai.org/professional-

development/

https://dayofai.org/professional-development/
https://dayofai.org/professional-development/
https://dayofai.org/professional-development/


GenAI Literacy Trainer Essentials Course 
Summer 2025 Micro-Credentials 

• 10 CPS Participants

• Train-the-Trainer program to build GenAI literacy capacity

• Focus on AI integration in educational settings

• Empowers educators to lead professional development for 

peers

• Course Overview Link

https://www.aiforeducation.io/
https://www.aiforeducation.io/


Generative AI + Education  
District Leadership Retreat
(August 13, 2025)

• Full-day training for administrators - 2 Sessions

• Session I: AI Literacy, Roles, and Ethical Considerations

• Simulation exercises with ChatGPT, Notebook LM, Napkin.ai

• Steps to develop a district-wide AI strategy

• Session II: Redefining Assessment with Ethical AI Practices

• Responsible integration of AI

• Authentic assessment design

• Ethical issues: privacy, safety, bias, integrity

Free Resources: AI chatbot prompt library, PD videos, Essential Guide to 

AI for Educators

http://napkin.ai/
https://www.aiforeducation.io/home/#ResourceCenterHPanchor


Upcoming: Generative AI + 
Education - Teacher Session 
(November 4, 2025)

• Keynote: “Learn, Experience, Innovate: The Opportunity for Education 
in an AI World”

• Breakout Sessions:

• Introduction to Generative AI (grade-level tailored)

• Hands-on practice with tools (ChatGPT, Notebook LM, Napkin.ai)

• Ethical concerns and academic integrity

• Best practices for instructional planning

Free Resources: AI chatbot prompt library, PD videos, Essential Guide 
to AI for Educators

• Additional Micro-Credential Course Offerings

• Adapting Instruction and Assessment Gen AI

• Leading GenAI Adoption and Policy

http://napkin.ai/
https://www.aiforeducation.io/home/#ResourceCenterHPanchor
https://www.aiforeducation.io/adapting-instruction-assessment-with-genai
https://www.aiforeducation.io/adapting-instruction-assessment-with-genai
https://www.aiforeducation.io/leading-genai-adoption-policy
https://www.aiforeducation.io/leading-genai-adoption-policy


Policy and Guidelines

Policy Considerations – CPS Student Empowered 

Digital Use Guidelines Document

• Purpose and Scope

• Ethical Use and Compliance

• Transparency and Accountability

• Data Privacy and Security

• Professional Development and Support

• AI in Instruction and Assessment

• Prohibited Uses

• Reporting and Accountability

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1XaBy5ZVtF--bQT9LP-deXfflV_L01UG8jkIVISV42WQ/edit?tab=t.0#heading=h.gjdgxs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1XaBy5ZVtF--bQT9LP-deXfflV_L01UG8jkIVISV42WQ/edit?tab=t.0#heading=h.gjdgxs


Policy and Guidelines

• AI Usage Guidelines 

• Clear guidelines to enhance learning and 

productivity while ensuring  ethical 

standards

• Purpose and Scope

• Primarily for educational purposes, PD, 

tasks, and learning outcomes

• Ethical Use and Compliance

• Use in compliance with laws, policies, 

ethical standards



Policy and Guidelines

• Transparency and Accountability

• Students and staff need to identify when AI 

tools are in use including – how used, and 

decisions made with its use.

• Data Privacy and Security

• AI use must prioritize data privacy and 

security

• Professional Development and Support

• Continuous ongoing professional 

development to increase AI proficiencies



Policy and Guidelines
• AI in Instruction and Assessment

• Use for personalized learning

• Applications used to complement human 

judgement and interactions

• Prohibited Uses

• Monitoring and surveillance violating student 

privacy

• Academic dishonesty

• Compromise assessments 

• Automatic decision-making without human 

oversight

• Sharing of Student Information

• Development of IEP/504 

• Reporting and Accountability

• Misuse to be reported immediately to Dir. of ICTS

• CPS reserves the right to audit and review AI use 

in the district



AI Policy 
Development

Resources

As educators and students adopt AI, 

developing policies and guidelines is crucial 

to realizing AI’s benefits while mitigating 

risks. AI for Education helps you navigate this 

complex task, crafting practical AI policies 

that ensure ethical use. We provide both 

targeted strategic guidance or tailored end-

to-end support in formulating governance 

frameworks specific to your school or 

district’s needs. 

• AI Development Workshop

• AI Policy Auditing & Consulting

• On-call AI Guidance

https://www.aiforeducation.io/ai-policy-development


CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 Jay Lang, Ed.D., Superintendent 

230 North Road • Chelmsford, MA 01824 PHONE: 978.251.5100 • FAX 987.251.5110 

Memorandum 
To: Members of the School Committee 

From: Jay Lang, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools 

Date: September 12, 2025 

Re: FY2024 MA DESE End-of-Year Audit Report 

On an annual basis, each school district in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts must 
have an external audit completed of their end-of-year financial report submitted to the 
Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (MA DESE).  
Representatives of CBIZ CPAs performed our required MA DESE external financial audit 
for the year ending June 30, 2024. 

Attached please find a copy of the FY24 MA DESE financial audit report completed for 
the Chelmsford Public Schools as of June 30, 2024.  I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank Joanna Johnson-Collins, Director of Business and Finance, for preparing and 
submitting the FY24 end-of-year financial report to MA DESE on behalf of the district.  
As noted within the financial audit report, there are no financial findings or financial 
reporting recommendations from the external auditors.    



SCHOOL DEPARTMENT OF THE TOWN OF  
CHELMSFORD, MASSACHUSETTS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON  
PROCEDURES OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO MASSACHUSETTS  

SCHOOL DISTRICTS’ END OF YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 



1 

Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures  
to Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s (DESE) 

Agreed-Upon Procedures and Audit Guidelines: End of Year Financial Report 

To the School Committee 
Town of Chelmsford, Massachusetts 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, related to the requirements set forth in the Massachusetts 
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s (the DESE) Compliance Supplement for Massachusetts 
School Districts Agreed Upon Procedures Engagements related to the End of Year Financial Report (the EOYR) 
prepared by the Town of Chelmsford, Massachusetts (the Town) for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Town 
management is responsible for its compliance with those requirements.  

The engaging party, the Town has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to 
meet the intended purpose specified in the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s 
Compliance Supplement for Massachusetts School Districts Agreed Upon Procedures Engagements related to the 
End of Year Financial Report prepared by the Town for the year ended June 30, 2024. This report may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining 
whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. For purposes of performing these 
procedures, findings were reported only if they exceeded 3% of the total of Line 1850 in the EOYR. 

Our procedures and results are reported in the attached Schedule of DESE EOYR Compliance Supplement 
Procedures and Results.  

We were engaged by the Town to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the AICPA. We were not engaged to and did 
not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or 
conclusion, respectively, on compliance with specified requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention 
that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town and the Massachusetts Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Education, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Boston, MA 
August 13, 2025 

CBIZ CPAs P.C.

53 State Street 

17th Floor 

Boston, MA 02109

P: 617.807.5000

CBIZ.COM



2 

SCHEDULE OF DESE EOYR COMPLIANCE SUPPLEMENT PROCEDURES AND RESULTS 

DESE Compliance Supplement Requirements Agreed-Upon Procedures Results 

General Compliance Requirements 
1. For All End of Year Report Schedules (EOYR):

A. Ascertain if the financial information was
prepared in accordance with the budgetary
basis of accounting (e.g., modified accrual
plus current year encumbrances minus
expenditures of prior year encumbrances).

Obtained copies of the current and prior year 
accounting ledger reports with the School 
Department General Fund expenditures, 
including any outstanding encumbrances, and 
confirmed that the total expenditures reported on 
Schedule 1 of the EOYR consisted of current 
year expenditures and encumbrances, less prior 
year encumbrances.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

a. Trace the amounts reported to accounting
and other records that support the audited
financial statements and verify
[determine] agreement or perform
alternative procedures to verify
[determine] the accuracy and
completeness of the reports and that they
agree with the accounting records.

Traced individual amounts reported to the 
underlying support (e.g., accounting ledger) in 
the procedures as noted below.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

b. Determine if all encumbrances were
closed out by the 12/31 deadline and that
reported expenditures were adjusted
accordingly.

Obtained a schedule of current-year 
encumbrances as of 12/31 and inspected to 
confirm that encumbrances were spent.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

B. Trace non-financial data to records that
accumulate and summarize data.



 

3 

 

a. Perform tests of the underlying data to 
verify [determine] that the data was 
accumulated and summarized in 
accordance with the required or stated 
criteria and methodology, including the 
accuracy and completeness of the 
schedules. For Schedule 7, test 
eligibility criteria for reimbursable 
riders (pupils residing greater than 1.5 
miles from their school of attendance). 

Traced underlying data to stated criteria and 
internally created documented methodology in 
the procedures as noted below.  
 
For Schedule 7, traced a sample of five 
haphazardly selected riders reported as greater 
than 1.5 miles from the school of attendance to a 
map proving the distance reported by the 
District.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

b. When intervening computations or 
calculations are required between the 
records and the schedules, trace 
reported data elements to supporting 
worksheets or other documentation that 
link the schedules to the data. 

Traced the reported data elements to supporting 
worksheets or other documentation in the 
procedures as noted below.  
 

Procedure performed without exception. 

C. Determine if the District’s accounting 
system meets the following DESE 
requirements: 

  

a. Determine whether the District uses an 
accounting system that 1) provides for 
the reporting of all instructional costs 
by school location and 2) is in 
accordance with 603 CMR 10.03 (3)(a). 

Obtained copies of the District’s expenditure 
reports and observed that the District’s 
accounting ledger account structure includes 
specific account segments for each school 
location.  
 
Obtained copies of the District’s expenditure 
reports and inspected to confirm that the 
accounting system is in accordance with 603 
CMR 10.03 (3)(a). 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

b. Determine if the accounting system is 
supported by up-to-date written policies 
and procedures and that the policies and 
procedures are followed on a uniform 
and consistent basis. 

Obtained the District’s current set of policies and 
procedures related to the accounting system and 
agree policies meet DESE’s requirements. 

Procedure performed without exception. 



 

4 

 

c. Determine if the District maintains 
written policies and procedures related 
to the classification of salaries and 
expenses by program, function and 
object and that the policies and 
procedures are followed on a uniform 
and consistent basis. 

Obtained the District’s current set of policies and 
procedures related to the classification of salaries 
and expenses by program, function, and object 
and agree policies meet DESE’s requirements. 

Procedure performed without exception. 

2. Obtain written representation from management 
that the reports provided to the auditor are true 
copies of the EOYR submitted or electronically 
transmitted to the Department. 

Obtained a signed Representation Letter from 
management which states that the reports 
provided are true copies of the EOYR submitted 
or electronically transmitted to DESE. 
 

Procedure performed without exception. 

3. Determine that the District submitted a signed 
Certification Statement. 

Obtained signed Certification Statement 
submitted to DESE. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

4. Determine if amendments required from prior 
year’s audit were submitted. 

Confirmed amendments [findings] from DESE 
and prior year’s audit were submitted. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

   
Specific Compliance Requirements   
I. Revenues   
A. Revenue from Local Sources   

1. Trace Revenues from Local Sources 
reported on Schedule 1 to the municipal and 
District accounting ledgers. Also, trace the 
revenues reported on District’s accounting 
ledgers to revenues reported on Schedule 1. 
These amounts should agree. 

Traced all revenues from Local Sources reported 
on Schedule 1 to revenue per the accounting 
ledger reports provided by the District. 
 
Traced all local sources revenues reported in the 
District’s accounting ledger to Local Sources 
reported on Schedule 1.  

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

C, D, and E. Revenues from Federal Grants, State 
Grants and Revolving and Special Funds 

  

2. Trace the revenue from state aid, federal 
grants, state grants, and revolving and 
special funds to the detail in District’s 
accounting ledgers. Also, trace the revenues 
reported on District’s accounting ledgers to 
revenues reported on Schedule 1. These 
amounts should agree with the possible 

Traced all state aid, federal grants, revolving and 
special funds revenues reported on Schedule 1 to 
accounting ledger reports provided by the 
District. 
 
Traced all state aid, federal grants, state grants, 
revolving and special funds revenues reported in 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 



5 

exception of revenue from state aid, federal 
grants and state grants, which are entered by 
the state based on allotments. Validate that 
the DESE Administered Federal Grant 
revenues entered on line 300 and the 
DESE Administered State Grant revenues 
on 510 match the final FY24 grant revenue 
file posted on the DESE EOYR website. 

Note: Amounts deposited in legally 
authorized revolving accounts (e.g., School 
Choice) cannot be transferred to the 
General Fund. 

the District’s accounting ledger to state aid, 
federal grants, state grants, revolving and special 
funds revenues reported on Schedule 1.  

Traced all state aid, federal grants and state 
grants reported on Schedule 1 to the amounts 
posted on the DESE website and the amounts 
reported in the District’s accounting ledger. 

Confirmed that the DESE Administered Federal 
Grant revenues entered on line 300 and the 
DESE Administered State Grant revenues on line 
510 match the final FY24 grant revenue file 
posted on the DESE EOYR website. 

II. Expenditures
A. By School Committee and B. By City or Town

3. Trace the amounts reported for general fund
education expenditures from Schedule 1,
line 1850 to the municipal accounting
ledgers and to the District accounting
ledgers. Also, trace the expenditures
reported on the District’s accounting ledgers
to expenditures reported on Schedule 1.
These amounts should agree. If a crosswalk
exists between the accounting ledgers and
the EOYR, verify [determine] that the
crosswalk agrees with the accounting
ledgers in total and trace a sample of
expenditures from the crosswalk to the
accounting ledger.

Traced amounts reported for General Fund 
education expenditures in total from Schedule 1, 
line 1850 to the accounting ledger report. 

Traced the total General Fund education 
expenditures reported on the District’s 
accounting ledger to expenditures reported on 
Schedule 1.  

Procedure performed without exception. 



 

6 

 

4. Trace the amounts reported for a sample of 
DESE functions (i.e., teachers, principals), 
object codes (i.e., professional salaries (01), 
other salaries (02), and other expenditures 
(04-06)) and DESE programs (i.e., regular 
day, special education, etc.) in Schedule 1 to 
the detail in the accounting ledgers or to the 
crosswalk, if applicable. These amounts 
should agree. 

Selected a sample of four DESE functions 
reported in Schedule 1 and traced the amounts 
reported by function, object code, and DESE 
program to the general ledger report. 
 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

5. Test Extraordinary Maintenance (4300) 
expenditures for the following: Verify 
[determine] that expenditures do not include 
salaries; verify [determine] that the 
expenditures include applicable principal 
portions of a loan or the cost of a 
lease/purchase agreement; and verify 
[determine] that expenditures classified as 
Extraordinary Maintenance (4300) do not 
exceed the per project per school dollar 
limit for extraordinary maintenance of 
$150,000. Trace the expenditures to the 
detail in the accounting ledgers. 

Obtained detailed expenditure report for 
Extraordinary Maintenance expenditures 
reported on Schedule 1 of the EOYR and 
confirmed that these expenditures do not include 
salaries and that these expenditures include 
applicable principal portions of a loan or the cost 
of a lease/purchase agreement, if applicable.  
 
Confirmed that these expenditures do not exceed 
the per project per school dollar limit for 
extraordinary maintenance of $150,000.  
 
Traced all expenditures reported to the 
accounting ledger.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

6. Determine how expenditures for fringe 
benefits are assigned or allocated to 
Schedule 1 Employee Benefits, Insurance 
(5100, 5200). 

  

a. Trace the reported cost to the detail in 
the accounting ledgers using the 
methodology indicated. These amounts 
should agree. 

Traced all expenditures reported for fringe 
benefits to the accounting ledger. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 



 

7 

 

b. Determine if expenses are charged to 
5150 Employee Separation Costs. If no 
expenses are charged inquire if any 
District employees retired in FY24. In 
the event District employees retired, 
there should be costs/expenses reported. 

Confirmed the District separately reports 
Employee Separation Costs (5150). If no 
amounts were reported, inquired if any District 
employees retired in the current fiscal year. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

c. Determine if the District reported 
Insurance for Retired Employees 
(5250) separately and appropriately. 

Confirmed the District separately reports 
insurance for Retired School Employees (5250) 
and traced the amounts reported to the 
accounting ledger. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

7. If amounts are reported for Rental Lease of 
Equipment or Buildings, determine if the 
required rental lease schedule is maintained 
locally. 

Traced all amounts reported for Rental Lease of 
Equipment or Buildings to rental lease schedule.  

Procedure performed without exception. No 
rental lease of equipment or buildings.  
  

8. Verify [determine] that expenditures 
charged to lines 1683 or 2060, Short-term 
Interest RANs (5400) relate exclusively to 
Revenue Anticipation Notes (RANs). 

Traced all amounts reported on lines 1683 or 
2060, Short-term Interest RANs (5400) to 
supporting documentation and determined that 
costs relate exclusively to Revenue Anticipation 
Notes (RANs). 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

9. Verify [determine] that expenditures 
charged to line 1684 or 2065, Short-term 
Interest BANs (5450) relate exclusively to 
Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs). 

Traced all amounts reported on lines 1684 or 
2065, Short-term Interest BANs (5450) to 
supporting documentation and determined that 
costs relate exclusively to Bond Anticipation 
Notes (BANs). 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

10. Identify expenditures reported as long-term 
School Construction debt for principal 
(8100) and interest (8200). Verify 
[determine] that BANs are not included in 
these functions. Trace the reported costs to 
the treasurer’s debt schedule. Trace the 
reported amount to the detail in the 
accounting ledgers. These amounts should 
agree. Note: If the District received a lump 
sum wait list or progress payment from the 
Massachusetts School Building Authority 
(MSBA), verify [determine] that the 

Traced all amounts reported as long-term School 
Construction debt for principal (8100) and 
interest (8200) to the treasurer’s debt schedule 
and to detail in the accounting ledgers and 
confirmed that BANs are not included in these 
functions.  
 
If the District received a lump sum wait list or 
progress payment from the Massachusetts School 
Building Authority (MSBA), confirmed that all 
revenue was reported on line 130 and that 
expenses were reported for paydown of principal 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 



 

8 

revenue was reported on line 130 and that 
expenses were reported for paydown of 
principal (8100) or Purchase of Land and 
Buildings (7100, 7200) if applicable. 

(8100) or Purchase of Land and Buildings 
(7100,7200). 

11. Trace the expenditures for tuition payments 
to other public-school districts in state 
(9100), to out of state schools (9200), to 
non-public schools (9300), to member 
collaboratives (9400), and assessments to 
member regional school districts (9500) to 
the detail in the accounting ledgers. These 
amounts should agree. Note: If the District 
prepaid FY25 special education tuition, 
verify [determine] that prepaid tuition was 
not included as an FY24 expense. If the 
District prepaid FY24 tuition from FY23, 
that amount should be included as an FY24 
expense. 

Traced all expenditures for tuition payments to 
other public-school districts in state (9100), to 
out of state schools (9200), to non-public schools 
(9300), to member collaboratives (9400), and 
assessments to member regional school districts 
(9500) to the accounting ledgers.  
 
Inspected all supporting documentation 
(invoices) for prepaid special education tuition 
and confirmed that the District did not include 
FY25 special education tuition as an expenditure 
on the EOYR, but if the District prepaid FY24 
tuition from FY23, that amount was included as 
an FY24 expenditure on the EOYR. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

12. For municipal expenditures that result in 
services directly related to the school 
committee: 

  

a. Obtain a copy of a written agreement 
between the School Committee and 
municipal officials documenting agreed-
upon methodologies to be used when 
allocating, distributing or assigning 
Municipal expenditures to the District. 

Obtained a copy of the written agreement 
between the School Committee and Town which 
documents the methodologies to be used when 
allocating, distributing, or assigning municipal 
expenditures to the District. 
 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 
 

b. Test the amounts reported using the 
documented methodology. These 
amounts should agree. 

Traced all amounts reported based on the written 
methodology previously obtained. 
 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 
 

13. Expenditures from Federal Grants, State 
Grants and Special Funds: 

  

a. Trace amounts claimed as Circuit 
Breaker expenses on line 3080 column 
7 to the accounting ledgers or journals. 

Traced amounts reported as Circuit Breaker 
expenses on line 3080 column 7 to the total in 
the accounting ledger. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

b. Determine if the District charged a Through inquiry of personnel, determined if the The District did not charge a restricted 



9 

restricted indirect rate to grants and 
indicate so in the report (including the 
rate charged). 

District charged a restricted indirect rate to 
grants. If applicable, reported the grant and the 
rate charged. 

indirect rate to grants. 

Schedule 3 
14. For Schedule 3 expenditures:

a. Verify [determine] that the District’s
accounting system includes school
location codes and trace the amounts
reported by school location on the
linked file to the accounting ledgers.
These amounts should agree.

Traced 30% of the combined reported 
expenditures by school location to the accounting 
ledger. 

Procedure performed without exception. 

b. If staff is assigned to more than one
school, determine if the District
maintains a payroll system or
spreadsheet to document the assignment
of staff salaries by school location.

Through inquiry of personnel and inspection of 
payroll reports, confirmed that the District 
maintains a payroll system or spreadsheet to 
document the assignment of staff salaries by 
school location. 

Not applicable as staff not assigned to more 
than one school.  

c. If allocations are used to assign staff
salaries to schools, programs, functions,
or objects, was the allocation supported
by a documented methodology?

If allocations were used to assign staff salaries to 
schools, programs, functions, or objects, 
determined that the allocations were supported 
by an internally created documented 
methodology.  

Not applicable as allocations were not used 
to assign staff salaries.  

d. If allocations are used for non-salary
expenditures, determine if the District
maintains a documented methodology
for consistency in application.
Allocations are acceptable on Schedule
3 for non-salary expenditures, although
direct assignment or charging is
preferable.

If allocations were used for non-salary 
expenditures, determined that the allocations 
were consistent with the internally created 
documented methodology. 

Not applicable as allocations were not used 
to assign non-salary expenditures.  

e. Ensure amounts reported as
Districtwide expenditures cannot be
assigned to a specific school.

Determined Districtwide expenditures were not 
assignable to a specific school.  

Procedure performed without exception. 



 

10 

 

   
Schedule 4   

15. Ascertain the methodology used to allocate, 
distribute, or assign special education costs 
to the placement categories on Schedule 4 
and review the propriety of the 
methodology. Test the amounts reported on 
Schedule 4 using this methodology. These 
amounts should agree. 

Obtained the internally created documented 
methodology used to allocate, distribute, or 
assign special education costs to the placement 
categories on Schedule 4. Confirmed through 
comparison that the internally created 
documented methodology was consistent with 
prior years and is based on the number of special 
education students reported by placement code or 
direct expenditures reported by placement code. 
Recalculated all amounts reported on Schedule 4 
based on the internally created documented 
methodology. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

   
Schedule 7   

16. Trace the transportation expenditures 
reported on Schedule 7 to the transportation 
expenditures reported on Schedule 1. These 
amounts should agree. Confirm that all 
expenditures reported do not include 
unliquidated encumbrances. Determine the 
methodology used to allocate transportation 
expenditures on Schedule 7 and verify 
[determine] the accuracy of the allocations. 
Also, if applicable, verify [determine] that 
reimbursable expenditures have been 
reduced by transportation revenue received 
from students transported. 

Traced all transportation expenditures reported 
on Schedule 7 to transportation expenditures 
reported on Schedule 1 and confirmed that 
expenditures reported did not include 
unliquidated encumbrances.  
 
Obtained supporting documentation of the 
District’s internally created documented 
methodology used to allocate transportation 
expenditures on Schedule 7 and recalculated the 
amounts reported based on the methodology. 
 
If transportation fees are reported on Schedule 1, 
traced all reimbursable expenditures reported to 
the underlying support (and ensured that 
expenditures were reduced by any transportation 
revenue received). 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 



11 

17. Determine if there is adequate detail to
support amounts reported (expenses and
riders) for special education pupils
transported outside the District.

Obtained supporting documentation (general 
ledger accounting system report of special 
education rider costs and rider lists) to support all 
amounts reported (expenses and riders) for 
special education pupils transported out the 
District.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

18. Trace the riders reported on Schedule 7 to
the detailed transportation records and
verify [determine] that the amounts reported
on Schedule 7 are accurate and consistent
with the detailed records.

Traced all riders reported on Schedule 7 to the 
detailed rider lists maintained by the District. 

Procedure performed without exception. 

19. Determine if the District’s accounting
system separates costs in order to facilitate
reporting as outlined in Schedule 7,
including in- or out-of-District, pre-school,
non-public, school choice, charter school).

Confirmed that the District’s accounting system 
separates costs to facilitate reporting as outlined 
in Schedule 7, including in- or out-of-District, 
pre-school, non-public, school choice, charter 
school). 

Procedure performed without exception. 

a. Determine if reimbursable expenditures
claimed on line 4283 Homeless to
Outside the District and line 4285
Homeless from Outside the District are
supported by adequate documentation.

Obtained supporting documentation (reports 
from the general ledger accounting system or 
invoices) for all reimbursable expenditures 
claimed on Line 4283 for Homeless to Outside 
the District and Line 4285 for Homeless from 
Outside the District.  

Procedure performed without exception. 

b. Verify [determine] that foster care
transportation was not claimed as
homeless and is reported appropriately
on line 4286.

Confirmed foster care transportation was not 
included as homeless and is reported 
appropriately on Line 4286. 

Procedure performed without exception. 



 

12 

 

c. If a cost allocation plan was used to 
determine reimbursable expenditures, 
review the propriety of the plan and test 
the expenditures reported. 

If a cost allocation plan was used, obtained the 
District’s internally created documented 
methodology to allocate reimbursable 
expenditures reported on Line 4283 and Line 
4285 and agreed the plan was consistent with 
prior years and is based on the number of 
homeless students in each category. 
 
Recalculated the amounts reported on Line 4283 
and Line 4285 based on the cost allocation plan. 

Not applicable as no cost allocation plan was 
used.  

   
Schedule 19   

20. Determine if the school District has reported 
all changes to Schedule 19 Part A.1 — 
Appropriation by School Committee to the 
Department. Compare the final School 
Committee appropriation to Schedule 19 
Part A.1 as filed/amended to determine if all 
changes were reported. 

Traced final School Committee Appropriation 
amount in total per Line 7320 of Schedule 19 to 
the District’s annual adopted budget. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

21. Determine amounts budgeted in Schedule 
19 Part A.2 are consistent with 
methodologies outlined in the agreement 
noted in procedure II A. 4 a. above. 

Obtained documentation to support all amounts 
budgeted in Schedule 19, Part A.2. Recalculated 
the amounts in accordance with the 
methodologies identified in procedure II A. 4 a. 
above. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

22. Determine that retiree health insurance 
(5250) is reported separately. 

Confirmed whether amounts were reported for 
retiree health insurance (5250) on Line 7490 and 
that retiree health insurance (5250) is reported 
separately. 

Procedure performed without exception. 
 

 



13 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

In accordance with Step 13b in the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s Compliance 
Supplement for Massachusetts School Districts Agreed Upon Procedures Engagements, the Town did not charge 
a restricted indirect cost rate to grants. 



CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

230 North Road • Chelmsford, MA 01824 PHONE: 978.251.5100 • FAX 987.251.5110 

Memorandum 

To: Jay Lang, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools 
Members of the School Committee 

From:   Joanna Johnson-Collins, Director of Business & Finance 

Date:    September 11, 2025 

Re: Recommended FY2026 Budget Transfers – COLA % CFT Teachers & Nurses, PSP, CAA & Non-Affiliated 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

I am writing to request four (4) budget transfers at this time for FY2026 as follows:  

The first budget transfer of $1,163,838 is shifting budget funds from the salary reserve COLA account to the 
various labor accounts where CFT Teachers and Nurses labor is recorded.  The new three-year CFT contract 
was settled in June 2025 for this school year.  The new contract includes a 2.5% Cost of Living Adjustment 
(COLA) for Salary Steps 1 through 11 (Step 1-6 for the LPN lane), and a 3.5% COLA for the top Step 12 (Step 7 
for the LPN Lane) for the 2025/2026 school year.  These adjustments have been applied, and employees’ 
updated salaries were reflected on their first pay date of the school year. 

From To Labor Accounts  Amount 

12305000-51455 SALARY RESERVE - COLA 12305039 51050 SAL/DISTWIDE/TECH. ED 1,533 

12305056 51050 SAL/ELEMENTARY/MATH SPECIALIST 2,506 

12305102 51050 SAL/CHS/ART 8,710 

12305106 51050 SAL/CHS/BUS. 6,716 

12305124 51050 SAL/CHS/ ENGLISH 41,321 

12305128 51050 SAL/CHS/F.LANG. 20,313 

12305134 51050 SAL/CHS/HLTH. ED. 8,924 

12305136 51050 SAL/CHS/FAM.SCI. 3,358 

12305139 51050 SAL/CHS/TECH. ED. 5,605 

12305156 51050 SAL/CHS/MATH 41,223 

12305158 51050 SAL/CHS/MUSIC 10,074 

12305174 51050 SAL/CHS/PHYS. ED 12,551 

12305178 51050 SAL/CHS/SCIENCE 39,166 

12305184 51050 SAL/CHS/SOC.ST. 39,653 

12305202 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/ART 4,776 

12305224 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/ENGLISH 18,996 

12305228 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/F.LANG. 16,654 

12305234 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/HLTH. ED. 6,716 

12305239 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/TECH. ED. 8,379 

12305256 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/MATH 14,511 



12305258 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/MUSIC 7,644 

12305274 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/PHYS. ED 6,902 

12305278 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/SCIENCE 17,574 

12305284 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/SOC.ST. 23,446 

12305302 51050 SAL/PARKER/ART 2,917 

12305334 51050 SAL/PARKER/HLTH.ED. 5,537 

12305339 51050 SAL/PARKER/TECH. ED. 1,611 

12305358 51050 SAL/PARKER/MUSIC 8,385 

12305374 51050 SAL/PARKER/PHYS. ED 10,260 

12305396 51050 SAL/PARKER/GRADE5 47,533 

12305397 51050 SAL/PARKER/GRADE6 43,353 

12305400 51050 SAL/BYAM/CLASSROOMTEACHERS 58,792 

12305402 51050 SAL/BYAM/ART 2,143 

12305458 51050 SAL/BYAM/MUSIC 2,506 

12305474 51050 SAL/BYAM/PHYS. ED 1,940 

12305491 51050 SAL/BYAM/KINDERGARTEN 15,475 

12305500 51050 SAL/CENTER/CLASSROOMTEACHERS 40,092 

12305558 51050 SAL/CENTER/MUSIC 1,857 

12305574 51050 SAL/CENTER/PHYS. ED 3,577 

12305591 51050 SAL/CENTER/KINDERGARTEN 3,797 

12305600 51050 SAL/HARR/CLASSROOMTEACHERS 43,590 

12305602 51050 SAL/HARR/ART 2,031 

12305658 51050 SAL/HARR/MUSIC 1,693 

12305674 51050 SAL/HARR/PHYS. ED 3,358 

12305691 51050 SAL/HARR/KINDERGARTEN 6,126 

12305700 51050 SAL/SO.ROW/CLASSROOMTEACHER 42,811 

12305702 51050 SAL/SO. ROW/ART 3,358 

12305758 51050 SAL/SO. ROW/MUSIC 3,358 

12305774 51050 SAL/SO. ROW/PHYS. ED 2,375 

12305791 51050 SAL/SO. ROW/KINDERGARTEN 8,799 

12310023 51050 SAL/DISTWIDE/ELL 2,376 

12310076 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS 35,613 

12310076 51110 BOARD CERTIFIED BEHAVIOR ANALY 18,594 

12310123 51050 SAL/CHS/ELL 2,291 

12310176 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/CHS 37,579 

12310177 51050 SAL/CHS/READING 3,544 

12310223 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/ELL 2,291 

12310276 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/MCC 24,985 

12310277 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/READING 2,483 

12310323 51050 SAL/PARKER/ELL 1,857 

12310376 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/PARKER 30,198 



CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

230 North Road • Chelmsford, MA 01824 PHONE: 978.251.5100 • FAX 987.251.5110 

12310377 51050 SAL/PARKER/READING 6,935 

12310423 51050 SAL/BYAM/ELL 3,358 

12310476 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/BYAM 19,793 

12310477 51050 SAL/BYAM/READING 7,121 

12310523 51050 SAL/CENTER/ELL 3,358 

12310576 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/CENTER 13,890 

12310577 51050 SAL/CENTER/READING 7,088 

12310623 51050 SAL/HARR/ELL 3,358 

12310676 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/HARR 15,713 

12310677 51050 SAL/HARR/READING 6,004 

12310723 51050 SAL/SO.ROW/ELL 3,577 

12310776 51054 SALARIES SPECIALISTS/SO ROW 15,124 

12310777 51050 SAL/SO.ROW/READING 6,716 

12310976 51054 SALARIES- SPECIALIST TEACHERS 21,200 

12320076 51053 SAL MEDICAL/THERAPEUTIC 11,281 

12320076 51054 SALARIES- PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 2,653 

12340100 51050 SAL/CHS/LIBRARY 3,544 

12340200 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/LIBRARY 1,693 

12340200 51051 TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANT - MCC 645 

12340300 51050 SAL/PARKER/LIBRARY 2,375 

12340300 51051 TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANT - PARKER 644 

12340400 51051 TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANT - BYAM 1,227 

12340400 51060 SAL/BYAM/PSP/LIBRARYAIDES 1,352 

12340500 51051 TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANTS - CENTER 1,289 

12340600 51051 SAL/HARR/TECH. ASST. 1,289 

12340600 51060 SAL/HARR/PSP/LIBRARYAIDES 1,289 

12340700 51050 SAL/SO.ROW/LIBRARY 1,352 

12340700 51051 TECHNOLOGY ASSIST-SOUTH ROW 1,227 

12710000 51050 SAL/DISTRICTWIDE/S.W. 6,429 

12710100 51050 GUID SALARIES /CHS 19,164 

12710200 51050 GUID SALARIES /McC 11,588 

12710300 51050 GUID SALARIES /PARKER 7,109 

12710327 51050 SAL/PARKER/S.W. 1,693 

12710400 51050 GUID SALARIES/BYAM 2,108 

12710500 51050 GUID SALARIES /CENTER 3,358 

12710600 51050 GUID SALARIES /HARR 1,857 

12710700 51050 GUID. SALARIES/SROW 1,974 

12800100 51050 SAL/CHS/PSYCH 9,467 

12800200 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/PSYCH 4,204 



12800400 51050 SAL/BYAM/PSYSCH 1,827 

12800600 51050 SAL/HARR/PSYCH 2,102 

12800700 51050 SAL/SO.ROW/PSYCH 3,751 

13200100 51050 SAL/CHS/NURSE 3,892 

13200163 51050 SAL/CHS/NURSE 1,352 

13200200 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/NURSE 1,689 

13200263 51050 SAL/McCARTHY/NURSE 1,352 

13200300 51050 SAL/PARKER/NURSE 3,358 

13200363 51050 SAL/PARKER/NURSE 2,043 

13200400 51050 SAL/BYAM/NURSE 1,870 

13200500 51050 SAL/CENTER/NURSE 2,108 

13200600 51050 SAL/HARR/NURSE 1,689 

13200976 51050 SAL/CHIPS/NURSE 1,069 

13600100 51060 STCH SCHOOL SECURITY 2,713 

13600200 51060 MCC -PSP-SECURITY OFFICE 1,289 

13600300 51060 PARKER - PSP-SECURITY OFFICE 1,352 

Total 1,163,838 

I recommend the school committee vote to approve the FY2026 local operating budget transfer of $ 1,163,838 
from the salary reserve COLA account to the various labor accounts as presented.  

The second budget transfer of $ 212,434 is shifting budget funds from the salary reserve COLA account to the 
various labor accounts where CFT Professional Support Personnel labor is recorded.  The new three-year CFT 
contract was settled in June 2025 for this school year.  The new contract includes a 3% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) increase to each step and several more steps were also added for the 2025/2026 school 
year.  The employees’ new salary was reflected on their first pay date of the fiscal year.   

From To Labor Accounts Amount 

12305000-51455 SALARY RESERVE - COLA 12110000 51070 SALARIES - SECRETARIES 4,077 

12110176 51070 SALARIES - SPED SECRETARIES 3,244 

12210100 51060 SALARIES - CHS CLERKS 2,116 

12210100 51070 SALARIES - CHS SECRETARIES 18,506 

12210200 51060 SALARIES - MCC - CLERKS 1,551 

12210200 51070 SALARIES - MCCARTHY SECRETARIES 5,210 

12210300 51051 SALARIES - PARKER -COPY CENTER CLERKS 877 

12210300 51060 SALARIES - PARKER -CLERKS 661 

12210300 51070 SALARIES - PARKER -SECRETARIES 3,863 

12210400 51060 SALARIES - BYAM CLERKS 2,175 



CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

230 North Road • Chelmsford, MA 01824 PHONE: 978.251.5100 • FAX 987.251.5110 

12210500 51060 SALARIES - CENTER CLERK 974 

12210500 51070 SALARIES - CENTER SECRETARIES 1,455 

12210600 51060 SALARIES - HARRINGTON CLERK 515 

12210600 51070 SALARIES - HARRINGTON SECRETARIES 4,859 

12210700 51060 SALARIES - SOUTH ROW CLERK 974 

12210700 51070 SALARIES - SOUTH ROW SECRETARIES 2,634 

12210976 51060 SALARIES - CHIPS CLERK 1,295 

12330100 51060 SALARIES - CHS PSP 400 

12330176 51060 SALARIES - CHS SPED PSP 29,452 

12330200 51060 SALARIES - MCC PSP 1,694 

12330276 51060 SALARIES - MCC SPED PSP 12,575 

12330300 51060 SALARIES - PARKER PSP 1,838 

12330376 51060 SALARIES - PARKER SPED PSP 21,811 

12330400 51060 SALARIES - BYAM PSP 1,434 

12330476 51060 SALARIES - BYAM SPED PSP 19,527 

12330500 51060 SALARIES - CENTER PSP 1,941 

12330576 51060 SALARIES - CENTER SPED PSP 13,048 

12330600 51060 SALARIES - HARRINGTON PSP 1,694 

12330676 51060 SALARIES - HARRINGTON SPED PSP 21,465 

12330700 51060 SALARIES - SOUTH ROW PSP 1,757 

12330776 51060 SALARIES - SOUTH ROW SPED PSP 8,508 

12330976 51060 SALARIES - CHIPS SPED PSP 11,943 

12340100 51060 SALARIES - CHS PSP LIBRARY 4,308 

12710100 51070 SALARIES - SECRETARIE - GUIDANCE 1,676 

13510100 51070 SALARIES - SECRETARIE - ATHLETIC 2,377 

Total 212,434 

I recommend the school committee vote to approve the FY2026 local operating budget transfer of $ 212,434 
from the salary reserve COLA account to the various labor accounts as presented.  



The third budget transfer of $ 81,895 is shifting budget funds from the salary reserve COLA account to the 
various labor accounts where Chelmsford Administrators Association (CAA) labor is recorded.  The new three-
year CAA contract was settled in June 2025 for this school year.  The new contract includes a 3% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) increase to each step for the 2025/2026 school year.  The employees’ new salary was 
reflected on their first pay date of the fiscal year. 

From To Labor Accounts  Amount 

12305000-51455 SALARY RESERVE - COLA 12110000 51050 SAL/SYS/CURR 38,630 

12110176 51050 SALARIES PROFESSIONAL 14,151 

12110976 51050 SAL/CHIPS/SUPERVISOR 3,630 

12210100 51003 DEANS 7,334 

12210300 51003 ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 3,630 

12210400 51003 ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 3,630 

12210600 51003 ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 3,630 

12210700 51003 ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 3,630 

13510100 51050 SAL/CHS/AD/TRAINER 3,630 

Total 81,895 

I recommend the school committee vote to approve the FY2026 local operating budget transfer of $ 81,895 
from the salary reserve COLA account to the various labor accounts as presented.  

The fourth budget transfer of $ 70,373 is shifting budget funds from the salary reserve COLA account to the 
various labor accounts where Chelmsford non-affiliated employee labor is recorded.  The school committee 
voted at the June 27, 2025 school committee meeting to grant a 3% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) increase 
for non-affiliated employees for the 2025/2026 school year.  The employees’ new salary was reflected on their 
first pay date of the fiscal year. 

From To Labor Accounts  Amount 

12305000-51455 SALARY RESERVE - COLA 11210000 51060 COMMUNICATIONS-MEDIA DIRECTOR 2,009 

11210000 51070 SUPT SECRETARY SALARY 1,923 

11220000 51070 ASST. SUPT. SEC. SALARY 1,923 

11410000 51070 BUS OFFICE- SECRETARY 36,999 

11420000 51050 SALARIES HR DIRECTOR 4,392 

11420000 51060 H/R SUBSTITITUTES COORDINATOR 1,184 

11420000 51070 HR SEC SALARY 3,761 

11450000 51060 SALARIES ICTS DATA ANALYST 4,949 

12110176 51070 SALARIES SECRETARIES SPECIAL ED 1,498 

13300000 51070 SALARIES -TRANSPORTATION COORD 1,644 

14400000 51056 SAL/NETWORK 10,092 



CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

230 North Road • Chelmsford, MA 01824 PHONE: 978.251.5100 • FAX 987.251.5110 

Total 70,373 

I recommend the school committee vote to approve the FY2026 local operating budget transfer of $ 70,373 
from the salary reserve COLA account to the various labor accounts as presented.  

Upon approval of the four budget transfers, the salary reserve COLA labor account will still have a favorable 
budget variance of $ 61,689 ($ 1,590,229 original budget less $1,528,540 for four COLA budget transfers). 



CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 Jay Lang, Ed.D., Superintendent 

230 North Road • Chelmsford, MA 01824 PHONE: 978.251.5100 • FAX 987.251.5110 

Memorandum 
To: Members of the School Committee 

From: Jay Lang, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools 

Date: September 14, 2025 

Re: MSBA Designer Selection Process: Parker Middle School Building Project 

Attached please find a letter from the Massachusetts School Building Authority 
pertaining to the selection and authorization to execute a contract with Ai3 to serve as 
the Designer on the Parker Middle School building project.  Further, a copy of the e-mail 
sent to the members of the Parker Middle School Building Committee from David, 
Saindon, LeftField OPM, is attached that outlines the original shortlisting of two (2) firms 
from the six (6) that submitted proposals, to the ultimate selection of Ai3 to serve as 
Designer. 

Ai3 will be present at the Parker Middle School Building Committee meeting Thursday 
September 18, 2025 to be introduced and outline a plan of action for the Feasibility 
Study.  I will share the proposed timeline with the full school committee after it is 
presented to the Building Committee members.   



Deborah B. Goldberg       James A. MacDonald                   Mary L. Pichetti 
Chair, State Treasurer               Chief Executive Officer Executive Director / Deputy CEO 

10 Post Office Square, Suite S400 ● Boston, MA 02109 ● Phone: 617-720-4466 ● www.MassSchoolBuildings.org 

September 11, 2025 

Mr. Paul E. Cohen,   
Chelmsford Town Manager 
Town Offices  
50 Billerica Road  
Chelmsford, MA 01824  

Re: Town of Chelmsford, Colonel Moses Parker Middle School, Designer Selection Panel Meeting 

Dear Mr. Cohen: 

On Tuesday, September 9, 2025, the Massachusetts School Building Authority (the “MSBA”) 
Designer Selection Panel (the “DSP”) interviewed the finalists for the Colonel Moses Parker Middle 
School project in the Town of Chelmsford (“the District”). The following individuals represented 
the District at the DSP: 

• Mr. Paul Cohen, Town Manager, Town of Chelmsford
• Dr. Jay Lang, Superintendent of Schools, Chelmsford Public Schools
• Mr. Dennis F. King II, Chair, Chelmsford School Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 7C, Sections 44 through 
58, and the MSBA Designer Selection Procedures, the DSP voted to rank the finalists, in order of 
qualifications, as follows for the above- referenced project: 

1. Ai3 Architects, LLC
2. Tappe Architects, Inc.

The District should now take the appropriate local steps necessary to award the contract for designer 
services to the first ranked firm and authorize fee and contract negotiations. Please use the MSBA’s 
standard contract for designer services, which can be downloaded from our website: 
https://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/team/dsp 

Upon completion of contract and fee negotiations with the first ranked firm, please forward a copy 
of the fully executed contract to Nina Bourdeaux, Project Coordinator, at the MSBA.  

Sincerely, 

Karl Brown, AIA Design Director 



Page 2 
September 11, 2025 
Chelmsford, Colonel Moses Parker Middle School DSP Meeting Results Letter 
 

 
10 Post Office Square, Suite S400 ● Boston, MA 02109 ● Phone: 617-720-4466 ● www.MassSchoolBuildings.org 

Cc:  Legislative Delegation   
Pat Wojtas, Chair, Chelmsford Select Board  
Joanna Johnson-Collins, Director of Business and Finance, Town of Chelmsford  
Dennis F. King II, Chair, Chelmsford School Committee  
Jay Lang, Ed. D., Superintendent, Chelmsford Public Schools  
Jim Rogers, Owner’s Project Manager, LeftField, LLC  
David Saindon, Owner’s Project Manager, LeftField, LLC   
Hamdi Cobanoglu, Owner’s Project Manager, LeftField, LLC  
Justin P. Thibeault, Designer, Ai3 Architects, LLC  
Julie Rivera, Designer, Ai3 Architects, LLC  
File: 10.2 Letters (Region 4)  

 



From: David Saindon
To: Chelmsford Parker Middle School Building Committee
Subject: RE: Parker School DSP update
Date: Tuesday, September 9, 2025 5:08:48 PM
Attachments: image006.png

image007.png
image011.png

Dear Chelmsford Parker Middle School Building Committee Members –
 
At the request of Mr. Maloney and on behalf of the Chelmsford Parker School DSP members and LeftField, we would
like to provide the committee with a synopsis of the DSP Interview/ presentation meeting held at 8:30 today/ Tuesday.
Please note the following:

The meeting commenced at 8:35 AM; after the MSBA conducted routine housekeeping business, the board
moved to the Parker School agenda item, which was interviews/ presentations from Ai3 and Tappe.
Each designer had 30 minutes to conduct their presentation.
Ai3 went first.
At the conclusion of the Ai3 presentation:

Jay asked a question on cost control.
Paul asked a question on outreach/ communication/ etc. related to past experience with a failed vote and
20-plus years since a major school project in Chelmsford.
Karl Brown (MSBA) asked a question about Chelmsford being in the opt-in specialized energy code,
concerns with shortening the feasibility/ schematic design schedule, and the distinction between
educating the public and advocating.
There were no further questions.

Tappe went second.
Jay asked a question on cost control/ budget.
Karl Brown (MSBA) commented on Tappe's investigation into enrollments, cost reduction, and
workload concerns for Tappe. (2 projects in feasibility) ability to keep a team engaged and involved.
There were no further questions.

Deliberation occurred among the DSP members.
Dr. Lang provided his commentary on the firm's presentations, followed by Mr. King and Mr. Cohen.  
Other MSBA staff and DSP members also provided their comments.
Deliberation concluded.

A roll-call vote was taken to score the two firms, which is shown below. Ai3 was the top-selected designer. A
separate email will follow on the next steps regarding the Ai3 selection.

 

mailto:dsaindon@leftfieldpm.com
mailto:ChelmsfordParkerMiddleSchoolBuildingCommittee@leftfieldpm.com

1 Designer Selection Panel

Voting Sheet M
| Tuesday, September 9, 2025 § %
g il
Distict Cheimsford £
6 School Colonel Moses Parker Middle School § E
' <|#
Vintey| Votes
. N
o Jess Baccari \GC-MA Designee, Regstered Architect 2|1 Y
0 Russall Bartash A Buiing Trades Council Designee
1 Eric Bernardin, PE IACEC Designee. Professional Engineer
12 Karl Brown. AIA [MSBA Stafl. Registered Architect " 1 n
13 Jenniter Gonzalez |MSBA Executive Director Designee: B 1 K
14 Joe McDonough [Public Member Professional Engineer 12| oA
15 Beth McDougal AlA IMSBA Designee, Registered Architect, Chair 1 2 b4
16 Arlin Medina MSBA Stafl 2 : A4
17 LeoF Peters FACEC |wsBADesignee Professionsl Engneer
16 Rachel E Shanley PE |MSBA Designee, Professional Engineer, Vice-Chair_ R 1 .4
19 Jose Soliva, AIA |VSBA Designee, Registered Architect 12|y
20 Emily Udy |MSBA Staff 2 1 Y
21 Robert Zverina IMA AJA Designee 1 2 Ad
22 Paul Cohen | Town Manager B 1
Dr. Jay Lang |Supenintendent of Schools. B 1
)4 Dennis F. King Il |School Commitee Chair 2|1
5 TOTAL. 2%
3

)7 Member DSP:





| eftField

THE RIGHT CHOICE IN PROJECT MANAGEMENT




s v fa
5

A c
1 Designer Selection Panel
2 Voting Sheet

‘Tuesday, August 26 , 2025

s
< Disnct Chemstord
© | School Colonel Moses Parker Middle School

s Avehtects LLE

[Ey—

Eapr——

ount Varan Group Archrects.

[ryw——

luostng
i

i

]

584 Desonee Aogutered et chae

s Desonee. ProtessonaEngocer

504 Desgnee.Prtessons Engocer vie.Cra

14584 Desne, Regsered et

lwson s

lussn san

Ju r cosgnee

Toun vanager

Superetenent ofSchots

——

2le]o|e]=[e]a]~]]~]~

8[w[sn]n]w






Best,
D

David Saindon
Project Executive
Boston | Worcester | Providence | Manchester
c: 617.872.5180
www.leftfieldpm.com

From: David Saindon 
Sent: Wednesday, August 27, 2025 3:02 PM
To: Chelmsford Parker Middle School Building Committee

http://www.leftfieldpm.com/
https://www.instagram.com/leftfield_opm/
https://twitter.com/LeftField_OPM
https://www.linkedin.com/company/leftfield-llc/


<ChelmsfordParkerMiddleSchoolBuildingCommittee@leftfieldpm.com>
Subject: Parker School DSP update

Dear Chelmsford Parker Middle School Building Committee Members –

At the request of Mr. Maloney and on behalf of the Chelmsford Parker School DSP members and LeftField, we would
like to provide the committee with a synopsis of the DSP meeting held this Tuesday. Please note the following:

The meeting commenced at 8:30 AM; after the MSBA conducted routine housekeeping business, the board
moved to the Parker School agenda item.
Dr. Lang started with an opening statement about the project.
The chair of the DSP then summarized all of the designer proposals in alphabetical order, one by one.
After each proposal was summarized, some commentary was provided by MSBA staff or appointed members.

Some comments related to firms that were recently awarded projects,
Capacity of firms,
Staff experiences from the firm [new employees vs. long-standing employees]
Experience with sustainability initiatives

After all proposals were reviewed [high-level] by the MSBA chair, the chair opened up discussion, starting
with the Chelmsford DSP members. Dr. Lang provided his commentary on the firm's proposals, followed by
Mr. King and Mr. Cohen.  
Other MSBA staff and DSP members also provided their comments.
A roll-call vote was taken to score the six firms, which is shown below.

After the votes were confirmed, the chair inquired of the DSP regarding their thoughts on interviews and
whether to interview two or three firms.
Based on the bracketing of the scoring, Dr. Lang made a motion to interview Ai3 and Tappe. The motion was
seconded, and a discussion ensued with the DSP, which debated on including Arrowstreet in the interview mix.
At the conclusion of the discussion, a roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried 9 to 5, to interview Ai3
and Tappe.  
Interviews will be conducted on September 9.



Best, 
D

David Saindon
Project Executive
Boston | Worcester | Providence | Manchester
c: 617.872.5180
www.leftfieldpm.com

You're receiving this message because you're a member of the Chelmsford Parker Middle School Building Committee group
from LeftField. To take part in this conversation, reply all to this message.

View group files   |   Leave group   |   Learn more about Microsoft 365 Groups

http://www.leftfieldpm.com/
https://www.instagram.com/leftfield_opm/
https://www.instagram.com/leftfield_opm/
https://twitter.com/LeftField_OPM
https://twitter.com/LeftField_OPM
https://www.linkedin.com/company/leftfield-llc/
https://outlook.office365.com/owa/ChelmsfordParkerMiddleSchoolBuildingCommittee@leftfieldpm.com/groupsubscription.ashx?source=EscalatedMessage&action=files&GuestId=5f143b64-2738-48b5-9a6d-d325f26551e0
https://outlook.office365.com/owa/ChelmsfordParkerMiddleSchoolBuildingCommittee@leftfieldpm.com/groupsubscription.ashx?source=EscalatedMessage&action=leave&GuestId=5f143b64-2738-48b5-9a6d-d325f26551e0
https://aka.ms/o365g


From: Lang, Jay
To: CPS SC
Subject: FW: Drake Application
Date: Thursday, September 11, 2025 8:20:00 AM
Attachments: FINAL - SCHOOL BOARD APPROVAL APPLICATION.pdf

Committee Members,

FYI – Please see the message below from representatives of Drake Academy.  They will not be
opening this year, they will target 2026/27 for their opening.  This will give us a little more time to
review their application.  I will place it on one of the October agendas for initial review.

Thanks, Jay 

From: Esther Concepcion <econcepcion@drakeexcellence.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 10, 2025 4:00 PM
To: Lang, Jay <langj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us>
Subject: Drake Application

Dear Superintendent Lang,

Thank you for your support and patience as we try to get the school off the ground.
There have been some developments that you should be aware of as you review this
application. 

1. Due to the delay in acquiring the occupancy permit and passing safety inspections,
our Executive Board has decided to delay opening until next fall (26/27 school year).
This allows us adequate time to plan and recruit students. The application has been
updated to reflect this change. We have not enrolled any students or exchanged
money as we wait for school board approval.

2. After speaking with parents and assessing their needs, the plan is to enroll 3rd and
4th graders for the 26/27 school year.

Further, in our last correspondence, the following elements were addressed and
required for Committee review and approval:

a. Physical Plant/Safety: All required inspections have been completed and all
documentation is in the application under Section H.

b.Financial Support: Revenue sources and budget can be found in Section R and in
the Appendix on page 67.

c. Hazing Policy: Found on page 53

mailto:langj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:cpssc@chelmsford.k12.ma.us



 1 


 


 


 







 2 


 


Table of Contents 
 


A. Letter to School Board - 3     


B. Information Sheet - 4 


C. Certification Statement | General Statement of Assurances - 5 


D. School Committee Approval Checklist & Vote - 8 


E. Executive Summary - 10 


F. Community Need  | Population to be Served - 11 


G. Admissions Criteria | Documentation of School's Enrollment - 12 


 
H. Physical Plant  |  Safety - 14 


I. Educational Philosophy  |  Model of Learning and Understanding - 18 


J. Curriculum & Assessment - 21 


K. Educational Materials – 31 


L. School Staff | CORI | Administration - 32 


M. Governance - 34 
 


N. Organizational and Leadership Model - 38 
 


O. Drake Academy of Excellence | Drake Collaborative Learning Institute - 43 
 


P. Records - 46 


Q. Student Services - 48 


R. Financial Support | Legal Status - 56 


S. Student Learning Time  | School Calendar and Schedule - 57 


 







 3 


 


A. LETTER TO SCHOOL BOARD 
 


Dear Chelmsford School Board, 
 


We are living in the midst of one of the most exciting and hopeful eras in education. 
Elementary students have won the lottery, educationally speaking, and have many 
reasons to look on their future with hope and anticipation.  


Over the past two decades, educational research has proven which school cultures, 
curricula, and teaching practices help children to thrive. Applying this research has 
transformed many schools and the lives of children all around the world. Schools such as 
the Geelong Grammar School in Australia, International School of Prague, Frankfurt 
International School, the American International School of Budapest, and the Ron Clark 
Academy in Atlanta are just a few of the schools that are leveraging this research and 
collaborating with experts to transform education and create school cultures that help 
young people to thrive. Their examples are inspiring!  


What these schools have in common is that they are private facilities, and therefore, 
have the freedom and resources that allow them to implement this research 
systemically. However, in Massachusetts, these types of private schools come with a 
price tag ranging anywhere from $40,000-$90,000, an impossible commodity for most 
families. This issue is exactly why we exist today.  


We present Drake Academy of Excellence, a model private, non-profit, 
elementary/middle school and teacher development program. We are not the savior, 
but a team of collaborators who want to see children thrive, just like you do. DAE was 
built to be a school that highlights the great work already being done, that elevates the 
education that learners are receiving, and provides access to those who are utilizing 
proven research to shift to a post-industrial model of learning.  
 


After many years of hard work, we are thrilled to announce that we are opening our 
doors in Chelmsford in fall 2026! We look forward to working collaboratively with the 
educational community in Chelmsford and to amplify the great work that is already 
happening.  


 


Sincerely, 


 


Esther Concepción, Founder and Brittany Young, Cofounder 


 


 







 4 


 


B. Information Sheet 
 


Name of Proposed School:       Drake Academy of Excellence Inc.  


School Address (if known):       275 Billerica Road Unit 1B Chelmsford, MA 01824 
 


Primary Contact Person:   Esther Concepción 
 


Role or relationship of contact person to proposal:   School Founder, Principal, and Teacher 
 


Daytime Telephone:   978-254-6828 
 


Email:   econcepcion@drakeexcellence.org 
 


1. The proposed school will open in the fall of school year:         2026 – 2027 


2. Grade span at full enrollment:   1 – 8 


3. Total student enrollment when fully expanded:   240 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 5 


 


C. Certification Statement | General Statement of Assurances 
 


I. Certification Statement 


 


Proposed School Name:  Drake Academy of Excellence 


Proposed School Location (City/Town): 275 Billerica Road Unit 1B Chelmsford, MA 01824 


I hereby certify that the information submitted in this application is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief and that this application has been or is being sent to the superintendent of 
each of the districts from which we expect to draw students and from any contiguous districts. 
Further, I understand that, if approved, the proposed school shall be open to all students on a 
space available basis, and shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, creed, 
sex, gender identity, ethnicity, sexual orientation, mental or physical disability, age, ancestry, 
athletic performance, special need, proficiency in the English language or a foreign language, or 
academic achievement. This is a true statement, made under the penalties of perjury. 
 
Signature of: 
 


 
 
Esther J. Concepción  Date: 9/10/2025 
  
 
Daytime Phone: 978-254-6829 
 
 
II. General Statement of Assurances 
 
As the authorized representative of the applicant group, I hereby certify under the penalties of 
perjury that the information submitted in this application for the private school, Drake Academy 
of Excellence Inc. at 275 Billerica Road Unit 1B Chelmsford, MA 01824 is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief; and further, I certify that, if awarded approval, the school will abide by the 
following laws as set forth by the Massachusetts DESE. 
 
 The supervisory officers of all private schools must report the name, age and residence of any 


child enrolled in the school to the superintendent of schools in the town where the children reside 
within 30 days of enrollment. If a child withdraws from the school, the officers must notify the 
superintendent within 10 days. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 72, §2. 
 


 The local superintendent of schools files an annual report with the commissioner of education on 
or before May 1st on the number of pupils enrolled in nonpublic schools within the district. The 
information is collected during the months of January and February. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 72, §2A. 


 
 Private school administrators and teachers are required to provide information or reports 


requested by any justice relating to the attendance, conduct, and standing of any pupil enrolled, if 
the pupil is awaiting court examination or trial or is at that time under the supervision of the 
court. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 119, §69. 


 







 6 


 


 Persons operating an education institution have an obligation to provide a student with his or her 
written transcript upon the student's request. The first copy must be provided free. Schools may 
charge a fee for duplicates not exceeding $1 for each page, but not exceeding $5 for an entire 
transcript. Anyone denied a transcript may petition the courts for relief. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, 
§§34A and 34B. 


 
 If a private school closes, the owner must transfer all current and former students' transcripts to 


the Department or to the school to which a current student has transferred. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, 
§34G. 


 
 The principal or chief administrator of a private school must obtain at least every three years all 


available criminal offender record information from the department of criminal justice information 
services for any current or prospective employee or volunteer at the school "who may have direct 
and unmonitored contact with children, including any individual who regularly provides school 
related transportation to children." The principal or chief administrator of a private school must 
also obtain a state and national fingerprint-based check for all current and prospective school 
employees "who may have direct and unmonitored contract with children." Whether to require 
fingerprint-based check for volunteers is left to the discretion of each school. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 
71, §38R. 


 
 The fingerprint-based background check requirements for public and private schools are spelled 


out in the regulations of the Department at 603 Code of Massachusetts Regulations (CMR) 51.00. 
 


 Private school teachers who have reasonable cause to believe a child under 18 is suffering physical 
or emotional injury resulting from abuse or neglect are under an obligation to immediately report 
the condition either to the Massachusetts Department of Children and Families or to the school 
administrator, who is then responsible for notifying the Department of Children and 
Families. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 119; §§21 and 51A. 


 
 Persons apprehended for manufacturing or distributing controlled substances within 300 feet of a 


private elementary, vocational, or secondary school will receive a mandatory sentence of not less 
than two years. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 94C, §32J. 


 
 Fires or explosions resulting in a loss of life must be reported in writing within 48 hours, excluding 


Sundays and holidays, to the fire marshal. Reports must be on forms furnished by the 
Massachusetts Department of Fire Services, and contain a statement of all known facts relating to 
the cause and origin of the fire or explosion, the extent of the damage, the insurance upon the 
damaged property, and other information as required. The fire marshal shall keep or cause to be 
kept a record of all fires or explosions occurring in the state, and ensure that the results of such 
investigations and records are open to public inspection. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 148, §2. 


 
 Private schools are subject to the Massachusetts Pesticide Control Act. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 132B; 


§§1 and 2. 
 


 Students who attend approved private schools are entitled to the same rights and privileges to 
transportation to and from school as are provided by law for public school students, within 
specified limits. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 76, §1. 


 
 Street or elevated railway companies must provide special rates for public and private school 


students during the days or evenings when school is in session not to exceed one-half of the 
regular fare. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 161, §108. 


 







 7 


 


 The use of state or local funds to pay for textbook loans to pupils of private schools violates the 
state constitution. Bloom v. School Committee of Springfield, 379 N.E.2d 578 (1978). 


 
 The Department suggests that the "thoroughness and efficiency" criteria can be interpreted to 


include approval based on the private school's textbooks and materials. Advisory on Approval of 
Massachusetts Private Schools Pursuant to Mass. Gen. Laws c. 76, § 1. 


 
 The Department suggests that the "thoroughness and efficiency" criteria can be interpreted to 


include approval based on the private school's student performance assessment 
procedures. Advisory on Approval of Massachusetts Private Schools Pursuant to Mass. Gen. Laws 
c. 76, § 1. 


 
 School committees may authorize the prepayment of tuition of a publicly place student with 


disabilities, for a period not exceeding three months, to any approved private school. Mass. Gen. 
Laws c. 71, §71D. 


 
 Eligible students with disabilities who attend private school at private expense are entitled to 


special education designed to meet their needs. The school district where the student with 
disabilities is a resident must provide genuine opportunities to participate in the public school 
special education program consistent with the state constitutional limitations. Eligible students 
are entitled to an individualized education program (IEP). Services provided or arranged for by the 
district pursuant to an IEP, if paid for with state or local funds, must be provided in a public facility 
or other public or neutral site. If services are funded only with federal monies, they may be 
provided on private school grounds. Administrative Advisory SPED 2007-2: IDEA-2004 and Private 
School Students (Updated July 2008). 


 
 Pupils attending private schools may receive screening for sight, hearing, and other physical 


defects through the local school committee or board of health at the request of a 
parent/guardian, providing the private school is approved and does not discriminate in its 
entrance requirements on the basis of race or color. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, §57. 


 
 Private schools are eligible to receive grants from the Massachusetts Science, Technology 


Engineering, and Mathematics Grant Fund with the purpose of increasing the number of qualified 
science, technology, engineering and mathematics teachers and improving the course offerings in 
the areas of science, technology, engineering and mathematics. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 29, §2MMM. 
 


 Private school property is exempt from property taxation as a "literary, benevolent, charitable and 
scientific institution." Mass. Gen. Laws c. 59, §5. Board of Assessors v. Garland School of Home 
Making, 6 N.E.2d 374 (1937). 


 
 Constitutional Provisions: The Massachusetts Constitution provides that no appropriation of 


public money may be made to aid a primary or secondary school that is not publicly owned and 
under the exclusive control of public officers authorized by the Commonwealth. Mass. Const. Ann. 
Amend. Art. 18 §2 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/07_2.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/07_2.html





 8 


 


D. School Committee Approval Checklist | School Committee Vote 
 
I. School Committee Approval Checklist: 
 
As suggested by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, the 
following criteria are adequately met in this document and warrant school board approval for 
Drake Academy of Excellence to operate in Chelmsford, Massachusetts.  


Population to be served: Sections F, G / Page 11 


Admission criteria; documentation of school’s enrollment 


 


 


Physical Plant/Safety: Section H / Page 14 


A. The school shows evidence of current: Certificate of Occupancy, fire 
inspection, safety inspection, elevator inspection (if applicable), compliance 
with lead paint poisoning prevention (for children under 6 years old), 
compliance with other applicable federal and state health and safety 
standards (e.g., PCB, asbestos inspections, handicap accessibility), and copies 
of valid safety and health inspection certificates. 


B. The site, plant, and equipment adequately support the program and are 
operated to ensure the safety and health of the students. 


 


Curriculum & Assessment: Section J / Page 21 
The curriculum offered is "equivalent" to that offered in the local school 
system generally and, specifically, in terms of the following instructional areas: 
mathematics, science and technology, history and social science, English, 
foreign languages, the arts, physical education. 


 


Educational Materials: Section K / Page 31 
Textbooks and individual instructional materials, including computers and other 
technology, are adequate. 


 


 


School Staff:  Section L / Page 32 
The instruction provided is "thorough and efficient" based on: Teacher qualifications, 
adequate student/teacher ratio, and regular evaluation of staff. 
 


 


CORI: Section L / Page 33 
The school principal reviews criminal offender record information (CORI) of current 
and prospective employees and volunteers, as required by law. 


 


Administration: Section L / Page 32 
The school has a clearly defined organization that facilitates its objectives. 
 


 


Records: Section P / Page 46 
A. The school maintains an adequate system of student records (e.g., attendance, 
health, discipline, progress reports). 
B. The student records are kept in a secure and organized manner that is consistent 
with federal and state student record laws to the extent applicable. 


 







 9 


 


C. The school maintains and timely provides transcripts in response to requests of 
students and former students in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34A. 


D. The school is prepared efficiently to transfer transcripts of all students and former 
students to the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
and/or other schools should it cease operation, in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34G. 
Student Services: Section Q / Page 48 
The school provides adequate pupil personnel services for all students (e.g., health 
care procedures, guidance and counseling programs, discipline policy). 


 


Financial Support:  Section R / Page 56 (Budget in appendix pg. 67) 
The school provides evidence of financial solvency and resources to sustain the 
educational program. 


 


Legal Status: Section R / Page 56 (Documentation in appendix pg. 68-69) 
The school presents documentation of its legal status. These may include copies of 
the articles of incorporation and the certification of tax exempt status. 


 


Student Learning Time: Section S / Page 57 
The school provides adequate student learning time (length of school year and school 
day) and hours of instruction in each subject. 


 


Student Performance Assessment: Section J / Page 21 
The school periodically evaluates students' skills, competencies, and knowledge and 
documents their progress. 
 


 


 


 


II. School Committee Vote 


Name         Vote 


Mr. Dennis F. King II (Chair)      ___ 
 
Ms. Maria L. Santos, Vice Chair      ___ 
 
Ms. Diana M. Lebeaux, Secretary     ___ 
 
Mrs. Susan Mackinnon       ___ 
 
Mr. John W. Moses        ___ 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 10 


 


E. Executive Summary 
 
Mission: The Drake Academy of Excellence is driven to transform education and leadership 
practices in the United States. In collaboration with the world’s most prestigious universities 
and authorities in education, our model school implements proven research and is 
intentionally designed to scale on a national level. Shifting from industrialized practices and 
mindsets, our model prioritizes human development and unleashes the greatness in others 
by valuing their unique worth and fostering an enthusiasm for learning that empowers them 
to inspire, lead, and contribute to the world. 
 


Vision: To be a catalyst for systemic educational change by modeling innovative and 
research driven strategies that develop students, teachers, and leaders. 
 


Competitive advantage: Based on research and partnerships with educational leaders, we 
designed DAE to be a catalyst for systemic educational change by supporting children and 
adults as they shift from the ideals of manual labor, seen in the industrialized school model, 
to a framework that inspires students to develop the skills and mindsets that build academic 
excellence, emotional intelligence, and mental health. Because this level of mental 
complexity demands a completely different set of skills and higher levels of learning, our 
school is designed to be a hub where this level of development takes place. Not only do 
teachers and students engage in peer coaching, we also host a teacher and leadership 
development collaborative, where passionate teachers and leaders visit our school, learn 
how to implement this research, and receive ongoing coaching and accountability as they 
re-enter their workplaces.  
 


Why we are unique: Our model is based on the understanding that deep learning and well-
being are equally important in the long-term success of young children. At Drake, we follow 
the principles of Positive Education, prioritizing academic excellence, emotional intelligence, 
and strong mental health. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 11 


 


F. Systemic & Community Need | Population to be Served                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 


I. Systemic & Community Need 
 
A strong educational system that offers innovative and research-driven educational 
models and programs is essential for transforming current educational, economic, and 
social barriers. At a local level, there are 4 public elementary schools, 2 middle schools 
and 1 high school in Chelmsford ranging from K – grade 12. There is also 1 Montessori 
School, and a private non-profit school and treatment center that serves students with 
disabilities. Currently, there are no traditional private schools in Chelmsford.  
 
II. Population to be Served  
 
This private, non-profit school serves students in grades 1-8 and teachers and leaders 
from around the country who want to implement proven research and learn how to 
build life-long learners.  We will open in September 2026 with a mixed grade classroom, 
serving grades 3, 4, with approximately 30 students. Each year, we will and add one 
grade level until a capacity enrollment in 2034 with approximately 240 students. We are 
committed to enrolling students from northwest Massachusetts (Chelmsford, Lowell, 
Dracut, Dunstable, Groton, and Tyngsboro) and southern NH (Nashua, Hudson, and 
Merrimack) who: 
 


 Are from the culturally diverse backgrounds represented in the communities we 
serve 
 


 Are from low income and high income families  
 


 Have experienced varying levels of academic success 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 12 


 


G. Admissions Criteria | Documentation of School's Enrollment 
 


I. Admissions Criteria  
 
Our student body demonstrates our belief that all children can learn and thrive in the 
right environment. We enroll students who: 
 


 Are representative of the various cultures in our service area  
 Have been successful in school – 1/3   
 Have experienced average academic success – 1/3 
 Haven’t experienced academic success – 1/3 
 Are under grade level in reading and/or math 
 
An ideal Drake Academy of Excellence student is someone who: 
 
 Is not reaching their full potential in public school. 
 


 Is unmotivated and not thriving in private school. 
 


 Has caused behavior problems in school. 
 


 Has experienced high levels of academic success in public school. 
 
Student Eligibility: 
 


 All student applicants must be enrolled in either Massachusetts or New Hampshire 
when they apply.  


 Applicants must reside in either Massachusetts or New Hampshire. 
 Once admission decisions are made, we do not have a waiting list. 
 Regardless of the situation, we do not accept rolling applications. 


 
 
Admission Procedure: 


 For the 26/27 school year, applications will be accepted between October 1st and 
May 15th. Acceptances will be sent out on June 1st with a parent decision due on 
July 15th.  


 Before applying, students must meet all eligibility requirements. 


 


 


 


 


 







 13 


 


II. Documentation of School’s Enrollment  
 


We will start accepting applications for the 26/27 school year on October 1, 2025. 
According to MA DESE, should Drake Academy of Excellence cease operation, we are 
required and prepared to efficiently transfer transcripts of all students and former 
students to the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
and/or other schools in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34G.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 14 


 


H. Physical Plant | Safety 


The site, plant, and equipment adequately support the program and are operated to ensure the 
safety and health of the students. 


The following building safety documentation will be submitted to the school committee 
once building renovation is complete.  


 
I. Certificate of Occupancy 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 15 


 


II. Fire Prevention and Safety Inspection 
 


 
 
 
III. Elevator Inspection – N/A 
 
 
IV. Compliance with lead paint poisoning prevention (for children under 6 years old) – 
Building built after asbestos use. No children under 6 being enrolled. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 16 


 


 
V. Compliance with other applicable federal and state health and safety standards  
Handicap accessible: See architect affidavit below:  
 
 
 


 







 17 


 


VI. Health inspection certificate – N/A. We are not serving food and were told by the 
Chelmsford Health Inspector that we do not need an inspection (see email below) 
 


Donna Greenwood 
 


Wed, Aug 
20, 1:57 PM 


  


  


Good afternoon, 
  
You do not need an inspection from the Health Department. 
If you decide to put in a kitchen, please let us know. 
  
Thank you, Donna 
  
Donna Greenwood 
Public Health Director 
Town of Chelmsford 
phone. 978-250-5241 
email. DGreenwood@chelmsfordma.gov 
50 Billerica Rd 
Chelmsford, MA, 01824, USA 
www.chelmsfordma.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



tel:978-250-5241

mailto:%7BE-mail%7D

http://www.yourdomain.url/

http://chelmsfordma.gov/





 18 


 


I.  Educational Philosophy | Model of Learning and Understanding 
 


I. Educational Philosophy: We are all learners, all the time. 
 


II. Model of Learning and Understanding: Our model focuses on empowering children to 
learn and build the tools that promote well-being. Every touchpoint in the school, from 
the student to instruction, from parents to the community, emphasizes Positive 
Education, learning that is visible, learning that transfers (a way of making sense of new 
content and how it helps us to understand our world). 
 
To build our model of learning and understanding, we follow the research and principles 
of: 
 


 Positive Education 
 Learning that Transfers 
 Visible Learning 


 
Positive Education: We teach students how to develop the character strengths and 
mental fortitude inherent in learners and in those who experience well-being. Positive 
Education includes three inter-connected elements that are baked into all that we do at 
Drake: Academic excellence, emotional intelligence, and strong mental health.  
 


 
 
 
Learning that Transfers: To have transfer-focused classrooms, we shift from traditional 
learning models and student/teacher roles. These shifts empower students to 
experience the thrill of learning and engagement (see chart below). 
 







 19 


 


  
Adapted from Learning that Transfers (Stern, J. 2021) 
 
Following the Learning that Transfers model allows us to build lessons and units that 
incorporate students’ prior knowledge and build organizing schema to foster transfer.  
Shift in Student and Teacher Roles 
 


STUDENT ROLE TEACHER ROLE 


DIRECTOR of their own learning DESIGNER of empowering lesson plans 


DETECTIVE of their own learning DETECTIVE of student thinking 


COLLABORATOR with peers and teachers 
EVALUATOR of their own impact on 
learning 


PATTERN-SEEKER through diverse ideas 
and experiences 


CURATOR of diverse resources and 
experiences 


Might look like: Might look like: 


Co-constructing success criteria Establishing a collaborative, safe culture 


Setting goals Establishing credibility 


Monitoring their thinking Making thinking routine 


Self-questioning Modeling thinking 


Self-regulating Modeling risk taking 


Selecting among strategies Modeling learning from errors 







 20 


 


Providing self and peer feedback Cognitive coaching students 


Applying feedback Providing and soliciting feedback 


Deciding what to investigate next Adjusting instruction 


Adjusting learning behavior  
Adapted from Learning that Transfers (Stern, J. 2021) 
 
Visible Learning: Students build the skills of visible learners and are able to drive, 
monitor, and assess their learning. Teachers are guides that lead students to develop the 
following characteristics of visible learners:  
 
Characteristics of Assessment-Capable Visible Learners: 


1) I know where I am going. 
2) I have the tools for the journey. 
3) I monitor my progress. 
4) I recognize when I’m ready for what’s next. 
5) I know what to do next.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 21 


 


J. Curriculum & Assessment 


 


I. Curriculum 


The curriculum offered is "equivalent" to that offered in the local school system 
generally and, specifically, in terms of the following instructional areas: Mathematics, 
science and technology history and social science, English, foreign language, the arts, 
physical education. 


  


We provide instruction in English Language Arts, Mathematics, Global Studies/History, 
and Science. Creative Arts: Music, Drama, Dance, Art, Spanish Immersion, Technology 
Integration, Leadership, Etiquette and Poise, Public Speaking, Finance. 


Enrichment: We offer the following enrichment areas: KEVA, Science Olympiad, media, 
and dance. 


We are a standards informed school, meaning that we look to the Massachusetts 
Curriculum Frameworks to ensure that our learners can transition into public schools 
when necessary. To build on the standards and to help our students meet high levels of 
learning, we have partnered with Julie Stern with Learning that Transfers to train our 
staff and model for visiting educators how authentic and rich learning, through 
transferring concepts across curricular areas, takes place in a school.  
 
Listed below are the curriculum guides we will be using, as well as the curricular 
frameworks for Math, ELA, Social Studies, and Science for grades 1-8. 
 


English Language Arts: Fundations by Wilson Language Basics (reading writing, spelling, 
handwriting). Wilson Reading System 


Assessment: Formative and summative assessments, quizzes tests, portfolios  
Lexile - Find books at the right level and measure growth throughout the year 
Ames Web - Benchmark assessments, progress monitoring 
Wade Assessments by Wilson - Placement and progress monitoring 
iReady – Progress monitoring 
DIBELS 
LTRS – Professional development 
 


Mathematics: Math in Focus: Singapore Math by Marshall Cavendish (Grades 1-8) 
Assessment: Formative and summative assessments, quizzes tests, portfolios  
Singapore Mathematics Thinking Skills and Heuristics: The underlying processes and 
strategies essential to problem solving. 
 
Science: FOSS Next Gen Science (Grades 1-8)  







 22 


 


Assessment: Formative and summative assessments, quizzes tests, student science 
experiment notebooks 
 


Social Studies: IMPACT by McGraw Hill (Grades 1-5). Facing History and Ourselves 
Curriculum and Pedagogy (Grades 6-8) 
Assessment: Formative and summative assessments, quizzes tests, student discussions 


 
Positive Psychology: PEEC (Grades 1-8)  
Assessment: Growth will be tracked over time. Formative and summative assessments, 
strengths finder quizzes. 
 
Social Emotional Learning and Leadership: (Grades 1-8)  iLEAD John Maxwell Elementary 
Curriculum 
Assessment: Panorama Family-School Relationship Survey 
 
Spanish: Risas y Sonrisas (1-5, starting in grade 3) 
Assessment: Formative and summative assessments, quizzes tests, student discussions 


 
Unified Arts Classes taking place during the school day: 
 


 Visual Arts 
 Music 
 Physical Education/Health 
 Technology 
 


Mandatory Enrichment Programs taking place during the school day: 
 


 Keva 
 Science Olympiad 
 John Maxwell iLead Leadership  
 Life Skills 


 


After school programs available to families at an extra cost: 
 


 Dance: Taught by Joanne Idarraga from Planet Dance 
 Media – Facilitated by Faith Brodi with Billerica Access Television 


 
Please see the appendix for Massachusetts Curricular Standards.  
 
 


Guiding Principles 







 23 


 


As a school that is committed to following proven research, the Drake Academy of 
Excellence understands that this research must be built into each section of our model. 
We are dedicated to being cognizant of research, reflective in our practice, and adapting 
to best meet the needs of our students. 


Curriculum and pedagogy must be:  


Research-driven Rooted in humanity  
Aligned with principles of Positive Psychology  Rigorous 
Relevant Engaging 
Scaffolded Globally-driven 
Antiracist  Culturally responsive 


 


Guiding Research 


To begin the work of teaching children how to learn and to provide them with the 
foundation they will need to succeed in the future, we have aligned ourselves with the 
consensus found among researchers regarding what children need to learn and know to 
experience academic and personal success.  


The consensus found among leading researchers and experts about what is most 
important for children to learn, align with the DAE Habits of Mind and the research 
conducted by our partner, Julie Jungalwala. This is what drives our instruction and 
curriculum design.  


TONY WAGNER’S 
THE GLOBAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 
GAP  


SIR 
ROBINSON’S 
CREATIVE 
SCHOOLS 


HEWLETT 
FOUNDATION’S 
DEEPER 
LEARNING 
NETWORK 


PARTNERSHIP 
FOR 21ST 
CENTURY 
SKILLS 


INSTITUTE 
FOR 
FUTURE OF 
LEARNING 
WORTHY 
SKILLS 


DRAKE 
ACADEMY OF 
EXCELLENCE 
HABITS OF 
MIND  


Critical thinking and 
problem solving 


Curiosity Mastery of core 
academic content 


Learning and 
innovation skills 
(the 4Cs): 
Communication 
Collaboration 
Creativity 
Critical thinking 


Self-directed 
learning 


Critical thinking  


Collaboration across 
networks and 
leading by influence 


Creativity Critical thinking 
and complex 
problem solving 


Life and career 
skills 


Creativity and 
innovation 


Self-reflection 
and assessment  


Agility and 
adaptability 


Criticism Collaboration Information, 
media, and 
technology 
skills 


Planning, 
adaptability 
and agility 


Communication 


Initiative and 
entrepreneurship 


Communication Effective 
communication 


Key subjects- 
3Rs and 21st 
century themes 


Strengths, 
awareness 
and 
application 


Transfer of 
knowledge 







 24 


 


Effective oral and 
written 
communication 


Collaboration Learning how to 
learn 


 Self-efficacy Confidence, 
agency, 
responsibility, 
and purpose 


Accessing and 
analyzing 
information 


Compassion An “academic 
mindset” 


 Global 
citizenship 


Learning how to 
be a life-long 
learner 


Curiosity and 
imagination 


Composure   Relationship 
building 


Compassion 
that leads to 
action 


 Citizenship   Critical 
thinking and 
problem 
solving 
 


Sustainability 


 


Habit of Mind 1: Critical Thinking 


Our world demands higher levels of thinking than ever before. To prepare our students 
and teachers for the future, we foster critical thinking to develop the habits of mind that 
lead to authentic learning. Teachers and leaders model critical thinking and engage 
students in deep learning by utilizing essential questions, Immunity to Change 
methodologies, and mind work tools. Students are supported in the development of a 
mental infrastructure that increases their capacity for higher order thinking. 
 


Habit of Mind 2: Self-reflection and Assessment 


Reflecting on one’s actions and assessing outcomes is essential to human growth and 
development. Since DAE is built as a Deliberately Developmental Organization (DDO), 
staff and students alike are accountable to improve the performance of the community 
as a whole. Students and staff will engage in self-assessment through a range of 
opportunities such as quarterly and yearly goal setting and evaluations, shared grading, 
and portfolio reviews. Our culture inspires students to bring their whole selves to school 
and provides a safe space where they can engage in self-reflection to maximize their 
potential. 
 


Habits of Mind 3: Communication 


Communication and sharing of thoughts and ideas are among the most essential of 
human needs. At DAE, we recognize the importance of creating an environment that 
provides a safe space for students to share ideas while supporting effective and 
meaningful communication. Rational discourse is key to supporting students as they 
confidently navigate the world and become active listeners, inspired advocates, and 
empowered learners. 
 


Habit of Mind 4: Transfer of Knowledge 







 25 


 


Being able to transfer skills and knowledge from one concept to another is a key 
indicator in true learning, yet it is often overlooked in schools and curriculum design. 
Built upon the research of John Hattie and the expertise of Julie Stern, DAE provides 
students with opportunities to make personal connections with content through 
authentic and rich learning experiences. 
 


Habit of Mind 5: Confidence, Agency, Responsibility, and Purpose 


Each and every person is unique and has something of great value and meaning to 
contribute to this world. We believe that every student has the responsibility to use their 
strengths and blessings to help make the world a better place. At DAE we nurture 
students to be confident in who they are, to bring their whole selves to school, and 
develop their unique skills and talents to create a better world 


Habit of Mind 6: Learning how to be a Life-Long Learner 


Schools should foster a deep love for learning that translates into a life-long 
commitment to education. We partner with leading experts in education to ensure that 
our learning model is fun and instills a passion for learning in our students and teachers. 
We ALL are learners at DAE, working together to actively and enthusiastically pursue 
knowledge. 
 


Habit of Mind 7: Compassion that Leads to Action 


Even though society stresses “me”, DAE values “we” and is committed to the meaning 
found in the service of others. This is not limited to students. Our staff is dedicated to 
this work, not only through modeling but also through building learning experiences that 
are centered on compassion, humanity, and service. 
 


Habit of Mind 8: Sustainability 


The systems that we have relied on for centuries are no longer sufficient for this world. 
On many fronts, we are on the brink of crisis because these outdated systems have not 
been replaced with innovative and agile models intentionally designed to help people 
develop and thrive. DAE is not only dedicated to the human development of our 
students, and staff, we are committed to working with our students to find solutions to 
the environmental, social, and economic concerns we face. The Collaborative Learning 
institute (DCLI) extends this commitment by providing the community with the 
necessary tools to help shift existing environmental and social systems and create a 
more sustainable and healthy world. 
 


Prioritizing Standards: 


Drake Academy of Excellence is standards informed. To ensure that we have the most 
research aligned and rigorous curriculum possible, we “unpack” the standards and 
prioritize them based on the following criteria as seen in Learning that Transfers.  







 26 


 


 


Lesson Planning: 
 
As use the Understanding by Design (UbD) model to build our lessons and plan for 
instruction: 


The UbD Backward Design process:  


1. Identify desired results 
2. Determine acceptable evidence 
3. Plan learning experiences and instruction  


 
Instructional Design: 


1- Learning that Transfers (Julie Stern) –This forms a type of scaffolding in the brain and 
students are able to experience rich and authentic learning while building brain 
capacity and efficiency as they continue to learn.  
 


2- Immunity to Change/Mind Work (Bob Keagan and Lisa Lahey) – When students and 
teachers shift from the ideals of manual labor, as seen in the industrialized model, to a 
framework that focuses on increasing mental capacity, they become drivers of their 
own growth and learning.   


  
3- Humanity-centered learning and leading – When humanity is the lens through which 


we approach all learning, teachers are coaches who nurture the unique strengths and 
passions of each student.  


 
4- Well-being and flourishing – Utilizing the principles of Positive Psychology as the 


cornerstone to learning and growth builds strong and resilient children who know 
how to handle challenges and overcome obstacles.  


 







 27 


 


5- Project Based Learning - Project Based Learning supports the concepts in Learning 
that Transfers, allows students to work collaboratively over time to solve a problem, 
acquire a skill, and investigate content further. This approach allows children the rich 
experience of learning by trial and error and to learn while doing, in order to make 
learning stick.  


 
6- Creativity (music, drama, dance, art) – The Drake Academy acknowledges the 


positive impact the arts have on learning and we incorporate music, dance, and 
drama into each content area for immersive experience.  
 


7- Service Learning – Every human being is at their best when they are helping others. 
We combine service projects with learning, so students are challenged and equipped 
to solve real-world problems out in the community. We utilize Jane Goodall’s Roots 
and Shoots program to facilitate this in our school curriculum.  


 
 
We have a traditional grading system for grades 1-8. In September, students will 
participate in baseline assessments in ELA and Mathematics. Standardized tests are not 
administered until grade 3. Throughout the year, they will be assessed using the Mastery 
Transcript Consortium (MTC). As a team, our staff will review the 8 Habits of Mind to 
determine the criteria of growth in learning in each area. Students will assemble their 
work into portfolios and upload this into MTC as indicators of learning. Students will also 
participate in formative and summative assessments, quizzes, tests, exit tickets, and 
debates to assess for learning.  
 
Below is a chart much like the one we will use to assess learning throughout the year. 
Students understanding will also be measured in formative and summative assessments 
as well as exit tickets, quizzes, and tests, in addition to a standardized test at the end of 
each year (when we start formal standardizes testing is tbd). However, as we are a 
learning institution, we are primarily focused on the learning and growth that happens 
over the course of the year. As you can see below, there are 6 competency based areas, 
each with several learning targets, described on the next page. We have already laid out 
our 8 Habits of Mind, which will be our competencies in this chart. Our students will 
determine their learning goals for each habit of mind and continually assess their 
progress and mastery.  Then they will determine the evidence that they feel most 
demonstrates their mastery and include that in their transcript.   
 
We will also refer to the wellbeing chart below to assess our instruction and student 
learning.  
 
 
 


 







 28 


 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 29 


 


 
 
 
 







 30 


 


 
 







 31 


 


K. Educational Materials  
Textbooks and individual instructional materials, including computers and other technology, are 
adequate. 


In addition to the curriculum books mentioned above, students will have access to fiction and 
nonfiction literature that enhances the curriculum in each subject. For each content area, we are 
including supplemental materials, such as math manipulatives and science materials. Each 
classroom is equipped with computers for student use during technology blocks. Teachers also 
utilize a smartboard to provide engaging and interactive instruction.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 







 32 


 


L.  School Staff | CORI | Administration  
 


I. School Staff 


Head of School / Teacher:  


Esther Concepción M.Ed., Founder, Executive Director 
 


Esther is passionate about creating environments in which children thrive 
academically and emotionally and has experienced success using the 
philosophies in this plan to increase academic rigor, teacher and student 
engagement, and positive relationships between leaders, teachers and 
students.   


 
 
Admin. Coordinator, Director of V.O.I.C.E.S Initiative  


Brittany Young, M.A.P.P., Cofounder  
 


Brittany’s calling was found after her son Ryker was turned away from 
volunteeering at a local animal shelter because he was “too young”. It was 
because of this experience that Brittany found her true passion, to empower 
children to make a difference in their communities. With his mom’s 
guidance, Ryker formed his own organization, Ryker’s Pawsome Box 


Adventure, that delivers boxes full of blankets, toys, and treats to animal shelters. This 
organization has impacted the lives of animals in 200 shelters throughout New England. 
When hurricane Laura hit Lousiana, Ryker collected 1,304 pounds of animal food and 
1,200 bottles for relief efforts. Over the years, Ryker expanded his community impact to 
include trash pick up days, creating and sending greeting cards to nursing home 
residents, delivering appreciation bags to first responders, and thank you cards to 
hospital staff, (just to name a few). When Brittany heard about the mission of Drake 
Academy of Excellence, she knew that she had to help empower other children. She 
believes that all children need to know that they can make a difference wherever they 
go, and that no act of kindness is ever too small. Brittany is a member of Alpha Signa 
Lambda Honors Society and the National Society of Leadership and Success.  


 
Additional staff for 2026 school year: 


Bilingual School Secretary (1)  
Reading Specialist / part-time (1) 
Music teacher / part-time (1) 
Art teacher / part-time (1) 
 
 
 
 







 33 


 


II. CORI  


We will be conducting background checks (CORI’s) on all of our staff including volunteers and 
contracted employees. As per Massachusetts General Law and in compliance with the standards 
set forth by MA DESE, M.G.L. c. 71, § 38R requires all schools to conduct criminal background 
checks on current and prospective employees and volunteers, including those who regularly 
provide school related transportation to students, who may have direct and unmonitored 
contact with children. CORI must be obtained from the CHSB at least every three years during an 
individual's term of employment or service. In addition, M.G.L. c. 6, § 172I, requires schools to 
obtain CORI of employees of taxicab companies that have contracted with the schools to 
provide transportation to pupils under M.G.L. c. 71, § 7A. Contracting taxicab companies are 
required to submit the names of employees who may have direct and unmonitored contact with 
pupils to the appropriate school committee or school superintendent prior to those drivers 
transporting any pupil. 


The law also allows schools to conduct CORI checks on subcontractors or laborers 
commissioned to do work on school grounds that may have direct and unmonitored contact 
with children. This includes school bus or van drivers employed by a transportation company 
under contract with the district to provide transportation services to students. 


 


III. Administration 


Head of School: 


Esther Concepción M.Ed., Founder, Executive Director  


 


 


 


Brittany Young B.A. Certified Positive Educator, Co- Founder, Admin. 
Coordinator, Director of V.O.I.C.E.S Initiative  
 


 


 


 


  


 


 







 34 


 


M. Governance 
The school organization has a clearly defined organization that facilitates its objectives. 
 


I. Governance 


 


A. Executive Board of Directors 


The Drake Academy of Excellence Executive Board of Directors is comprised of a diverse group 
of professionals from financial, business, education, and leadership backgrounds. It provides 
fiscal management, administrative support, and general oversight to ensure that all business 
operations are adhering to and furthering the mission and vision of the organization. 


 


 


 


 







 35 


 


B. Advisory Board 


The Advisory Board is comprised of influential community leaders who have a pulse on the 
happenings and needs of the community. As we make decisions, we rely on their advice and 
expertise. They provide broad oversight and advice to help make DAE a school of impact.  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


C. Executive Director 


Esther Concepción M.Ed., Founder, Drake Academy of Excellence 


The Executive Director has responsibility for communicating and managing the 
mission and vision of the school to stakeholders, administration, and staff. This 
includes supervising the daily operations of the organization and Executive Board. 


 


 


 
 


D. Teachers and Coaches  


Drake Academy of Excellence teachers and coaches are the hands-on experts who implement, 
model, and embody the DAE values and principles that further the mission and vision.  


 







 36 


 


Susanna Katsman - Susanna is an instructor for Harvard Extension School’s 
Professional Development Program "Essential Management Skills for Emerging 
Leaders.” Susanna holds an Ed.M. in Human Development and Psychology from 
the Harvard Graduate School of Education, an M.A. in Biology from Brandeis 
University and is trained and qualified in Immunity to Change Facilitation by 
Minds at Work. 


 


 


 Julie Jungalwala - Julie is the founder and Executive Director of the Institute for 
the Future of Learning, a nonprofit organization transforming the factory model 
of education for a diverse range of public schools, independent schools, public 
charter schools, and educational organizations. She earned a master’s degree in 
technology, innovation, and education at Harvard Graduate School of Education. 


 


 Julie Stern - Julie is the four-time best-selling author of Learning That 
Transfers, Visible Learning for Social Studies, The On-Your-Feet-Guide to 
Learning Transfer, and Tools for Teaching Conceptual Understanding, 
Elementary and Secondary. Julie is one of the country’s preeminent scholars 
and practitioners of research-backed adult learning. 


 


E. Inspired Board / Dream Team 


The Inspired Board / Dream Team is made up of individuals who believe in the DAE mission and 
vision and who work together to make it successful through events, fundraising, and financial 
administration.  
 


 







 37 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 38 


 


N. Organizational and Leadership Model 
 


I. Organizational Model 


The Drake Academy of Excellence is designed as a Deliberately Developmental 
Organization, and is based on the research of Bob Keagan and Lisa Lahey with the 
Harvard Graduate School of Education. Under this umbrella of a DDO, several styles of 
leadership are baked into our culture. They are how our leaders operate and expect 
those within our school, from the Board of Directors to students.  
 


The principles that the Drake Academy uses to maximize the efficacy of the entire team:  
 


This model includes the areas of Instructional Leadership, Organizational Leadership, and 
Transformative Leadership and fall under the umbrella of Deliberately Developmental 
Organizations (DDOs). DDOs prioritize workplace culture and the personal development 
of each staff member while simultaneously focusing on achieving organizational 
objectives. Adherence to this model promotes communication, efficacy, and 
accountability.   


 


Retrieved from DeWitt, P. (2020). Education Week. Does Instructional Leadership have to be so 
Complicated? 
http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/finding_common_ground/2019/05/does_instructional_leadership_ha
ve_to_be_so_complicated.html 


 


 



http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/finding_common_ground/2019/05/does_instructional_leadership_have_to_be_so_complicated.html

http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/finding_common_ground/2019/05/does_instructional_leadership_have_to_be_so_complicated.html





 39 


 


II. Leadership Model: 
 


Drake Academy of Excellence Leadership Guiding Principles 


 


 


 


1) Transparency and Accountability 
 


To the Drake Academy of Excellence, transparency means understanding that we all 
have weaknesses, biases, and shortcomings. Rather than spending valuable energy 
trying to hide our mistakes or weaknesses, we shed light on them so we can grow. 
Implementation of DDO practices allows us to maintain this level of transparency and 
function from a space of honesty and transparency.  
 
Accountability means that we have people around us who help us see our blind spots 
and call us to be our best even when it’s not comfortable or convenient. Oftentimes, 
leaders build protective walls around each other in fear that their weaknesses will be 
exposed and those they lead may view them as incompetent. This reaction has the 
opposite effect and prevents leaders from being held accountable for their actions. From 
the Drake Academy of Excellence Board of Directors to staff members, we understand 
what is at stake, we set the example for our staff and students, and have checked our 
egos at the door in order to accomplish this most important work. Expectations are 
clearly communicated and the right systems have been put in place that allow us to hold 
ourselves and others accountable.  







 40 


 


2) Integrity  


To truly impact and inspire others, our students, parents, and teachers must to be able to 
trust that we will act with integrity. Integrity is learned when we take responsibility for 
our actions and are accountable for our choices. As a Deliberately Developmental 
Organization, administrators, staff, and students view negative consequences as positive 
learning opportunities and learn from their actions in a safe and nurturing space. At the 
Drake Academy of Excellence, acting with integrity means: 
 


 That we are all learners all the time and operate from the belief that no one is off the 
hook. 


 


 That our words and actions align and our values represent who we are rather than 
what we do.  


 


 In our decisions and practices, we ask what is right rather than who is right.  
 
Today, in many schools, parents can threaten to remove funding or support in response 
to a consequence. At the Drake Academy, we will not be bought out, leaned on, or 
bullied into abandoning the integrity of our school because we understand the negative 
impact this dynamic has on the future success of parents, students, and teachers. Prior 
to onboarding and enrollment, our standards are clearly communicated to teachers, 
parents, and students, who sign a contract agreeing to this standard. This understanding 
fosters positive relationships and creates a foundation and climate built on trust.  
 
 
3) Service 


 


“Life’s most urgent question is: What are you doing for others?” – Martin Luther King Jr. 
Drake Academy of Excellence is rooted in a desire to serve because we know that we 
experience true meaning when we help others. We also understand that you must value 
who you are before you can begin to add value to others. Living the principles of a 
Deliberately Developmental Organization enhances our feelings of self-worth and 
inspires us to value and bring out the best in others. 
 
Seeing the unique value of students, parents, and teachers is the opposite of the 
standardization and compliance seen in the industrial school model. We believe that you 
can’t value someone if you don’t see them as unique individuals, and you won’t serve 
someone that you think has little value. Because our school is focused on seeing the 
worth of each student, parent, and teacher, they are inspired to bring their whole selves 
to school and develop their unique gifts through our peer coaching program.   
 


a. Instructional Leadership:  


The premise behind instructional leadership is that it focuses on learning, the quality of 
instruction, how to increase the impact the teachers have on student learning, and the 







 41 


 


science behind learning. Instructional leadership focuses on the following areas that 
work in unison.  
 


1) Implementation - Without properly understanding implementation science and 
putting it into practice, any new improvement is doomed to fail.  


 


2) Concepts of Learning – Understanding areas of learning like conceptual 
understanding, knowledge dimensions (i.e. Factual, Conceptual, etc.) and surface, 
deep, and transfer-level learning.  


 


3) Student Engagement – When we look at the research around student alienation, 
we will find that student engagement has to be looked at from two different 
standpoints. Those two standpoints are social-emotional learning and academic 
learning.  


 


4) Instructional Strategies - Research shows that there are specific strategies that 
need to be used for surface learning, others that lead to deep learning, and many 
others that inspire transfer-level learning, which is why we must separate 
concepts, student engagement, and instructional strategies to understand each 
one properly.  


 


5) Collective Efficacy - Too many leaders approach collective efficacy as if it's the 
thing they need to build. The reality is that we build collective efficacy when we 
bring diverse people together and focus on an improvement that will impact 
students. Collective efficacy is built when people work together on a specific 
improvement.  


 


6) Evidence of Impact - If you're not collecting evidence of impact, then you are just 
having really nice conversations around learning that may not be going anywhere. 


 


School Member Support: Just as students of Drake Academy of Excellence need the 
right mix of challenges and supports in order to learn and thrive, the teaching faculty, 
administration and support staff need the right mix of challenges and supports in order 
to grow as people, life-long learners and dedicated professionals. We aim to implement 
best practices from the Deliberately Developmental Organization model to support both 
technical (INformational) and adaptive (TRANSformational) learning of adults. 
Deliberately Developmental Organizations mine challenges, failures, and conflicts for the 
rich learning they have to offer, thus empowering all of their constituencies to grow 
beyond their existing paradigms of themselves. By aligning organizational practices with 
its mission and by using adaptive learning tools to knit together its community, the 







 42 


 


Drake Academy of Excellence will grow, self-transform, and thrive amidst the challenges 
of today’s life and educational landscape. 


 


b. Organizational Leadership: 


Organizational Leadership deals with meeting the challenges and goals put forth by the 
organization and individual employees. It requires leaders to focus on the present and 
future simultaneously and requires a solid understanding of the strengths and 
weaknesses of the company and how to strengthen the organization.  


 


c. Transformational Leadership:  


Where the leader works with teams to identify needed change and create a vision that 
guides the team through the change toward growth. Transformational leaders focus in 
large part on teachers, setting goals and direction for progress. In this model teaches are 
given high levels of autonomy. Transformational leaders are usually passionate and 
energetic and are concerned with helping every member on the team be successful. 
Teamwork can make a dream work! 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 







 43 


 


O. Drake Academy of Excellence | Drake Collaborative Learning Institute 
 


I. Drake Academy of Excellence  
 


We are a private non-profit elementary/middle school and teacher and leadership 
development program.  


 


 


II. Drake Collaborative Learning Institute  


Our mission has always been to collaborate with the best and most innovative names in 
education and leadership. To make that happen, over the past several years, we have 
built working partnerships with these very people. They have helped validate our mission 
and have pushed us to think critically about our work and the example we set in 
educational and leadership practices. We will continue to forge more partnerships within 
the Harvard Graduate School of Education and other leading researchers as we continue 
this important work.  
 
 


We offer two tracks for participants:  
 
Track 1: Facilitators of Learning:  A teacher development program that trains teachers 
how to make learning tangible for students so that they connect with content and 
master concepts instead of memorizing facts. Through a combination of theory, 
practice, and ongoing coaching, teachers: 


 


 Learn how to learn  
 Learn the process of teaching others how to learn 


For: Teachers 


Includes: Workshops, experiential learning, coaching and mentoring 


Instructors: Susanna Katsman and Julie Stern 


Target Number of Attendees per Session: 15 


Offered: 2x/month from January to December 







 44 


 


Workshop Options and Cost:   1 day/$550    or   2 day/$995 


 


Track 2: Agents of Change: A leadership development program designed for change 
agents to learn how to create systemic change in schools by building a learning culture, 
prioritizing humanity, and building the capacity of those they lead. 


For: Leaders 


Includes:  Workshops, coaching, and mentoring 


Instructor: Julie Jungalwala 


Program Pricing: $3250/module   $13,000/entire course (4 modules) 


Target Number of Attendees per Session: 15 


Offered: A 15 month training program equivalent to a 6 credit graduate course 
composed of four modules of 3 months each. 


 
Drake Collaborative Learning Institute Coaches 
 


In order to shift from the industrial model of education to a model that promotes learning 
and human development, The Drake Academy of Excellence has formed collaborations to 
build and implement the methodology seen in Deliberately Developmental Organizations, 
Immunity to Change, Minds at Work, and Learning that Transfers with the following 
leaders: 
 


 
Susanna Katsman – Susanna is passionate about supporting the 
development of emerging leaders. She skillfully guides her program 
participants to identify their goals and facilitates the achievement of 
meaningful and sustainable changes in mindset and behavior. Her work is 
based on Adult Development and Adaptive Leadership theories and 
includes tools such as Immunity to Change, Communication Style 


Diagnostic, DiSC, and CliftonStrengths. Over the past twenty years, Susanna has held 
leadership roles in Fundraising Development Operations and Organizational 
Development within Health Care and Higher Education sectors, including overseeing 
Training & Development on the Harvard Longwood Campus. As a result, she has over ten 
years of experience designing and delivering programs across organizational functions. 
Susanna holds an Ed.M. in Human Development and Psychology from the Harvard 
Graduate School of Education, an M.A. in Biology from Brandeis University and is trained 
and qualified in Immunity to Change Facilitation by Minds at Work. In addition to serving 
her client organizations, she subcontracts as a Senior Facilitator and Consultant.  
 
Susanna will be working with middle leaders within DAE and support their growth and 
leadership by utilizing Immunity to Change methodology through peer coaching 
throughout the year. Susanna, with the help of colleagues who are trained in ITC and 







 45 


 


DDO practices, will coach and mentor school staff on the same curriculum covered in 
tracks 1 and 2 of our Teacher and Leadership Development Collaborative. This allows 
school staff to learn and be prepared to model these competencies for visiting educators 
and leaders who attend the DAE development program. 
 
 


Julie Stern –Julie has nearly two decades experience facilitating adult 
learning, and feels lucky to partner with educators to take their practice 
to the next level. She is a four-time, best-selling author of Learning That 
Transfers, Visible Learning for Social Studies, The On-Your-Feet-Guide 
to Learning Transfer, and Tools for Teaching Conceptual Understanding, 
Elementary and Secondary. Julie will be training our staff as well as 


visiting educators and leaders on the principles of Learning that Transfers. 
 


 
Julie Jungalwala - Julie is a coach and advisor to school leaders, 
educational institutions, and foundations whose mission is to shape the 
future of K-12 education. She has over fifteen years’ experience building 
effective learning environments that unlock human potential and enable 
organizational culture to adapt and grow during times of change. She is 
the founder and executive director of the Institute for the Future of 


Learning, a nonprofit organization dedicated to helping transform the factory model of 
education. The Institute works with a diverse range of clients including public schools, 
independent schools, public charter schools, and educational philanthropic 
organizations. Julie graduated from Harvard’s Graduate School of Education with a 
master’s degree in technology, innovation, and education. 
 


Julie will be working with executive level leaders and senior school leadership to help 
them to lead the change we are seeking in education.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 46 


 


P. Records 
  


I. The school maintains an adequate system of student records (e.g., attendance, health, 
discipline, progress reports). 


a. Attendance – We use the student management software Dream Class to track daily student 
attendance. In compliance with Massachusetts law:  


- The Head of School will report the name, age and residence of any child enrolled in the school 
to the superintendent of schools in the town where the children reside within 30 days of 
enrollment. If a child withdraws from the school, the officers must notify the superintendent 
within 10 days. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 72, §2. The local superintendent of schools files an annual 
report with the commissioner of education on or before May 1st on the number of pupils enrolled 
in nonpublic schools within the district. The information is collected during the months of 
January and February. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 72, §2A. 


- Provides information or reports requested by any justice relating to the attendance, conduct, 
and standing of any pupil enrolled, if the pupil is awaiting court examination or trial or is at that 
time under the supervision of the court. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 119, §69. 


- Provides a student with his or her written transcript upon the student's request. The first copy 
must be provided free. Schools may charge a fee for duplicates not exceeding $1 for each page, 
but not exceeding $5 for an entire transcript. Anyone denied a transcript may petition the courts 
for relief. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, §§34A and 34B. 


- Transfers all current and former students' transcripts to the Department or to the school to 
which a current student has transferred. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, §34G. 


 


b. Health – Student illnesses are tracked in Dream Class. We follow the recommended CDC 
guidelines for Covid-19 and communicable diseases. Parents are provided with a handbook that 
lists the school guidelines and procedures to follow when illnesses occur.  


c. Discipline – Our passionate and fun culture keeps students engaged and minimizes behavior 
problems. Our code of conduct and learning culture help us to get ahead of the problems and 
act before behavior becomes a major issue. We also have a schoolwide discipline policy, 
meaning that the expectations are the same throughout the entire school and that any staff 
member can enforce the rules. This helps children know what to expect, giving them a sense of 
security as they interact with staff members.  


d. Progress reports – Because we are building a learning culture and instilling learning mindsets 
and habits, students and teachers alike continually ask themselves the same questions: What am 
I learning?  What do I need to learn next? These questions drive our content and assessment. 
Students will perform self-assessments and receive progress reports from teachers each quarter 
and at the end of each unit. This information will be compiled into the Mastery Transcript 
Consortium as a record of learning. Students are required to reflect on their own growth and 
learning on a daily basis.  


 


 







 47 


 


II. The student records are kept in a secure and organized manner that is consistent with federal 
and state student record laws to the extent applicable. 


Student records are kept in Dream Class. Dream Class uses GDPR data encryption through (27001 
compliant through Amazon Web Services (AWS). Privacy with Zotto, Pay with Stripe, multifactor 
authentication.  


 


III. The school maintains and timely provides transcripts in response to requests of students and 
former students in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34A. 


Student learning progress will be tracked through teacher assessments and in Mastery Transcript 
Consortium. Following G.L. c. 71, § 34A: Any person operating or maintaining an educational 
institution within the commonwealth shall, upon request of any student or former student 
thereof, furnish to him a written transcript of his record as a student. There shall be no charge for 
any transcript originally furnished by any such person hereunder, but for any duplicate or 
additional transcript furnished hereunder a charge of not exceeding one dollar for each page, but 
not exceeding five dollars for an entire transcript, may be made by such person. 


 


IV. The school is prepared efficiently to transfer transcripts of all students and former students 
to the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education and/or other schools 
should it cease operation, in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34G. 


Yes, Following Massachusetts Law Section 34G: In the event that any private educational 
institution providing a course of study through the twelfth grade level ceases operation, the 
owner or administrators shall transfer transcripts of all students or former students to the 
department of education; provided, however, that in the case of a student who is transferring to 
another private or public educational institution, such student's records shall be transferred to 
the school the student will be attending, rather than to the department. The department may, 
upon request of a former student of an educational institution which has transferred transcripts 
pursuant to this provision, provide such student with a copy of his transcript. For the purposes of 
this section a transcript shall mean the documentary record or records which contain the name, 
address and phone number of the student, the student's birthdate, name, address and phone 
number of parent or guardian, course titles, grades, or equivalent thereof when grades are not 
applicable, course credit, grade level completed and the year completed. Said educational 
institution shall limit the student record information transmitted to the department to that 
required to be contained in the transcript. Drake Academy of Excellence is prepared to efficiently 
transfer transcripts of current and former students to Massachusetts Department of Elementary 
and Secondary Education and/or other schools should it cease operation. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 48 


 


Q. Student Services 
 


The instruction provided is "thorough and efficient" based on: Teacher qualifications, adequate 
student/teacher ratio, regular evaluation of staff, the school principal reviews criminal offender 
record information (CORI) of current and prospective employees and volunteers, as required by 
law. 


The school provides adequate pupil personnel services for all students (e.g., health care 
procedures, guidance and counseling programs, discipline policy). 


 
 


I. Teacher Qualifications 
 


According to the U.S. Department of Education, private schools have no requirements for 
teacher certification or licensing, However, Drake Academy of Excellence is committed to 
maintaining high standards in order to promote excellence in education. To that end, we hire 
teachers who have:  


 A Bachelor’s or Master’s Degree in education 


 At least 2 years teaching experience OR newly graduated teachers from UMASS Lowell 


 Experience teaching elementary/middle school learners 


 Teaching credentials appropriate for the level of students being taught 


 Recent teaching experience or activities in area of primary instruction 


 Knowledge of instructional strategies that increase learning and engagement 


 A willingness to try new strategies and develop new ways of teaching and learning  


 


II. Adequate Student/Teacher Ratio 
 


Our student:teacher ratio is 20:2  


 


III. Regular Evaluation of Staff 
 


Built into our school model is the implementation of Deliberately Developmental Organization 
and Immunity to Change principles. This means that our entire staff is engaged in daily feedback 
and evaluation, both in their professional skill, and as human beings who seek growth. Staff will 
be evaluated every quarter with classroom visits to document what is going well and what may 
need to be improved. Records of these evaluations will be kept in each employee’s folder. 
 


IV. Review of Criminal offender record information (CORI) 
 


Yes. The Head of School will review criminal offender record information (CORI) of current and 
prospective employees and volunteers, as required by law and keep the records in a secure file. 
As mandated by law, we will run a CORI every 3 years during employment and destroy any 
previous CORI forms. Per Massachusetts General Law and in compliance with the standards set 







 49 


 


forth by MA DESE, M.G.L. c. 71, § 38R requires all schools to conduct criminal background checks 
on current and prospective employees and volunteers, including those who regularly provide 
school related transportation to students, who may have direct and unmonitored contact with 
children. CORI must be obtained from the CHSB at least every three years during an individual's 
term of employment or service. In addition, M.G.L. c. 6, § 172I, requires schools to obtain CORI of 
employees of taxicab companies that have contracted with the schools to provide transportation 
to pupils under M.G.L. c. 71, § 7A. Contracting taxicab companies are required to submit the 
names of employees who may have direct and unmonitored contact with pupils to the 
appropriate school committee or school superintendent prior to those drivers transporting any 
pupil. 
The law also allows schools to conduct CORI checks on subcontractors or laborers 
commissioned to do work on school grounds that may have direct and unmonitored contact 
with children. This includes school bus or van drivers employed by a transportation company 
under contract with the district to provide transportation services to students. 
 


V. Health care procedures  


In Accordance with MA law: 


 Obtain at least every three years all available criminal offender record information from the 
department of criminal justice information services for any current or prospective employee 
or volunteer at the school "who may have direct and unmonitored contact with children, 
including any individual who regularly provides school related transportation to children." The 
principal or chief administrator of a private school must also obtain a state and national 
fingerprint-based check for all current and prospective school employees "who may have 
direct and unmonitored contract with children." Whether to require fingerprint-based check 
for volunteers is left to the discretion of each school. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, §38R. 
 


a. If we have reasonable cause to believe a child under 18 is suffering physical or emotional 
injury resulting from abuse or neglect are under an obligation to immediately report the 
condition either to the Massachusetts Department of Children and Families or to the school 
administrator, who is then responsible for notifying the Department of Children and Families. 
Mass. Gen. Laws c. 119; §§21 and 51A. 
 


b. Understand that persons apprehended for manufacturing or distributing controlled 
substances within 300 feet of a private elementary, vocational, or secondary school will 
receive a mandatory sentence of not less than two years. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 94C, §32J. 


 
c. File, at least annually, a report with the board of education certifying that the school has 


informed its students of the hazing prohibition and adopted and disseminated a disciplinary 
policy on the organizers and participants of hazing. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 269, §19. 


 
d. Report fires or explosions resulting in a loss of life in writing within 48 hours, excluding 


Sundays and holidays, to the fire marshal. Reports must be on forms furnished by the 
Massachusetts Department of Fire Services, and contain a statement of all known facts 
relating to the cause and origin of the fire or explosion, the extent of the damage, the 
insurance upon the damaged property, and other information as required. The fire marshal 
shall keep or cause to be kept a record of all fires or explosions occurring in the state, and 







 50 


 


ensure that the results of such investigations and records are open to public inspection. Mass. 
Gen. Laws c. 148, §2. 


 
e. Understand that as a private school, are subject to the Massachusetts Pesticide Control Act. 


Mass. Gen. Laws c. 132B; §§1 and 2. 
 


f. In addition, all staff will be trained and maintain a current CPR and First Aid certification. 
Record of this will be kept in staff files and renewed as required. Students have access to a 
designated area for sickness and supervision as needed until parent pickup.  


 


VI. Guidance and counseling programs 


At Drake, we believe every student has the potential to flourish. While we do not have a 
dedicated school Guidance Counselor yet, our model and foundation lends itself to guidance and 
counseling practices that promote well-being. With permission, parents will be able to discuss 
any issues with our coaches, who have a background in Psychology. We have built an intentional 
layer of guidance and coaching in our school to ensure that staff, parents, and students have 
access to resources that will support their mental health and development.  


In addition, members of our staff hold a variety of qualifications and certifications that help 
shape our guidance and counseling program: 


 Each student is assigned to a staff member whose role it is to support the student 
academically, mentally, and socially. Administration, staff, and parents work as a team to 
determine if further support is needed. If further support is needed, parents will seek a 
child psychologist to support their child’s mental health.   


 Certificate in Positive Education 


 Bachelor’s in Psychology 


 Certification in Special Education 


 Training in Collaborative Problem Solving – A program developed at Massachusetts 
General Hospital, a top-ranked Department of Psychiatry in the United States. CPS is 
proven to reduce challenging behavior, teach kids the skills they lack, and build 
relationships with the adults in their lives. 


 Each staff member attends professional development sessions that include instruction in 
Positive Education and the latest well-being, relationship building research. 


Our guidance and counseling program supports academic success, emotional wellbeing, social 
development, and character growth through a strengths-based, inclusive approach rooted in 
Positive Education. 


Guidance and Counseling Program Core Pillars 


1. Academic Guidance 


 Goal Setting & Growth Mindset Coaching: Students learn how to set goals, track progress, 
and reflect. 



https://www.massgeneral.org/psychiatry/about





 51 


 


 Learning Styles & Study Habits: Counselors help students identify their learning 
preferences and develop effective strategies. 


 Transition Support: Support for students moving into new grades, especially entry into 
middle school (grades 6–8). 


2. Social-Emotional Counseling 


 Positive Psychology Practices: Each day begins with Positive Education circles where 
students engage in strengths spotting, gratitude exercises, strength-spotting, and growth 
mindset affirmations. Everyday ends with a check-in to ensure support and well-being. 


 Restorative Circles: Used to build empathy, resolve conflicts, and repair harm. 


 Friendship & Empathy Workshops: Especially tied to the values of our House of Friendship 
(Khmer). 


3. Character & Values Development 


 House System Integration: Students earn points for displaying house values (e.g., courage, 
wisdom, kindness, friendship). 


 Service Learning: Age-appropriate community projects linked to empathy and leadership. 


 Moral Reasoning Dialogues: Weekly discussions that build ethical thinking and social 
responsibility. 


4. Mental Health Support 


 Tiered Support Model: 


o Tier 1: Whole-school wellbeing curriculum (mindfulness, SEL lessons, movement 
breaks). 


o Tier 2: Small group interventions (grief group, anxiety management, social skills). 


o Tier 3: Individual counseling and referrals (with parental consent). 


 Referral Network: Partnerships with local mental health professionals and clinics. 


5. College, Career & Purpose Exploration (Grades 6–8) 


 Purpose Discovery: Introduce the concept of ikigai — what students love, are good at, and 
the world needs. 


 Career Days: Local professionals, especially in service-oriented roles, share their journeys. 


 Leadership Coaching: Students explore what leadership looks like for them within the 
school and community. 


Delivery Methods 


 Weekly one-on-one check-ins  


 Small group counseling by theme 


 Parent coffee chats and resources on child development 


 Teacher-counselor collaboration meetings to support student plans 







 52 


 


Assessment & Evaluation 


Student wellbeing surveys – At Drake, we will utilize Panorama Family-School Relationships 
Survey. This survey is used starting in grade 3 and changes the measure to be developmentally 
appropriate for 1st and 2nd grade. This survey measures: 


 Family engagement 


 School fit 


 Family support 


 Family efficacy 


 Learning behaviors 


 School climate 


 Grit 


 Barriers to engagement 


 Roles and responsibilities 


 School safety 


 


In year one, the survey will be administered on 11/1, 3/1, and 6/1. In subsequent years, it will be 
administered on 9/15, 11/15, 3/1, and 6/1. Results will be reviewed with staff, who will determine 
steps to improve the student-school experience.  


SEL skills rubrics and progress reports – At Drake, our programming includes several key pieces 
that enhance SEL and well-being: 


 We use the PEEC Curriculum (Positive Education Enhanced Curriculum) developed by the 
Institute of Positive Education at Geelong Grammar School) to guide our Positive Psychology 
instruction 


Morning Meetings with PEEC 


 Foster a sense of belonging and psychological safety 


 Develop student wellbeing literacy 


 Practice the five elements of PERMA (Positive Emotion, Engagement, Relationships, 
Meaning, and Accomplishment) 


 Reinforce schoolwide values and House principles 


 


At Drake, we understand that children need support in order to flourish. We have intentionally 
built our model on research designed to promote human flourishing. With the plan that we have 
in place, we believe that our students will be well prepared to meet the challenges of school and 
life, and that they will have the necessary supports to use as needed.  


 







 53 


 


VII. Discipline policy 


To avoid confusion or frustration due to different behavioral expectations from classroom to 
classroom or teacher to teacher, we have a clear set of expectations.  
 
Teachers work together to come up with a school wide code of conduct as well as the 
appropriate disciplinary action for each behavior (i.e. if a child comes to any class without a 
pencil, the schoolwide discipline for that behavior might be to receive a detention). This will 
eliminate mixed messages and frustration between staff and students. During class time, 
children who disrupt the learning of others will be given the following consequence: 
 
First offense: Child puts name on board 
2nd offense: Child puts a checkmark next to their name 
3rd offense: Child puts a second checkmark next to their name 
4th offense: Meet with parent and child the same day to discuss the issue and make a plan to be 
successful in the future.  
 
Note: If there are several offenses and no improvement, or if it becomes clear that DAE is not the 
best fit for a student, they will surrender their enrollment and find a school that better meets 
their needs. No refunds on tuition will be given to any families who find themselves in this 
situation.  
 
 
 


VIII. Hazing policy | Annual hazing & disciplinary report form 


 


a. Hazing Policy for Grades 6–8 


 


Policy Statement: DAE is committed to maintaining a school environment that is safe, respectful, 
and inclusive. Hazing of any kind is strictly prohibited and will not be tolerated. This policy 
applies to all students, staff, faculty, volunteers, and visitors associated with the school. 


 


Definition of Hazing: Hazing is defined as any conduct, whether on or off school grounds, that 
recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental, emotional, or physical health or safety of a 
student for the purpose of initiation into, admission into, affiliation with, or as a condition for 
continued membership in any school-related group, club, team, or activity. This includes, but is 
not limited to: 
 


 Physical harm or restraint 


 Forced consumption of food, alcohol, or any other substance 


 Acts of humiliation, intimidation, or degradation 


 Sleep deprivation or forced exclusion from social contact 


 Any behavior that causes emotional distress or poses a risk to health and safety 


 







 54 


 


Prohibited Activities: All forms of hazing are strictly prohibited, regardless of whether the 
individual consents to participate. The school will take disciplinary action for any hazing 
behavior, including activities that are perceived as "tradition" or "initiation rituals." 


 


Reporting and Investigation: Any student, parent, guardian, staff member, or community 
member who becomes aware of an incident of hazing is encouraged to report it immediately to 
a school administrator. Reports may be made anonymously. All reported incidents will be 
promptly and thoroughly investigated in accordance with school disciplinary procedures. 


 


Disciplinary Action: Any student or staff member found to have engaged in hazing will be 
subject to disciplinary measures, up to and including suspension, expulsion, or termination of 
employment, consistent with the school’s code of conduct. In addition, any individual who had 
knowledge of hazing and failed to report or intervene may also face consequences. 


b. Annual Hazing Prohibition and Disciplinary Policy Report 


 


In compliance with school policy and Massachusetts state law, Drake Academy of Excellence will 
prepare and file an Annual Hazing Prohibition and Disciplinary Policy Report no later than July 1 
of each year. This report will include the following: 


 


1. A statement affirming that the school has issued its hazing policy to all students and staff 
in grades 6–8. 


2. A description of the methods used to communicate and educate students and staff about 
the policy (e.g., student handbooks, assemblies, parent communication). 


3. A record of any hazing incidents reported, investigated, and the resulting disciplinary 
actions taken, while protecting the identity and privacy of the individuals involved. 


4. A summary of training or prevention programs implemented throughout the academic 
year. 


5. Any revisions or updates made to the hazing policy. 


 


This report will be reviewed by school leadership, retained in the school’s compliance records, 
and made available to parents, guardians, and the public upon request. 


 


Prevention and Education: The school will provide age-appropriate education on hazing 
prevention to all students in grades 6–8. This includes discussions on peer pressure, personal 
boundaries, respectful group dynamics, and how to seek help if they witness or experience 
hazing. 







 55 


 


 


Acknowledgment: All students in grades 6–8 and their parents/guardians will be required to sign 
an acknowledgment form each year confirming that they have read, understood, and agree to 
abide by the school's Hazing Policy. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 56 


 


R. Financial Support | Legal Status 
a. The school provides evidence of financial solvency and resources to sustain the educational 
program. 


The financial viability of Drake Academy of Excellence comes from a variety of funding sources: 
Tuition, contributions/donations, revenue generated from Drake Academy of Excellence Teacher 
and Leadership Collaborative (DAETLC). Please see budget in appendix. 


 


b. The school presents documentation of its legal status. These may include copies of the 
articles of incorporation and the certification of tax exempt status. 


Please see documents in the appendix. 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







 57 


 


S. Student Learning Time | School Calendar and Schedule 
The school provides adequate student learning time (length of school year and school day) and 
hours of instruction in each subject. 
 


 


I. Student Learning Time 
 


Students are in school for a total of 36 weeks or 180 days, as required by the 
Massachusetts Department of Education.  


 
II. School Calendar 
 
 
 
 
 







 58 


 


 


M T W TH F M T W TH F M T W TH F
1 2 3 4 1 2


3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30


M T W TH F M T W TH F M T W TH F
2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1
9 10 11 12 13 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8


16 17 18 19 20 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15
23 24 25 26 27 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22
30 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29


M T W TH F M T W TH F M T W TH F
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2
8 9 10 11 12 8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9


15 16 17 18 19 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26 22 23 24 25 26 19 20 21 22 23


29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30


STAFF ORIENTATION


M T W TH F M T W TH F BOOT CAMP


1 2 3 4 1st DAY OF SCHOOL


3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 4:00 DISMISSAL


10 11 12 13 14 14 15 16 17 18 12:15 DISMISSAL


17 18 19 20 21 21 22 23 24 25 HOLIDAY -  CLOSED


24 25 26 27 28 28 29 30 LAST DAY/END 12:30


36 weeks in school 


AUGUST 2026 SEPTEMBER 2026


FEBRUARY 2027 MARCH 2027 APRIL 2027


MAY 2027 JUNE 2027


         2026 / 2027 Drake School Calendar


OCTOBER 2026


NOVEMBER 2026 DECEMBER 2026 JANUARY 2027







 59 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Dear parents,


MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY


5/4/2025


Drake Academy of Excellence                                                       
275 Billerica Road Unit 1B     
Chelmsford, MA 01824 


8:10 - 9:05 MORNING MEETING & POSITIVE EDUCATION LESSON


TIME /DAY


7:45 - 8:00 TEACHER ARRIVAL


8:00 - 8:10 STUDENT DROP OFF


9:05 - 9:50 MATH


9:50 - 10:45 SNACK & RECESS


10:45 - 12:00 ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS


2:45 - 3:30 SERVICE LEARNING


12:00 - 12:30 LUNCH


12:30 - 1:15 SOCIAL STUDIES


1:15 - 2:00 RECESS


4:00 DISMISSAL


978-254-6828
Main number


Daily School Schedule


Every Friday - Dismissal @ 4:00 (no after school programming).


First Friday of each month - Dismissal @ 12:15 (1/2 day for staff PD).


Our schedule reflects our commitment to academic excellence, emotional intelligence, and strong 
mental health. We begin each morning by coming together with a morning meeting and then we 
dive right into our positive education lesson. This gives teachers and students the opportunity to 
build positive relationships and to learn from one another. 


3:00 - 3:45 CO-CURRICULARS


3:45 - 4:00 CHECK IN/REFLECTION


4:00 - 5:00 AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMMING MIXED AGES / GRADES  (Extra Fee)


2:00 - 2:45 SCIENCE







 60 


 


T. Appendix 


 
Table of Contents 
 


 
A. DESE Sample Criteria for School Board Approval – 61 


B. Massachusetts State Regulations for MA Private Schools – 63 


C. Financial Plan – 67 


D. Proof of 501c3 - 68 


E. Certificate of Good Standing - 69 


F. Founding Principles - 70 


G. Staff - 71 


H. Partner Endorsements – 77 


I. Positive Education and the PERMA Model - 79 


J. Curricular Standards - 80 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 61 


 


A. Sample Criteria for Approval of a Private School by a 
School Committee 


I.  Population to be Served 


Admissions criteria; documentation of school's enrollment 


 
II. Physical Plant/Safety 


A. The school shows evidence of current: 


i) Certificate of Occupancy 
ii) Fire inspection 
iii) Safety inspection 
iv) Elevator inspection, if applicable 
v) Compliance with lead paint poisoning prevention (for children under 6 years old) 
vi) Compliance with other applicable federal and state health and safety standards (e.g., 
PCB, asbestos inspections, handicap accessibility) 
vii) Copies of valid safety and health inspection certificates 


B. The site, plant, and equipment adequately support the program and are operated to ensure 
the safety and health of the students. 


 


III. Curriculum 


The curriculum offered is "equivalent" to that offered in the local school system generally and, 
specifically, in terms of the following instructional areas: 
 


i) mathematics 
ii) science and technology 
iii) history and social science 
iv) English 
v) foreign languages 
vi) the arts 
vii) physical education 


 


IV. Educational Materials 


Textbooks and individual instructional materials, including computers and other technology, are 
adequate. 


 


V.  School Staff 


The instruction provided is "thorough and efficient" based on: 







 62 


 


i) teacher qualifications 
ii) adequate student/teacher ratio 
iii) regular evaluation of staff 
iv) the school principal reviews criminal offender record information (CORI) of current and 
prospective employees and volunteers, as required by law 


 


VI. Administration 


The school has a clearly defined organization that facilitates its objectives. 


 


VII. Records 


A. The school maintains an adequate system of student records (e.g., attendance, health, 
discipline, progress reports). 


B. The student records are kept in a secure and organized manner that is consistent with federal 
and state student record laws to the extent applicable. 


C. The school maintains and timely provides transcripts in response to requests of students and 
former students in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34A. 


D. The school is prepared efficiently to transfer transcripts of all students and former students to 
the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education and/or other schools 
should it cease operation, in accordance with G.L. c. 71, § 34G. 


 


VIII. Student Services 


The school provides adequate pupil personnel services for all students (e.g., health care 
procedures, guidance and counseling programs, discipline policy). 


IX. Financial Support 


A. The school provides evidence of financial solvency and resources to sustain the educational 
program. 


B. The school presents documentation of its legal status. These may include copies of the articles 
of incorporation and the certification of tax exempt status. 


X.  Student Learning Time 


The school provides adequate student learning time (length of school year and school day) and 
hours of instruction in each subject. 


XI. Student Performance Assessment 


The school periodically evaluates students' skills, competencies, and knowledge and documents 
their progress. 







 63 


 


B. Massachusetts State Regulations for MA Private Schools  
Updated November 16, 2016 


I. Registration, Licensing, and Approval 


 Accreditation: no requirements 
 Registration: requirements 
 Licensing: no requirements 
 Approval: mandatory 


o Attendance at a private school satisfies the compulsory attendance requirement if the 
school is approved by the school committee. Massachusetts General Laws (Mass. Gen. 
Laws) chapter (c.) 76, §1. (The "school committee" in Massachusetts is the local 
educational agency.) 


o School committees will approve a private school when satisfied that its instruction 
equals the public schools in the same town in thoroughness and efficiency and that 
private students are making the same progress as public school students. A school 
committee may not withhold approval based on the school's religious teaching. Mass. 
Gen. Laws c. 76, §1. 


II. Teacher Certification 


 No state policy currently exists. 


III. Length of School Year and Days 


 Massachusetts' law does not specify a required length of school year for private schools. 
However, a memorandum put out by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and 
Secondary Education (Department) suggests a school committee include in the criteria for 
approval adequate student learning time. Student learning time includes the number of school 
days, and hours in a school day. Advisory on Approval of Massachusetts Private Schools 
Pursuant to Mass. Gen. Laws c. 76, § 1. 


IV. Curriculum 


 There is no mandate regarding what courses private schools shall teach. The Department 
suggests that the "thoroughness and efficiency" criteria can be interpreted to include approval 
based on the private school's program of studies and curriculum. Advisory on Approval of 
Massachusetts Private Schools Pursuant to Mass. Gen. Laws c. 76, § 1. 


 Massachusetts Art Week is celebrated the last week of May and private schools are 
encouraged to observe the tradition by the display of works of art and appropriate exhibitions 
and ceremonies. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 6, §15D. 


V. Recordkeeping and Reports 


 The supervisory officers of all private schools must report the name, age and residence of any 
child enrolled in the school to the superintendent of schools in the town where the children reside 
within 30 days of enrollment. If a child withdraws from the school, the officers must notify the 
superintendent within 10 days. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 72, §2. 


 The local superintendent of schools files an annual report with the commissioner of education on 
or before May 1st on the number of pupils enrolled in nonpublic schools within the district. The 
information is collected during the months of January and February. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 72, §2A. 



http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html





 64 


 


 Private school administrators and teachers are required to provide information or reports 
requested by any justice relating to the attendance, conduct, and standing of any pupil enrolled, if 
the pupil is awaiting court examination or trial or is at that time under the supervision of the 
court. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 119, §69. 


 Persons operating an education institution have an obligation to provide a student with his or her 
written transcript upon the student's request. The first copy must be provided free. Schools may 
charge a fee for duplicates not exceeding $1 for each page, but not exceeding $5 for an entire 
transcript. Anyone denied a transcript may petition the courts for relief. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, 
§§34A and 34B. 


 If a private school closes, the owner must transfer all current and former students' transcripts to 
the Department or to the school to which a current student has transferred. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, 
§34G. 


VI. Health and Safety Requirements 


 The principal or chief administrator of a private school must obtain at least every three years 
all available criminal offender record information from the department of criminal justice 
information services for any current or prospective employee or volunteer at the school "who 
may have direct and unmonitored contact with children, including any individual who regularly 
provides school related transportation to children." The principal or chief administrator of a 
private school must also obtain a state and national fingerprint-based check for all current and 
prospective school employees "who may have direct and unmonitored contract with children." 
Whether to require fingerprint-based check for volunteers is left to the discretion of each 
school. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, §38R. 


o The fingerprint-based background check requirements for public and private schools 
are spelled out in the regulations of the Department at 603 Code of Massachusetts 
Regulations (CMR) 51.00. 


 Private school teachers who have reasonable cause to believe a child under 18 is suffering 
physical or emotional injury resulting from abuse or neglect are under an obligation to 
immediately report the condition either to the Massachusetts Department of Children and 
Families or to the school administrator, who is then responsible for notifying the Department 
of Children and Families. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 119; §§21 and 51A. 


 Persons apprehended for manufacturing or distributing controlled substances within 300 feet 
of a private elementary, vocational, or secondary school will receive a mandatory sentence of 
not less than two years. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 94C, §32J. 


 Each institution of secondary education must file at least annually a report with the board of 
education certifying that the school has informed its students of the hazing prohibition and 
adopted and disseminated a disciplinary policy on the organizers and participants of 
hazing. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 269, §19. 


 Fires or explosions resulting in a loss of life must be reported in writing within 48 hours, 
excluding Sundays and holidays, to the fire marshal. Reports must be on forms furnished by 
the Massachusetts Department of Fire Services, and contain a statement of all known facts 
relating to the cause and origin of the fire or explosion, the extent of the damage, the 
insurance upon the damaged property, and other information as required. The fire marshal 
shall keep or cause to be kept a record of all fires or explosions occurring in the state, and 
ensure that the results of such investigations and records are open to public inspection. Mass. 
Gen. Laws c. 148, §2. 


 Private schools are subject to the Massachusetts Pesticide Control Act. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 
132B; §§1 and 2. 


VII. Transportation 







 65 


 


 Students who attend approved private schools are entitled to the same rights and privileges to 
transportation to and from school as are provided by law for public school students, within 
specified limits. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 76, §1. 


 Street or elevated railway companies must provide special rates for public and private school 
students during the days or evenings when school is in session not to exceed one-half of the 
regular fare. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 161, §108. 


VIII. Textbooks 


 The use of state or local funds to pay for textbook loans to pupils of private schools violates 
the state constitution. Bloom v. School Committee of Springfield, 379 N.E.2d 578 (1978). 


 The Department suggests that the "thoroughness and efficiency" criteria can be interpreted to 
include approval based on the private school's textbooks and materials. Advisory on Approval 
of Massachusetts Private Schools Pursuant to Mass. Gen. Laws c. 76, § 1. 


IX. Testing 


 The Department suggests that the "thoroughness and efficiency" criteria can be interpreted to 
include approval based on the private school's student performance assessment 
procedures. Advisory on Approval of Massachusetts Private Schools Pursuant to Mass. Gen. 
Laws c. 76, § 1. 


X. Special Education 


 If appropriate, publicly funded eligible students with disabilities requiring special education 
may be placed in a public or approved private special education program in accordance with 
603 CMR 28.09 (1). Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71B, §10. 


 School committees may authorize the prepayment of tuition of a publicly place student with 
disabilities, for a period not exceeding three months, to any approved private school. Mass. 
Gen. Laws c. 71, §71D. 


 Eligible students with disabilities who attend private school at private expense are entitled to 
special education designed to meet their needs. The school district where the student with 
disabilities is a resident must provide genuine opportunities to participate in the public school 
special education program consistent with the state constitutional limitations. Eligible 
students are entitled to an individualized education program (IEP). Services provided or 
arranged for by the district pursuant to an IEP, if paid for with state or local funds, must be 
provided in a public facility or other public or neutral site. If services are funded only with 
federal monies, they may be provided on private school grounds. Administrative Advisory 
SPED 2007-2: IDEA-2004 and Private School Students (Updated July 2008). 


XI. Nursing and Health 


 Pupils attending private schools may receive screening for sight, hearing, and other physical 
defects through the local school committee or board of health at the request of a 
parent/guardian, providing the private school is approved and does not discriminate in its 
entrance requirements on the basis of race or color. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 71, §57. 


 


XII. Technology 



http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/advisory/100207privateschool.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/07_2.html

http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/07_2.html





 66 


 


 Private schools are eligible to receive grants from the Massachusetts Science, Technology 
Engineering, and Mathematics Grant Fund with the purpose of increasing the number of 
qualified science, technology, engineering and mathematics teachers and improving the 
course offerings in the areas of science, technology, engineering and mathematics. Mass. Gen. 
Laws c. 29, §2MMM. 


XIII. Professional Development 


 By statute, one of the 14-member Massachusetts Educational Communications Commission 
must be a representative of private elementary and secondary education. Mass. Gen. Laws c. 6, 
§158. 


XIV. Reimbursement for Performing State and Local Functions 


 No state policy currently exists. 


XV. Tax Exemption 


 Private school property is exempt from property taxation as a "literary, benevolent, charitable 
and scientific institution." Mass. Gen. Laws c. 59, §5. Board of Assessors v. Garland School of 
Home Making, 6 N.E.2d 374 (1937). 


XVI. Public Aid for Private Education 


 Constitutional Provisions: The Massachusetts Constitution provides that no appropriation of 
public money may be made to aid a primary or secondary school that is not publicly owned 
and under the exclusive control of public officers authorized by the Commonwealth. Mass. 
Const. Ann. Amend. Art. 18 §2. 


 Programs for financial assistance for attendance at private schools: No such programs 
currently exist. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 67 


 


C. Financial Plan 


 


 







 68 


 


D. Proof of 501c3 


 







 69 


 


E. Certificate of Good Standing 


 


 







 70 


 


F. Founding Principles 


 







 71 


 


G. Staff 


 







 72 


 


 







 73 


 


 


Jeannie Painter Wagner 


PO Box 1176, Merrimack NH 03054 
603-566-9455       jajesasa@aol.com 


                                              


 


Experience 
 


9/2004-present 
Resource Teacher • James Mastricola Upper Elementary School • Merrimack School 
District, Merrimack NH  


 Resource teacher for students in 5th grade, provide differentiation support to the general 
curriculum, provide specialized individual and small group instruction in accordance 
with IEP, develop IEP with specific, targeted goals and objectives, using research-
based tools for progress monitoring   


 Resource teacher for students in 5-6 grade, provide individualized/small group 
instruction using alternative reading programs such as O-G, Wilson, Reading 
Milestones and alternative math programs such as Transitions Math according to IEP 
goals. Provided weekly feedback to students and parents as to progress toward grade 
level mastery, trained in Orton-Gillingham, Wilson Reading steps 1-6 


 
9/1984-6/2004 
Resource Teacher • Reeds Ferry Elementary School • Merrimack School District, 
Merrimack, NH 


 Resource teacher for students in grades 4-5, provide differentiation support to the 
general education curriculum for all identified students, trained in Wilson reading 
program steps 1-6, develop IEP with specific, targeted goals and objectives, using QRI 
and other research-based tools for progress monitoring   


 Resource teacher for students grade 1-5 with severe learning disabilities, provide 
inclusion opportunities grades 1-5, provide specialized academic instruction and 
behavioral supports according to IEP goals, develop targeted goals and objectives for 
IEP 


 Resource teacher for students grade 1-5 with significant special needs, provide 
inclusion opportunities grades 1-5, medical support and specialized individual academic 
and life skill instruction and behavioral supports according to IEP goals, develop 
targeted goals and objectives for IEP 


 
8/1982-8/1984 
Early Intervention Teacher • The Moore Center • Manchester, NH 


 Provided developmental monitoring and activities for infants and toddlers 1-3 years old 
in a home setting. Supported transition to public school setting at the age of 3. 
Participated in ChildFind for Southern NH 


Education 
 


2023 C.A.G.S. Language Based Learning Disabilities and Dyslexia, Southern New Hampshire 
University, Manchester NH 
2009   M.Ed. Curriculum and Instruction specializing in Literacy, Lesley University, Cambridge, 
MA  
1979   B.A. English Education, Speech and Drama, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, MI  


 
 
 
 







 74 


 


4 VIRGINIA ROAD • TEWKSBURY, MA 01876 • (978) 857-1306 
KSMCGARR14@GMAIL.COM 


 


KAYLA S. MCGARR 


 


EDUCATION              


 
Master of Music Education 
 Gordon College, Wenham, MA  Graduation: August 2015    GPA (3.95) 


 


 
Certification in First Steps in Music 


Methodologist and Instructor: John Feierabend  Completion: July 2014 


 
Certification in Conversational Solfege, levels I and II 


Methodologist and Instructor: John Feierabend  Completion: July 2013 


  
Bachelor of Music Education (Voice), Choral Concentration 


Gordon College, Wenham, MA          Graduation: May 2009 


 Music Education Major of the Year Award, Gordon College (Fall 2008 – Spring 2009) 
 GPA (3.59) 
 Discipleship Scholarship, Recipient (Fall 2005 – Spring 2009) 
 Presidential Honors: GPA above 3.75 and no grade below a C (Spring 2008) 
 Dean’s List: GPA between 3.50 & 3.74 and no grade below a C (Fall 2005, 2006, 2008, Spring 2007) 


 


MASSACHUSETTS INITIAL LICENSURE  ___________       


 
 Pre K-12  
 General Music / Choral / Instrumental 
 NASDTEC: National Association of State Directors of Teacher Education and Certification 
 Teaching Certificate  #436763 


 


TEACHING EXPERIENCE            


 
Dutile/Parker Elementary Schools – Billerica Public Schools, MA (August 2009 – present) 


Grades K-Five General Music/Choral Specialist 


 


 
 Supervising Practitioner for UMASS Lowell and Gordon College music education practicums. 


 Teach collegiate demonstration lessons for Gordon College Lab School. 


 Honor Thy Teacher Award, nominated by specific families of students within the district for one’s 
impact and dedication to student learning. (2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2022, 2023) 


 Grant writer and recipient for classroom instruments and materials.  


 Co-creator of annual “Evening with the Arts” advocacy night for students, parents, and administrators, 
create and deliver hands-on lessons and demonstrations.  


 Sequence music literacy curriculum, create units, and lesson plans based on John Feierabend’s First Steps 
in Music and Conversational Solfege and Kenneth Phillips’ Teaching Kids to Sing. 


 Created and piloted district’s first ukulele in-school program.  







 75 


 


 Organize and conduct in-school and after-school performances at sporting events and community centers, 
featuring student choral concerts, Orff instrumental ensembles, and musicals. 


 Musical director for cross-curricular events and initiatives (ie. assemblies, graduation ceremonies, Poetry 
Slam, Talent Show, Field Day, other special events). 


 RTI interventionist for students with social and/or emotional disabilities. 
 Co-creator of after-school volleyball incentive program for students in grades three through five. 


 
Student Teaching Practicum (January – May 2009) 


Dutile Elementary School - Billerica, MA 
 Grades One - Five General Music/Chorus 


 Coordinated professional piano performance. 
 Conducted at the All-Town Chorus Concert, accompanied and assisted rehearsals on piano. 
 Organized choral performance recording for school PTO meeting. 


Billerica Memorial High School - Billerica MA 
 Select Vocal Ensemble 


 Created lesson plans, conducted rehearsals, developed beginning sight-reading program, created 
warm-ups to improve vocal technique, researched and created concert program notes. 


 High School Musical (Beauty and the Beast) 
 Conducted sectional rehearsals, created and taught characterization techniques, assisted in 


ensemble rehearsals, assessed rehearsal run-throughs and provided feedback to students, 
rehearsed lines with individual students, assisted in set design and construction, ticket sales. 


 Popular Music (elective class) 
 Created and implemented lesson plans, incorporating Soundtrack Music and Music Aesthetics.  


 
Summer Music Academy (2008, 2009) 


 Beginning Music Theory: Created and taught score analysis and composition for mixed class, ages 8-15. 
 World Music: Created and taught “Latin American Music.” 
 Junior Chorus: Co-directed rehearsals and sectionals, assisted in performance. 


 
Teaching Grant Writer and Winner – Lynn, MA (April 2008) 


 Grade Five Percussion Ensemble workshop taught with concluding performance, purchased instruments 
later donated to school. 


 


LEADERSHIP/EXTRACURRICULAR          


 
Children’s Choir Founder and Artistic Director – Boston Church of Christ (2012 – present) 


 Conducts concerts and rehearsals for children ages six through sixteen. 


 Concert audience attendees 200-2,200 people per concert 


Massachusetts Northeast District Junior Girls Chorus – Manager (2012), Assistant Manager (2011) 


 Drafted conductor candidates for board approval, selected audition adjudicators, co-coordinated 
auditions, selected accompanist and instrumental soloists, prepared rehearsal space, drafted program 
notes, directed sectionals. 


HOPE Worldwide Medical/Educational Brigade – San Pedro Sula, Honduras (June 2010, Jan 2011, Jan 2012) 
 Coordinated children’s footwear donation drive at school to bring on brigade, taught music to children 


ages three to sixteen, conversed in conversational Spanish to children and their families.  


MMEA All-State Conference (2008 – present, annually), Collegiate Ambassador (2008) 
 Prepared concert venues and clinics, formally introduced clinicians and informal concerts, assisted in 


Boston Symphony Hall performance, coordinated scheduling, student chaperone. 







 76 


 


 
Embracing the New Music Educator, mentor (2009 – present) 


Advises new teachers and collegiate students both in-person and remotely, models demonstration lessons. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 77 


 


H. Partner Endorsements 


 
 
The Drake Academy of Excellence has partnered with Julie Jungalwala and the Institute 
for the Future of Learning in order to ensure that our mindsets, beliefs, and practices 
promote human development, build a positive school culture, and utilize effective 
leadership strategies.  
 
Because the mission of DAE is to shift systems and “provide an innovative model for 
education”, we believe that our collaboration with Julie will not only give us the tools 
and direction we need to shift education in our own school, but in other schools in our 
area and across the country. Our teacher and leadership development collaborative 
gives us a direct point of contact and interaction with teachers and leaders who are 
invested in shifting education in our country. We believe that involvement with the right 
people and leaders is critical to the success of this project and we are thrilled to be 
partnering with Julie and Susanna in this incredibly important work. 
 
Who is Julie? Julie Jungalwala is a coach and advisor to school leaders, educational 
institutions, and foundations whose mission is to shape the future of K-12 education. She 
has over fifteen years’ experience building effective learning environments that unlock 
human potential and enable organizational culture to adapt and grow during times of 
change. She is the founder and executive director of the Institute for the Future of 
Learning, a nonprofit organization dedicated to helping transform the factory model of 
education. The Institute works with a diverse range of clients including public schools, 
independent schools, public charter schools, and educational philanthropic 
organizations. Julie graduated from Harvard’s Graduate School of Education with a 
master’s degree in technology, innovation, and education. 
 
 
Julie’s Thoughts on the Drake Academy of Excellence: 
 
Q: You must have many requests for partnerships and you must have to choose which 
schools and leaders to help. Why have you agreed to work with DAE? What called you to 
form this partnership with them? 
 
A: Systems level change requires adult behavioral change (further explanation here). We 
will not have a system of education that supports the whole child until and unless we 
support whole adults within these learning environments too. Pre-Covid, the education 
system was under huge duress as many leaders and teachers made herculean efforts to 
transform practice while propping up an obsolete 100+ year system. Two years into the 
pandemic, the inadequacies of the system have been laid bare and we can no longer 
ignore them. The system needs an exemplar of what it to takes to nurture adult 



https://education-reimagined.org/change-management/





 78 


 


development as we nurture the development of children in parallel fashion. The mission 
of DAE is to be that exemplar. 
 
I am under no illusion of just how hard it is to get a new school off the ground. I believe 
in Esther and the board she has assembled to lead this important work. They are 
learners, who embrace the uncertainty ahead and the possibility inherent in the 
realization of the mission. It will be challenging, but this is the work that is sorely needed 
right now.  
 
 
Q: Children, teachers, and leaders have unique needs that aren’t being met in the 
current industrial school model. How do you think DAE will serve them and help meet 
their needs?  
 
A:  By meeting each child and adult where they are. By helping them design, build and 
live a life of their own choosing. By constantly personalizing the learning environment to 
each learner’s proximal zone of development. By grounding the work in what the 
research tells us with regards to how humans learn, grow and thrive. 
 
 
Q: What is different about DAE compared to other schools and what are the things 
about DAE that resonate with you? 
 
A:  The biggest difference is the focus on adult development – both from a leadership 
development perspective and a teacher development perspective. Effective professional 
development needs to be job embedded1 and the Drake Academy’s mission is to be a lab 
for this work. In addition, parent partnership is critical in realizing the potential of this 
model, DAE is building in the scaffolding and supports for this partnership from day 1. 
 
 
Q: You’ve known Esther since 2018. How would you describe her? What is it that struck 
you about her and the plans she has to create systemic change in education? 
 
A: I would describe Esther as visionary, positive, heartfelt – all with a focus on moving 
things forward. She also understands the critical importance of surrounding herself with 
the right people – this is essential to standing up the school and realizing DAE’s bold 
vision. 
 
 
 


 


 


                                                           
1 https://learningpolicyinstitute.org/sites/default/files/product-files/Effective_Teacher_Professional_Development_REPORT.pdf 







 79 


 


 


 


 







 80 


  







 81 


 


H. Massachusetts Curricular Standards 


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE FOR GRADES 1 TO 8 
GRADE 1                
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Algebraic Thinking Power Standards (ATPS)                                                                 
ATPS. 1. Represent and solve problems 
involving addition and subtraction.                                                 
ATPS. 2. Understand and apply properties of 
operations and the relationship between 
addition and subtraction.                                                                       
ATPS. 3. Add and subtract within 20.                                                                                            
ATPS. 4. Work with addition and subtraction 
equations.                                                                              
Number and Operations Power Standards 
(NOPS)                                                                                                  
NOPS. 1. Extend the counting sequence.                                                                                
NOPS. 2. Understand place value.                                                                                    
NOPS. 3. Use place value understanding and 
properties of operations to add and subtract.   


Measurement and Data Power Standards (MDPS)      
MDPS. 1. Measure lengths indirectly and by iterating 
length units.                                                                      
MDPS. 2. Tell and write time.                                                                     
MDPS. 3. Represent and interpret data.                                                     
MDPS. 4. Work with money.                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Geometry Power Standards (GPS)                                        
GPS. 1. Reason with shapes and their attributes.   


GRADE 1 ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS)                                             
RPS. 1. Ask and answer questions about key 
details in a text.                                                                                
RPS. 2. Retell stories, including key details, 
and demonstrate understanding of their 
central message or lesson.                                                                     
RPS. 3. Describe characters, settings, and 
major events in a story, using key details.                                                      
RPS. 4.  Identify words and phrases in stories 
or poems that suggest feelings or appeal to 
the senses. (See grade 1 Language Standards 
4–6 on applying knowledge of vocabulary to 
reading)                                                                              
RPS. 5. Identify characteristics of common 
types of stories, including folktales and fairy 
tales.                                                                                
RPS. 6. Identify who is telling the story at 
various points in a text.                                                                         
RPS. 7. Use illustrations and details in a story 
to describe its characters, setting, or events.                    
RPS. 8. Compare and contrast the adventures 
and experiences of characters in stories.                                     
RPS. 9. With prompting and support, read and 
comprehend literary texts representing a 
variety of genres, cultures, and perspectives 
and exhibiting complexity appropriate for at 
least grade 1.                                                                             
Reading Power Standards for Informational 
Text (RPSIT)                                                                                            
RPSIT. 1. Ask and answer questions about key 
details in a text.                                                                               
RPSIT. 2. Identify the main topic and retell key 
details of a text.                                                                                              
RPSIT. 3. Describe the connection between 
two individuals, events, ideas, or pieces of 
information in a text.                                                                                            
RPSIT. 4. Ask and answer questions to help 
determine or clarify the meaning of words 
and phrases in a text.                                                                           
RPSIT. 5. Know and use various text features.                   
RPSIT. 6. Distinguish between information 
provided by pictures or other illustrations and 
information provided by the words in a text.                                                 


RPSIT. 10. With prompting and support, read and 
comprehend informational texts exhibiting 
complexity appropriate for at least grade 1.     
Reading Power Standards for Foundational Skills 
(RPSFS)                                                                                          
RPSFS. 1. Demonstrate understanding of the 
organization and basic features of print.                                    
RPSFS. 2. Demonstrate understanding of spoken 
words, syllables, and sounds (phonemes).                                                                     
RPSFS. 3. Know and apply grade-level phonics and 
word analysis skills in decoding words.                                  
RPSFS. 4. Read with sufficient accuracy and fluency 
to support comprehension.                                      
Writing Power Standards (WPS)                                                
WPS. 1. Write opinion pieces that introduce the topic 
or name the book they are writing about, state an 
opinion, supply a reason for the opinion, and provide 
some sense of closure.                                                                                      
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts that 
name a topic, supply some facts about the topic, 
and provide some sense of closure.                                          
WPS. 3. Write narratives in prose or poem form that 
recount two or more appropriately sequenced 
events or experiences, include some details about 
what happened or was experienced, use temporal 
words to signal order where appropriate, and 
provide some sense of closure.                                                                
WPS.4. Produce writing in which the development 
and organization are appropriate to task, purpose, 
and audience. (Grade-specific expectations for 
writing types are defined in Standards 1–3 above.)                                                   
WPS. 5. With guidance and support from adults, 
focus on a topic, respond to questions and 
suggestions from peers, and add details to 
strengthen writing as needed.                                         
WPS. 6. With guidance and support from adults, use 
a variety of digital tools to produce and publish 
writing, including in collaboration with peers.                                                                           
WPS. 7. Participate in shared research and writing 
projects (e.g., explore a number of how-to books on 
a given topic and use them to write a sequence of 
instructions).                                                                            
WPS. 8. With guidance and support from adults, 







 82 


 


RPSIT. 7. Use the illustrations and details in a 
text to describe its key ideas.                                                                  
RPSIT. 8. Identify the reasons an author gives 
to support points in a text.                                                              
RPSIT. 9. Identify basic similarities in and 
differences between two texts on the same 
topic.  


recall information from experiences or gather 
information from provided sources to answer a 
question.                                                                                
WPS. 9. (Begins in 4th grade)                                                                            
WPS. 10. Write routinely for a range of tasks, 
purposes, and audiences. 


GRADE 1 ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
INTEGRATION 
(CONTINUED) 


Speaking and Listening Power Standards 
(SLPS)                                                                               
SLPS. 1. Participate in collaborative 
conversations with diverse partners about 
grade 1 topics and texts with peers and adults 
in small and larger groups.                                                   
SLPS. 2. Ask and answer questions about key 
details in a text read aloud or information 
presented orally or through other media. 
SLPS. 3. Ask and answer questions about 
what a speaker says in order to gather 
additional information or clarify something 
that is not understood.                                                               
SLPS. 4. Describe people, places, things, and 
events with relevant details, expressing ideas 
and feelings clearly and using appropriate 
vocabulary. (See grade 1 Language Standards 
4–6 for specific expectations regarding 
vocabulary.) 
SLPS. 5. Add drawings or other visual displays 
to descriptions when appropriate to clarify 
ideas, thoughts, and feelings. 
SLPS. 6. Produce complete sentences when 
appropriate to task and situation. (See grade 1 
Language Standard 1 for specific 
expectations.)        


Language Power Standards (LPS)                                                                       
LPS. 1. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English grammar and usage when writing 
or speaking; retain and further develop language 
skills learned in previous grades. 
LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English capitalization, punctuation, and 
spelling when writing.                                                                                                       
LPS. 3. (Begins in grade 2).                                                                              
LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of unknown 
and multiple-meaning words and phrases based on 
grade 1 reading and content, choosing flexibly from 
an array of strategies.                                                                               
LPS. 5. With guidance and support from adults, 
demonstrate understanding of word relationships 
and nuances in word meanings.                                                     
LPS. 6. Use words and phrases acquired through 
conversations, activities in the grade 1 curriculum, 
reading and being read to, and responding to texts, 
including using frequently occurring conjunctions 
(e.g., because) to signal simple relationships. 







 83 


 


GRADE 1 SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Topic 1. Civics Power Standards (CPS)                          
CPS. 1. Demonstrate understanding of the 
benefits of being part of a group and explain 
what it means to be a member of a group; 
follow the group’s rules, limits, responsibilities 
and expectations, and explain reasons for 
rules to others.                                                                                               
CPS. 2. Investigate the various roles that 
members of a group play and explain how 
those roles contribute to achieving a 
common goal.                                                                                                    
CPS. 3. Demonstrate understanding that a 
leader is also a member of a group, but takes 
on a different role with more responsibility for 
inspiring others, organizing and delegating 
activities, and helping the group make 
decisions.                                                                          
CPS. 4. Analyze examples of leadership and 
leaders from history, everyday life, and from 
literature and informational texts read or read 
aloud, and describe the qualities of a good 
leader.                                                                                
CPS. 5. Give examples of why members of a 
group who hold different views need ways to 
make decisions, and explain how members of 
a group can make fair decisions or choose 
leaders by voting.                                                                                                    
CPS. 6. Explain that an election is a kind of 
voting in which people select leaders.                                                                       
CPS. 7. Identify some leaders who are chosen 
by elections (e.g., the President of the United 
States, the Governor of Massachusetts, the 
captain of a soccer team) and explain their 
roles.                                                                                                     
 


CPS. 8. Demonstrate understanding that members 
of a town, city, or nation in the United States are 
called citizens, and that their rights and 
responsibilities include • electing leaders who serve 
fixed terms • paying attention to the leader’s actions, 
and • deciding whether or not to re-elect them on 
the basis of how well they have served citizens.                                                                                          
CPS. 9. Explain that all people born in the United 
States are citizens, while some people become  
citizens after moving to the Unites States from 
another country. Understand that some residents of 
the United States are not citizens, but are still 
members of the community with rights and 
responsibilities.  
CPS. 10. Evaluate the qualities of a good citizen or 
member of the community, drawing on examples  
from history, literature, informational texts, news 
reports, and personal experiences and features.                                                                            
Geography Power Standards (GPS)                                        
GPS. 1. Explain that a map represents spaces and 
helps one identify locations and features.                                      
GPS. 2. Identify and use language for cardinal 
directions (north, east, south, west) when locating 
and describing places on a map; use a map to 
identify the location of major cities and capitals (e.g., 
Boston, Massachusetts, Washington D.C., Mexico 
City, Mexico) and investigate factors that explain 
why these locations became important cities.                                                                                              
GPS. 3. Explain that a city that is called a capital is 
the center of government for a state or nation. 
GPS. 4. Locate and explain physical features (e.g., 
continents, oceans, rivers, lakes, mountains) on 
maps and construct maps and other representations 
of local places.                                                                                      







 84 


 


 GPS. 5. Demonstrate understanding that 
people from different parts of the world can 
have different ways of living, customs, and 
languages.                                                                                        
History Power Standards (HPS)                                                
HPS. 1. Provide evidence to explain some of 
the ways in which the people of the United 
States are unified (e.g., share a common 
national history) and diverse (e.g., have 
different backgrounds, hold different beliefs, 
and have different celebrations, cultural 
traditions, and family structures).                                                                                     
HPS. 2. Demonstrate understanding of the 
ways people show pride in belonging to the 
United States by recognizing and explaining 
the meaning of unifying symbols, phrases, 
and songs: a. national symbols (e.g., the 
United States flag, the bald eagle, the White 
House, and the Statue of Liberty) b. words, 
mottoes, phrases, sentences associated with 
the United States (e.g., “U.S.” or “America” 
standing for United States of America, the 
Latin motto, “E pluribus unum,”on coins, 
currency, and the seal of the United States, 
Pledge of Allegiance”) c. the melodies/lyrics 
of patriotic songs (e.g., “America the 
Beautiful,” “My Country, ‘Tis of Thee,” “God 
Bless America,” “The Star-Spangled Banner”)  
HPS. 3. Recognize and document sequential 
patterns in seasonal events or personal 
experiences, using a calendar and words and 
phrases relating to chronology and time, (e.g., 
in the past or future; present, past, and future 
tenses of verbs).                           


Economics Power Standards (EPS)                                   
EPS. 1. Explain the relationship between natural 
resources and industries and jobs in a particular 
location (e.g., fishing, shipbuilding, farming, trading, 
mining, lumbering, manufacturing). 
EPS. 2. Distinguish a renewable resource from a non-
renewable resource. 
EPS. 3. Explain that people are a resource too, and 
that the knowledge and skills they gain through 
school, college, and work make possible innovations 
and technological advancements that lead to an 
ever-growing share of goods and services.                                                                                          
EPS. 4. Explain what it means to be employed and 
define the terms income, wages, and salary.                                                                                   
EPS. 5. Give examples of products (goods) that 
people buy and use. 
EPS. 6. Give examples of services people do for each 
other. 
EPS. 7. Give examples of choices people have to 
make about buying goods and services (e.g., food for 
the family or a video game; bus fare to get to work 
or a movie ticket for entertainment) and why they 
have to make choices (e.g., because they have only 
enough money for one purchase, not two).EPS. 8. 
Analyze examples of voluntary choices people make 
about buying goods and services.                                                                          
EPS. 9. Compare and contrast reasons why people 
save some of their money (e.g., deciding to put 
some of it aside for later for a future purchase, for a 
charitable donation or for an emergency. 







 85 


 


GRADE 1 SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 
 


Earth & Space Sciences Power Standards 
(ESSPS)                                                                                      
Earth’s Place in the Universe                                                  
ESSPS. 1. Use observations of the Sun, Moon, 
and stars to describe that each appears to 
rise in one part of the sky, appears to move 
across the sky, and appears to set. 
ESSPS. 2. Analyze provided data to identify 
relationships among seasonal patterns of 
change, including relative sunrise and sunset 
time changes, seasonal temperature and 
rainfall or snowfall patterns, and seasonal 
changes to the environment.                                                                                  
 


Life Science Power Standards (LSPS)                                          
From Molecules to Organisms: Structures and 
Processes                                                                                              
LSPS. 1. Use evidence to explain that (a) different 
animals use their body parts and senses in different 
ways to see, hear, grasp objects, protect themselves, 
move from place to place, and seek, find, and take in 
food, water, and air, and (b) plants have roots, stems, 
leaves, flowers, and fruits that are used to take in 
water, air, and other nutrients, and produce food for 
the plant.                                                                                      
LSPS. 2. Obtain information to compare ways in 
which the behavior of different animal parents and 
their offspring help the offspring to survive.  
Heredity: Inheritance and Variation of Traits                                                                  
LSPS. 3. Use information from observations (first-
hand and from media) to identify similarities and 
differences among individual plants or animals of 
the same kind.                                                                                                           


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 2 







 86 


 


GRADE 2               
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Algebraic Thinking Power Standards (ATPS)                                                                 
ATPS. 1. Use addition and subtraction within 
100 to solve one- and two-step word 
problems involving situations of adding to, 
taking from, putting together, taking apart, 
and comparing, with unknowns in all 
positions, e.g., by using drawings and 
equations with a symbol for the unknown 
number to represent the problem.                                                                                        
ATPS. 2. Fluently add and subtract within 20 
using mental strategies. 9 By end of grade 2, 
know from memory all sums of two single-
digit numbers and related differences.                                                                  
ATPS. 3. Determine whether a group of 
objects (up to 20) has an odd or even number 
of members, e.g., by pairing objects or 
counting them by 2s; write an equation to 
express an even number as a sum of two 
equal addends.                                                                                
ATPS. 4. Use addition to find the total number 
of objects arranged in rectangular arrays with 
up to five rows and up to five columns; write 
an equation to express the total as a sum of 
equal addends.                                                                              
Number and Operations Power Standards 
(NOPS)                                                                                                  
NOPS. 1. Understand that the three digits of a 
three-digit number represent amounts of 
hundreds, tens, and ones; e.g., 706 equals 7 
hundreds, 0 tens, and 6 ones.                                                                                          
NOPS. 2. Count within 1,000; skip-count by 
5s, 10s, and 100s. Identify patterns in skip 
counting starting at any number.                                                                                       
NOPS. 3. Read and write numbers to 1,000 
using base-ten numerals, number names, and 
expanded form.                                                                                                       
NOPS. 4. Compare two three-digit numbers 
based on meanings of the hundreds, tens, 
and ones digits, using >, =, and < symbols to 
record the results of comparisons.                                      
NOPS. 5. Fluently add and subtract within 100 
using strategies based on place value, 
properties of operations, and/or the 
relationship between addition and 
subtraction.                                                       
NOPS. 6. Add up to four two-digit numbers 
using strategies based on place value and 
properties of operations.                                                                             
NOPS. 7. Add and subtract within 1,000, using 
concrete models or drawings and strategies 
based on place value, properties of 
operations, and/or the relationship between 
addition and subtraction; relate the strategy 
to a written method. Understand that in 
adding or subtracting three-digit numbers, 
one adds or subtracts hundreds and 
hundreds, tens and tens, ones and ones; and 
sometimes it is necessary to compose or 
decompose tens or hundreds.                                                                        
NOPS. 8. Mentally add 10 or 100 to a given 
number 100–900, and mentally subtract 10 or 
100 from a given number 100–900.                         
NOPS. 9. Explain why addition and 


Measurement and Data Power Standards (MDPS)                                                                                  
MDPS. 1. Measure the length of an object by 
selecting and using appropriate tools such as rulers, 
yardsticks, meter sticks, and measuring tapes.                                                                                         
MDPS. 2. Measure the length of an object twice, 
using length units of different lengths for the two 
measurements; describe how the two 
measurements relate to the size of the unit chosen.                                                                            
MDPS. 3. Estimate lengths using units of inches, feet, 
centimeters, and meters.                                                    
MDPS. 4. Measure to determine how much longer 
one object is than another, expressing the length 
difference in terms of a standard length unit.                                                                               
MDPS. 5. Use addition and subtraction within 100 to 
solve word problems involving lengths that are given 
in the same units, e.g., by using drawings (such as 
drawings of rulers) and equations with a symbol for 
the unknown number to represent the problem.                                           
MDPS. 6. Represent whole numbers as lengths from 
0 on a number line diagram with equally spaced 
points corresponding to the numbers 0, 1, 2… and 
represent whole-number sums and differences 
within 100 on a number line diagram.                                                                                     
MDPS. 7. Tell and write time from analog and digital 
clocks to the nearest five minutes, using a.m. and 
p.m.                                                                                               
MDPS. 8. Solve word problems involving dollar bills, 
quarters, dimes, nickels, and pennies (up to $10), 
using $ and ¢ symbols appropriately and whole 
dollar amounts.                                                                      
MDPS. 9. Generate measurement data by measuring 
lengths of several objects to the nearest whole unit, 
or by making repeated measurements of the same 
object. Organize and record the data on a line plot 
(dot plot) where the horizontal scale is marked off in 
whole-number units.                                                               
MDPS. 10. Draw a picture graph and a bar graph 
(with single-unit scale) to represent a data set with 
up to four categories. Solve simple put-together, 
take-apart, and compare problems using 
information presented in a bar graph.                                                                    
Geometry Power Standards (GPS)                                                                                                                    
GPS. 1. Recognize and draw shapes having specified 
attributes, such as a given number of angles or a 
given number of equal faces.12 Identify triangles, 
squares, rectangles, rhombuses, trapezoids, 
pentagons, hexagons, and cubes.                                                                             
GPS. 2. Partition a rectangle into rows and columns 
of same-size squares and count to find the total 
number of them.                                                              
GPS. 3. Partition circles and rectangles into two, 
three, or four equal shares, describe the shares using 
the words halves, thirds, half of, a third of, etc., and 
describe the whole as two halves, three thirds, four 
fourths. Recognize that equal shares of identical 
wholes need not have the same shape.                                                                                       







 87 


 


subtraction strategies work, using place value 
and the properties of operations.      







 88 


 


GRADE 2 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS)                                                   
RPS. 1. Ask and answer such questions as 
who, what, where, when, why, and how to 
demonstrate understanding of key details in a 
text.                                                                                   
RPS. 2. Retell stories, including fables and 
folktales from diverse cultures, and 
determine their central message, lesson, or 
moral.                                                                RPS. 
3. Describe how characters in a story respond 
to major events and challenges.                                                        
RPS. 4. Describe how words and phrases (e.g., 
regular beats, alliteration, rhymes, repeated 
lines) supply rhythm and meaning in a story, 
poem, or song. (See grade 2 Language 
Standards 4–6 on applying knowledge of 
vocabulary to reading.)                                              
RPS. 5. Describe the overall structure of a 
story, including describing how the beginning 
introduces the story and the ending 
concludes the action.                                                                          
RPS. 6. Explain what dialogue is and how it 
can reveal characters’ thoughts and 
perspectives.                                         RPS. 7. 
Use information gained from the illustrations 
and words in a print or digital text to 
demonstrate understanding of its characters, 
setting, or plot.                                                                       
RPS. 8. (Not applicable. For expectations 
regarding central messages, lessons, or 
morals in stories, see RL.2.)                                                                                                     
RPS. 9. Compare and contrast two or more 
versions of the same story (e.g., Cinderella 
stories) by different authors or from different 
cultures.                                                                             
RPS. 10. Independently and proficiently read 
and comprehend literary texts representing a 
variety of genres, cultures, and perspectives 
and exhibiting complexity appropriate for at 
least grade 2.                                                                                       
Reading Power Standards for Informational 
Text (RPSIT)     
RPSIT. 1. Ask and answer such questions as 
who, what, where, when, why, and how to 
demonstrate understanding of key details in a 
text.                                                                                 
RPSIT. 2. Identify the main topic of a multi-
paragraph text as well as the focus of specific 
paragraphs within the text.                                                  
RPSIT. 3. Describe the connection between a 
series of historical events, scientific ideas or 
concepts, mathematical ideas or concepts, or 
steps in technical procedures in a text.                                      
RPSIT. 4. Determine the meaning of words 
and phrases in a text relevant to a grade 2 
topic or subject area. (See grade 2 Language 
Standards 4–6 on applying knowledge of 
vocabulary to reading.)                                                                                      
RPSIT. 5. Know and use various text features 
(e.g., captions, bold print, subheadings, 
glossaries, indexes, electronic menus, icons) 
to locate key facts or information in a text 
efficiently.                                                                                    


RPSIT. 7. Explain how specific images (e.g., a 
diagram showing how a machine works) contribute 
to and clarify a text.                                                                                 
RPSIT. 8. Describe how reasons support specific 
points the author makes in a text.                             
RPSIT. 9. Compare and contrast the most important 
points presented by two texts on the same topic.                                                                         
RPSIT. 10. Independently and proficiently read and 
comprehend informational texts, including 
history/social studies, science, mathematical, and 
technical texts, exhibiting complexity appropriate 
for at least grade 2.                                                                          
Reading Power Standards for Foundational Skills 
(RPSFS)                                                                                                                         
RPSFS. 1. Know and apply grade-level phonics and 
word analysis skills in decoding words.                              
RPSFS. 2. Read with sufficient accuracy and fluency 
to support comprehension.                                                               
Writing Power Standards (WPS)                                               
WPS. 1.   Write opinion pieces that introduce the 
topic or book they are writing about, state an 
opinion, supply reasons that support the opinion, 
use linking words (e.g., because, and, also) to 
connect opinion and reasons, and provide a 
concluding statement or section.                                                                                              
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts that 
introduce a topic, use facts and definitions to 
develop points, and provide a concluding statement 
or section.                                                                                               
WPS. 3. Write narratives in prose or poem form that 
recount a well-elaborated event or experience, or a 
set of events or experiences; include details and 
dialogue to show actions, thoughts, and feelings; 
use temporal words to signal order where 
appropriate; and provide a sense of closure.                                                                
WPS. 4. Produce writing in which the development 
and organization are appropriate to task, purpose, 
and audience.                                                                                    
WPS. 5. With guidance and support from adults and 
peers, focus on a topic and strengthen writing as 
needed by revising and editing.                                                                                         
WPS. 6. With guidance and support from adults, use 
a variety of digital tools to produce and publish 
writing, including in collaboration with peers.                                                                             
WPS. 7. Participate in shared research and writing 
projects.                                                                                                      
WPS. 8. Recall information from experiences or 
gather information from provided sources to answer 
a question.                                                                                          
WPS. 9. (Begins in grade 4.)                                             
WPS. 10. Write routinely for a range of tasks, 
purposes, and audiences. 







 89 


 


RPSIT. 6. Identify the main purpose of a text, 
including what the author wants to answer, 
explain, or describe.                                                                                    







 90 


 


GRADE 2 ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
INTEGRATION 
(CONTINUED) 


Speaking and Listening Power Standards 
(SLPS)                                                                                  
SLPS. 1. Participate in collaborative 
conversations with diverse partners about 
grade 2 topics and texts with peers and adults 
in small and larger groups.                                                                             
SLPS. 2.   2. Recount or describe key ideas or 
details from a text read aloud or information 
presented orally or through other media.                                  
SLPS. 3. Ask and answer questions about 
what a speaker says in order to clarify 
comprehension, gather additional 
information, or deepen understanding of a 
topic or issue.                                                                     
SLPS. 4. Tell a story, recount an experience, or 
explain how to solve a mathematical problem 
with appropriate facts and relevant, 
descriptive details, speaking audibly in 
coherent sentences and using appropriate 
vocabulary.                                                                      
SLPS. 5. Create audio recordings of stories or 
poems; add drawings or other visual displays 
to stories or descriptions of experiences 
when appropriate to clarify ideas, thoughts, 
and feelings.                                                                                           
SLPS. 6. Produce complete sentences when 
appropriate to task and situation in order to 
provide requested detail or clarification.                                                                           


Language Power Standards (LPS)                                        
LPS. 1. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English grammar and usage when writing 
or speaking; retain and further develop language 
skills learned in previous grades.                                                                  
LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English capitalization, punctuation, and 
spelling when writing.                                                                         
LPS. 3. Use knowledge of language and its 
conventions when writing, speaking, reading, or 
listening.                                                                                     
LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of unknown 
and multiple-meaning words and phrases based on 
grade 2 reading and content, choosing flexibly from 
an array of strategies.                                                                      
LPS. 5. Demonstrate understanding of word 
relationships and nuances in word meanings.                                  
LPS. 6. Use words and phrases acquired through 
conversations, activities in the grade 2 curriculum, 
reading and being read to, and responding to texts, 
including using adjectives and adverbs to describe.                                   







 91 


 


GRADE 2 SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Reading and Making Maps Power Standards 
(RMMPS)                                                                 
RMMPS. 1. Explain the kinds of information 
provided by components of a map (e.g., 
compass rose/cardinal directions, scale, 
key/legend, title) and give examples of how 
maps can show relationships between 
humans and the environment (e.g., travel, 
roads, natural resources, agriculture, mining).                                                           
RMMPS. 2. Compare different kinds of map 
projections (e.g., Mercator, Peters) and 
explain how they represent the world 
differently.                                                                      
RMMPS. 3. Construct a map of a familiar 
location (e.g., the school, the neighborhood, a 
park).                                                                                         
Geography and its Effects on People Power 
Standards (GPPS)                                                                             
GPPS. 1. On a map of the world and on a 
globe, locate all the continents and some 
major physical characteristics on each 
continent (e.g., lakes, seas, bays, rivers and 
tributaries, mountains and mountain ranges, 
and peninsulas, deserts, plains). GPPS. 2. On a 
map of the world and on a globe, locate the 
oceans of the world, and explain the 
importance of oceans and how they make the 
world habitable.                                                                                      
GPPS. 3. Explain how the location of 
landforms and bodies of water helps 
determine conditions (i.e., climate, weather, 
vegetation) for habitable living.                                                                                                
GPPS. 4. Explain and describe human 
interaction with the physical world.        
Migrations and Cultures (MCPS)                                                      
MCPS. 1. Investigate reasons why people 
migrate (move) to different places around the 
world, recognizing that some migration is 
voluntary, some forced.     
EPS. 4. Explain what it means to be employed 
and define the terms income, wages, and 
salary. 
EPS. 5. Give examples of products (goods) 
that people buy and use.  
EPS. 6. Give examples of services people do 
for each other.  
EPS. 7. Give examples of choices people have 
to make about buying goods and services 
(e.g., food for the family or a video game; bus 
fare to get to work or a movie ticket for 
entertainment) and why they have to make 
choices (e.g., because they have only enough 
money for one purchase, not two).  
EPS. 8. Analyze examples of voluntary choices 
people make about buying goods and 
services (e.g., to buy from a company that 
supports its workers or protects the 
environment). 
EPS. 9. Compare and contrast reasons why 
people save some of their money (e.g., 
deciding to put some of it aside for later for a 


MCPS. 2. Give examples of why the United States is 
called “a nation of immigrants”.                                              
MCPS. 3. Conduct interviews with family members, 
neighbors, friends, or school staff to discover where 
their families came from, how and why they moved 
to where they now live, and when and why their 
families came to Massachusetts.                                                                             
MCPS. 4. Identify what individuals and families bring 
with them (e.g., memories, cultural traits, goods, 
ideas, and languages or ways of speaking) when 
they move to a different place and identify the 
significant impacts of migration; identify elements 
that define the culture of a society (e.g., language, 
literature, arts, religion, traditions, customs); explain 
how the community is enriched by contributions 
from all the people who form it today.                              
Civics Power Standards (CPS)                                                                   
CPS. 1. Recognize the difference between physical 
geography and political geography. 
CPS. 2.  Explain the characteristics of a country.      


CPS. 3. Locate and analyze information and present 
a short research report on the physical features,      


resources, and people of a country outside the 
United States.           


Economics Power Standards (EPS)  
EPS. 1. Explain the relationship between natural 
resources and industries and jobs in a particular 
location (e.g., fishing, shipbuilding, farming, trading, 
mining, lumbering, manufacturing). 
EPS. 2. Distinguish a renewable resource from a non-
renewable resource. 
EPS. 3. Explain that people are a resource too, and 
that the knowledge and skills they gain through 
school, college, and work make possible innovations 
and technological advancements that lead to an 
ever-growing share of goods and services. 







 92 


 


future purchase, for a charitable donation or 
for an emergency). 
                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 3 
GRADE 3               
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Algebraic Thinking Power Standards (ATPS)    
ATPS. 1. Interpret products of whole numbers, 
e.g., interpret 5  7 as the total number of 
objects in five groups of seven objects each. 
ATPS. 2. Interpret whole-number quotients of 
whole numbers, e.g., interpret 56  8 as the 
number of objects in each share when 56 
objects are partitioned equally into 8 shares, 
or as a number of shares when 56 objects are 
partitioned into equal shares of 8 objects 
each.                                                                                             
ATPS. 3. Use multiplication and division within 
100 to solve word problems in situations 
involving equal groups, arrays, and 
measurement quantities, e.g., by using 
drawings and equations with a symbol for the 
unknown number to represent the problem. 
ATPS. 4. Determine the unknown whole 


Number and Operations Fractions Power Standards 
(NOFPS)                                                                                         
NOFPS. 1. Understand a fraction 1 ∕b as the quantity 
formed by 1 part when a whole (a single unit) is 
partitioned into b equal parts; understand a fraction a 
∕b as the quantity formed by a parts of size 1 ∕b .                                                       
NOFPS. 2. Understand a fraction as a number on the 
number line; represent fractions on a number line 
diagram.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
NOFPS. 3. Explain equivalence of fractions in special 
cases, and compare fractions by reasoning about 
their size.  
Measurement and Data Power Standards (MDPS)        
MDPS. 1. Tell and write time to the nearest minute 
and measure time intervals in minutes. Solve word 
problems involving addition and subtraction of time 
intervals in minutes.                                                                               
MDPS. 2. Measure and estimate liquid volumes and 







 93 


 


number in a multiplication or division 
equation relating three whole numbers.                           
ATPS. 5. Apply properties of operations to 
multiply.                                                                                     
ATPS. 6. Understand division as an unknown-
factor problem.                                                                    
ATPS. 7.  Fluently multiply and divide within 
100, using strategies such as the relationship 
between multiplication and division (e.g., 
knowing that 8  5 = 40, one knows 40  5 = 8) 
or properties of operations. By the end of 
grade 3, know from memory all products of 
two single-digit numbers and related division 
facts.                                                                                              
ATPS. 8. Solve two-step word problems using 
the four operations for problems posed with 
whole numbers and having whole number 
answers. Represent these problems using 
equations with a letter standing for the 
unknown quantity. Assess the reasonableness 
of answers using mental computation and 
estimation strategies, including rounding.                          
ATPS. 9. Identify arithmetic patterns 
(including patterns in the addition table or 
multiplication table) and explain them using 
properties of operations.                                     
Number and Operations Power Standards 
(NOPS)                                                                                            
NOPS. 1. Use place value understanding to 
round whole numbers to the nearest 10 or 
100.                                                                                            
NOPS. 2. Fluently add and subtract within 
1,000 using strategies and algorithms based 
on place value, properties of operations, 
and/or the relationship between addition and 
subtraction.                                                                        
NOPS. 3. Multiply one-digit whole numbers 
by multiples of 10 in the range 10–90 (e.g., 9  
80, 5  60) using strategies based on place 
value and properties of operations.                     


masses of objects using standard metric units of 
grams (g), kilograms (kg), and liters.                                              
MDPS. 3.  Draw a scaled picture graph and a scaled 
bar graph to represent a data set with several 
categories. Solve one- and two-step “how many 
more” and “how many less” problems using 
information presented in scaled bar graphs.                                         
MDPS. 4. Generate measurement data by measuring 
lengths of objects using rulers marked with halves 
and fourths of an inch. Record and show the data by 
making a line plot (dot plot), where the horizontal 
scale is marked off in appropriate units—whole 
numbers, halves, or fourths.                                                                
MDPS. 5. Recognize area as an attribute of plane 
figures and understand concepts of area 
measurement.                                                                                     
MDPS. 6. Measure areas by counting unit squares 
(square cm, square m, square in., square ft., and non-
standard units).                                                                                      
MDPS. 7. Relate area to the operations of 
multiplication and addition.                                                                   
MDPS. 8. Solve real-world and mathematical 
problems involving perimeters of polygons, including 
finding the perimeter given the side lengths, finding 
an unknown side length, and exhibiting rectangles 
with the same perimeter and different areas or with 
the same area and different perimeters.                        
Geometry Power Standards (GPS)                                        
GPS. 1. Understand that shapes in different categories 
(e.g., rhombuses, rectangles, and others) may share 
attributes (e.g., having four sides), and that the 
shared attributes can define a larger category (e.g., 
quadrilaterals). Compare and classify shapes by their 
sides and angles (right angle/non-right angle). 
Recognize rhombuses, rectangles, squares, and 
trapezoids as examples of quadrilaterals, and draw 
examples of quadrilaterals that do not belong to any 
of these subcategories.                                                                        
GPS. 2. Partition shapes into parts with equal areas. 
Express the area of each part as a unit fraction of the 
whole.  
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                     


GRADE 3 ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS)                         
RPS. 1. Ask and answer questions to 
demonstrate understanding of a text, 
referring explicitly to the text as the basis for 
the answers.                                                                             
RPS. 2. Retell stories, including fables, 
folktales, and myths from diverse cultures; 
determine the central message, lesson, or 
moral and explain how it is conveyed through 
key details in a text.     
RPS. 3.  Describe characters in a story (e.g., 
their traits, motivations, or feelings) and 
explain how their actions contribute to the 
sequence of events.                                                         
RPS. 4. Determine the meaning of words and 
phrases as they are used in a text, 


Reading Power Standards for Informational Text 
(RPSIT)                                                                    
RPSIT. 1.  Ask and answer questions to demonstrate 
understanding of a text, referring explicitly to the text 
as the basis for the answers.                                                                               
RPSIT. 2. Determine the main idea of a text; recount 
the key details and explain how they support the main 
idea.                                                          
RPSIT. 3. Describe the relationship between a series of 
historical events, scientific ideas or concepts, 
mathematical ideas or concepts, or steps in technical 
procedures in a text, using language that pertains to 
time, sequence, and cause/effect.                                                                           
RPSIT. 4. Determine the meaning of general academic 
and domain-specific words and phrases in a text 
relevant to a grade 3 topic or subject area.                                                                        







 94 


 


distinguishing literal from figurative language. 
RPS. 5. Identify common structural elements 
of fiction (e.g., problem, solution); describe 
how each successive part of a text builds on 
earlier sections.                                                                  
RPS. 6. Distinguish their own point of view 
from that of a text’s narrator or those of its 
characters.                                                                                        
RPS. 7.   Explain how specific aspects of a 
text’s illustrations contribute to what is 
conveyed by the words in a story (e.g., create 
mood, emphasize aspects of a character or 
setting).                                                                                  
RPS. 8. (Not applicable. For expectations 
regarding central messages, lessons, or 
morals in stories, see RL.2.)                                                    
RPS. 9. Compare and contrast the themes, 
settings, and plots of stories written by the 
same author about the same or similar 
characters (e.g., in books from a series).                             
RPS. 10. Independently and proficiently read 
and comprehend literary texts representing a 
variety of genres, cultures, and perspectives 
and exhibiting complexity appropriate for at 
least grade 3.                                                         
Reading Power Standards for Foundational 
Skills (RPSFS)                                                                                     
RPSFS. 1.  Know and apply grade-level 
phonics and word analysis skills in decoding 
words.                                 
RPSFS. 2.  Read with sufficient accuracy and 
fluency to support comprehension.                                         
Writing Power Standards (WPS)                                                  
WPS. 1.  Write opinion pieces on topics or 
texts, supporting an opinion with reasons.                                       
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts 
to examine a topic and convey ideas and 
information clearly.                                                                                                                  
WPS. 3.  Write narratives in prose or poem 
form to develop experiences or events using 
effective literary techniques, descriptive 
details, and clear sequences.                                          
WPS. 4. Produce writing in which the 
development and organization are 
appropriate to task, purpose, and audience.                                                                                                    
WPS. 5. Develop and strengthen writing as 
needed by planning, revising, and editing.                                                      
WPS. 6.  Use technology to produce and 
publish writing (using keyboarding skills) as 
well as to interact and collaborate with 
others.                                                       
WPS. 7. Conduct short research projects that 
build knowledge about a topic.                                                                              
WPS. 8. Recall information from experiences 
or gather information from print and digital 
sources; take brief notes on sources and sort 
evidence into provided categories.                                                                                               
WPS. 9. (Begins in grade 4.)                                                                    
WPS. 10. Write routinely over extended time 
frames (time for research, reflection, and 
revision) and shorter time frames (a single 
sitting or a day or two) for a range of 


RPSIT. 5. Use text features and search tools (e.g., key 
words, sidebars, hyperlinks) to locate information 
relevant to a given topic efficiently.                                                                          
RPSIT. 6.  Distinguish their own point of view from that 
of the author of a text.         
 RPSIT. 7.  Use information gained from illustrations 
(e.g., maps, photographs) and the words, numbers, 
and symbols in a text to demonstrate understanding 
of the text (e.g., where, when, why, and how key 
events occur).                                                                                   
RPSIT. 8. Describe the logical connection between 
particular sentences and paragraphs in a text (e.g., 
comparison, cause/effect, first/second/third in a 
sequence).                                                                                           
RPSIT. 9. Compare and contrast the most important 
points and key details presented in two texts on the 
same topic.                                                                                                                 
RPSIT. 10 Independently and proficiently read and 
comprehend informational texts, including 
history/social studies, science, mathematical, and 
technical texts, exhibiting complexity appropriate for 
at least grade 3.                                                                 
Speaking and Listening Power Standards (SLPS)                                  
SLPS. 1.  Engage effectively in a range of collaborative 
discussions (one-on-one, in groups, and teacher-led) 
with diverse partners on grade 3 topics and texts, 
building on others’ ideas and expressing their own 
clearly.                                                                                                             
SLPS. 2.  Determine the main ideas and supporting 
details of a text read aloud or information presented in 
diverse media and formats, including visually, 
quantitatively, and orally.                                                                           
SLPS. 3.  Ask and answer questions about information 
from a speaker, offering appropriate elaboration and 
detail.   
SLPS. 4. Report on a topic, text, or solution to a 
mathematical problem, tell a story, or recount an 
experience with appropriate facts and relevant, 
descriptive details, speaking clearly at an 
understandable pace and using appropriate 
vocabulary.                                                       
SLPS. 5. Create engaging audio recordings of stories or 
poems that demonstrate fluid reading at an 
understandable pace; add visual displays when 
appropriate to emphasize or enhance certain facts or 
details.                                             
SLPS. 6. Speak in complete sentences when 
appropriate to task and situation in order to provide 
requested detail or clarification.           
Language Power Standards (LPS)                       
LPS. 1. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English grammar and usage when writing or 
speaking; retain and further develop language skills 
learned in previous grades.                                                                  
LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English capitalization, punctuation, and 
spelling when writing.                                                                                   
LPS. 3. Use knowledge of language and its conventions 
when writing, speaking, reading, or listening.                                                                             
LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of unknown 
and multiple-meaning words and phrases based on 
grade 3 reading and content, choosing flexibly from a 
range of strategies.                                                                      







 95 


 


discipline-specific tasks, purposes, and 
audiences.                                                                                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                           


LPS. 5. Demonstrate understanding of word 
relationships and nuances in word meanings.                
LPS. 6. Acquire and use accurately grade-appropriate 
conversational, general academic, and domain-
specific words and phrases, including those that signal 
spatial and temporal relationships.                                                                         


GRADE 3 SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Massachusetts Cities and Towns Power 
Standards (MCTPS)                                                    
MCTPS. 1. On a current map of 
Massachusetts, use cardinal directions, map 
scales, legends, and titles to locate and 
describe the city or town where the school 
students attend is located, its local 
geographic features and historic landmarks, 
and their significance.                                                         
MCTPS. 2. Research the demographic origins 
of the town or city (e.g., the Native People 
who originally lived there or still live there, 
the people who established it as a colonial 
town, its founding date, and the free, 
indentured, and enslaved women and men 
who contributed to the wellbeing of the 
town).                                                                                        
MCTPS. 3. Explain why classrooms, schools, 
towns, and cities have governments, what 
governments do, how local governments are 
organized in Massachusetts, and how people 
participate in and contribute to their 
communities.                                                                     
The Geography and Native Peoples of 
Massachusetts Power Standards                          
(GNPMPS)                                                                                     
GNPSMPS. 1. On a physical map of North 
America, use cardinal directions, map scales, 
legends, and titles to locate the Northeast 
region and identify important physical 
features.                                                                                           
GNPMPS. 2. On a political map of the current 
United States, locate the New England states.                                                     
GNPMPS. 3. Explain the diversity of Native 


Puritans, the Massachusetts Bay Colony, Native 
Peoples, and Africans Power Standards (PMNAPS)                                                                            
PMNAPS. 1. Compare and contrast the roles and 
leadership decisions of early English leaders of the 
Puritans of the Massachusetts Bay Colony and the 
Pilgrims of the Plymouth colony.                                                                                 
PMNAPS. 2. Explain why Puritan men and women 
migrated in great numbers to Massachusetts in the 
17th century, how they moved west from the Atlantic 
coast, and the consequences of their migration for 
the Native Peoples of the region.                                                 
PMNAPS. 3. Using visual primary sources such as 
paintings, artifacts, historic buildings, or text sources, 
analyze details of daily life, housing, education, and 
work of the Puritan men, women, and children of the 
Massachusetts Bay Colony, including self-employed 
farmers and artisans, indentured servants, 
employees, and enslaved people.   
PMNAPS. 4. Explain that in the 17th and 18th century 
slavery was legal in all the French, Dutch, and 
Spanish, and English colonies, including 
Massachusetts and that colonial Massachusetts had 
both free and enslaved Africans in its population.     
PMNAPS. 5. Explain the importance of maritime 
commerce and the practice of bartering – exchanging 
goods or services without payment in money—in the 
development of the economy of colonial 
Massachusetts, using materials from historical 
societies and history museums as reference 
materials.      
Massachusetts in the 18th century through the 
American Revolution Power Standards (MARPS)                                                                                  
MARPS. 1. Using a historical map, explain the extent 
of the Province of Massachusetts in the 17th and 18th 







 96 


 


Peoples, present and past, in Massachusetts 
and the New England region.     
European Explorers Native Peoples In the 
Northeast Power Standards (EENPPS)                                                        
EENPPS. 1. Locate North America, the Atlantic 
Ocean, and Europe on a map, explain how 
Native Peoples first came into contact with 
Europeans, and explain why Europeans in the 
16th–17th centuries sailed westward across 
the Atlantic.            
EENPPS. 2. Trace on a map the voyages of 
European explorers of the Northeast coast of 
North America                   
EENPPS. 3. Explain how any one of the 
explorers described the Native Peoples and 
the new lands, and compare an early 17th 
century map of New England with a current 
one.               
Pilgrims, the Plymouth Colony, and Native 
Communities Power Standards (PPNCPS)                              
PPNCPS. 1. Explain who the Pilgrim men and 
women were and why they left Europe to 
seek a place where they would have the right 
to practice their religion; describe their 
journey, the government of their early years 
in the Plymouth Colony, and analyze their 
relationships with the Wampanoag and 
Abenaki/Wabanaki people.                                                                                                                                      


centuries (including territory which is now included in 
Maine, Nova Scotia, and New Brunswick, as well as 
Martha’s Vineyard and Nantucket). Explain reasons 
for the growth of towns and cities in Massachusetts 
in the 1700s. 
MARPS. 2. Analyze the connection between events, 
locations, and individuals in Massachusetts in the 
early 1770s and the beginning of the American 
Revolution, using sources such as historical maps, 
paintings, and texts of the period.       
MARPS. 3. Analyze how the colonists’ sense of justice 
denied led to declaring independence, and what the 
words of the Declaration of Independence say about 
what its writers believed. 
MARPS. 4. Explain how, after the Revolution, the 
leaders of the new United States had to write a plan 
for how to govern the nation, and that this plan is 
called the Constitution. Explain that the rights of 
citizens are spelled out in the Constitution’s first ten 
Amendments, known as the Bill of Rights; explain 
that full citizenship rights were restricted to white 
male property owners over the age of 21 in the new 
Republic.                                                                                        
MARPS. 5. Explain that states as well as nations have 
plans of government; recognize that the Constitution 
of Massachusetts (1780) is the oldest functioning 
constitution in the world, that its primary author was 
John Adams, and that, in addition to outlining 
government, it gives basic rights to citizens of the 
Commonwealth. 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    







 97 


 


GRADE 3 SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 
 


Earth & Space Sciences Power Standards 
(ESPS)                                                                                   
ESPS. 1. Use graphs and tables of local 
weather data to describe and predict typical 
weather during a particular season in an area. 
ESSPS 2. Obtain and summarize information 
about the climate of different regions of the 
world to illustrate that typical weather 
conditions over a year vary by region.                                     
Earth & Human Activity Power Standards 
(EHAPS)                                                                                       
EHAPS. 1. Evaluate the merit of a design 
solution that reduces the damage caused by 
weather.                                                                               
Life Science Power Standards (LSPS)               
From Molecules to Organisms: Structures and 
Processes                                                                         
LSPS. 1. Use simple graphical representations 
to show that different types of organisms 
have unique and diverse life cycles. Describe 
that all organisms have birth, growth, 
reproduction, and death in common but there 
are a variety of ways in which these happen.  
LSPS not included                                                                         
Heredity: Inheritance and Variation of Traits 
Power Standards (HPS)  
HPS. 1. Provide evidence, including through 
the analysis of data that plants and animals 
have traits inherited from parents and that 
variations of these traits exist in a group of 
similar organisms.                                                                                                                                                                                     
HPS. 2. Distinguish between inherited 
characteristics and those characteristics that 
result from a direct interaction with the 
environment. Give examples of 
characteristics of living organisms that are 
influenced by both inheritance and the 
environment.                                                                                    
Biological Evolution: Unity and Diversity 
Power Standards (BEPS)                                                                                           
BEPS. 1. Use fossils to describe types of 
organisms and their environments that 
existed long ago and compare those to living 
organisms and their environments. Recognize 
that most kinds of plants and animals that 
once lived on Earth are no longer found 
anywhere.     


BEPS. 2. Use evidence to construct an explanation for 
how the variations in characteristics among 
individuals within the same species may provide 
advantages to these individuals in their survival and 
reproduction.                                                                                     
BEPS. 3. Construct an argument with evidence that in 
a particular environment some organisms can survive 
well, some survive less well, and some cannot survive. 
BEPS. 4. Analyze and interpret given data about 
changes in a habitat and describe how the changes 
may affect the ability of organisms that live in that 
habitat to survive and reproduce.                                                      
BEPS. 5. Provide evidence to support a claim that the 
survival of a population is dependent upon 
reproduction.     
Physical Science Power Standards (PSPS)  
Motion and Stability: Forces and Interactions (MSPS)  
MSPS. 1. Provide evidence to explain the effect of 
multiple forces, including friction, on an object. 
Include balanced forces that do not change the 
motion of the object and unbalanced forces that do 
change the motion of the object.                                                                                        
MSPS. 2. Conduct an investigation to determine the 
nature of the forces between two magnets based on 
their orientations and distance relative to each other.  
Technology/Engineering Power Standards (TEPS)  
Engineering Design 
EDPS. 1. Define a simple design problem that reflects 
a need or a want. Include criteria for success and 
constraints on materials, time, or cost that a potential 
solution must meet. 
EDPS. 2. Generate several possible solutions to a 
given design problem. Compare each solution based 
on how well each is likely to meet the criteria and 
constraints of the design problem 
EDPS. 3. Gather information using various 
informational resources on possible solutions to a   
design problem. Present different representations of 
a design solution.                                                             


 


 


 


 


 


 







 98 


 


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 4 
GRADE 4            
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Algebraic Thinking Power Standards 
(ATPS)                                                                 
ATPS. 1. Interpret a multiplication 
equation as a comparison, e.g., interpret 
35 = 5  7 as a statement that 35 is 5 times 
as many as 7 and 7 times as many as 5. 
Represent verbal statements of 
multiplicative comparisons as 
multiplication equations.  
ATPS. 2. Multiply or divide to solve word 
problems involving multiplicative 
comparison, e.g., by using drawings and 
equations with a symbol for the unknown 
number to represent the problem, 
distinguishing multiplicative comparison 
from additive comparison. 19  
ATPS. 3. Solve multi-step word problems 
posed with whole numbers and having 
whole-number answers using the four 
operations, including problems in which 
remainders must be interpreted. 
Represent these problems using 
equations with a letter standing for the 
unknown quantity. Assess the 
reasonableness of answers using mental 
computation and estimation strategies 
including rounding. 
ATPS. 4. Find all factor pairs for a whole 
number in the range 1–100. Recognize 
that a whole number is a multiple of each 
of its factors. Determine whether a given 
whole number in the range 1–100 is a 
multiple of a given one-digit number. 
Determine whether a given whole 
number in the range 1–100 is prime or 
composite. 
ATPS. 5. Generate a number or shape 
pattern that follows a given rule. Identify 
apparent features of the pattern that 
were not explicit in the rule itself. 
Number and Operations Power Standards 
(NOPS)       
NOPS. 1. Recognize that in a multi-digit 
whole number, a digit in any place 
represents 10 times as much as it 
represents in the place to its right. For 
example, recognize that 700  70 = 10 by 
applying concepts of place value and 
division.  
NOPS. 2. Read and write multi-digit 
whole numbers using base-ten numerals, 
number names, and expanded form. 
Compare two multi-digit numbers based 
on meanings of the digits in each place, 
using >, =, and < symbols to record the 
results of comparisons.  
NOPS. 3. Use place value understanding 
to round multi-digit whole numbers to 
any place.  
NOPS. 4. Fluently add and subtract multi-
digit whole numbers using the standard 
algorithm.                                                                                  


NOPS. 5. Multiply a whole number of up to four 
digits by a one-digit whole number, and multiply 
two two-digit numbers, using strategies based on 
place value and the properties of operations. 
Illustrate and explain the calculation by using 
equations, rectangular arrays, and/or area 
models.  
NOPS. 6. Find whole-number quotients and 
remainders with up to four-digit dividends and 
one-digit divisors, using strategies based on place 
value, the properties of operations, and/or the 
relationship between multiplication and division. 
Illustrate and explain the calculation by using 
equations, rectangular arrays, and/or area 
models. 
Number and Operations Fractions Power 
Standards (NOFPS)           
NOFPS. 1. Explain why a fraction a ∕b is equivalent 
to a fraction (n  a) ∕(n  b) by using visual fraction 
models, with attention to how the numbers and 
sizes of the parts differ even though the two 
fractions themselves are the same size. Use this 
principle to recognize and generate equivalent 
fractions, including fractions greater than 1.  
NOFPS. 2. Compare two fractions with different 
numerators and different denominators, e.g., by 
creating common denominators or numerators, 
or by comparing to a benchmark fraction such as 
1 ∕2. Recognize that comparisons are valid only 
when the two fractions refer to the same whole. 
Record the results of comparisons with symbols 
>, =, or. 
NOFPS. 3. Understand a fraction a ∕b with a > 1 as 
a sum of fractions 1 ∕b. 
NOFPS. 4. Apply and extend previous 
understandings of multiplication to multiply a 
fraction by a whole number.    
NOFPS. 5. Express a fraction with denominator 10 
as an equivalent fraction with denominator 100, 
and use this technique to add two fractions with 
respective denominators 10 and 100. 
NOFPS. 6. Use decimal notation to represent 
fractions with denominators 10 or 100. 
NOFPS. 7. Compare two decimals to hundredths 
by reasoning about their size. Recognize that 
comparisons are valid only when the two 
decimals refer to the same whole. Record the 
results of comparisons with the symbols >, =, or, 
<, and justify the conclusions, e.g. by using a 
visual model.  
Measurement and Data Power Standards (MDPS)    
MDPS. 1.  Know relative sizes of measurement 
units within one system of units, including km, m, 
cm; kg, g; lb, oz.; l, ml; hr, min, sec. Within a single 
system of measurement, express measurements 
in a larger unit in terms of a smaller unit. Record 
measurement equivalents in a two-column table. 







 99 


 


 Measurement and Data Power Standards 
(MDPS)    
MDPS 2. Use the four operations to solve 
word problems involving distances, 
intervals of time, liquid volumes, masses 
of objects, and money, including problems 
involving simple fractions or decimals, and 
problems that require expressing 
measurements given in a larger unit in 
terms of a smaller unit. Represent 
measurement quantities using diagrams 
such as number line diagrams that feature 
a measurement scale. 
MDPS. 3. Apply the area and perimeter 
formulas for rectangles in real-world and 
mathematical problems. 
MDPS. 4. Make a line plot (dot plot) 
representation to display a data set of 
measurements in fractions of a unit ( 1 ∕2, 1 
∕4, 1 ∕8). Solve problems involving addition 
and subtraction of fractions by using 
information presented in line plots (dot 
plots). 
MDPS. 5. Recognize angles as geometric 
shapes that are formed wherever two rays 
share a common endpoint, and 
understand concepts of angle 
measurement: a. An angle is measured 
with reference to a circle with its center at 
the common endpoint of the rays, by 
considering the fraction of the circular arc 
between the points where the two rays 
intersect the circle. An angle that turns 
through 1 ∕360 of a circle is called a “one-
degree angle,” and can be used to 
measure angles. b. An angle that turns 
through n one-degree angles is said to 
have an angle measure of n degrees. 
MDPS. 6. Measure angles in whole-
number degrees using a protractor. Sketch 
angles of specified measure.  
MDPS. 7. Recognize angle measure as 
additive. When an angle is decomposed 
into non-overlapping parts, the angle 
measure of the whole is the sum of the 
angle measures of the parts. Solve 
addition and subtraction problems to find 
unknown angles on a diagram in real-
world and mathematical problems, e.g., by 
using an equation with a symbol for the 
unknown angle measure. 


Geometry Power Standards (GPS)    
GPS. 1. Draw points, lines, line segments, rays, 
angles (right, acute, obtuse), and perpendicular 
and parallel lines. Identify these in two-
dimensional figures.  
GPS. 2.  Classify two-dimensional figures based 
on the presence or absence of parallel or 
perpendicular lines, or the presence or absence 
of angles of a specified size. Recognize right 
triangles as a category, and identify right 
triangles.  
GPS. 3. Recognize a line of symmetry for a two-
dimensional figure as a line across the figure such 
that the figure can be folded along the line into 
matching parts. Identify line-symmetric figures 
and draw lines of symmetry.                 
 
                                                                                              


 


GRADE 4 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS)    
RPS. 1. Refer to details and examples in a 
text when explaining what the text states 
explicitly and when drawing inferences 
from the text.  
RPS. 2. Determine a theme of a story, 
drama, or poem from details in the text; 
summarize a text.  
RPS. 3. Describe in depth a character, 
setting, or event in a story or drama, 


RPSIT. 4. Determine the meaning of general 
academic and domain-specific words or phrases 
in a text relevant to a grade 4 topic or subject 
area. (See grade 4 Language Standards 4–6 on 
applying knowledge of vocabulary to reading.)  
RPSIT. 5. Describe the overall structure (e.g., 
chronology, comparison, cause/effect, 
problem/solution) of events, ideas, concepts, or 
information in a text or part of a text.  







 
10
0 


 


drawing on specific details in the text (e.g., 
a character’s thoughts, words, or actions).    
RPS. 4. Determine the meaning of words 
and phrases as they are used in a text, 
including those that allude to significant 
characters found in mythology (e.g., 
Herculean); explain how figurative 
language (e.g., simile, metaphor) enriches 
a text. (See grade 4 Language Standards 4–
6 on applying knowledge of vocabulary to 
reading.)  
RPS.5. Explain major differences among 
prose, poetry, and drama and refer to the 
structural elements of each (e.g., 
paragraphs and chapters for prose; stanza 
and verse for poetry; scene, stage 
directions, cast of characters for drama) 
when writing or speaking about a text.  
RPS. 6. Compare and contrast the points 
of view from which different stories are 
narrated, including the difference between 
first- and third-person narrations.     
RPS. 7. Make connections between a 
written story or drama and its visual or oral 
presentation, identifying where the 
presentation reflects specific descriptions 
and directions in the written text.  
RPS. 8. (Not applicable. For expectations 
regarding themes in literary texts, see 
RL.2.)  
RPS. 9. Compare and contrast the 
treatment of similar themes and topics 
(e.g., opposition of good and evil) and 
patterns of events (e.g., the quest) in 
stories, myths, and traditional literature 
from different cultures. 
RPS. 10.   . Independently and proficiently 
read and comprehend literary texts 
representing a variety of genres, cultures, 
and perspectives and exhibiting 
complexity appropriate for at least grade 
4.          
Reading Power Standards for 
Informational Text (RPSIT)      
RPSIT. 1 Refer to details and examples in a 
text when explaining what the text states 
explicitly and when drawing inferences 
from the text.  
RPSIT. 2. Determine the main idea of a text 
and explain how it is supported by key 
details; summarize a text.          
RPSIT. 3. Explain events, procedures, ideas, 
or concepts in a historical, scientific, 
mathematical, or technical text, including 
what happened and why, based on 
specific information in the text. 


RPSIT. 6. Compare and contrast a firsthand and 
secondhand account of the same event or topic; 
describe the differences in focus and the 
information provided. 
RPSIT. 7. Interpret information presented visually, 
orally, or quantitatively (e.g., in charts, graphs, 
diagrams, timelines, animations, or interactive 
elements on webpages) and explain how the 
information contributes to an understanding of 
the text in which it appears. 
RPSIT. 8. Explain how an author uses reasons and 
evidence to support particular points in a text. 9. 
Integrate information from two texts on the same 
topic in order to write or speak knowledgeably 
about the subject. 
RPSIT. 9. Independently and proficiently read and 
comprehend informational texts, including 
history/social studies, science, mathematical, and 
technical texts, exhibiting complexity appropriate 
for at least grade 4. 
Writing Power Standards (WPS)   
WPS. 1.  Write opinion pieces on topics or texts, 
supporting a point of view with reasons and 
information. a. Introduce a topic or text clearly, 
state an opinion, and create an organizational 
structure in which related ideas are grouped in 
paragraphs and sections to support the writer’s 
purpose. b. Provide reasons that are supported by 
facts and details. c. Link opinion and reasons 
using words and phrases (e.g., for instance, in 
order to, in addition). d. Provide a concluding 
statement or section related to the opinion 
presented.    
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts to 
examine a topic and convey ideas and 
information clearly. a. Introduce a topic clearly 
and group related information in paragraphs and 
sections; include text features (e.g., headings), 
illustrations, and multimedia when useful to 
aiding comprehension. b. Develop the topic with 
facts, definitions, concrete details, quotations, or 
other information and examples related to the 
topic. c. Link ideas within categories of 
information using words and phrases (e.g., 
another, for example, also, because). d. Use 
precise language and domain-specific vocabulary 
to inform about or explain the topic. e. Provide a 
concluding statement or section related to the 
information or explanation presented. 
WPS. 3. Write narratives in prose or poem form to 
develop experiences or events using effective 
literary techniques, descriptive details, and clear 
sequences. ) 


 


GRADE 4 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 


a. Orient the reader by establishing a 
situation and introducing a speaker, 
narrator, and/or characters; organize an 
appropriate narrative sequence. b. Use 


Speaking and Listening Power Standards (SLPS) 
SLPS. 1. Engage effectively in a range of 
collaborative discussions (one-on-one, in groups, 
and teacher-led) with diverse partners on grade 4 







 
10
1 


 


INTEGRATION 
(CONTINUED) 


dialogue and description to develop 
experiences or events or show responses 
to situations. c. Use a variety of transitional 
words and phrases to manage sequence. 
d. Use concrete words and phrases, 
figurative language such as similes and 
metaphors, and sensory details to convey 
experiences or events precisely. e. Provide 
a sense of closure appropriate to the 
narrated experiences or events. f. For 
poems, use patterns of sound (e.g., rhyme, 
rhythm, alliteration, consonance) and 
visual patterns (e.g., line length, grouped 
lines as stanzas or verses) to create works 
that are distinctly different in form from 
prose narratives. 
WPS. 4. Produce clear and coherent 
writing in which the development and 
organization are appropriate to task, 
purpose, and audience. (Grade-specific 
expectations for writing types are defined 
in standards 1–3 above.)  
WPS. 5. Develop and strengthen writing as 
needed by planning, revising, and editing. 
a. Demonstrate command of standard 
English conventions (as described in 
Language Standards 1– 3 up to and 
including grade 4). b. Demonstrate the 
ability to use general academic and 
domain-specific vocabulary appropriately. 
WPS. 6. Use technology, including current 
web-based communication platforms, to 
produce and publish writing as well as to 
interact and collaborate with others; 
demonstrate sufficient command of 
keyboarding skills to type a minimum of 
one page in a single sitting. 
WPS. 7. Conduct short research projects 
that build knowledge through 
investigation of different aspects of a 
topic.  
WPS. 8. Recall relevant information from 
experiences or gather relevant information 
from print and digital sources; take notes 
and categorize information, and provide a 
list of sources.  
WPS. 9. Draw evidence from literary or 
informational texts to support written 
analysis, reflection, and research, applying 
one or more grade 4 standards for Reading 
Literature or Reading Informational Text as 
needed. 
WPS. 10. Write routinely over extended 
time frames (time for research, reflection, 
and revision) and shorter time frames (a 
single sitting or a day or two) for a range of 
discipline-specific tasks, purposes, and 
audiences. 


topics and texts, building on others’ ideas and 
expressing their own clearly. a. Come to 
discussions prepared, having read or studied 
required material; explicitly draw on that 
preparation and other information known about 
the topic to explore ideas under discussion. (See 
grade 4 Reading Literature Standard 1 and 
Reading Informational Text Standard 1 for specific 
expectations regarding the use of textual 
evidence.) b. Follow agreed-upon rules for 
discussions and carry out assigned roles. c. Pose 
and respond to specific questions to clarify or 
follow up on information, and make comments 
that contribute to the discussion and link to the 
remarks of others. d. Review the key ideas 
expressed and explain their own ideas and 
understanding in light of the discussion.  
SLPS. 2. Paraphrase portions of a written text 
read aloud or information presented in diverse 
media and formats, including visually, 
quantitatively, and orally. 
SLPS. 3. Identify the reasons and evidence a 
speaker provides to support particular points. 
SLPS. 4. Report on a topic, text, procedure, or 
solution to a mathematical problem, tell a story, 
or recount an experience in an organized manner, 
using appropriate facts and relevant, descriptive 
details to support main ideas or themes; speak 
clearly at an understandable pace and use 
appropriate vocabulary. 
SLPS. 5. Add audio recordings and visual displays 
to presentations when appropriate to enhance 
the development of main ideas or themes.  
SLPS. 6. Differentiate between contexts that call 
for formal English (e.g., presenting research 
findings) and situations where informal discourse 
is appropriate (e.g., small-group discussion); use 
formal English when appropriate to task and 
situation. 
Language Power Standards (LPS)     
LPS. 1.  Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English grammar and 
usage when writing or speaking; retain and 
further develop language skills learned in 
previous grades. a. Produce complete sentences, 
using knowledge of subject and predicate to 
recognize and correct inappropriate sentence 
fragments and run-on sentences. b. Correctly use 
frequently confused words (e.g., their/there). c. 
Use helping verbs, also known as auxiliaries (e.g., 
can, may, might, should), to convey various 
conditions of possibility, likelihood, obligation, or 
permission, choosing among helping verbs 
depending on the overall meaning of the 
sentence. d. Use relative pronouns and relative 
adverbs to add more information about a noun or 
verb used in a sentence. e. Form and use 
prepositional phrases in sentences to add more 
information about qualities such as location, time, 
agency, and direction. 
 


 







 
10
2 


 


 f. Form and use progressive verb tenses. 
2. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English 
capitalization, punctuation, and spelling 
when writing. a. Write legibly and fluently 
by hand, using either printing or cursive 
handwriting; write their given name 
signature in cursive. b. Use correct 
capitalization. c. Use commas and 
quotation marks to mark direct speech 
and quotations from a text. d. Use a 
comma before a coordinating 
conjunction in a compound sentence. e. 
Spell grade-appropriate words correctly, 
consulting references as needed. 
LPS. 3. Use knowledge of language and its 
conventions when writing, speaking, 
reading, or listening. a. Choose words and 
phrases to convey ideas precisely. b. 
Choose punctuation for effect. c. 
Differentiate between contexts that call 
for formal English (e.g., presenting 
research findings) and situations where 
informal discourse is appropriate (e.g., 
small-group discussion). 
LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning 
of unknown and multiple-meaning words 
and phrases based on grade 4 reading 
and content, choosing flexibly from a 
range of strategies. a. Use context (e.g., 
definitions, examples, or restatements in 
text) as a clue to the meaning of a word 
or phrase. b. Use common, grade-
appropriate Greek and Latin affixes and 
roots as clues to the meaning of a word 
(e.g., telegraph, photograph, autograph). 
c. Consult reference materials (e.g., 
dictionaries, glossaries, thesauruses), 
both print and digital, to find the 
pronunciation and determine or clarify 
the precise meaning of key words and 
phrases. d. Recognize and use 
appropriately abbreviations related to 
grade-level content or common in 
everyday life (e.g., hr., min., sec.). e. 
Recognize and use appropriately symbols 
related to grade-level content or 
common in everyday life (e.g., &, #, *).  
LPS. 5. Demonstrate understanding of 
figurative language, word relationships, 
and nuances in word meanings. a. Explain 
the meaning of simple similes and 
metaphors (e.g., as pretty as a picture) in 
context. b. Recognize and explain the 
meaning of common idioms, adages, and 
proverbs. c. Demonstrate understanding 
of words by relating them to their 
opposites (antonyms) and to words with 
similar but not identical meanings 
(synonyms). 
LPS. 6. Acquire and use accurately grade-
appropriate general academic and 


and that are basic to a particular topic (e.g., 
wildlife, conservation, and endangered when 
discussing animal preservation).  







 
10
3 


 


domain-specific words and phrases, 
including those that signal precise 
actions, emotions, or states of being (e.g., 
quizzed, whined, stammered) 


 


GRADE 4 SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Topic 1. North America: geography and 
map skills  
Supporting Question: What are the 
physical features and nations of North 
America?  
NA. 1. On a physical map of North 
America, use cardinal directions, map 
scales, key/legend (symbols for 
mountains, rivers, deserts, lakes, cities), 
and title to locate and identify important 
physical features (e.g., Mississippi and Rio 
Grande Rivers, Great Lakes, Atlantic and 
Pacific Oceans, Gulf of Mexico, Hudson’s 
Bay, Appalachian Mountains, Rocky 
Mountains, Sierra Madre, the Great Basin, 
Mojave, Sonoran, and Chihuahuan 
Deserts, the Yucatan Peninsula, the 
Caribbean Sea). 
NA. 2. On a political map of North 
America, locate Canada and its provinces, 
Mexico and its states, the nations of the 
Caribbean, and the United States of 
America and its states; explain the 
meaning of the terms continent, country, 
nation, county, state, province, and city. 
NA. 3. Research, analyze, and convey 
information about Canada or Mexico by 
consulting maps, atlases, encyclopedias, 
digital information and satellite images, 
photographs, or news articles; organizing 
materials, and making an oral or written 
presentation about topics such as the 
peoples, population size, languages, 
forms of government, major cities, 
environment, natural resources, 
industries, and national landmarks. 
Topic 2. Ancient civilizations of North 
America  
Supporting Question: How do 
archaeologists develop theories about 
ancient migrations?  
AC. 1. Evaluate competing theories about 
the origins of people in North America 
(e.g., theories that people migrated 
across a land bridge that connected 
present-day Siberia to Alaska or theories 
that they came by a maritime route) and 
evidence for dating the existence of early 
populations in North America to about 
15,000 years ago. 
AC. 2. Using maps of historic Native 
Peoples’ culture regions of North America 
and photographs, identify archaeological 
evidence of some of the characteristics of 
major civilizations of this period (e.g., 


AC. 4. Give examples of some archaeological sites 
of Native Peoples in North America that are 
preserved as national or state monuments, parks, 
or international heritage sites (e.g., Teotihuacan in 
Mexico, Mesa Verde National Park in Colorado, 
Cahokia Mounds State Historic Site in Illinois, Chaco 
Culture National Historic Park in New Mexico) and 
explain their importance in presenting a 
comprehensive history of Americans and American 
life.  
Topic 3. Early European exploration and conquest 
Supporting Question: What were the reasons for 
European voyages across the Atlantic Ocean?  
EEE. 1. Explain how historians studying the 
European voyages to the Americas use 
archaeological evidence, maps, illustrations, and 
texts produced in Europe at the time, and that all of 
these materials are called primary sources. 
EEE. 2. Explain who the Vikings were and describe 
evidence of their early encounters with Native 
Peoples along the North American Atlantic coast.  
EEE. 3. Trace on a map European explorations of 
North America and the Caribbean Islands in the 15th 
and 16th centuries (e.g., voyages of Vasco Nun ͂es de 
Balboa, Jacques Cartier, Cristobal Colon 
[Christopher Columbus], Ferdinand Magellan, Juan 
Ponce De Leon, Amerigo Vespucci, Hernán Cortés), 
evaluate the reasons for the voyages, noting that 
they were part of an effort by European nations to 
expand their empires, find new routes for trade 
with Asia, new opportunities for colonization, and 
new natural resources; make a timeline of their 
landings and conquests. 
Topic 4. The expansion of the United States over 
time and its regions today 
Supporting Question: How has the environment 
shaped the development of each region?  
EUS. 1. Describe how the construction of canals, 
roads, and railways in the 19th century helped the 
United States to expand westward.  
EUS. 2. Give examples of some of the ways the 
United States acquired new states (beyond the 13 
original states) and additional territories between 
1791 and 1898, including purchasing land called the 
Louisiana Territory from France, adding territory in 
the Southwest as a result of war with Mexico, 
settling a treaty with Britain to gain land called the 
Oregon Territory in the Northwest, purchasing 
Alaska from Russia, annexing Hawaii, and adding 
territories such as Puerto Rico as a result of a war 
with Spain.  
EUS. 3. Compare different reasons why men and 
women States wanted to move West in the 19th 
century, and describe aspects of pioneer life on the 
frontier (e.g., wagon train journeys on the Oregon 







 
10
4 


 


stone tools, ceramics, mound-building, 
cliff dwellings). 
AC. 3. Explain how archaeologists 
conduct research (e.g., by participating in 
excavations, studying artifacts and 
organic remains, climate and 
astronomical data, and collaborating with 
other scholars) to develop theories about 
migration, settlement patterns, and 
cultures in prehistoric periods.  


and Santa Fe Trails, and settlements in the western 
territories).  
  


 


 EUS. 4. Explain that many different 
groups of people immigrated to the 
United States from other places 
voluntarily and some were brought to 
the United States against their will (as in 
the case of people of Africa).  
EUS. 5. Show understanding that in the 
middle of the 19th century, the people of 
the United States were deeply divided 
over the question of slavery and its 
expansion into newly settled parts of the 
West, which led to the Civil War from 
1861 to 1865. 
The Northeast  
NE. 1. On a political map of the United 
States, locate the states in the Northeast 
(listed alphabetically: Connecticut, 
Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, 
New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, 
Rhode Island and Vermont). 
NE. 2. Using resources such as print and 
online atlases, topographical maps, or 
road maps, construct a map of the 
Northeast that shows important cities, 
state capitals, physical features (e.g., 
waterways and mountains), and that 
includes a title, scale, compass, and map 
key.  
NE. 3. Explain the benefits in the 18th 
century of becoming a state in the 
United States (as opposed to a British 
colony) and, as a class, construct a 
timeline that shows when each of the 
states in the region was admitted into 
the United States (Connecticut-1788, 
Maine, originally part of Massachusetts-
1788, as a separate state-1820, 
Massachusetts-1788, New Hampshire-
1788, New Jersey-1787, New York-1788, 
Pennsylvania-1787, Rhode Island-1790, 
Vermont-1791). 
NE. 4. Develop questions, conduct 
research, and analyze how people have 
adapted to the environment of the 
Northeast, and how physical features 
and natural resources affected 
settlement patterns, the growth of major 
urban/suburban areas, industries or 
trade. 5. Describe the diverse cultural 
nature of the region, including 


Dominicans, Mexicans, Salvadorans, Colombians, 
Guatemalans, Brazilians, Haitians, Vietnamese, 
Cambodians, Chinese, Indians, and Somalis) 
The Southeast  
SE. 1. On a political map of the United States, locate 
the states and the national capital city in the 
Southeast, and the U.S. territories in the Caribbean; 
add to the timeline the admission dates for states in 
the Southeast (listed alphabetically: Alabama-1819, 
Arkansas-1836, Delaware-1787, Florida-1845, 
Georgia-1788, Kentucky-1792, Louisiana-1812, 
Maryland-1788, Mississippi-1817, North Carolina-1789, 
South Carolina-1788, Tennessee-1796, Virginia-1788, 
West Virginia-1863); territories Puerto Rico, and the 
United States Virgin Islands.  
SE. 2. Describe the diverse cultural nature of the 
region, including contributions of Native Peoples 
(e.g., Powhatan Chiefdom, Seminole, Cherokee, 
Creek), African Americans, Europeans (e.g., the early 
Spanish settlements in Florida) and immigrant 
groups from other regions of the world.  
SE. 3. Explain how natural disasters, such as 
hurricanes and floods, have affected the region, and 
how government and citizens have responded to 
catastrophic natural events.  
SE. 4. Describe the role of Washington, D.C. as the 
national capital, and give examples of its national 
cultural and civic resources (e.g., the White House, 
U.S. Capitol Building, Supreme Court, Library of 
Congress, the Smithsonian Institution, cemeteries 
and monuments).  
SE. 5. Using resources such as print and online 
atlases, or state websites, construct a map of a state 
in the Southeast region that provides information 
about physical features (e.g., waterways and 
mountains) and that includes a title, scale, compass, 
and map key. 
The Midwest 
MW. 1. On a political map of the United States, locate 
the states in the Midwest; add to the timeline the 
admission dates for states in the Midwest (listed 
alphabetically: Illinois-1818, Indiana-1816, Iowa-1846, 
Kansas-1861, Michigan-1838, Minnesota-1858, 
Missouri-1821, Nebraska-1867, North Dakota-1889, 
Ohio-1803, South Dakota-1889, Wisconsin-1848).  
MW. 2. Describe the diverse cultural nature of the 
region, including contributions of Native Peoples 
(e.g., Sioux, Mandan, Ojibwe/Chippewa), African 
Americans, Europeans and immigrant groups from 
other regions of the world.  







 
10
5 


 


contributions of Native Peoples (e.g., 
Wampanoag, Iroquois, Abenaki), 
Africans, Europeans (e.g., the early 
settlements of the Dutch in New York, 
French near Canada, Germans in 
Pennsylvania, the English in 
Massachusetts, Rhode Island, 
Connecticut, Vermont and New 
Hampshire, subsequent 19th and early 
20th century immigration by groups 
such as Irish, Italian, Portuguese, and 
Eastern Europeans) and various other 
immigrant groups from other regions of 
the world in the later 20th and 21st 
centuries (e.g., Puerto Ricans,  


MW. 3. Explain how natural disasters, such as 
tornadoes and drought, have affected the region, 
and how government and citizens have responded 
to catastrophic natural events.  
MW. 4. Using resources such as print and online 
atlases, historical sources, or national or state 
websites, construct a map of a state in the Midwest 
region that provides information about physical 
features (e.g., waterways and mountains), natural 
resources and industries such as agriculture and that 
includes a title, scale, compass, and map key. 


 


 The Southwest  
SW. 1. On a political map of the United 
States, locate the states in the 
Southwest; add to the timeline the 
admission dates for states in the 
Southwest (listed alphabetically, 
Arizona-1912, New Mexico-1912, 
Oklahoma-1907, and Texas-1845).  
SW. 2. Explain that Texas, Arizona, and 
New Mexico were territories that 
formerly belonged to Mexico; that Texas 
declared independence from Mexico in 
1836, and that Arizona and New Mexico 
were taken by the United States as a 
result of the Mexican-American War 
1846-1848.  
SW. 3. Describe the diverse cultural 
nature of the region, including 
contributions of Native Peoples (e.g., 
Pueblo, Navajo, Apache, Comanche), 
African Americans, Europeans (e.g., the 
Spanish in Texas, Arizona, and New 
Mexico), Mexicans, and immigrant 
groups from other regions of the world 
settling in the region over time.  
SW. 4. Explain how natural disasters, 
such as hurricanes and drought, have 
affected the region, and how 
government and citizens have 
responded to catastrophic natural 
events.  
SW. 5. Using resources such as print and 
online atlases, historical sources, or state 
websites, construct a map of a state in 
the Southwest region that provides 
information about physical features (e.g., 
waterways and mountains), climate, 
settlements and movements of Native 
Peoples (including current reservation 
lands), European exploration and pioneer 
settlements of the 17th-19th centuries 
and that includes a title, scale, compass, 
and map key.  


The West  
W. 1. On a political map of the United States, locate 
the states in the West and the U.S. territories in the 
Pacific Ocean; add to the timeline the admission 
dates for states in the Southwest (states listed 
alphabetically, Alaska-1959, California-1850, 
Colorado-1876, Hawaii-1959, Idaho-1890, Montana-
1889, Nevada-1864, Oregon-1859, Utah-1896, 
Washington-1889, Wyoming-1890); territories: 
American Samoa, Guam, Midway Islands, Northern 
Mariana Islands, and Wake Island.  
W. 2. Explain that California, Colorado, and Utah 
were territories that belonged to Mexico and were 
taken by the United States as a result of the 
Mexican-American War 1846-1848. W. 3. Describe the 
diverse cultural nature of the region, including 
contributions of Native Peoples (e.g., Paiute, Coast 
Salish) African Americans, Europeans (e.g. the 
Spanish in California), the Mexicans, the Chinese, 
Japanese, and immigrant groups from other regions 
of the world over time.  
W. 4. Explain how disasters, such as drought and 
forest fires, have affected the region, and how 
government and citizens have responded to 
catastrophic events.  
W. 5. Using resources such as print and online 
atlases, or state websites, construct a map of a state 
in the West region that provides information about 
physical features (e.g., waterways and mountains), 
important landmarks, national parks, and historic 
sites and that includes a title, scale, compass, and 
map key. 







 
10
6 


 


GRADE 4 
SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 
 


Earth & Space Sciences Power Standards 
(ESPS)     
ESPS. 1. Use evidence from a given 
landscape that includes simple landforms 
and rock layers to support a claim about 
the role of erosion or deposition in the 
formation of the landscape over long 
periods of time. 
ESPS. 2. Make observations and collect 
data to provide evidence that rocks, soils, 
and sediments are broken into smaller 
pieces through mechanical weathering 
and moved around through erosion.       
ESPS. 3. Analyze and interpret maps of 
Earth’s mountain ranges, deep ocean 
trenches, volcanoes, and earthquake 
epicenters to describe patterns of these 
features and their locations relative to 
boundaries between continents and 
oceans. 
ESPS. 4. Obtain information to describe 
that energy and fuels humans use are 
derived from natural resources and that 
some energy and fuel sources are 
renewable and some are not.           
ESPS. 5. Evaluate different solutions to 
reduce the impacts of a natural event 
such as an earthquake, blizzard, or flood 
on humans.     
Life Science Power Standards (LSPS) 
LSPS. 1.  Construct an argument that 
animals and plants have internal and 
external structures that support their 
survival, growth, behavior, and 
reproduction.       
Physical Science Power Standards (PSPS) 
PSPS. 1. Use evidence to construct an 
explanation relating the speed of an 
object to the energy of that object.   
PSPS. 2. Make observations to show that 
energy can be transferred from place to 
place by sound, light, heat, and electric 
currents.  
PSPS. 3. Ask questions and predict 
outcomes about the changes in energy 
that occur when objects collide.   


PSPS. 4. Apply scientific principles of energy and 
motion to test and refine a device that converts 
kinetic energy to electrical energy or uses stored 
energy to cause motion or produce light or sound. 
PSPS. 5. Develop a model of a simple mechanical 
wave (including sound) to communicate that waves 
(a) are regular patterns of motion along which 
energy travels and (b) can cause objects to move.  
PSPS. 6.  Develop a model to describe that light 
must reflect off an object and enter the eye for the 
object to be seen.  
PSPS. 7.  Develop and compare multiple ways to 
transfer information through encoding, sending, 
receiving, and decoding a pattern.                                   
Technology and Engineering Power Standards 
(TEPS) 
TEPS. 1. Plan and carry out tests of one or more 
design features of a given model or prototype in 
which variables are controlled and failure points are 
considered to identify which features need to be 
improved. Apply the results of tests to redesign a 
model or prototype. 
TEPS. 2. Evaluate relevant design features that must 
be considered in building a model or prototype of a 
solution to a given design problem. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 5 







 
10
7 


 


GRADE 5            
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Algebraic Thinking Power Standards 
(ATPS)                                                                 
ATPS. 1. Use parentheses, brackets, or 
braces in numerical expressions, and 
evaluate expressions with these symbols, 
e.g.,(6 x 30) + (6 x 1 ∕2). 2. Write simple 
expressions that record calculations with 
numbers, and interpret numerical 
expressions without evaluating them.  
ATPS. 2. Generate two numerical patterns 
using two given rules. Identify apparent 
relationships between corresponding 
terms. Form ordered pairs consisting of 
corresponding terms from the two 
patterns, and graph the ordered pairs on 
a coordinate plane. 
Number and Operations Power Standards 
(NOPS)                                                                                             
NOPS. 1. Recognize that in a multi-digit 
number, including decimals, a digit in any 
place represents 10 times as much as it 
represents in the place to its right and 1 
∕10 of what it represents in the place to its 
left.  
NOPS. 2. Explain patterns in the number 
of zeros of the product when multiplying 
a number by powers of 10, and explain 
patterns in the placement of the decimal 
point when a decimal is multiplied or 
divided by a power of 10. Use whole-
number exponents to denote powers of 
10.  
NOPS. 3. Read, write, and compare 
decimals to thousandths. a. Read and 
write decimals to thousandths using 
base-ten numerals, number names, and 
expanded form, e.g., 347.392 = 3  100 + 4 
 10 + 7  1 + 3  ( 1 ∕10) + 9  ( 1 ∕100) + 2  ( 1 
∕1000). b. Compare two decimals to 
thousandths based on meanings of the 
digits in each place, using >, =, and < 
symbols to record the results of 
comparisons.  
NOPS. 4. Use place value understanding 
to round decimals to any place. 
NOPS. 5. Fluently multiply multi-digit 
whole numbers. (Include two-digit x four-
digit numbers and, three-digit x three-
digit numbers) using the standard 
algorithm.  
NOPS. 6. Find whole-number quotients of 
whole numbers with up to four-digit 
dividends and two-digit divisors, using 
strategies based on place value, the 
properties of operations, and/or the 
relationship between multiplication and 
division. Illustrate and explain the 
calculation by using equations, 
rectangular arrays, and/or area models.  
 


NOPS. 7. Add, subtract, multiply, and divide 
decimals to hundredths, using concrete models or 
drawings and strategies based on place value, 
properties of operations, and/or the relationship 
between addition and subtraction and between 
multiplication and division; relate the strategy to a 
written method and explain the reasoning used. 
Number and Operations Fractions Power Standards 
(NOFPS)      
NOFPS. 1. Add and subtract fractions with unlike 
denominators (including mixed numbers) by 
replacing given fractions with equivalent fractions in 
such a way as to produce an equivalent sum or 
difference of fractions with like denominators.       
NOFPS. 2. Solve word problems involving addition 
and subtraction of fractions referring to the same 
whole (the whole can be a set of objects), including 
cases of unlike denominators, e.g., by using visual 
fraction models or equations to represent the 
problem. Use benchmark fractions and number 
sense of fractions to estimate mentally and assess 
the reasonableness of answers. 
NOFPS. 3. Interpret a fraction as division of the 
numerator by the denominator (a ∕b = a  b). Solve 
word problems involving division of whole numbers 
leading to answers in the form of fractions or mixed 
numbers, e.g., by using visual fraction models or 
equations to represent the problem. 
NOFPS. 4. Apply and extend previous 
understandings of multiplication to multiply a 
fraction or whole number by a fraction. a. Interpret 
the product (a ∕b)  q as a parts of a partition of q 
into b equal parts; equivalently, as the result of a 
sequence of operations a  q  b. 
Find the area of a rectangle with fractional side 
lengths by tiling it with unit squares of the 
appropriate unit fraction side lengths, and show that 
the area is the same as would be found by 
multiplying the side lengths. Multiply fractional side 
lengths to find areas of rectangles, and represent 
fraction products as rectangular areas. 
NOFPS. 5. Interpret multiplication as scaling 
(resizing), by: a. Comparing the size of a product to 
the size of one factor on the basis of the size of the 
other factor, without performing the indicated 
multiplication. b. Explaining why multiplying a given 
number by a fraction greater than 1 results in a 
product greater than the given number (recognizing 
multiplication by whole numbers greater than 1 as a 
familiar case); explaining why multiplying a given 
number by a fraction less than 1 results in a product 
smaller than the given number; and relating the 
principle of fraction equivalence a /b = (n  a)/(n  b) 
to the effect of multiplying a ∕b by 1.  


 NOFPS. 6. Solve real-world problems 
involving multiplication of fractions and 


rectangular prisms to find volumes of right 
rectangular prisms with whole-number edge lengths 







 
10
8 


 


mixed numbers, e.g., by using visual 
fraction models or equations to represent 
the problem.  
NOFPS. 7. Apply and extend previous 
understandings of division to divide unit 
fractions by whole numbers and whole 
numbers by unit fractions.21 a. Interpret 
division of a unit fraction by a non-zero 
whole number, and compute such 
quotients. Interpret division of a whole 
number by a unit fraction, and compute 
such quotients. 
NOFPS. 8. Solve real-world problems 
involving division of unit fractions by non-
zero whole numbers and division of 
whole numbers by unit fractions, e.g., by 
using visual fraction models and 
equations to represent the problem. 
Measurement and Data Power Standards 
(MDPS)    
MDPS. 1. Convert among different-sized 
standard measurement units within a 
given measurement system (e.g., convert 
5 cm to 0.05 m), and use these 
conversions in solving multi-step, real-
world problems.  
MDPS. 2. Make a line plot (dot plot) to 
display a data set of measurements in 
fractions of a unit. Use operations on 
fractions for this grade to solve problems 
involving information presented in line 
plot (dot plot). 
MDPS. 3, 3. Recognize volume as an 
attribute of solid figures and understand 
concepts of volume measurement. a. A 
cube with side length 1 unit, called a “unit 
cube,” is said to have “one cubic unit” of 
volume, and can be used to measure 
volume. b. A solid figure which can be 
packed without gaps or overlaps using n 
unit cubes is said to have a volume of n 
cubic units. 4. Measure volumes by 
counting unit cubes, using cubic cm, 
cubic in., cubic ft., and non-standard 
units.  
MDPS. 5. Relate volume to the operations 
of multiplication and addition and solve 
real-world and mathematical problems 
involving volume. a. Find the volume of a 
right rectangular prism with whole-
number edge lengths by packing it with 
unit cubes, and show that the volume is 
the same as would be found by 
multiplying the edge lengths, equivalently 
by multiplying the height by the area of 
the base. Represent threefold whole-
number products as volumes, e.g., to 
represent the associative property of 
multiplication. b. Apply the formula V = l  
w  h and V = B  h (where B stands for 
the area of the base) for  


in the context of solving real-world and 
mathematical problems. c. Recognize volume as 
additive. Find volumes of solid figures composed of 
two non-overlapping right rectangular prisms by 
adding the volumes of the non-overlapping parts, 
applying this technique to solve real-world 
problems. 
Geometry Power Standards (GPS) 
GPS. 1. Use a pair of perpendicular number lines, 
called axes, to define a coordinate system, with the 
intersection of the lines (the origin) arranged to 
coincide with the zero on each line and a given point 
in the plane located by using an ordered pair of 
numbers, called its coordinates. Understand that the 
first number indicates how far to travel from the 
origin in the direction of one axis, and the second 
number indicates how far to travel in the direction of 
the second axis, with the convention that the names 
of the two axes and the coordinates correspond 
(e.g., x-axis and x-coordinate, y-axis and y-
coordinate).  
GPS. 2. Represent real-world and mathematical 
problems by graphing points in the first quadrant of 
the coordinate plane, and interpret coordinate 
values of points in the context of the situation. 
GPS. 3. Understand that attributes belonging to a 
category of two-dimensional figures also belong to 
all subcategories of that category. 
GPS. 4. Classify two-dimensional figures in a 
hierarchy based on properties. 
Reading Power Standards for Foundational Skills 
(RPSFS)                                                                                      
RPSFS. 1. Know and apply grade-level phonics and 
word analysis skills in decoding words. Use 
combined knowledge of all letter-sound 
correspondences, syllabication patterns, and 
morphology (e.g., roots and affixes) to read 
accurately unfamiliar multisyllabic words in context 
and out of context.  
RPSFS. 2. Read with sufficient accuracy and fluency 
to support comprehension. a. Read grade-level text 
with purpose and understanding. b. Read grade-
level prose and poetry orally with accuracy, 
appropriate rate, and expression on successive 
readings. c. Use context to confirm or self-correct 
word recognition and understanding, rereading as 
necessary.  
 







 
10
9 


 


GRADE 5 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE 
ARTS 
INTEGRAION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS)    
RPS. 1. Quote or paraphrase a text 
accurately when explaining what the text 
states explicitly and when drawing 
inferences from the text. (See grade 5 
Writing Standard 8 for more on 
paraphrasing.)  
RPS. 2. Determine a theme of a story, 
drama, or poem from details in the text, 
including how characters in a story or 
drama respond to challenges or how the 
speaker in a poem reflects upon a topic; 
summarize a text. 
RPS. 3. Compare and contrast two or 
more characters, settings, or events in a 
story or drama, drawing on specific 
details in the text (e.g., how characters 
interact). 
RPS. 4. Determine the meaning of words 
and phrases as they are used in a text; 
identify and explain the effects of 
figurative language such as metaphors 
and similes. (See grade 5 Language 
Standards 4–6 on applying knowledge of 
vocabulary to reading.) 
RPS. 5. Explain how a series of chapters, 
scenes, or stanzas fits together to provide 
the overall structure of a particular story, 
drama, or poem. 
RPS. 6. Describe how a narrator’s or 
speaker’s point of view influences how 
events are described in a story, myth, 
poem, or drama. 
RPS. 7. Analyze how visual and 
multimedia elements contribute to the 
meaning, tone, or beauty of a text (e.g., 
graphic novel; multimedia presentation of 
fiction, folktale, myth, poem).  
RPS. 8. (Not applicable. For expectations 
regarding themes in literary texts, see 
RL.2.)  
RPS. 9. Compare and contrast stories in 
the same genre (e.g., mysteries or 
adventure stories) on their approaches to 
similar themes and topics. 
RPS. 10. Independently and proficiently 
read and comprehend literary texts 
representing a variety of genres, cultures, 
and perspectives and exhibiting 
complexity appropriate for at least grade 
5. 
Reading Power Standards for 
Informational Text (RPSIT)      
RPSIT. 1. Quote or paraphrase a text 
accurately when explaining what the text 
states explicitly and when drawing 
inferences from the text. (See grade 5 
Writing Standard 8 for more on 
paraphrasing.)  
RPSIT. 2. Determine one or more main 
ideas of a text and explain how they are 


RPSIT. 3. Explain the relationships or interactions 
between two or more individuals, events, ideas, or 
concepts in a historical, scientific, mathematical, or 
technical text based on specific information in the 
text. 
RPSIT. 4. Determine the meaning of general 
academic and domain-specific words and phrases in 
a text relevant to a grade 5 topic or subject area.  
RPSIT. 5. Describe how an author uses one or more 
structures (e.g., chronology, comparison, 
cause/effect, problem/solution) of events, to 
present information in a text.  
RPSIT. 6. Analyze multiple accounts of the same 
event or topic, noting important similarities and 
differences among the points of view they 
represent. 
RPSIT. 7. Draw on information from multiple print or 
digital sources, demonstrating the ability to locate 
an answer to a question quickly or to solve a 
problem efficiently. 
RPSIT. 8. Explain how an author uses reasons and 
evidence to support particular points in a text, 
identifying which reasons and evidence support 
which point(s).  
RPSIT. 9. Integrate information from several texts on 
the same topic in order to write or speak 
knowledgeably about the subject. 
RPSIT. 10. Independently and proficiently read and 
comprehend informational texts, including 
history/social studies, science, mathematical, and 
technical texts, exhibiting complexity appropriate 
for at least grade 5.  
Writing Power Standards (WPS)   
WPS. 1.  Write opinion pieces on topics or texts, 
supporting a point of view with reasons and 
information. a. Introduce a topic or text clearly, state 
an opinion, and create an organizational structure in 
which ideas are logically grouped in paragraphs and 
sections to support the writer’s purpose. b. Provide 
logically ordered reasons that are supported by facts 
and details. c. Link opinion and reasons using words, 
phrases, and clauses (e.g., consequently, 
specifically). d. Provide a concluding statement or 
section related to the opinion presented. 3. 
Construct viable arguments and respond to the 
reasoning of others. 
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts to 
examine a topic and convey ideas and information 
clearly. a. Introduce a topic clearly, provide a general 
observation and focus, and group related 
information logically in paragraphs and sections; 
include text features (e.g., headings), illustrations, 
and multimedia when useful to aiding 
comprehension. b. Develop the topic with facts, 
definitions, concrete details, quotations, or other 
information and examples related to the topic. c. 
Link ideas within and across categories of 
information using words, phrases, and clauses (e.g., 
in contrast, especially). d. Use precise language and 
domain-specific vocabulary to inform about or 
explain the topic. e. Provide a concluding statement 







 
11
0 


 


supported by key details; summarize a 
text. 


or section related to the information or explanation 
presented.  


 WPS. 3. Write narratives in prose or poem 
form to develop experiences or events 
using effective literary techniques, 
descriptive details, and clear sequences. 
a. Orient the reader by establishing a 
situation and introducing a speaker, 
narrator, and/or characters; organize an 
appropriate narrative sequence. b. Use 
narrative techniques such as dialogue, 
description, and pacing to develop 
experiences or events or show responses 
to situations. c. Use a variety of 
transitional words, phrases, and clauses 
to manage sequence. d. Use concrete 
words and phrases and sensory details to 
convey experiences or events precisely. e. 
Provide a sense of closure appropriate to 
the narrated experiences or events. f. For 
prose narratives, draw on characteristics 
of traditional or modern genres (e.g., tall 
tales, myths, mysteries, fantasies, 
historical fiction) from diverse cultures as 
models for writing. (See grade 5 Reading 
Literature Standard 9.) g. For poems, 
draw on characteristics of traditional 
poetic forms (e.g., ballads, couplets) or 
modern free verse from diverse cultures 
as models for writing. 
WPS. 4. Produce clear and coherent 
writing in which the development and 
organization are appropriate to task, 
purpose, and audience. (Grade-specific 
expectations for writing types are defined 
in Standards 1–3 above.)  
WPS. 5. Develop and strengthen writing 
as needed by planning, revising, editing, 
rewriting, or trying a new approach. a. 
Demonstrate command of standard 
English conventions (as described in 
Language Standards 1– 3 up to and 
including grade 5). b. Demonstrate the 
ability to use general academic and 
domain-specific vocabulary appropriately 
(as described in Language Standards 4–6 
up to and including grade 5). 
WPS. 6. Use technology, including current 
web-based communication platforms, to 
produce and publish writing as well as to 
interact and collaborate with others; 
demonstrate sufficient command of 
keyboarding skills to type a minimum of 
two pages in a single sitting. 
WPS. 7. Conduct short research projects 
that use several sources to build 
knowledge through investigation of 
different aspects of a topic.  


RPS. 8. Recall relevant information from experiences 
or gather relevant information from print and digital 
sources; summarize or paraphrase information in 
notes and finished work, and provide a list of 
sources.  
RPS. 9. Draw evidence from literary or informational 
texts to support written analysis, reflection, and 
research, applying one or more grade 5 standards for 
Reading Literature or Reading Informational Text as 
needed. 
RPS. 10. Write routinely over extended time frames 
(time for research, reflection, and revision) and 
shorter time frames (a single sitting or a day or two) 
for a range of discipline-specific tasks, purposes, and 
audiences. 
Speaking and Listening Power Standards (SLPS) 
SLPS. 1. Engage effectively in a range of collaborative 
discussions (one-on-one, in groups, and teacher-led) 
with diverse partners on grade 5 topics and texts, 
building on others’ ideas and expressing their own 
clearly. a. Come to discussions prepared, having 
read or studied required material; explicitly draw on 
that preparation and other information known about 
the topic to explore ideas under discussion. (See 
grade 5 Reading Literature Standard 1 and Reading 
Informational Text Standard 1 for specific 
expectations regarding the use of textual evidence.) 
b. Follow agreed-upon rules for discussions and 
carry out assigned roles. c. Pose and respond to 
specific questions by making comments that 
contribute to the discussion and elaborate on the 
remarks of others. d. Review the key ideas 
expressed and draw conclusions in light of 
information and knowledge gained from the 
discussions. 
SLPS. 2. Summarize a written text read aloud or 
information presented in diverse media and formats, 
including visually, quantitatively, and orally. 
SLPS. 3. Summarize the points a speaker makes and 
explain how each claim is supported by reasons and 
evidence. 
SLPS. 4. Report on a topic, text, procedure, or 
solution to a mathematical problem, or present an 
opinion, sequencing ideas logically and using 
appropriate facts and relevant, descriptive details to 
support main ideas or themes; speak clearly at an 
understandable pace and use appropriate 
vocabulary. 
SLPS. 5. Include multimedia components and visual 
displays in presentations when appropriate to 
enhance the development of main ideas or themes. 
SLPS. 6. Adapt speech to a variety of contexts and 
tasks, using formal English when appropriate to task 
and situation.  
 


 Language Power Standards (LPS) 
LP. 1. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English 
grammar and usage when writing or 


LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of unknown 
and multiple-meaning words and phrases based on 
grade 5 reading and content, choosing flexibly from a 
range of strategies. a. Use context (e.g., cause/effect 







 
11
1 


 


speaking; retain and further develop 
language skills learned in previous 
grades. a. Use verb tense to convey 
various times, sequences, states, and 
conditions, choosing among verb tenses 
depending on the overall meaning of the 
sentence. b. Recognize and correct 
inappropriate shifts in verb tense.11 c. 
Use active and passive verbs, choosing 
between them depending on the overall 
meaning of the sentence. Word Usage d. 
Form and use perfect verb tenses. 
LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English 
capitalization, punctuation, and spelling 
when writing. a. Write legibly and 
fluently by hand, using either print or 
cursive handwriting; write their given 
and family name signature in cursive. b. 
Use punctuation to separate items in a 
series.12 c. Use a comma to separate an 
introductory element from the rest of 
the sentence. d. Use a comma to set off 
the words yes and no (e.g., Yes, thank 
you), to set off a tag question from the 
rest of the sentence (e.g., It’s true, isn’t 
it?), and to indicate direct address (e.g., 
Is that you, Steve?). e. Use underlining, 
quotation marks, or italics to indicate 
titles of works. f. Spell grade-appropriate 
words correctly, consulting references as 
needed. 
LPS. 3. Use knowledge of language and 
its conventions when writing, speaking, 
reading, or listening. a. Expand, 
combine, and reduce sentences for 
meaning, reader/listener interest, and 
style.12 b. Compare and contrast the 
varieties of English (e.g., dialects, 
registers) used in stories, dramas, or 
poems. 


relationships and comparisons in text) as a clue to the 
meaning of a word or phrase. b. Use common, grade-
appropriate Greek and Latin affixes and roots as clues 
to the meaning of a word (e.g., photograph, 
photosynthesis). c. Consult reference materials (e.g., 
dictionaries, glossaries, thesauruses), both print and 
digital, to find the pronunciation and determine or 
clarify the precise meaning of key words and phrases. 
d. Recognize and use appropriately abbreviations 
related to grade-level content or common in 
everyday life, including abbreviations derived from 
words or phrases in other languages (e.g., lb., oz., 
etc.). e. Recognize and use appropriately symbols 
related to grade-level content or common in 
everyday life, including symbols with multiple 
meanings (e.g., parentheses in mathematics and in 
writing, ° to measure angles and temperature). 
LPS. 6. Demonstrate understanding of figurative 
language, word relationships, and nuances in word 
meanings. a. Interpret figurative language, including 
similes and metaphors, in context. b. Recognize and 
explain the meaning of common idioms, adages, and 
proverbs. c. Use the relationship between particular 
words (e.g., synonyms, antonyms, homographs) to 
better understand each of the words. 6. Acquire and 
use accurately grade-appropriate general academic 
and domain-specific words and phrases, including 
those that signal contrast, addition, and other logical 
relationships. 
 


 


GRADE 5 
SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Early Colonization Power Standards 
(ECPS) 
Supporting Question: To what extent was 
North America a land of opportunity, and 
for whom?  
ECPS. 1. Explain the early relationships of 
English settlers to Native Peoples in the 
1600s and 1700s, including the impact of 
diseases introduced by Europeans in 
severely reducing Native populations, the 
differing views on land ownership or use, 
property rights, and the conflicts 
between the two groups (e.g., the Pequot 
and King Philip’s Wars in New England).  
ECPS. 2. Compare the different reasons 
colonies were established and research 
one of the founders of a colony (e.g., Lord 
Baltimore in Maryland, William Penn in 
Pennsylvania, John Smith in Virginia, 


a. Enslaved African Americans were property that 
could be bought, sold, and separated from their 
families by their owners; they were generally not 
taught to read or write, and generally owned no 
property; they suffered many kinds of abuse and 
could be punished if they were caught after running 
away from their masters. A number of slave rebellions 
resulted from these harsh conditions. b. Many 
enslaved Africans became skilled artisans, such as 
cabinetmakers, coopers, and ironworkers and could 
be hired out to work. c. Some Africans came to 
America as indentured servants or sailors and were 
freed when their service was completed; some 
former slaves were granted freedom and some in the 
North took legal action to obtain their freedom (e.g., 
in Massachusetts, Elizabeth Freeman, Quock Walker, 
and Prince Hall). d. States in the North adopted 
gradual emancipation (for example, Massachusetts 
outlawed slavery in 1783 and no enslaved people 







 
11
2 


 


Roger Williams in Rhode Island, John 
Winthrop in Massachusetts).  
ECPS. 3. Analyze the reasons why English 
colonists had the strongest influence on 
the language, political institutions, and 
political principles of the country that 
became the United States of America, 
even though other major European 
nations also explored North America (e.g., 
the relatively small number of colonists 
from other nations, England’s history of 
self- government, high rates of literacy, 
and strong economic, and military 
position in the world).  
ECPS. 4. On a map of the United States, 
locate the first 13 colonies and describe 
the impact of regional differences in 
climate on the types of crops that could 
be grown or harvested profitably in the 
Northern, mid-Atlantic, and Southern 
colonies; describe varied sources of labor 
(e.g., self-employed colonists, 
apprentices, employees, indentured 
servants, free and enslaved Africans).  
ECPS. 5. Describe the origins of slavery, 
its legal status in all the colonies through 
the 18th century, and the prevalence of 
slave ownership, including by many of the 
country’s early leaders (e.g., George 
Washington, Thomas Jefferson, James 
Madison, George Mason.) 
ECPS. 6. Describe the Triangular Trade 
and the harsh conditions of trans-Atlantic 
voyages (called the Middle Passage) for 
enslaved Africans.  
ECPS. 7. Compare and contrast the living 
and working conditions of enslaved and 
free Africans in the colonies in the 18th 
century, and explain how some enslaved 
people sought their freedom. 


appear in the 1790 Massachusetts census); free 
African Americans could have families, own property, 
hold jobs, and earn a living. 
Revolutionary War Power Standards (RWPS) 
RWPS. 1.  Reasons for revolution, the Revolutionary 
War, and the formation of government 
Explain the reasons for the French and Indian War 
and how its costs led to an overhaul of British 
imperial policy; explain key British policies and the 
colonial response to them. a. policies: the 
Proclamation of 1763, the Sugar Act (1764), the Stamp 
Act (1765), the Townsend Duties (1767), the Tea Act 
(1773), the Intolerable Acts (1774) b. the slogan, “no 
taxation without representation” c. the roles of the 
Stamp Act Congress, the Sons of Liberty, and the 
Boston Tea (1773), the Suffolk Resolves (1774), in 
which Massachusetts declared a boycott of British 
goods, the early battles between Massachusetts 
colonists and the British soldiers in Lexington, 
Concord, and Bunker Hill (1775) and the evacuation of 
the British from Boston (1776) d. the role of women in 
the boycott of British textiles and tea, in writing to 
support liberty, in managing family farms and 
businesses, raising funds for the war, and supporting 
the Continental Army (1760s–1780s)  
RWPS. 2. On a historic map of the Boston area in the 
1770s, locate important sites in the preRevolutionary 
and Revolutionary period and analyze the role and 
the significance of Massachusetts people such 
Samuel Adams, Crispus Attucks, John Hancock, 
James Otis, Paul Revere, John and Abigail Adams, 
Mercy Otis Warren, Phillis Wheatley, Peter Salem.  
RWPS. 3. Explain the development of colonial 
governments and describe how these developments 
(e.g., legislative bodies, town meetings, and charters 
on individual freedoms and rights) contributed to the 
Revolution  
RWPS. 4. Read the Declaration of Independence 
(1776), explain its main argument, the reasons given 
for seeking independence, the meaning of the key 
ideas on equality and natural and legal rights, and the 
rule of law. 
 


 RWPS. 5. Describe the impact of events as 
the Revolutionary War continued; locate 
the sites of events on a map, and explain 
the factors leading to American victory 
and British defeat. a. The Battles of 
Trenton in New Jersey (1776) and Saratoga 
in New York (1777) b. The winter 
encampment of the Continental Army at 
Valley Forge in Pennsylvania (1777–1778) c. 
The battle of Yorktown in Virginia (1781) 6. 
Explain that many Americans remained 
loyal to the British Crown or remained 
neutral in the conflict and that Native 
Peoples and free and enslaved Africans 
fought on both sides in the Revolution.35 
7. Compare and contrast the impact of the 
actions of important leaders (e.g., John 
Adams, Benjamin Franklin, King George III, 
Edmund Burke, Thomas Jefferson, 


college, slavery and the question of how slaves were 
to be counted in the Census); explain why the 
framers agreed to the 3/5 Compromise in order to 
keep the states united and how the decision 
reinforced the institution of slavery and the power of 
states in which slavery was particularly prevalent. 5. 
Explain that voting rights and property rights did not 
extend to women in the new Constitution. 6. Read 
the Bill of Rights and explain the freedoms it 
guarantees; research the historical background of 
one of the first ten Amendments and make an 
argument using evidence for its inclusion in the Bill 
of Rights in 1791. Clarification Statement: These 
standards are designed to be introductory. Students 
will study United States government in a Grade 8 
Civics course and will revisit principles of 
government as part of high school courses U. S. 
History I and II. 
Republic Growth Power Standards (RGPS) 







 
11
3 


 


Alexander Hamilton, James Madison, 
George Washington, the Marquis de 
Lafayette) during the Revolution and the 
early years of the United States Republic. 
8. Explain the reasons for the adoption of 
the Articles of Confederation in 1781, the 
weaknesses of the Articles as a plan for 
government, and the reasons for their 
failure. 9. Analyze the causes of Shays’ 
Rebellion of 1786-1787 and explain why it 
was one of the crucial events leading to 
the Constitutional Convention. 
Principles of Government Power Standards 
(PGPS) 
PGPS. 1. Read the Preamble to and 
sections of the Constitution and explain 
how these writings reflect the following 
political principles: individual rights and 
responsibilities, equality, the rule of law, 
general welfare, limited government, 
representative democracy. Clarification 
statement: Teachers may choose the 
sections of the Constitution that they 
believe to be most accessible and relevant 
to their students. 2. Explain how the 
framers of the Constitution divided and 
shared powers among the three branches 
of the United States government; describe 
the function of each branch and the 
system of checks and balances. 3. Describe 
the responsibilities of government at the 
federal, state, and local levels (e.g., 
protection of individual rights and the 
provision of services such as law 
enforcement and the building and funding 
of schools. 4. Analyze the significance of 
the major issues debated by members of 
the Constitutional Convention (e.g., the 
distribution of political power, the rights of 
individuals, rights of states, tensions 
between states with large and smaller 
populations, the make-up of the Senate 
and electoral  


RGPS. 1. Identify the first three Presidents of the 
United States (George Washington, 1787-1797, John 
Adams, 1797–1801, and Thomas Jefferson, 1801–1809); 
summarize key developments during their time (e.g., 
the founding of political parties in the 1790s; the first 
Bank of the U.S., the Alien and Sedition Acts in 1798; 
the Louisiana Purchase of 1803, the Haitian 
Revolution in 1804), and evaluate their leadership of 
the new nation.  
RGPS. 2. Evaluate the importance to the nation of 
the Louisiana Purchase and trace the expedition of 
Meriwether Lewis and William Clark, with 
Sacagawea and the Corps of Discovery, from 1803 to 
1806.  
RGPS. 3. Describe the causes of the War of 1812 and 
how events during the war contributed to a sense of 
American nationalism. a. British restrictions on trade 
and impressment b. Major battles and events of the 
war, including the role of the USS Constitution, the 
burning of the Capitol and the White House, and the 
Battle of New Orleans  
RGPS. 4. On a map of New England, locate cities and 
towns that played important roles in the 
development of the textile and machinery 
industries, whaling, shipping, and the China trade in 
the 18th and 19th centuries and give examples of the 
short- and long-term benefits and costs of these 
industries.  
RGPS. 5. Explain 19th century conflicts between 
Native Peoples and national, state, and local 
governments in the United States over land 
ownership and rights to self-government. a. 
Shawnee leader Tecumseh’s call for Native Peoples 
to unify in resistance to the taking of their land (1810) 
b. President Andrew Jackson and the Indian 
Removal Act (1830), which forced native 
communities to move from their ancestral lands in 
the Southeast to territory west of the Mississippi 
River c. the Mashpee Revolt (1833), a dispute over 
self-government in the Mashpee Indian district in 
Massachusetts d. the significance of the Trail of 
Tears (1838) for the Cherokee and other native 
communities in the Southeast 


 Slavery Civil War Power Standards (SCWPS) 
SCWPS. 1. Trace the state-by-state abolition 
of slavery in the Northern states in the 18th 
and 19th centuries and the expansion of 
slavery into western states; explain the 
effects of the 1808 law that banned the 
importation of slaves into the United States 
and explain how a robust slave trade 
nonetheless continued within the United 
States until the mid-19th century. 
SCWPS. 2. 2. Identify the major reasons for 
the Civil War (e.g., slavery, political and 
economic competition in Western 
territories, the emergence of the 
Republican Party) and the war’s most 
important outcomes (e.g., end of slavery, 
Reconstruction, expanded role of the 
federal government, industrial growth in 
the North). Clarification Statement: In 


civic organizations, and newspapers played in 
supporting and unifying African American 
communities.  
SCWPS. 8. Research and analyze one of the people, 
organizations, events, or legislative acts from the 
20th century that contributed to expanding civil 
rights of African Americans, women, and others in 
the United States. Clarification Statement: In 
addressing this standard, students and teachers may 
choose to focus on any of the following: • People 
such as Martin Luther King, Jr., Rosa Parks, Ruby 
Bridges, Thurgood Marshall, Edward Brooke, Jackie 
Robinson, Marian Anderson, Bayard Rustin, Eleanor 
Roosevelt, Frances Perkins, Lorraine Hansberry, 
Gloria Steinem, Betty Friedan, Geraldine Ferraro, 
César Chávez, Dolores Huerta, Sandra Day O’Connor, 
Ruth Bader Ginsburg • Organizations such as the 
National Organization for the Advancement of 
Colored People (NAACP) the National Organization 







 
11
4 


 


Grade 4, students were introduced to the 
Civil War as they learned about states of the 
Confederacy and the Union; they will study 
the Civil War in greater depth in high 
school.  
SCWPS. 3. Explain the ideas and roles of 
some of the people of the pre-Civil War era 
who led the struggle against slavery 
(abolitionism) and for voting and property 
rights for African Americans (e.g., Harriet 
Tubman, Nat Turner, Sojourner Truth, 
Frederick Douglass, William Lloyd Garrison, 
Harriet Beecher Stowe).  
SCWPS. 4. Identify the major military 
leaders and battles of the Civil War (e.g., 
Ulysses S. Grant, Robert E. Lee, William 
Tecumseh Sherman, Stonewall Jackson; 
Battles of Bull Run, Shiloh, Fredericksburg, 
Vicksburg, Gettysburg, Appomattox).  
SCWPS. 5. Describe the role of Abraham 
Lincoln in the development of the 
Republican Party and his actions as 
President during the Civil War, including the 
Emancipation Proclamation and the 13th, 
14th, and 15th Amendments to the 
Constitution.  
SCWPS. 6. Explain the consequences of the 
Emancipation Proclamation and the 13th, 
14th, and 15th Amendments for the rights of 
African Americans. a. advocacy for women’s 
rights surrounding the passage of the 14th 
and 15th Amendments and its relationship 
to the later movement for women’s rights 
b. women’s attainment of the right to vote 
with the passage of the 19th Amendment of 
1920  
CSWPS. 7. Describe living conditions for 
African Americans following the Civil War, 
during the Jim Crow era, including limited 
educational and economic opportunities, 
separate public facilities (e.g., segregated 
schools and colleges, neighborhoods, 
sections in buses, trains, restaurants, and 
movie theaters), the organized 
perpetuation of white supremacist beliefs 
and the threat of violence from extra-legal 
groups such as the Ku Klux Klan. Describe 
the role African American churches,  


for Women (NOW) events such as the 1963 March on 
Washington, efforts of the 1960s and 1970s to 
desegregate city public school systems in 
Massachusetts • legislation such as the Equal Pay 
Act (1963), the campaign for, and eventual defeat of 
the Equal Rights Amendment (1970s), the enactment 
of Title IX (prohibition of discrimination on the 
account of gender, 1972) 9. Explain how the 20th 
century African American Civil Rights movement 
served as a model for other movements for civil 
rights (e.g., the second phase of the women’s 
movement in the 1960s and 1970s, the disability 
rights movement, the LGBTQ movement). 


GRADE 5 
SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 
 


Earth & Space Sciences Power Standards 
(ESPS)     
ESPS. 1. Use observations, first-hand and 
from various media, to argue that the Sun is 
a star that appears larger and brighter than 
other stars because it is closer to Earth.  
ESPS. 2. Use a model to communicate 
Earth’s relationship to the Sun, Moon, and 
other stars that explain (a) why people on 
Earth experience day and night, (b) patterns 
in daily changes in length and direction of 
shadows over a day, and (c) changes in the 
apparent position of the Sun, Moon, and 


PSPS. 2. Measure and graph the weights (masses) of 
substances before and after a reaction or phase 
change to provide evidence that regardless of the 
type of change that occurs when heating, cooling, or 
combining substances, the total weight (mass) of 
matter is conserved. 
PSPS. 3. Make observations and measurements of 
substances to describe characteristic properties of 
each, including color, hardness, reflectivity, electrical 
conductivity, thermal conductivity, response to 
magnetic forces, and solubility. 
PSPS. 4. Conduct an experiment to determine 
whether the mixing of two or more substances 







 
11
5 


 


stars at different times during a day, over a 
month, and over a year. 
Earth’s Systems Power Standards (ESPS) 
ESPS. 1. Use a model to describe the cycling 
of water through a watershed through 
evaporation, precipitation, absorption, 
surface runoff, and condensation. 
ESPS. 2. Describe and graph the relative 
amounts of salt water in the ocean; fresh 
water in lakes, rivers, and groundwater; and 
fresh water frozen in glaciers and polar ice 
caps to provide evidence about the 
availability of fresh water in Earth’s 
biosphere. 
Earth and Human Activity Power Standards 
(EHAPS) 
EHAPS. 1. Obtain and combine information 
about ways communities reduce human 
impact on the Earth’s resources and 
environment by changing an agricultural, 
industrial, or community practice or 
process. 
EHAPS. 2. Test a simple system designed to 
filter particulates out of water and propose 
one change to the design to improve it. 
Life Science Power Standards (LSPS) 
LSPS.1. Ask testable questions about the 
process by which plants use air, water, and 
energy from sunlight to produce sugars and 
plant materials needed for growth and 
reproduction. 
Ecosystems Power Standards (EPS) 
EPS. 1. Develop a model to describe the 
movement of matter among producers, 
consumers, decomposers, and the air, 
water, and soil in the environment to (a) 
show that plants produce sugars and plant 
materials, (b) show that animals can eat 
plants and/or other animals for food, and 
(c) show that some organisms, including 
fungi and bacteria, break down dead 
organisms and recycle some materials back 
to the air and soil. 
EPS. 2. Compare at least two designs for a 
composter to determine which is most 
likely to encourage decomposition of 
materials. 
Physical Science Power Standards (PSPS) 
PSPS. 1. Use a particle model of matter to 
explain common phenomena involving 
gases, and phase changes between gas and 
liquid and between liquid and solid. 


results in new substances with new properties (a 
chemical reaction) or not (a mixture). 
Motion and Stability Power Standards (MSPS) 
MSPS. 1. Support an argument with evidence that 
the gravitational force exerted by Earth on objects is 
directed toward Earth’s center. 
Energy Power Standards (EPS) 
EPS. 1. Use a model to describe that the food animals 
digest (a) contains energy that was once energy 
from the Sun, and (b) provides energy and nutrients 
for life processes, including body repair, growth, 
motion, body warmth, and reproduction. 
Technology/Engineering Power Standards (TEPS) 
TEPS. 1. Use informational text to provide examples 
of improvements to existing technologies 
(innovations) and the development of new 
technologies (inventions). Recognize that 
technology is any modification of the natural or 
designed world done to fulfill human needs or 
wants. 
TEPS. 2. Use sketches or drawings to show how each 
part of a product or device relates to other parts in 
the product or device 


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 6 
GRADE 6                
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Ratios and Proportional Relationships 
Power Standards (RPRPS) 
RPRPS. 1. Understand the concept of a ratio 
including the distinctions between part:part 
and part:whole and the value of a ratio; 
part/part and part/whole. Use ratio 
language to describe a ratio relationship 
between two quantities. 


NSPS. 6. Understand a rational number as a point on 
the number line. Extend number line diagrams and 
coordinate axes familiar from previous grades to 
represent points on the line and in the plane with 
negative number coordinates. a. Recognize opposite 
signs of numbers as indicating locations on opposite 
sides of 0 on the number line; recognize that the 
opposite of the opposite of a number is the number 
itself, e.g., –(–3) = 3, and that zero is its own 







 
11
6 


 


RPRPS. 2. Understand the concept of a unit 
rate a/b associated with a ratio a:b with b  
0, and use rate language in the context of a 
ratio relationship, including the use of units. 
RPRPS. 3. Use ratio and rate reasoning to 
solve real-world and mathematical 
problems, e.g., by reasoning about tables of 
equivalent ratios, tape diagrams, double 
number line diagrams, or equations. a. 
Make tables of equivalent ratios relating 
quantities with whole-number 
measurements. Find missing values in the 
tables, and plot the pairs of values on the 
coordinate plane. Use tables to compare 
ratios. b. Solve unit rate problems, including 
those involving unit pricing, and constant 
speed. 
Number System Power Standards (NSPS) 
NSPS. 1. Interpret and compute quotients of 
fractions, and solve word problems 
involving division of fractions by fractions, 
e.g., by using visual fraction models and 
equations to represent the problem. 
NSPS. 2. Fluently divide multi-digit 
numbers using the standard algorithm.  
NSPS. 3. Fluently add, subtract, multiply, 
and divide multi-digit decimals using the 
standard algorithm for each operation. 
NSPS. 4. Use prime factorization to find the 
greatest common factor of two whole 
numbers less than or equal to 100 and the 
least common multiple of two whole 
numbers less than or equal to 12. Use the 
distributive property to express a sum of 
two whole numbers 1–100 with a common 
factor as a multiple of a sum of two 
relatively prime numbers. 
NSPS. 5. Understand that positive and 
negative numbers are used together to 
describe quantities having opposite 
directions or values (e.g., temperature 
above/below zero, elevation above/below 
sea level, credits/debits, and 
positive/negative electric charge). Use 
positive and negative numbers (whole 
numbers, fractions, and decimals) to 
represent quantities in real-world contexts, 
explaining the meaning of zero in each 
situation.  


opposite. b. Understand signs of numbers in ordered 
pairs as indicating locations in quadrants of the 
coordinate plane; recognize that when two ordered 
pairs differ only by signs, the locations of the points 
are related by reflections across one or both axes. c. 
Find and position integers and other rational 
numbers on a horizontal or vertical number line 
diagram; find and position pairs of integers and 
other rational numbers on a coordinate plane.  
NSPS. 7. Understand ordering and absolute value of 
rational numbers. a. Interpret statements of 
inequality as statements about the relative positions 
of two numbers on a number line diagram. b. Write, 
interpret, and explain statements of order for 
rational numbers in real-world contexts.  
c. Understand the absolute value of a rational 
number as its distance from 0 on the number line; 
interpret absolute value as magnitude for a positive 
or negative quantity in a real-world situation. 
d. Distinguish comparisons of absolute value from 
statements about order.  
NSPS. 8. Solve real-world and mathematical 
problems by graphing points in all four quadrants of 
the coordinate plane. Include use of coordinates and 
absolute value to find distances between points with 
the same first coordinate or the same second 
coordinate. 
Expressions and Equations Power Standards (EEPS) 
EEPS. 1. Write and evaluate numerical expressions 
involving whole-number exponents.  
EEPS. 2. Write, read, and evaluate expressions in 
which letters stand for numbers. a. Write 
expressions that record operations with numbers 
and with letters standing for numbers. b Identify 
parts of an expression using mathematical terms 
(sum, term, product, factor, quotient, and 
coefficient); view one or more parts of an expression 
as a single entity. c. Evaluate expressions at specific 
values of their variables. Include expressions that 
arise from formulas used in real-world problems. 
Perform arithmetic operations, including those 
involving whole-number exponents, in the 
conventional order when there are no parentheses 
to specify a particular order (Order of Operations). 
EEPS. 3. Apply the properties of operations to 
generate equivalent expressions. 
EEPS. 4. Identify when two expressions are 
equivalent (i.e., when the two expressions name the 
same number regardless of which value is 
substituted into them). 


 EEPS. 5. Understand solving an equation or 
inequality as a process of answering a 
question: Which values from a specified set, 
if any, make the equation or inequality true? 
Use substitution to determine whether a 
given number in a specified set makes an 
equation or inequality true.  
EEPS. 6. Use variables to represent numbers 
and write expressions when solving a real-
world or mathematical problem; 
understand that a variable can represent an 
unknown number, or, depending on the 


4. Represent three-dimensional figures using nets 
made up of rectangles and triangles, and use the 
nets to find the surface areas of these figures. Apply 
these techniques in the context of solving real-world 
and mathematical problems. 
Statistics and Probability Power Standards (SPPS) 
SPPS. 1. Recognize a statistical question as one that 
anticipates variability in the data related to the 
question and accounts for it in the answers.  
SPPS. 2. Understand that a set of data collected to 
answer a statistical question has a distribution, 
which can be described by its center (median, mean, 







 
11
7 


 


purpose at hand, any number in a specified 
set.  
EEPS. 7. Solve real-world and mathematical 
problems by writing and solving equations 
of the form x + p = q and px = q for cases in 
which p, q, and x are all nonnegative 
rational numbers.  
EEPS. 8. Write an inequality of the form x > 
c or x < c to represent a constraint or 
condition in a real-world or mathematical 
problem. Recognize that inequalities of the 
form x > c or x < c have infinitely many 
solutions; represent solutions of such 
inequalities on number line diagrams. 
EEPS. 9. Use variables to represent two 
quantities in a real-world problem that 
change in relationship to one another; write 
an equation to express one quantity, 
thought of as the dependent variable, in 
terms of the other quantity, thought of as 
the independent variable. Analyze the 
relationship between the dependent and 
independent variables using graphs and 
tables, and relate these to the equation. 
Geometry Power Standards (GPS) 
GPS. 1. Find the area of right triangles, other 
triangles, special quadrilaterals, and 
polygons by composing into rectangles or 
decomposing into triangles and other 
shapes; apply these techniques in the 
context of solving real-world and 
mathematical problems.  
GPS. 2. Find the volume of a right 
rectangular prism with fractional edge 
lengths by packing it with unit cubes of the 
appropriate unit fraction edge lengths, and 
show that the volume is the same as would 
be found by multiplying the edge lengths of 
the prism. Apply the formulas V = lwh and V 
= Bh to find volumes of right rectangular 
prisms with fractional edge lengths in the 
context of solving real-world and 
mathematical problems. 
GPS. 3. Draw polygons in the coordinate 
plane given coordinates for the vertices; 
use coordinates to find the length of a side 
joining points with the same first 
coordinate or the same second coordinate. 
Apply these techniques in the context of 
solving real-world and mathematical 
problems.  


and/or mode), spread (range, interquartile range), 
and overall shape.  
SPPS. 3. Recognize that a measure of center for a 
numerical data set summarizes all of its values with 
a single number, while a measure of variation 
describes how its values vary with a single number. 
SPPS. 4. Display numerical data in plots on a number 
line, including dot plots, histograms, and box plots. 
a. Read and interpret circle graphs.  
SPPS. 5. Summarize numerical data sets in relation 
to their context, such as by: a. Reporting the number 
of observations. b. Describing the nature of the 
attribute under investigation, including how it was 
measured and its units of measurement. c. Giving 
quantitative measures of center (median, and/or 
mean) and variability (range and/or interquartile 
range), as well as describing any overall pattern and 
any striking deviations from the overall pattern with 
reference to the context in which the data were 
gathered. d. Relating the choice of measures of 
center and variability to the shape of the data 
distribution and the context in which the data were 
gathered. 
 


 


 


GRADE 6 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE 
ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS) 
RPS. 1. Cite textual evidence to support 
analysis of what a text states explicitly as 
well as inferences drawn from the text, 
quoting or paraphrasing as appropriate. (See 
grade 6 Writing Standard 8 for more on 
quoting and paraphrasing.)  


RPSIT. 4. Determine the meaning of words and 
phrases as they are used in a text, including 
figurative, connotative, and technical meanings; 
explain how word choice affects meaning and tone. 
(See grade 6 Language Standards 4–6 on applying 
knowledge of vocabulary to reading.)  







 
11
8 


 


RPS. 2. Determine a theme or central idea of 
a text and how it is conveyed through 
particular details; provide a summary of a 
text distinct from personal opinions or 
judgments.  
RPS. 3. Describe how the plot of a particular 
story, poem, or drama unfolds in a series of 
episodes as well as how the characters 
respond or change as the plot moves 
toward a resolution. 
RPS. 4. Determine the meaning of words 
and phrases as they are used in a text, 
including figurative and connotative 
meanings; analyze the impact of specific 
word choices, including those that create 
repeated sounds and rhythms in poetry, on 
meaning, tone (i.e., author’s attitude toward 
subject or audience), or mood . 
RPS. 5. Analyze how a particular sentence, 
chapter, scene, or stanza fits into the overall 
structure of a text and contributes to the 
development of the theme, setting, or plot. 
RPS. 6. Explain how an author develops the 
point of view of the narrator or speaker in a 
text. 
RPS. 7. Compare and contrast the 
experience of reading a story, drama, or 
poem to that of listening to or viewing the 
same text.  
RPS. 8. (Not applicable. For expectations 
regarding themes in literary texts, see RL.2.) 
RPS. 9. Compare and contrast texts in 
different forms or genres (e.g., stories and 
poems, historical novels and fantasy stories) 
in terms of their approaches to similar 
themes and topics. 
RPS. 10. Independently and proficiently read 
and comprehend literary texts representing 
a variety of genres, cultures, and 
perspectives and exhibiting complexity 
appropriate for at least grade 6. 
Reading Power Standards for Informational 
Text (RPSIT)      
RPSIT. 1. Cite textual evidence to support 
analysis of what a text states explicitly as 
well as inferences drawn from the text, 
quoting or paraphrasing as appropriate. 
RPSIT. 2. Determine a text’s central idea(s) 
and how particular details help convey the 
idea(s); provide a summary of a text distinct 
from personal opinions or judgments.  
RPSIT. 3. Analyze in detail how a key 
individual, event, or idea is introduced, 
illustrated, and elaborated in a text (e.g., 
through examples or anecdotes).  
 


RPSIT. 5. Analyze how a particular sentence, 
paragraph, chapter, section, or text feature (e.g., 
heading) fits into the overall structure of a text and 
contributes to the development of the ideas.  
RPSIT. 6. Determine an author’s point of view or 
purpose in a text and explain how it is conveyed in 
the text. 
RPSIT. 7. Integrate information presented in 
different media or formats (e.g., in charts, graphs, 
photographs, videos, maps) as well as in words to 
develop a coherent understanding of a topic or 
issue.  
RPSIT. 8. Trace and evaluate the argument and 
specific claims in a text, distinguishing claims that 
are supported by reasons and evidence from claims 
that are not.  
RPSIT. 9. Compare and contrast one author’s 
presentation of events with that of another (e.g., a 
memoir written by and a biography on the same 
person). 
RPSIT. 10. Independently and proficiently read and 
comprehend literary nonfiction representing a 
variety of genres, cultures, and perspectives and 
exhibiting complexity appropriate for at least grade 
6. 
Writing Power Standards (WPS) 
WPS. 1. Write arguments (e.g., essays, letters to the 
editor, advocacy speeches) to support claims with 
clear reasons and relevant evidence. a. Introduce 
claim(s) and organize the reasons and evidence 
clearly in paragraphs and sections. b. Support 
claim(s) with clear reasons and relevant evidence, 
using credible sources and demonstrating an 
understanding of the topic or text. c. Use words, 
phrases, and clauses to clarify the relationships 
among claim(s) and reasons. d. Establish and 
maintain a style appropriate to audience and 
purpose (e.g., formal for academic writing). e. 
Provide a concluding statement or section that 
follows from the argument presented. 
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts (e.g., 
essays, oral reports, biographical feature articles) to 
examine a topic and convey ideas, concepts, and 
information through the selection, organization, and 
analysis of relevant content. a. Introduce a topic; 
organize ideas, concepts, and information in 
paragraphs and sections, using strategies such as 
definition, classification, comparison/contrast, and 
cause/effect; include text features (e.g., headings), 
graphics (e.g., charts, tables), and multimedia when 
useful to aiding comprehension. b. Develop the 
topic with relevant facts, definitions, concrete 
details, quotations, or other information and 
examples. c. Use appropriate transitions to clarify 
the relationships among ideas and concepts. d. Use 
precise language and domain-specific vocabulary to 
inform about or explain the topic. e. Establish and 
maintain a style appropriate to audience and 
purpose (e.g., formal for academic writing). f. 
Provide a concluding statement or section that 
follows from the information or explanation 
presented. 







 
11
9 


 


 WPS. 3. Write narratives to develop 
experiences or events using effective literary 
techniques, relevant descriptive details, and 
well-structured sequences. a. Engage and 
orient the reader by establishing a context 
and introducing a narrator and/or 
characters; organize an appropriate narrative 
sequence. b. Use narrative techniques, such 
as dialogue, pacing, and description, to 
develop experiences, events, and/or 
characters. c. Use a variety of transition 
words, phrases, and clauses to convey 
sequence and signal shifts from one time 
frame or setting to another d. Use precise 
words and phrases, relevant descriptive 
details, figurative and sensory language, and 
techniques such as personification (e.g., “the 
fog crept in”) to convey experiences or 
events. e. Provide a conclusion that follows 
from the narrated experiences or events. 
WPS. 4. Produce clear and coherent writing 
in which the development, organization, and 
style are appropriate to task, purpose, and 
audience. (Grade-specific expectations for 
writing types are defined in Standards 1–3 
above.)  
WPS. 5. Develop and strengthen writing as 
needed by planning, revising, editing, 
rewriting, or trying a new approach. a. 
Demonstrate command of standard English 
conventions (as described in Language 
Standards 1– 3 up to and including grade 6). 
b. Demonstrate the ability to select accurate 
vocabulary (as described in Language 
Standards 4–6 up to and including grade 6). 
WPS. 6. Use technology, including current 
web-based communication platforms, to 
produce and publish writing as well as to 
interact and collaborate with others; 
demonstrate sufficient command of 
keyboarding skills to type a minimum of 
three pages in a single sitting. 
WPS. 7. Conduct short as well as more 
sustained research projects to answer a 
question, drawing on several sources and 
refocusing the inquiry when appropriate.  
WPS. 8. When conducting research, gather 
relevant information from multiple print and 
digital sources; assess the credibility of each 
source; and quote or paraphrase the data 
and conclusions of others while avoiding 
plagiarism and providing basic bibliographic 
information for sources.  
WPS. 9. Draw evidence from literary or 
informational texts to support written 
analysis, interpretation, reflection, and 
research, applying one or more grade 6 
standards for Reading Literature or Reading 
Informational Text as needed. 
WPS. 10. . Write routinely over extended 
time frames (time for research, reflection, 
and revision) and shorter time frames  


(a single sitting or a day or two) for a range of 
discipline-specific tasks, purposes, and audiences. 
Speaking and Listening Power Standards (SLPS) 
SLPS. 1. Engage effectively in a range of collaborative 
discussions (one-on-one, in groups, and teacher-led) 
with diverse partners on grade 6 topics, texts, and 
issues, building on others’ ideas and expressing their 
own clearly. a. Come to discussions prepared, having 
read or studied required material; explicitly draw on 
that preparation by referring to evidence on the 
topic, text, or issue to probe and reflect on ideas 
under discussion. (See grade 6 Reading Literature 
Standard 1 and Reading Informational Text Standard 
1 for specific expectations regarding the use of 
textual evidence.) b. Follow rules for collegial 
discussions, set specific goals and deadlines, and 
define individual roles as needed. Pose and respond 
to specific questions with elaboration and detail by 
making comments that contribute to the topic, text, 
or issue under discussion. d. Review the key ideas 
expressed and demonstrate understanding of 
multiple perspectives through reflection and 
paraphrasing.  
SLPS. 2. Interpret information presented in diverse 
media and formats (e.g., visually, quantitatively, 
orally) and explain how it contributes to a topic, text, 
or issue under study.  
SLPS. 3. Delineate a speaker’s argument and specific 
claims, distinguishing claims that are supported by 
reasons and evidence from claims that are not. 
SLPS. 4. Present claims and findings, sequencing 
ideas logically and using pertinent descriptions, 
facts, and details to accentuate main ideas or 
themes; use appropriate vocabulary, eye contact, 
volume, and pronunciation. (See grade 6 Language 
Standards 4–6 for specific expectations regarding 
vocabulary.)  
SLPS. 5. Include multimedia components and visual 
displays in presentations to clarify information.  
SLPS. 6. Adapt speech to a variety of contexts and 
tasks, demonstrating command of formal English 
when indicated or appropriate. (See grade 6 
Language Standards 1 and 3 for specific 
expectations.) 
Language Power Standards (LPS) 
LPS. 1. Demonstrate command of the conventions of 
standard English grammar and usage when writing 
or speaking; retain and further develop language 
skills learned in previous grades. (See grade 6 
Writing Standard 5 and Speaking and Listening 
Standard 6 on strengthening writing and 
presentations by applying knowledge of 
conventions.) Sentence Structure, Variety, and 
Meaning a. Use simple, compound, complex, and 
compound-complex sentences to communicate 
ideas clearly and to add variety to writing. b. Explain 
the function of phrases and clauses in general, how 
phrases and clauses differ, and how their use 
conveys a particular meaning in a specific written or 
spoken sentence. c. Place or rearrange phrases and 
clauses within a sentence, recognizing and 
correcting misplaced and dangling modifiers. 







 
12
0 


 


 


 


 LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English 
capitalization, punctuation, and spelling 
when writing. a. Use punctuation (commas, 
parentheses, dashes) to set off 
nonrestrictive/parenthetical elements. 
b.Spell correctly, recognizing that some 
words have commonly accepted variations 
(e.g., donut/doughnut). 
LPS. 3. Use knowledge of language and its 
conventions when writing, speaking, 
reading, or listening. a. Maintain appropriate 
consistency in style and tone while varying 
sentence patterns for meaning and audience 
interest. b. Recognize variations from 
standard or formal English in writing and 
speaking, determine their appropriateness 
for the intended purpose and audience, and 
make changes as necessary. 
LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of 
unknown and multiple-meaning words and 
phrases based on grade 6 reading and 
content, choosing flexibly from a range of 
strategies. a. Use context (e.g., the overall 
meaning of a sentence or paragraph; a 
word’s position or function in a sentence) as 
a clue to the meaning of a word or phrase. 
b.Use common, grade-appropriate Greek or 
Latin affixes and roots as clues to the 
meaning of a word (e.g., audience, auditory, 
audible). c. Consult reference materials (e.g., 
dictionaries, glossaries, thesauruses), both 
print and digital, to find the pronunciation of 
a word or determine or clarify its precise 
meaning or its part of speech. d. Verify the 
preliminary determination of the meaning of 
a word or phrase (e.g., by checking the 
inferred meaning in context or in a 
dictionary). 


LPS. 5. Demonstrate understanding of figurative 
language, word relationships, and nuances in word 
meanings. a. Interpret figures of speech (e.g., 
personification) in context. b. Use the relationship 
between particular words (e.g., cause/effect, 
part/whole, item/category) to better understand 
each of the words. c. Distinguish among the 
connotations (associations) of words with similar 
denotations (definitions) (e.g., stingy, scrimping, 
economical, unwasteful, thrifty). 
LPS. 6. Acquire and use accurately grade-
appropriate general academic and domain-specific 
words and phrases; independently research words 
and gather vocabulary knowledge. (See grade 6 
Reading Literature Standard 4 and Reading 
Informational Text Standard 4 on applying 
knowledge of vocabulary to reading; see grade 6 
Writing Standard 5 and Speaking and Listening 
Standard 4 on strengthening writing and 
presentations by applying knowledge of vocabulary.) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
12
1 


 


 


GRADE 6 
SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Complex Societies Power Standards (CSPS) 
Supporting question: What do the social 
sciences contribute to our understanding of 
the world?  
CSPS. 1. Explain how different academic 
fields in the social sciences concentrate on 
different means of studying societies in the 
past and present. 
CSPS. 2. Give examples of ways in which a 
current historical interpretation might build 
on, extend, or reject an interpretation of the 
past.  
CSPS. 3. Give examples of how 
archaeologists, historians, geographers, 
economists, and political scientists work as 
teams to analyze evidence, develop 
hypotheses, and construct interpretations of 
ancient and classical civilizations. 
Human origins, the Neolithic and Paleolithic 
Eras (NPPS) 
Supporting Question: How did life on Earth 
begin and why did humans form complex 
societies?  
NPPS. 1. Describe the great climatic and 
environmental changes that shaped the 
earth and eventually permitted the growth 
of human life. 
NPPS. 2. Identify sites where archaeologists 
have found evidence of the origins of 
modern human beings and explain current 
theories of how human groups moved from 
Africa over time into the continents now 
known as Asia, Europe, the Americas, and 
Oceania. Give examples of how ongoing 
archaeological research adds new data that 
changes interpretations of how migrations 
and habitation sites are dated.  
NPPS. 3. Explain that the term Paleolithic 
Era refers to the period of earliest human 
history, beginning c. 2.6 million years ago to 
c, 11,700 years ago, characterized by the first 
use of stone tools, fire, hunting and 
gathering weapons, and, about 50,000 years 
ago, by cave painting, sculpture, tools, and 
artifacts using diverse materials such as 
bone, shell, stone, mineral pigments, and 
wood).  
NPPS. 4. Explain that the term Neolithic Era 
refers to the period beginning about 10,000 
years ago to c. 4500 or c. 2000 BCE in 
different parts of the world, in which the 
technologies of agriculture. 
NPPS. 5. (growing crops and the 
domestication of animals) and metallurgy 
(mining and working of metals) were 
invented and refined, and in which complex 
societies begin to appear. 5. Explain how 
complex societies that practice agriculture 
may differ, some developing into 
permanently settled communities, some 


6. Explain that scholars have attempted to define 
the characteristics of a complex society (sometimes 
called “civilization”) since the early 20th century, and 
although debates are ongoing, many cite these 
characteristics: a. an economy that produces food 
surpluses b. dense populations in distinct areas or 
cities c. stratified social classes d. specialized 
occupations e. developed systems of government, 
religion, and learning f. achievements in technology, 
art, and monumental architecture g. systems of 
record keeping, either written or oral.  
NPPS. 7. Explain the ways in which complex 
societies interact and spread from one region to 
another (e.g., by trade, cultural or linguistic 
exchanges, migration, religious conversion, 
conquest, or colonization).  
NPPS. 8. Construct and interpret a timeline that 
shows some of the key periods in the development 
of human societies in the Paleolithic and Neolithic 
Eras. Use correctly the words or abbreviations for 
identifying time periods or dates in historical 
narratives (decade, age, era, century, millennium, 
CE/AD, BCE/BC, c. and circa). Identify in BCE dates 
the higher number as indicating the older year (that 
is, 3000 BCE is earlier than 2000 BCE). 
Western Asia, the Middle East and North Africa 
Power Standards (WAMENAPS) 
WAMENAPS. 1. On a physical map, use cardinal 
directions, map scales, key/legend, and title to 
locate important physical features of the region 
(e.g. the Indian Ocean, the Black Sea, Aegean Sea, 
Mediterranean Sea, Red Sea, Arabian Peninsula, the 
Persian Gulf, the Nile, Tigris, and Euphrates Rivers, 
the Strait of Gibraltar, the Bosporus, and the Suez 
Canal). Use other kinds of maps (e.g., landform, 
population, climate) to determine important 
characteristics of this region. 2. On a political map of 
the region, demonstrate map reading skills to 
distinguish countries, capitals, and other cities and 
to describe their absolute location (using latitude 
and longitude coordinates) and relative location 
(relationship to other countries, cities, or bodies of 
water); use knowledge of maps to complement 
information gained from text about a city, country 
or region. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, climate 
and natural resources in this region have influenced 
settlement patterns, population size, and 
economies of the countries.  
WAMENAPS. 2. Explain how the presence of the 
Tigris and Euphrates Rivers contributed to the 
development of agriculture and ancient complex 
societies; explain why historians have called the 
region that surrounds these rivers “the Fertile 
Crescent.”  
WAMENAPS. 2. On a map of archaeological sites in 
the region, and identify the locations and time 
periods of the Sumerians, Babylonians, and 
Assyrians as successive states and empires.  







 
12
2 


 


being nomadic and moving livestock from 
place to place, some cultivating land 
temporarily and moving to another location 
when a plot of land is no longer productive.  


WAMENAPS. 3. Describe how irrigation, mining and 
metalsmithing, agriculture, the domestication of 
animals, and inventions such as the wheel, the sail, 
and the plow contributed to settlement and the 
growth of Mesopotamian civilizations.  


 


 


 WAMENAPS. 4. Analyze the important 
characteristics and achievements of early 
Mesopotamia. a. a complex society with 
rulers, priests, soldiers, craftspeople, farmers, 
and slaves b. a religion based on polytheism 
(the belief in many gods) c. monumental 
architecture (the ziggurat) and developed art 
(including large relief sculptures, mosaics, 
carved cylinder seals) d. cuneiform writing, 
used for record keeping tax collection, laws 
and literature e. the first epic (the Epic of 
Gilgamesh) and the first set of written laws 
(the Code of Hammurabi, for example, “If a 
man put out the eye of another man, his eye 
shall be put out.” [An eye for an eye]). 
Ancient Egypt Power Standards (AEPS) 
Supporting Question: How did Ancient 
Egypt’s rigid class structure affect its social 
and cultural development?  
AEPS. 1. Identify the locations of ancient 
Upper and Lower Egypt and ancient Nubia; 
and explain what the terms “Upper” and 
“Lower” mean in this context.  
AEPS. 2. Describe the significance of the Nile 
River to ancient Egyptians.  
AEPS. 3. Analyze the kinds of evidence that 
have been used by archaeologists and 
historians to draw conclusions about the 
social and economic characteristics of 
ancient Nubia (the Kingdom of Kush) and 
their relationship to the characteristics of 
ancient Egypt.  
AEPS. 4. Analyze the role of the pharaoh as 
god/king, and describe how pharaohs were 
represented in painting and sculpture, the 
concept of dynasties, and significant acts of 
at least one pharaoh or queen (e.g., Khufu, 
Akhnaten, Ramses II, Nefertiti, Cleopatra).  
AEPS. 5. Describe the relationships among 
social classes (e.g., the relationship of the 
pharaoh to priests, nobles, government 
officials, soldiers, scribes, artisans, farmers, 
and peasants, laborers, and slaves).  
AEPS. 6. Describe the polytheistic religion of 
ancient Egypt with respect to beliefs about 
death, proper behavior, the afterlife, 
mummification, and the roles of deities.  
AEPS. 7. Summarize important achievements 
of the Old, Middle, and New Kingdoms (e.g., 
the agricultural system; knowledge of 
mathematics, astronomy, the invention of a 
calendar; the invention of papyrus and 
hieroglyphic writing; the organization of 


Ancient Phoenicia Power Standards (APPS) 
Supporting Question: Why were traders and 
merchants important in ancient societies?  
APPS. 1. On a map of the ancient Mediterranean 
world, locate Greece, Asia Minor, Crete, Phoenicia, 
the Aegean and the Red Sea.  
APPS. 2. Explain how the location of Phoenicia 
contributed to its domination of maritime trade in 
the Mediterranean from c. 1000-300 BCE.  
APPS. 3. Describe how the alphabetic Phoenician 
writing system differed from Mesopotamian 
cuneiform or Egyptian hieroglyphic writing; explain 
how Phoenician maritime traders contributed to 
the spread of the use of the alphabetic system, 
which eventually evolved into the Greek alphabet 
and then into letter symbols used in other 
languages. 
Ancient Israel, Palestine Power Standards (AIPPS) 
Supporting question: What were the consequences 
of the unification of tribes for ancient Israel?  
AIPPS. 1. On a historical map of the Mediterranean, 
locate Asia Minor, Greece and Mesopotamia, the 
kingdoms of the Hittites and ancient Israel and 
Palestine and ancient Egypt.  
AIPPS. 2. Trace the migrations of the ancient 
Israelite tribes from Mesopotamia to the land called 
Canaan and explain the role of Abraham and Moses 
in Hebrew history.  
AIPPS. 3. Describe the history of ancient Israel and 
early Christianity: monotheistic religion (e.g., the 
belief in one God, the Ten Commandments, the 
emphasis on individual worth and personal 
responsibility, the belief that rulers and the ruled 
must adhere to the same moral obligations) b. the 
Hebrew Bible’s accounts of the history of early 
Israel: the unification of the tribes of Israel under 
Saul, David, and Solomon; the founding of 
Jerusalem as capital city by David (c. 1000 BCE), the 
building of the first temple by Solomon (c. 900-800 
BCE), the destruction of the first temple (c. 400 
BCE), the annexation of Judea by the Roman 
Empire and the Roman destruction of the second 
temple (c. 70 CE). c. the emergence of Christianity 
as a distinct religion, with roots in Judaism, but 
increasingly diverse followers throughout the 
Roman Empire and the relationship of early 
Christians to the officials of the Roman Empire. d. 
the central features of Christianity (e.g., the belief in 
a messiah who could redeem humans from sin, the 
concept of salvation, the belief in an Old and a new 
Testament in the Bible, the life and teachings of 
Jesus.).  







 
12
3 


 


monumental building projects such as the 
Pyramids and Sphinx at Giza; the 
centralization of government and military 
power).  
 
 
 
 
 
 


Ancient Arabian Peninsula Power Standards 
(AAPPPS) 
Supporting question: Why is the belief in one God 
significant to Islam, Judaism, and Christianity?  
AAPPPS. 1. On a map of the Arabian Peninsula, 
identify the Red Sea and the cities of Mecca and 
Medina as the sites of the beginning of the Muslim 
religion.  
 


 


 AAPPPS. 2. Explain Islam’s historical 
relationship to Judaism and Christianity as 
monotheistic religions.  
AAPPPS. 3. Describe the life and teachings of 
Muhammad (570-c. 632 CE) and the 
significance of the Qur’an as the primary 
source of Islamic belief. 
Interactions Among Societies in Western 
Asia, North Africa, and the Middle East 
(ISWANAME) 
Supporting Question: How did ideas spread 
across ancient societies in this region?  
ISWNAME. 1. Describe the impact of 
encounters through trade, cultural exchange, 
and conquest among the societies and 
empires in the region, in particular, 
exchanges on land routes of the Silk Roads 
linking Europe, the steppes of West Asia, East 
Asia, and Africa, and the goods, languages, 
and cultural motifs exchanged (e.g., gold, 
ivory from Africa, grain from Western Asia, 
produce, horses, livestock, wood, furs from 
the steppes, ceramics, silk, and other luxury 
goods from China).  
ISWNAME. 2. Use information from primary 
and secondary sources to research 
contributions of one of the ancient 
Mesopotamian, Egyptian, Phoenician, 
Israelite, Islamic, and Eurasian societies to the 
modern world. 
Sub-Saharan Africa Power Standards (SSAPS) 
SSAPS. 1. On a map of the world, locate the 
continent of Africa, the Atlantic Ocean, the 
Indian Ocean, and the Mediterranean Sea. On 
a map of Africa, locate the northern, eastern, 
western, central, and southern regions of 
Africa, the Sahara Desert, Mount Kilimanjaro, 
the Cape of Good Hope, the Great Rift Valley, 
Lake Victoria). Use other kinds of maps (e.g., 
landform, population, climate) to determine 
important characteristics of this region. 
SSAPS. 2. On a political map of the region, 
demonstrate map reading skills to distinguish 
countries, capitals, and other cities and to 
describe their absolute location (using 
latitude and longitude coordinates) and 
relative location (relationship to other 
countries, cities, or bodies of water); use 
knowledge of maps to complement 


SSAPS. 5. Explain the pivotal role Swahili coastal 
societies along the Indian Ocean played in linking 
trade networks between interior Africa and 
maritime routes along the coasts of Central and 
South Asia, and connecting to China; identify key 
goods in this trade (e.g., gold, ivory, iron, people 
from Africa, and cloth, glass beads, and porcelain 
from Asia).  
SSAPS. 6. Identify the locations, sources of wealth 
and importance of West African cities and empires, 
including the city of Timbuktu (beginning c.5th 
century CE), and the empire of ancient Ghana 
(beginning c. 700 CE). 
SSAPS. 7. Explain the pivotal role these societies 
played in the trans-Saharan trade, the spread of 
Islam, and trade with North Africa, Europe, West 
Asia in gold, ivory, and slaves and the contributions 
of these societies to the modern world. 
Central America, the Caribbean Islands, and South 
America Power Standards (CACISAPS) 
CACISAPS. 1. On a physical map of the world, use 
cardinal directions, map scales, key/legend, and 
title to locate Central America, the Caribbean Sea. 
On a map of the region, identify important physical 
features of the region (e.g. Gulf of Mexico, Yucatan 
Peninsula, the Panama Canal).  
CACISAPS. 2. Demonstrate knowledge of political 
geography by locating the current countries and 
major cities of Central America and the Caribbean 
Islands on a political map; use knowledge of maps 
to complement information gained from text about 
a country or region.  
CACISAPS. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, climate, major physical characteristics 
and natural resources influenced settlement, 
population size, and the economies of regions and 
countries in Central America and the Caribbean 
Islands.  
CACISAPS. 4. Describe the culture and way of life of 
the indigenous populations of the region (e.g., Carib 
[Antilles and South America], Taino [Cuba, Trinidad, 
Jamaica, Hispaniola, Puerto Rico], Lenca 
[Honduras], Miskito [Nicaragua], Huatares and 
Chorotegas [Costa Rica], Lokono, also known as 
Arawak [Trinidad and Tobago]). 
Physical and Political Geography of South America 
Power Standards (PPGSA) 
PPGSA. 1. On a physical map of the world, use 
cardinal directions, map scales, key/legend, and 
title to locate South America and the Atlantic and 







 
12
4 


 


information gained from text about a city, 
country or region.  
SSAPS. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, 
climate (including drought and 
desertification), and natural resources in this 
region have influenced settlement patterns, 
population size, and economies of the 
countries. 
SSAPS. 4. Identify the location, sources of 
wealth, and importance of the Kingdom of 
Axum (c. 100-940 CE); explain the role it 
played in the adoption of Christianity in 
Ethiopia and the role east African societies 
played in the spread of Islam to South Asia,  


Pacific Oceans. On a map of South America, locate 
important physical features of the region (e.g. 
Isthmus of Panama, Andes Mountains, Cape Horn, 
Amazon River, and the southern, northern, eastern, 
and western regions of South America). Use other 
kinds of maps (e.g., landform, population, climate) 
to determine important characteristics of this 
region. 
PPGSA. 2. On a political map of the region, 
demonstrate map reading skills to distinguish 
countries, capitals, and other cities and to describe 
their absolute location (using latitude and longitude 
coordinates) and relative location (relationship to 
other countries, cities, or bodies of water); use 
knowledge of maps to complement information 
gained from text about a city, country or region. 


  
 
PPGSA. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, 
climate and natural resources in this region 
have influenced settlement patterns, 
population size, and economies of the 
countries. 
Major ancient societies in Central America 
and South America Power Standards 
(ASCASAPS) 


Supporting question: What are the most 
important contributions of ancient societies 
in the Americas to the modern world? 
ASCASAPS. 1. Research and report on one of 
the major ancient societies that existed in 
Central America (Maya, Teotihuacán, and 
other civilizations such as the Olmec, Toltec, 
and Zapotec), or one of the major pre-
Columbian Andean civilizations (Chavín, 
Moche, Nazca), their locations, and their 
cultural characteristics. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


GRADE 6 
SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 


Earth and Space Science Power Standards 
(ESPS) 


Waves and Technologies (WIPS)  
WPS. 1. Use diagrams of a simple wave to explain 
that (a) a wave has a repeating pattern with a 







 
12
5 


 


ESPS. 1. Develop and use a model of the 
Earth-Sun-Moon system to explain the 
causes of lunar phases and eclipses of the 
Sun and Moon. 
ESPS. 2. Analyze and interpret rock layers 
and index fossils to determine the relative 
ages of rock formations that result from 
processes occurring over long periods of 
time. 
ESPS. 3. Use graphical displays to illustrate 
that Earth and its solar system are one of 
many in the Milky Way galaxy, which is one 
of billions of galaxies in the universe. 
Earth’s Systems Power Standards (EPS) 
EPS. 1. Analyze and interpret maps showing 
the distribution of fossils and rocks, 
continental shapes, and seafloor structures 
to provide evidence that Earth’s plates have 
moved great distances, collided, and spread 
apart. 
Life Science Power Standards (LSPS) 
LSPS. 1. Provide evidence that all organisms 
(unicellular and multicellular) are made of 
cells. 
LSPS. 2. Develop and use a model to 
describe how parts of cells contribute to the 
cellular functions of obtaining food, water, 
and other nutrients from its environment, 
disposing of wastes, and providing energy 
for cellular processes. 
LSPS. 3. Construct an argument supported 
by evidence that the body systems interact 
to carry out essential functions of life. 
Biological Evolution (BEPS) 
BEPS. 1. Analyze and interpret evidence from 
the fossil record to describe organisms and 
their environment, extinctions, and changes 
to life forms throughout the history of Earth. 
BEPS. 2. Construct an argument using 
anatomical structures to support 
evolutionary relationships among and 
between fossil organisms and modern 
organisms. 
Physical Science Power Standards (PSPS) 
PSPS. 1. Plan and conduct an experiment 
involving exothermic and endothermic 
chemical reactions to measure and describe 
the release or absorption of thermal energy. 
PSPS. 2. Use a particulate model of matter to 
explain that density is the amount of matter 
(mass) in a given volume. Apply proportional 
reasoning to describe, calculate, and 
compare relative densities of different 
materials. 
PSPS. 3. Conduct an experiment to show 
that many materials are mixtures of pure 
substances that can be separated by 
physical means into their component pure 
substances. 
Motion and Stability Power Standards 
(MSPS) 


specific amplitude, frequency, and wavelength, 
and (b) the amplitude of a wave is related to the 
energy of the wave.  
WPS. 2. Use diagrams and other models to show 
that both light rays and mechanical waves are 
reflected, absorbed, or transmitted through 
various materials.  
WPS. 3. Present qualitative scientific and technical 
information to support the claim that digitized 
signals (sent as wave pulses representing 0s and 
1s) can be used to encode and transmit 
information.  
Technology and Engineering Power Standards 
(TEPS) 
TEPS. 1. Define the criteria and constraints of a 
design problem with sufficient precision to ensure 
a successful solution. Include potential impacts on 
people and the natural environment that may limit 
possible solutions. 
TEPS. 2. Create visual representations of solutions 
to a design problem. Accurately interpret and 
apply scale and proportion to visual 
representations. 
TEPS. 3. Communicate a design solution to an 
intended user, including design features and 
limitations of the solution. 
Materials, Tools, and Manufacturing Power 
Standards (MTMPS) 
MTMPS. 1. Analyze and compare properties of 
metals, plastics, wood, and ceramics, including 
flexibility, ductility, hardness, thermal conductivity, 
electrical conductivity, and melting point. 
MTMPS. 2. Given a design task, select appropriate 
materials based on specific properties needed in 
the construction of a solution. 
MTMPS. 3. Choose and safely use appropriate 
measuring tools, hand tools, fasteners, and 
common hand-held power tools used to construct 
a prototype or both of the objects have a very 
large mass. 







 
12
6 


 


MSPS.1. Use evidence to support the claim 
that gravitational forces between objects are 
attractive and are only noticeable when one  


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 7 
GRADE 7              
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


Ratios and Proportions Power Standards 
(RPPS) 
RPPS. 1. Analyze proportional relationships 
and use them to solve real-world and 
mathematical problems. 1. Compute unit rates 
associated with ratios of fractions, including 
ratios of lengths, areas, and other quantities 
measured in like or different units. 
RPPS. 2. Recognize and represent 
proportional relationships between quantities. 
a. Decide whether two quantities are in a 
proportional relationship, e.g., by testing for 
equivalent ratios in a table, or graphing on a 
coordinate plane and observing whether the 
graph is a straight line through the origin. b. 
Identify the constant of proportionality (unit 
rate) in tables, graphs, equations, diagrams, 
and verbal descriptions of proportional 
relationships. c. Represent proportional 
relationships by equations. Explain what a 
point (x, y) on the graph of a proportional 
relationship means in terms of the situation, 
with special attention to the points (0, 0) and 
(1, r) where r is the unit rate. 3. Use 
proportional relationships to solve multi-step 
ratio, rate, and percent problems. 
Number System Power Standards (NSPS) 
NSPS. 1.  Apply and extend previous 
understandings of addition and subtraction to 
add and subtract integers and other rational 
numbers; represent addition and subtraction 
on a horizontal or vertical number line 
diagram. a. Describe situations in which 
opposite quantities combine to make zero. 
b. Understand p + q as the number located a 
distance |q| from p, in the positive or negative 
direction depending on whether q is positive 
or negative. Show that a number and its 
opposite have a sum of 0 (are additive 
inverses). Interpret sums of rational numbers 
by describing real-world contexts. c. 
c.Understand subtraction of rational numbers 
as adding the additive inverse, p – q = p + (–q). 
Show that the distance between two rational 
numbers on the number line is the absolute 
value of their difference, and apply this 
principle in real-world contexts. d. Apply 
properties of operations as strategies to add 
and subtract rational numbers.  
NSPS. 2. Apply and extend previous 
understandings of multiplication and division 
and of fractions to multiply and divide 
integers and other rational numbers. a. 
Understand that multiplication is extended 
from fractions to rational numbers by 
requiring that operations continue to satisfy 
the properties of operations, particularly the 
distributive property, leading to products such 


b.Understand that integers can be divided, 
provided that the divisor is not zero, and every 
quotient of integers (with non-zero divisor) is a 
rational number. If p and q are integers, then –( p 
∕q) = (–p) ∕q = p ∕(–q). Interpret quotients of rational 
numbers by describing real-world contexts. c. 
Apply properties of operations as strategies to 
multiply and divide rational numbers. d. Convert a 
rational number to a decimal using long division; 
know that the decimal form of a rational number 
terminates in 0s or eventually repeats. 
NSPS. 3. Solve real-world and mathematical 
problems involving the four operations with 
integers and other rational numbers. 
Expressions and Equations Power Standards 
(EEPS) 
EEPS. 1. Solve real-world and mathematical 
problems involving the four operations with 
integers and other rational numbers. 
EEPS. 2. Understand that rewriting an expression 
in different forms in a problem context can shed 
light on the problem and how the quantities in it 
are related. 
EEPS. 3. Solve multi-step real-life and 
mathematical problems posed with positive and 
negative rational numbers in any form (whole 
numbers, fractions, and decimals), using tools 
strategically. Apply properties of operations to 
calculate with numbers in any form; convert 
between forms as appropriate; and assess the 
reasonableness of answers using mental 
computation and estimation strategies. 
EEPS. 4. Use variables to represent quantities in a 
real-world or mathematical problem, and 
construct simple equations and inequalities to 
solve problems by reasoning about the quantities. 
a. Solve word problems leading to equations of 
the form px + q = r and p(x ÷ q) = r, where p, q, and 
r are specific rational numbers. Solve equations of 
these forms fluently. Compare an algebraic 
solution to an arithmetic solution, identifying the 
sequence of the operations used in each 
approach. Solve word problems leading to 
inequalities of the form px + q > r or px + q < r, 
where p, q, and r are specific rational numbers. 
Graph the solution set of the inequality and 
interpret it in the context of the problem. Extend 
analysis of patterns to include analyzing, 
extending, and determining an expression for 
simple arithmetic and geometric sequences (e.g., 
compounding, increasing area), using tables, 
graphs, words, and expressions. 
  







 
12
7 


 


as (–1)(–1) = 1 and the rules for multiplying 
signed numbers. Interpret products of rational 
numbers by describing real-world contexts. 
 


 


 


 Geometry Power Standards (GPS) 
GPS. 1. Solve problems involving scale 
drawings of geometric figures, such as 
computing actual lengths and areas from a 
scale drawing and reproducing a scale drawing 
at a different scale.  
GPS. 2. Draw (freehand, with ruler and 
protractor, and with technology) two-
dimensional geometric shapes with given 
conditions. Focus on constructing triangles 
from three measures of angles or sides, 
noticing when the conditions determine a 
unique triangle, more than one triangle, or no 
triangle.  
GPS. 3. Describe the shape of the two-
dimensional face of the figure that results 
from slicing three-dimensional figures, as in 
plane sections of right rectangular prisms and 
right rectangular pyramids. 
GPS. 4. Circles and measurement: a. Know that 
a circle is a two-dimensional shape created by 
connecting all of the points equidistant from a 
fixed point called the center of the circle. b. 
Understand and describe the relationships 
among the radius, diameter, and 
circumference of a circle. c. Understand and 
describe the relationship among the radius, 
diameter, and area of a circle. d. Know the 
formulas for the area and circumference of a 
circle and use them to solve problems. e. Give 
an informal derivation of the relationship 
between the circumference and area of a 
circle.  
GPS. 5. Use facts about supplementary, 
complementary, vertical, and adjacent angles 
in a multi-step problem to write simple 
equations and use them to solve for an 
unknown angle in a figure.  
GPS. 6. Solve real-world and mathematical 
problems involving area, volume, and surface 
area of two- and three-dimensional objects 
composed of triangles, quadrilaterals, 
polygons, cubes, and right prisms. 
Statistics and Probability Power Standards 
(SPPS) 
SPPS. 1. Understand that statistics can be used 
to gain information about a population by 
examining a sample of the population; 
Generalizations about a population from a 
sample are valid only if the sample is 
representative of that population. Understand 
that random sampling tends to produce 
representative samples and support valid 
inferences.  


SPPS. 4. Use measures of center and measures of 
variability for numerical data from random 
samples to draw informal comparative inferences 
about two populations. 
SPPS. 5. Understand that the probability of a 
chance event is a number between 0 and 1 that 
expresses the likelihood of the event occurring. 
Larger numbers indicate greater likelihood. A 
probability near 0 indicates an unlikely event, a 
probability around ½ indicates an event that is 
neither unlikely nor likely, and a probability near 1 
indicates a likely event.  
SPPS. 6. Approximate the probability of a chance 
event by collecting data on the chance process 
that produces it and observing its long-run relative 
frequency, and predict the approximate relative 
frequency given the probability. 
SPPS. 7. Develop a probability model and use it to 
find probabilities of events. Compare probabilities 
from a model to observed frequencies; if the 
agreement is not good, explain possible sources of 
the discrepancy. a. Develop a uniform probability 
model by assigning equal probability to all 
outcomes, and use the model to determine 
probabilities of events.  b.Develop a probability 
model (which may not be uniform) by observing 
frequencies in data generated from a chance 
process.  
SPPS. 8. Find probabilities of compound events 
using organized lists, tables, tree diagrams, and 
simulation. a. Understand that, just as with simple 
events, the probability of a compound event is the 
fraction of outcomes in the sample space for 
which the compound event occurs. b. Represent 
sample spaces for compound events using 
methods such as organized lists, tables, and tree 
diagrams. For an event described in everyday 
language (e.g., “rolling double sixes”), identify the 
outcomes in the sample space which compose the 
event. c. Design and use a simulation to generate 
frequencies for compound events. 







 
12
8 


 


SPPS. 2. Use data from a random sample to 
draw inferences about a population with an 
unknown characteristic of interest. Generate 
multiple samples (or simulated samples) of the 
same size to gauge the variation in estimates 
or predictions. 
SPPS. 3. Informally assess the degree of visual 
overlap of two numerical data distributions 
with similar variabilities, measuring the 
difference between the centers by expressing 
it as a multiple of a measure of variability. 


 


GRADE 7 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE 
ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Writing Power Standards (WPS) 
WPS. 1. Write arguments (e.g., essays, letters 
to the editor, advocacy speeches) to support 
claims with clear reasons and relevant 
evidence. a. Introduce claim(s), acknowledge 
alternate or opposing claims, and organize the 
reasons and evidence logically in paragraphs 
and sections. b. Support claim(s) with logical 
reasoning and relevant evidence, using 
accurate, credible sources and demonstrating 
an understanding of the topic or text. c. Use 
words, phrases, and clauses to create 
cohesion and clarify the relationships among 
claim(s), reasons, and evidence. d. Establish 
and maintain a style appropriate to audience 
and purpose (e.g., formal for academic 
writing). e. Provide a concluding statement or 
section that follows from and supports the 
argument presented. 
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts 
(e.g., essays, oral reports, biographical feature 
articles) to examine a topic and convey ideas, 
concepts, and information through the 
selection, organization, and analysis of 
relevant content. a. Introduce a topic clearly, 
previewing what is to follow; organize ideas, 
concepts, and information in paragraphs and 
sections, using strategies such as definition, 
classification, comparison/contrast, and 
cause/effect; include text features (e.g., 
headings), graphics (e.g., charts, tables), and 
multimedia when useful to aiding 
comprehension. b. Develop the topic with 
relevant facts, definitions, concrete details, 
quotations, or other information and 
examples. c. Use appropriate transitions to 
create cohesion and clarify the relationships 
among ideas and concepts. d. Use precise 
language and domain-specific vocabulary to 
inform about or explain the topic. e. Establish 
and maintain a style appropriate to audience 
and purpose (e.g., formal for academic 
writing). f. Provide a concluding statement or 
section that follows from and supports the 
information or explanation presented. 
WPS. 3. Write narratives to develop 
experiences or events using effective literary 
techniques, relevant descriptive details, and 
well-structured sequences. 


WPS. 4. Produce clear and coherent writing in 
which the development, organization, and style 
are appropriate to task, purpose, and audience.  
WPS. 5. Develop and strengthen writing as 
needed by planning, revising, editing, rewriting, or 
trying a new approach, focusing on how well 
purpose and audience have been addressed. a. 
Demonstrate command of standard English 
conventions b. Demonstrate the ability to select 
accurate vocabulary appropriate for audience and 
purpose (as described in Language Standards 4–6 
up to and including grade 7).  
WPS. 6. Use technology, including current web-
based communication platforms, to produce and 
publish writing and link to and cite sources as well 
as to interact and collaborate with others. 
WPS. 7. Conduct short as well as more sustained 
research projects to answer a question, drawing 
on several sources and generating additional 
related, focused questions for further research 
and investigation.  
WPS. 8. When conducting research, gather 
relevant information from multiple print and 
digital sources, using search terms effectively; 
assess the credibility and accuracy of each source; 
and quote or paraphrase the data and conclusions 
of others while avoiding plagiarism and following 
a standard format for citation.  
WPS. 9. Draw evidence from literary or 
informational texts to support written analysis, 
interpretation, reflection, and research, applying 
one or more grade 7 Standards for Reading 
Literature or Reading Informational Text as 
needed. 
WPS 10. Write routinely over extended time 
frames (time for research, reflection, and revision) 
and shorter time frames (a single sitting or a day 
or two) for a range of discipline-specific tasks, 
purposes, and audiences. 
Speaking and Listening Power Standards (SLPS)  
SLPS. 1. Engage effectively in a range of 
collaborative discussions (one-on-one, in groups, 
and teacher-led) with diverse partners on grade 7 
topics, texts, and issues, building on others’ ideas 
and clearly expressing their own. a. Come to 
discussions prepared, having read or researched 
material under study; explicitly draw on that 
preparation by referring to evidence on the topic, 
text, or issue to probe and reflect on ideas under 







 
12
9 


 


Engage and orient the reader by establishing a 
context and point of view and introducing a 
narrator and/or characters; organize an 
appropriate narrative sequence. b. Use 
narrative techniques, such as dialogue, pacing, 
and description, to develop experiences, 
events, and/or characters. c. Use a variety of 
transition words, phrases, and clauses to 
convey sequence and signal shifts from one 
time frame or setting to another. d. Use 
precise words and phrases, relevant 
descriptive details, and figurative and sensory 
language to establish a mood that evokes an 
emotion, to capture action, and to convey 
experiences or events. e. Provide a conclusion 
that follows from and reflects on the narrated 
experiences or events. 


discussion. (See grade 7 Reading Literature 
Standard 1 and Reading Informational Text 
Standard 1 for specific expectations regarding the 
use of textual evidence.) b. Follow rules for 
collegial discussions, track progress toward 
specific goals and deadlines, and define individual 
roles as needed. c. Pose questions that elicit 
elaboration and respond to others’ questions and 
comments with relevant observations and ideas 
that bring the discussion back on topic as needed. 
d. Acknowledge new information expressed by 
others and, when warranted, modify their own 
views.  


 


 SLPS. 2. Analyze the main ideas and 
supporting details presented in diverse media 
and formats (e.g., visually, quantitatively, 
orally) and explain how the ideas clarify a 
topic, text, or issue under study.  
SLPS. 3. Delineate a speaker’s argument and 
specific claims, evaluating the soundness of 
the reasoning and the relevance and 
sufficiency of the evidence. 
SLPS. 4. Present claims and findings, 
emphasizing salient points in a focused, 
coherent manner with pertinent descriptions, 
facts, details, and examples; use appropriate 
vocabulary, eye contact, volume, and 
pronunciation. (See grade 7 Language 
Standards 4–6 for specific expectations 
regarding vocabulary.)  
SLPS. 5. Include multimedia components and 
visual displays in presentations to clarify 
claims and findings and emphasize salient 
points.  
SLSP. 6. Adapt speech to a variety of contexts 
and tasks, demonstrating command of formal 
English when indicated or appropriate. 
Language Power Standards (LPS) 
LPS. 1. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English grammar and 
usage when writing or speaking; retain and 
further develop language skills learned in 
previous grades. Use phrases and clauses to 
communicate ideas precisely, with attention 
to skillful use of verb tenses to add clarity. b. 
Recognize and correct vague pronouns (those 
that have unclear or ambiguous 
antecedents).17 c. Recognize and correct 
inappropriate shifts in pronoun number and 
person in sentences with multiple clauses and 
phrases. d. Recognize that changing the 
placement of a phrase or clause can add 
variety, emphasize particular relationships 
among ideas, or alter the meaning of a 
sentence or paragraph.   


LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of 
unknown and multiple-meaning words and 
phrases based on grade 7 reading and content, 
choosing flexibly from a range of strategies. a. Use 
context (e.g., the overall meaning of a sentence or 
paragraph; a word’s position or function in a 
sentence) as a clue to the meaning of a word or 
phrase. b. Use common, grade-appropriate Greek 
or Latin affixes and roots as clues to the meaning 
of a word (e.g., belligerent, bellicose, rebel). c. 
Consult general and specialized reference 
materials (e.g., dictionaries, glossaries, 
thesauruses), both print and digital, to find the 
pronunciation of a word or determine or clarify its 
precise meaning or its part of speech. d. Verify the 
preliminary determination of the meaning of a 
word or phrase (e.g., by checking the inferred 
meaning in context or in a dictionary).  
LPS. 5. Demonstrate understanding of figurative 
language, word relationships, and nuances in word 
meanings. a. Interpret figures of speech (e.g., 
literary, biblical, mythological allusions) in context. 
b. Use the relationship between particular words 
(e.g., synonym/antonym, analogy) to better 
understand each of the words. c. Distinguish 
among the connotations (associations) of words 
with similar denotations (definitions) (e.g., refined, 
respectful, polite, diplomatic, condescending).  
LPS. 6. Acquire and use accurately grade-
appropriate general academic and domain-
specific words and phrases; independently 
research words and gather vocabulary knowledge.  







 
13
0 


 


LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English capitalization, 
punctuation, and spelling when writing. a. Use 
a comma to separate coordinate adjectives 
(e.g., a fascinating, enjoyable movie). b. Spell 
correctly, recognizing that some words have 
commonly accepted variations (e.g., 
donut/doughnut).    
LSP. 3. Use knowledge of language and its 
conventions when writing, speaking, reading, 
or listening. a. Maintain appropriate 
consistency in style and tone while varying 
sentence patterns for meaning and audience 
interest. b. Recognize variations from standard 
or formal English in writing and speaking, 
determine their appropriateness for the 
intended purpose and audience, and make 
changes as necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 


 


GRADE 7 
SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Central and South Asia Power Standards  
CSAPS. 1. On a physical map of the world, use 
cardinal directions, map scales, key/legend, 
and title to locate Central and South Asia. On 
a topographic map of Central and South Asia 
locate important physical features of the 
region (e.g. the Indian Ocean, the Arabian Sea, 
the Bay of Bengal, the Ganges River, the Indo-
Gangetic Plain, the Northern Mountains, the 
Khyber Pass, the Deccan Plateau, the 
Himalayan Mountains, and the Steppes). Use 
other kinds of maps (e.g., landform, 
population, climate) to determine important 
characteristics of this region.  
CSAPA. 2. On a political map of the region, 
demonstrate map reading skills to distinguish 
countries, capitals, and other cities and to 
describe their absolute location (using latitude 
and longitude coordinates) and relative 
location (relationship to other countries, cities, 
or bodies of water); use knowledge of maps to 
complement information gained from text 
about a city, country or region.  
CSAPS. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, 
climate and natural resources in this region 
have influenced settlement patterns, 
population size, and economies of the 
countries. 
CSAPS. 4. Explain the ways in which early 
Indian and Central Asian societies interacted 
with East African, Western Asian, and 
European societies. 
CSAPS. 5. Describe important economic, 
political, and religious developments in Indian 
and Central Asian history and evaluate the 
ways in which they conform to or differ from 


East Asia Power Standards (EAPS) 
EAPS. 1. On a physical map of the world, use 
cardinal directions, map scales, key/legend, and 
title to locate East Asia. Locate important physical 
features (e.g. the Huang He [Yellow] River and 
Chang Jiang [Yangtze] Rivers, and the Himalayan 
Mountains) and other characteristics of the 
region. Use other kinds of maps (e.g., landform, 
population, climate) to determine important 
characteristics of this region.  
EAPS. 2. On a political map of the region, 
demonstrate map reading skills to distinguish 
countries, capitals, and other cities and to 
describe their absolute location (using latitude 
and longitude coordinates) and relative location 
(relationship to other countries, cities, or bodies of 
water); use knowledge of maps to complement 
information gained from text about a city, country 
or region. 
EAPS. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, climate 
and natural resources in this region have 
influenced settlement patterns, population size, 
and economies of the countries. 
Ancient China Power Standards (ACPS) 
ACPS.1. Describe the topography and climate of 
eastern Asia, including the importance of 
mountain ranges and deserts, and explain how 
geography influenced the development of 
Chinese complex societies.  
ACPS. 2. Describe important economic, political, 
and religious developments in early Chinese 
history and evaluate the ways in which they are 
similar to or different from the characteristics of 
societies in other regions of the world. a. the 
continuity of rule and encouragement of learning 
in the Shang and Zhou dynasties (c. 1600–256 







 
13
1 


 


developments in societies in other regions of 
the world. a. the origins of Indian society in 
the Indus Valley, c. 3000–1300 BCE b. the 
evolution and central principles of Hinduism c. 
the teachings of Gautama Buddha in India in 
the 6th to 4th centuries BCE d. the Mauryan 
Empire in the 4th to 2nd centuries BCE and 
the role of the Emperor Ashoka adopting 
Buddhism’s moral teachings and the 
philosophy of non-violence and supporting 
Buddhist missionaries in North Africa, Central 
and Southeast Asia, and Mediterranean 
Europe; the Gupta Empire in the 3rd to 6th 
centuries CE, sometimes referred to as the 
“Golden Age of India,” and its Sanskrit classic 
literature and art e. the development of the 
caste system in India f. achievements in art, 
architecture, technology, astronomy, and 
mathematics g. the role topography and 
geography played in making trade along the 
several routes of the Silk Road viable and 
lucrative; connections through trade routes to 
Africa, Europe, and China.  
 


BCE) b. the teachings of Confucius (551–479 BCE), 
including writings on ethics and good 
government, codes of proper conduct, and 
relationships between parent and child, friend and 
friend, husband and wife, and subject and ruler 
and the philosophy/religion of Taoism, 
emphasizing harmony of humanity and nature c. 
the First Emperor’s unification of China in the 
short Qin Dynasty (221–206 BCE) by subduing 
warring factions, seizing land, centralizing 
government, imposing strict rules, and creating, 
with the use of slave labor, large state building 
projects for irrigation, transportation, and defense 
(e.g., the Great Wall) and his own tomb with life-
size terracotta warriors d. the Chinese ideographic 
writing system (characters, which are symbols for 
concepts/ideas) and how it differs from an 
alphabetic writing system e. important 
technologies of China such as bronze casting, silk 
and gunpowder manufacture. f. China’s role in 
trade across Asia and to and from Africa and 
Europe along the Silk Roads and the introduction 
of Buddhism in China starting c. 1st century CE. 


 


 Ancient Japan and Korea Power Standards 
(AJKPS) 
AJKPS. 1. Trace the spread of Buddhism from 
India in the 4th century BCE to China, Korea, 
and Japan, and its development in Japan from 
the 6th through the 13th century CE; explain 
significant cultural contributions of ancient 
Japan (e.g., Buddhist philosophy, art, 
calligraphy, and temple and landscape 
architecture).  
AJKPS. 2. Describe the impact of encounters, 
such as through trade, religion, and conquest, 
among the ancient civilizations of China, Japan, 
and Korea. 
Southeast Asia and Oceania Power Standards 
(SAOPS) 
SAOPS. 1. On a physical map of the world, use 
cardinal directions, map scales, key/legend, 
and title to locate the Indian Ocean, Australia, 
New Zealand, Antarctica, the major Pacific 
Islands, the Pacific Ocean, and the Coral Sea. 
Locate important physical features (e.g. the Bay 
of Bengal, the South China Sea, the Great 
Victoria Desert, and the Great Barrier Reef) and 
characteristics of the region. Use other kinds of 
maps (e.g., landform, population, climate) to 
determine important characteristics of this 
region.  
SAOPS. 2. On a political map of the region, 
demonstrate map reading skills to distinguish 
countries, capitals, and other cities and to 
describe their absolute location (using latitude 
and longitude coordinates) and relative location 
(relationship to other countries, cities, or bodies 
of water); use knowledge of maps to 


SAOPS. 2. On a political map of the region, 
demonstrate map reading skills to distinguish 
countries, capitals, and other cities and to 
describe their absolute location (using latitude 
and longitude coordinates) and relative location 
(relationship to other countries, cities, or bodies 
of water); use knowledge of maps to 
complement information gained from text about 
a city, country or region.  
SAOPS. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, climate 
and natural resources in this region have 
influenced settlement patterns, population size, 
and economies of the countries.  
SAOPS. 4. Identify what time zones are, when and 
how the precise measurement of longitude was 
scientifically and historically determined, the 
function and location of the International Date 
Line, and the function of the Royal Observatory in 
Greenwich, England, and give examples of 
differences in time in countries in different parts 
of the world. 
Ancient and Classical Greece (AGCPS) 
ACGPS. 1. On a historical map of the 
Mediterranean area, locate Greece and trace the 
extent of its influence from c. 1200 to 300 BCE.  
ACCGPS. 2. Explain how the geographical 
location of ancient Athens and other city-states 
such as Corinth and Sparta contributed to their 
role in maritime trade, colonies in the 
Mediterranean, and the expansion of their 
cultural influence.  
ACCGPS. 3. Explain the democratic political 
concepts developed in ancient Greece. a. the 
“polis” or city-state b. civic participation and 







 
13
2 


 


complement information gained from text 
about a city, country or region.  
SAOPS. 3. Explain how absolute and relative 
locations, major physical characteristics, 
climate and natural resources in this region 
have influenced settlement patterns, 
population size, and economies of the 
countries. 
SAOPS. 4. Identify and describe the major social 
features of the indigenous peoples in Australia 
(the Aborigines) and New Zealand (the Maoris). 
Describe archaeological evidence, such as rock 
paintings, from the region and explain what it 
indicates about early Aboriginal and Maori 
cultures. 
Europe Power Standards (EPS) 
EPS. 1. On a physical map of the world, use 
cardinal directions, map scales, key/legend, 
and title to locate Europe. Locate important 
physical features (e.g. the Atlantic Ocean, Arctic 
Ocean, Norwegian Sea, and Barents Sea; Lake 
Baikal, the Volga, Danube, Ural, Rhine, Elbe, 
Seine, Po, and Thames Rivers; the Alps, 
Pyrenees, and Balkan Mountains). Use other 
kinds of maps (e.g., landform, population, 
climate) to determine important characteristics 
of this region. 
 
 
 
 
 


voting rights c. legislative bodies d. constitution 
writing e. rule of law  
ACCGPS. 4. Compare and contrast life in Athens 
and Sparta, including the status and role of 
women and enslaved people in the two city-
states.  
ACCGPS. 5. Analyze the causes, and 
consequences of the Persian Wars between 
Greek city-states and the Persian Empire (490–
480 BCE), the Peloponnesian Wars between 
Athens and Sparta (431–404 BCE), and the 
conquests of Alexander the Great in Asia (c.336–
331BCE).  
ACCGPS. 6. Give examples of Greek gods and 
goddesses, heroes, and events; explain the 
persistence of terms from Greek and Roman 
mythology in modern English and other European 
languages (e.g., Pandora’s box, a Herculean task, 
the wrath of Achilles, Amazon, Olympics, 
marathon, narcissism).  
 


 ACCGPA. 7. Identify the major 
accomplishments of the ancient Greeks by 
researching and reporting on one of the 
following: a. a scientist or mathematician (e.g., 
Thales, Pythagoras, Euclid, or Hippocrates) b. a 
philosopher (e.g., Socrates, Plato, or Aristotle), 
historian (e.g., Herodotus or Thucydides), poet 
or dramatist (e.g., Homer, Aeschylus, 
Sophocles, Aristophanes, or Euripides) c. 
architecture (e.g., the Parthenon, the 
Acropolis, and the Temple of Apollo) d. writing 
(e.g., development of the first complete 
alphabet with symbols for consonants and 
vowels) e. art (e.g., the development of ideals 
of beauty and proportions in the human body 
in sculpture or the depiction of myths and 
heroes in vase painting). 
Ancient and Classic Rome Power Standards 
(ACRPS) 
ACRPS. 1. Locate Rome on a map, trace the 
expansion of the Roman Empire to 500 CE and 
explain how Rome’s location contributed to its 
political power in the Mediterranean and 
beyond.  
ACRPS. 2. Describe the rise of the Roman 
Republic, its government, including separation 
of powers, rule of law, representative 
government, and the notion of civic duty.  
ACRPS. 3. Describe the influence of Julius 
Caesar and Augustus in Rome’s transition from 


 







 
13
3 


 


a republic to an empire and explain the 
reasons for the growth and long life of the 
Roman Empire. a. Military organization, tactics, 
and conquests; and decentralized 
administration b. the purpose and functions of 
taxes c. the promotion of economic growth 
through the use of a standard currency, road 
construction, and the protection of trade 
routes and the benefits of a Pax Romana  
ACRPS. 4. Describe the characteristics of the 
system of classes and slavery under the 
Romans. 
ACRPS. 5. Explain how inner forces (e.g., the 
rise of autonomous military powers, political 
corruption, and economic and political 
instability) and external forces (shrinking trade, 
invasions from northern tribes) led to the 
disintegration of the Roman Empire.  
ACRPS. 6. Describe the contribution of the 
Romans to architecture, engineering, and 
technology (e.g., roads, bridges, arenas, baths, 
aqueducts, central heating, plumbing, and 
sanitation).  
ACRPS. 7. Explain the spread and influence of 
the Roman alphabet and the Latin language, 
and the role of Latin and Greek in scientific and 
academic vocabulary today.  
ACRPS. 8. Describe how scientific, 
philosophical, and aesthetic ideas diffused 
throughout Europe, Asia, and Africa as a result 
of trade, migration, conquest, and 
colonization. 


GRADE 7 
SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 


Earth and Space Science Power Standards 
(ESSPS) 
ESSPS. 1. Construct an explanation based on 
evidence for how Earth’s surface has changed 
over scales that range from local to global in 
size. 
ESSPS. 2. Develop a model to explain how the 
energy of the Sun and Earth’s gravity drive 
the cycling of water, including changes of 
state, as it moves through multiple pathways 
in Earth’s hydrosphere. 
Earth and Human Activity Power Standards 
(EHAPS) 
EHAPS. 1. Obtain and communicate 
information on how data from past geologic 
events are analyzed for patterns and used to 
forecast the location and likelihood of future 
catastrophic events. 
EHAPS. 2. Construct an argument supported 
by evidence that human activities and 
technologies can mitigate the impact of 
increases in human population and per capita 
consumption of natural resources on the 
environment. 
Life Science Power Standards (LSPS) 
LSPS. 1. Construct an explanation based on 
evidence for how characteristic animal 
behaviors and specialized plant structures 
increase the probability of successful 
reproduction of animals and plants.  


Physical Science Power Standards (PSPS) 
PSPS. 1. Analyze data to describe the effect of 
distance and magnitude of electric charge on the 
strength of electric forces. 
PSPS. 2. Use scientific evidence to argue that 
fields exist between objects with mass, between 
magnetic objects, and between electrically 
charged objects that exert force on each other 
even though the objects are not in contact. 
Energy Power Standards (EPS) 
EPS. 1. Construct and interpret data and graphs to 
describe the relationships among kinetic energy, 
mass, and speed of an object. 
EPS. 2. Develop a model to describe the 
relationship between the relative positions of 
objects interacting at a distance and their relative 
potential energy in the system.  
EPS. 3. Apply scientific principles of energy and 
heat transfer to design, construct, and test a 
device to minimize or maximize thermal energy 
transfer. 
EPS. 4. Conduct an investigation to determine the 
relationships among the energy transferred, how 
well the type of matter retains or radiates heat, 
the mass, and the change in the average kinetic 
energy of the particles as measured by the 
temperature of the sample. 
EPS. 5. Present evidence to support the claim that 
when the kinetic energy of an object changes, 
energy is transferred to or from the object. 







 
13
4 


 


LSPS. 2. Analyze and interpret data to provide 
evidence for the effects of periods of 
abundant and scarce resources on the growth 
of organisms and the size of populations in an 
ecosystem.  
LSPS. 2. Describe how relationships among 
and between organisms in an ecosystem can 
be competitive, predatory, parasitic, and 
mutually beneficial and that these 
interactions are found across multiple 
ecosystems. 
LSPS. 3. Develop a model to describe that 
matter and energy are transferred among 
living and nonliving parts of an ecosystem 
and that both matter and energy are 
conserved through these processes.  
LSPS. 4. Analyze data to provide evidence 
that disruptions (natural or human-made) to 
any physical or biological component of an 
ecosystem can lead to shifts in all its 
populations. 
LSPS. 5. Evaluate competing design solutions 
for protecting an ecosystem. Discuss benefits 
and limitations of each design. 
LSPS. 6. Explain how changes to the 
biodiversity of an ecosystem—the variety of 
species found in the ecosystem—may limit 
the availability of resources humans use. 
 


EPS. 6. Use a model to explain how thermal energy 
is transferred out of hotter regions or objects and 
into colder ones by convection, conduction, and 
radiation. 
EPS. 7. Use informational text to describe the 
relationship between kinetic and potential energy 
and illustrate conversions from one form to 
another. 
Technology and Engineering Power Standards 
(TEPS) 
TEPS. 1. Evaluate competing solutions to a given 
design problem using a decision matrix to 
determine how well each meets the criteria and 
constraints of the problem. Use a model of each 
solution to evaluate how variations in one or more 
design features, including size, shape, weight, or 
cost, may affect the function or effectiveness of 
the solution. 
TEPS. 2. Generate and analyze data from iterative 
testing and modification of a proposed object, 
tool, or process to optimize the object, tool, or 
process for its intended purpose. 
TEPS. 3. Construct a prototype of a solution to a 
given design problem. 
Technological Systems Power Standards (TSPS)  
TSPS. 1. Explain the function of a communication 
system and the role of its components, including a 
source, encoder, transmitter, receiver, decoder, 
and storage. 
TSPS. 2. Compare the benefits and drawbacks of 
different communication systems. 
 


 TSPS. 3. Research and communicate 
information about how transportation 
systems are designed to move people and 
goods using a variety of vehicles and devices. 
Identify and describe subsystems of a 
transportation vehicle, including structural, 
propulsion, guidance, suspension, and control 
subsystems. 
TSPS. 4. Show how the components of a 
structural system work together to serve a 
structural function. Provide examples of 
physical structures and relate their design to 
their intended use. 
TSPS. 5. Use the concept of systems 
engineering to model inputs, processes, 
outputs, and feedback among components of 
a transportation, structural, or 
communication system. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


CURRICULUM SCOPE AND SEQUENCE GRADE 8 







 
13
5 


 


GRADE 8            
MATH 
INTEGRATION 


The Number System Power Standards (NSPS) 
NSPS. 1. Know that numbers that are not 
rational are called irrational. Understand 
informally that every number has a decimal 
expansion. For rational numbers show that 
the decimal expansion repeats eventually, 
and convert a decimal expansion which 
repeats eventually into a rational number. 
NSPS. 2. Use rational approximations of 
irrational numbers to compare the size of 
irrational numbers, locate them 
approximately on a number line diagram, and 
estimate the value of expressions (e.g.,  2 ). 
Expressions and Equations Power Standards 
(EEPS) 
EEPS. 1. Know and apply the properties of 
integer exponents to generate equivalent 
numerical expressions. For example, 32  3 −5 
= 3−3 = 1 ∕3 3 = 1 ∕27.  
EEPS. 2. Use square root and cube root 
symbols to represent solutions to equations 
of the form x 2 = p and x 3 = p, where p is a 
positive rational number. Evaluate square 
roots of small perfect squares and cube roots 
of small perfect cubes. Know that is irrational. 
EEPS. 3. Use numbers expressed in the form 
of a single digit multiplied by an integer 
power of 10 to estimate very large or very 
small quantities, and express how many times 
as much one is than the other.  
EEPS. 4. Perform operations with numbers 
expressed in scientific notation, including 
problems where both decimal and scientific 
notation are used. Use scientific notation and 
choose units of appropriate size for 
measurements of very large or very small 
quantities (e.g., use millimeters per year for 
seafloor spreading). Interpret scientific 
notation that has been generated by 
technology.  
EEPS. 5. Graph proportional relationships, 
interpreting the unit rate as the slope of the 
graph. Compare two different proportional 
relationships represented in different ways.  
EEPS. 6. Use similar triangles to explain why 
the slope m is the same between any two 
distinct points on a nonvertical line in the 
coordinate plane. Derive the equation y = mx 
for a line through the origin and the equation 
y = mx + b for a line intercepting the vertical 
axis at b.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


EEPS. 8. Analyze and solve pairs of simultaneous 
linear equations. a. Understand that solutions to a 
system of two linear equations in two variables 
correspond to points of intersection of their 
graphs, because points of intersection satisfy both 
equations simultaneously. b. Solve systems of two 
linear equations in two variables algebraically 
(using substitution and elimination strategies), and 
estimate solutions by graphing the equations. 
Solve simple cases by inspection. Solve real-world 
and mathematical problems leading to two linear 
equations in two variables. 
Functions Power Standards (FPS) 
FPS.1. Understand that a function is a rule that 
assigns to each input exactly one output. The 
graph of a function is the set of ordered pairs 
consisting of an input and the corresponding 
output. 
FPS. 2. Compare properties of two functions each 
represented in a different way (algebraically, 
graphically, numerically in tables, or by verbal 
descriptions). 
FPS. 3. Interpret the equation y = mx + b as 
defining a linear function whose graph is a straight 
line; give examples of functions that are not linear. 
FPS. 4. Construct a function to model a linear 
relationship between two quantities. Determine 
the rate of change and initial value of the function 
from a description of a relationship or from two (x, 
y) values, including reading these from a table or 
from a graph. Interpret the rate of change and 
initial value of a linear function in terms of the 
situation it models, and in terms of its graph or a 
table of values.  
FPS. 5. Describe qualitatively the functional 
relationship between two quantities by analyzing a 
graph (e.g., where the function is increasing or 
decreasing, linear or nonlinear). Sketch a graph 
that exhibits the qualitative features of a function 
that has been described verbally.  
Geometry Power Standards (GPS) 
GPS. 1. Verify experimentally the properties of 
rotations, reflections, and translations: a. Lines are 
transformed to lines, and line segments to line 
segments of the same length. b. Angles are 
transformed to angles of the same measure. c. 
Parallel lines are transformed to parallel lines.  
GPS. 2. Understand that a two-dimensional figure 
is congruent to another if the second can be 
obtained from the first by a sequence of rotations, 
reflections, and translations. Given two congruent 
figures, describe a sequence that exhibits the 
congruence between them.  
GPS .3. Describe the effects of dilations, 
translations, rotations, and reflections on two-
dimensional figures using coordinates 







 
13
6 


 


 
 
 
 


 GPS. 4. Understand that a two-dimensional 
figure is similar to another if the second can 
be obtained from the first by a sequence of 
rotations, reflections, translations, and 
dilations. Given two similar two-dimensional 
figures, describe a sequence that exhibits the 
similarity between them.  
GPS. 5. Use informal arguments to establish 
facts about the angle sum and exterior angle 
of triangles, about the angles created when 
parallel lines are cut by a transversal, and the 
angle-angle criterion for similarity of 
triangles. 
GPS. 6. a. Understand the relationship among 
the sides of a right triangle. b. Analyze and 
justify the Pythagorean Theorem and its 
converse using pictures, diagrams, narratives, 
or models.  
GPS. 7. Apply the Pythagorean Theorem to 
determine unknown side lengths in right 
triangles in real-world and mathematical 
problems in two and three dimensions.  
GPS. 8. Apply the Pythagorean Theorem to 
find the distance between two points in a 
coordinate system. 
GPS. 9. Know the formulas for the volumes of 
cones, cylinders, and spheres, and use them 
to solve real-world and mathematical 
problems. 


Statistics and Probability Power Standards (SPPS) 
SPPS. 1. Construct and interpret scatter plots for 
bivariate measurement data to investigate 
patterns of association between two quantities. 
Describe patterns such as clustering, outliers, 
positive or negative association, linear association, 
and nonlinear association.  
SPPS. 2. Know that straight lines are widely used 
to model relationships between two quantitative 
variables. For scatter plots that suggest a linear 
association, informally fit a straight line and 
informally assess the model fit by judging the 
closeness of the data points to the line.  
SPPS. 3. Use the equation of a linear model to 
solve problems in the context of bivariate 
measurement data, interpreting the slope and 
intercept. 
SPPS. 4. . Understand that patterns of association 
can also be seen in bivariate categorical data by 
displaying frequencies and relative frequencies in 
a two-way table. Construct and interpret a two-
way table summarizing data on two categorical 
variables collected from the same subjects. Use 
relative frequencies calculated for rows or 
columns to describe possible association between 
the two variables. 


 


 


 


 


GRADE 8 
ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE 
ARTS 
INTEGRATION 


Reading Power Standards (RPS) 
RPS. 1. Cite the textual evidence that most 
strongly supports analysis of what a text 
states explicitly as well as inferences drawn 
from the text, quoting or paraphrasing as 
appropriate. 
RPS. 2. Determine a theme or central idea of a 
text and analyze its development over the 
course of the text, including its relationship to 
the characters, setting, and plot; provide an 
objective summary of a text. 
RPS. 3. Analyze how particular lines of 
dialogue or incidents in a story, poem, or 
drama propel the action, reveal aspects of a 
character, or provoke a decision. 
RPS. 4. Determine the meaning of words and 
phrases as they are used in a text, including 
figurative and connotative meanings; analyze 
the impact of specific word choices on 
meaning, tone, or mood, including the impact 
of allusion and irony.  


RSTIPS. 4. Determine the meaning of words and 
phrases as they are used in a text, including 
figurative, connotative, and technical meanings; 
analyze the impact of specific word choices on 
meaning and tone, including analogies or allusions 
to other texts.  
RSTIPS. 5. Analyze in detail the structural 
elements of a text, including the role of specific 
sentences, paragraphs, and text features in 
developing and refining a key concept.  
RSTIPS. 6. Determine an author’s point of view or 
purpose in a text and analyze how the author 
acknowledges and responds to conflicting 
evidence or viewpoints. 
RSTIPS. 7. Evaluate the advantages and 
disadvantages of using different mediums (e.g., 
print or digital text, video, multimedia) to present 
a particular topic or idea.  
RSTIPS. 8. Delineate and evaluate the argument 
and specific claims in a text, assessing whether 
the reasoning is sound and the evidence is 







 
13
7 


 


RPS. 5. Compare and contrast the structures 
of two or more texts, analyzing how structure 
contributes to meaning and style in each text. 
RPS. 6. Analyze how differences in point of 
view between characters and audience (e.g., 
created through the use of dramatic irony) 
create such effects as suspense or humor. 
RPS. 7. Analyze the extent to which an audio, 
filmed, or staged production of a story, drama, 
or poem stays faithful to or departs from the 
original text or script, evaluating the choices 
made by the director or performer(s).  
RPS. 8. (Not applicable. For expectations 
regarding themes in literary texts, see RL.2.)  
RPS. 9. Analyze how a modern work of fiction 
draws on themes, patterns of events, or 
character types from myths, traditional 
stories, or religious works such as the Bible, 
including describing how the material is 
rendered new. 
RPS. 10. Independently and proficiently read 
and comprehend literary texts representing a 
variety of genres, cultures, and perspectives 
and exhibiting complexity appropriate for at 
least grade 8. 
Reading Standards for Informational Text 
Power Standards (RSITPS) 
RSTIPS. 1. Cite the textual evidence that most 
strongly supports an analysis of what a text 
states explicitly as well as inferences drawn 
from the text, quoting or paraphrasing as 
appropriate. (See grade 8 Writing Standard 8 
for more on quoting and paraphrasing.)  
RSTIPS. 2. Determine a text’s central idea(s) 
and analyze its/their development over the 
course of the text, including relationships to 
supporting ideas; provide an objective 
summary of a text.  
RSTIPS. 3. Analyze how a text makes 
connections among and distinctions between 
individuals, ideas, or events (e.g., through 
comparisons, analogies, or categories). 


relevant and sufficient; recognize when irrelevant 
evidence is introduced.  
RSTIPS. 9. Analyze a case in which two or more 
texts provide conflicting information on the same 
topic and identify where the texts disagree on 
matters of fact or interpretation. 
RSTIPS. 10. Independently and proficiently read 
and comprehend literary nonfiction representing a 
variety of genres, cultures, and perspectives and 
exhibiting complexity appropriate for at least 
grade 8. 
Writing Power Standards (WPS)  
WPS. 1. Write arguments (e.g., essays, letters to 
the editor, advocacy speeches) to support claims 
with clear reasons and relevant evidence. a. 
Introduce claim(s), acknowledge and distinguish 
the claim(s) from alternate or opposing claims, 
and organize the reasons and evidence logically in 
paragraphs and sections. b. Support claim(s) with 
logical reasoning and relevant evidence, using 
accurate, credible sources and demonstrating an 
understanding of the topic or text. c. Use words, 
phrases, and clauses to create cohesion and clarify 
the relationships among claim(s), counterclaims, 
reasons, and evidence. d. Establish and maintain a 
style appropriate to audience and purpose (e.g., 
formal for academic writing). e. Provide a 
concluding statement or section that follows from 
and supports the argument presented. 
WPS. 2. Write informative/explanatory texts (e.g., 
essays, oral reports, biographical feature articles) 
to examine a topic and convey ideas, concepts, 
and information through the selection, 
organization, and analysis of relevant content. a. 
Introduce a topic clearly, previewing what is to 
follow; use paragraphs and sections to organize 
ideas, concepts, and information into broader 
categories; include text features (e.g., headings), 
graphics (e.g., charts, tables), and multimedia 
when useful to aiding comprehension.  


 b. Develop the topic with relevant, well-
chosen facts, definitions, concrete details, 
quotations, or other information and 
examples. c. Use appropriate and varied 
transitions to create cohesion and clarify the 
relationships among ideas and concepts. d. 
Use precise language and domain-specific 
vocabulary to inform about or explain the 
topic. e. Establish and maintain a style 
appropriate to audience and purpose (e.g., 
formal for academic writing). f. Provide a 
concluding statement or section that follows 
from and supports the information or 
explanation presented. 
WPS. 3. Write narratives to develop 
experiences or events using effective literary 
techniques, relevant descriptive details, and 
well-structured sequences. a. Engage and 
orient the reader by establishing a context and 
point of view and introducing a narrator 


WPS. 8. When conducting research, gather 
relevant information from multiple print and 
digital sources, using search terms effectively; 
assess the credibility and accuracy of each source; 
and quote or paraphrase the data and conclusions 
of others while avoiding plagiarism and following a 
standard format for citation.  
WPS. 9. Draw evidence from literary or 
informational texts to support written analysis, 
interpretation, reflection, and research, applying 
one or more grade 8 standards for Reading 
Literature or Reading Informational Text as 
needed. 
WPS. 10. Write routinely over extended time 
frames (time for research, reflection, and revision) 
and shorter time frames (a single sitting or a day or 
two) for a range of discipline-specific tasks, 
purposes, and audiences. 
Speaking and Listening Power Standards (SLPS) 







 
13
8 


 


and/or characters; organize an appropriate 
narrative sequence. b. Use narrative 
techniques, such as dialogue, pacing, 
description, and reflection, to develop 
experiences, events, and/or characters. c. Use 
a variety of transition words, phrases, and 
clauses to convey sequence, signal shifts from 
one time frame or setting to another, and 
show the relationships among experiences and 
events. d. Use precise words and phrases and 
relevant descriptive details to convey a tone 
(the writer’s attitude toward the subject: e.g., 
humorous, serious, or ironic) and to convey 
experiences or events. e. Provide a conclusion 
that follows from and reflects on the narrated 
experiences or events. 
WPS. 4. Produce clear and coherent writing in 
which the development, organization, and 
style are appropriate to task, purpose, and 
audience. (Grade-specific expectations for 
writing types are defined in standards 1–3 
above.)  
WPS. 5. Develop and strengthen writing as 
needed by planning, revising, editing, 
rewriting, or trying a new approach, focusing 
on how well purpose and audience have been 
addressed. a. Demonstrate command of 
standard English conventions (as described in 
Language Standards 1– 3 up to and including 
grade 8). b. Demonstrate the ability to select 
accurate vocabulary appropriate for audience 
and purpose (as described in Language 
Standards 4–6 up to and including grade 8).  
WPS. 6. Use technology, including current 
web-based communication platforms, to 
produce and publish writing and present the 
relationships between information and ideas 
efficiently as well as to interact and 
collaborate with others. 
WPS. 7. Conduct short as well as more 
sustained research projects to answer a 
question (including a self generated question), 
drawing on several sources and generating 
additional related, focused questions that 
allow for multiple avenues of exploration.  


SLPS. 1. Engage effectively in a range of 
collaborative discussions (one-on-one, in groups, 
and teacher-led) with diverse partners on grade 8 
topics, texts, and issues, building on others’ ideas 
and expressing their own clearly. a. Come to 
discussions prepared, having read or researched 
material under study; explicitly draw on that 
preparation by referring to evidence on the topic, 
text, or issue to probe and reflect on ideas under 
discussion. (See grade 8 Reading Literature 
Standard 1 and Reading Informational Text 
Standard 1 for specific expectations regarding the 
use of textual evidence.) b. Follow rules for 
collegial discussions and decision making, track 
progress toward specific goals and deadlines, and 
define individual roles as needed. c. Pose 
questions that connect the ideas of several 
speakers and respond to others’ questions and 
comments with relevant evidence, observations, 
and ideas. d. Acknowledge new information 
expressed by others, and, when warranted, qualify 
or justify their own views in light of the evidence 
presented.  
SLPS. 2. Analyze the purpose of information 
presented in diverse media and formats (e.g., 
visually, quantitatively, orally) and evaluate the 
motives (e.g., social, commercial, political) behind 
its presentation.  
SLPS. 3. Delineate a speaker’s argument and 
specific claims, evaluating the soundness of the 
reasoning and relevance and sufficiency of the 
evidence and identifying when irrelevant evidence 
is introduced. 
SLPS. 4. Present claims and findings, emphasizing 
salient points in a focused, coherent manner with 
relevant evidence, sound valid reasoning, and 
well-chosen details; use appropriate vocabulary, 
eye contact, volume, and pronunciation. (See 
grade 8 Language Standards 4–6 for specific 
expectations regarding vocabulary.)  
SLPS. 5. Integrate multimedia components and 
visual displays into presentations to clarify 
information, strengthen claims and evidence, and 
add interest.  


 SLPS. 6. Adapt speech to a variety of contexts 
and tasks, demonstrating command of formal 
English when indicated or appropriate. (See 
grade 8 Language Standards 1 and 3 for 
specific expectations.) 
Language Power Standards (LPS) 
LPS. 1. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English grammar and 
usage when writing or speaking; retain and 
further develop language skills learned in 
previous grades. (See grade 8 Writing Standard 
5 and Speaking and Listening Standard 6 on 
strengthening writing and presentations by 
applying knowledge of conventions.) Sentence 
Structure, Variety, and Meaning a. Coordinate 
phrases and clauses in simple, compound, 
complex, and compound-complex sentences, 


LPS. 4. Determine or clarify the meaning of 
unknown and multiple-meaning words or phrases 
based on grade 8 reading and content, choosing 
flexibly from a range of strategies. a. Use context 
(e.g., the overall meaning of a sentence or 
paragraph; a word’s position or function in a 
sentence) as a clue to the meaning of a word or 
phrase. b. Use common, grade-appropriate Greek 
or Latin affixes and roots as clues to the meaning 
of a word (e.g., precede, recede, secede). c. 
Consult general and specialized reference 
materials (e.g., dictionaries, glossaries, 
thesauruses), both print and digital, to find the 
pronunciation of a word or determine or clarify its 
precise meaning or its part of speech. d. Verify the 
preliminary determination of the meaning of a 
word or phrase (e.g., by checking the inferred 







 
13
9 


 


with emphasis on agreement of pronouns and 
their antecedents. b. Form and use verbs in 
the active and passive voices and the 
indicative, imperative, interrogative, 
conditional, and subjunctive moods to 
communicate a particular meaning.18  
LPS. 2. Demonstrate command of the 
conventions of standard English capitalization, 
punctuation, and spelling when writing. a. Use 
punctuation (comma, ellipsis, dash) to indicate 
a pause or break. b. Use an ellipsis to indicate 
an omission. c. Spell correctly, recognizing that 
some words have commonly accepted 
variations (e.g., donut/doughnut). 
LPS. 3. Use knowledge of language and its 
conventions when writing, speaking, reading, 
or listening. a. Maintain appropriate 
consistency in style and tone while varying 
sentence patterns for meaning and audience 
interest. b. Recognize variations from standard 
or formal English in writing and speaking, 
determine their appropriateness for the 
intended purpose and audience, and make 
changes as necessary. 


meaning in context or in a dictionary). 5. 
Demonstrate understanding of figurative 
language, word relationships, and nuances in word 
meanings. a. Interpret figures of speech (e.g. 
verbal irony, puns) in context. b. Use the 
relationship between particular words to better 
understand each of the words. c. Distinguish 
among the connotations (associations) of words 
with similar denotations. (definitions) (e.g., 
bullheaded, willful, firm, persistent, resolute).  
LPS. 6. Acquire and use accurately grade-
appropriate general academic and domain-
specific words and phrases; independently 
research words and gather vocabulary knowledge. 
(See grade 8 Reading Literature Standard 4 and 
Reading Informational Text Standard 4 on applying 
knowledge of vocabulary to reading; see grade 8 
Writing Standard 5 and Speaking and Listening 
Standard 4 on strengthening writing and 
presentations by applying knowledge of 
vocabulary.) 


 


 


GRADE 8 
SOCIAL 
STUDIES 
INTEGRATION 


Philosophical Foundations Power Standards 
(PFPS) 
Supporting Question: What were the roots of 
the ideas that influenced the development of 
the United States political system?  
PFPS. 1. Explain why the Founders of the 
United States considered the government of 
ancient Athens to be the beginning of 
democracy and explain how the democratic 
political concepts developed in ancient 
Greece influenced modern democracy (e.g., 
civic participation, voting rights, trial by jury, 
legislative bodies, constitution writing, rule of 
law).  
PFPS. 2. Describe the government of the 
Roman Republic and the aspects of 
republican principles that are evident in 
modern democratic governments (e.g., 
separation of powers, rule of law, 
representative government, and the notion of 
civic duty/common good).  
PFPS. 3. Explain the influence of 
Enlightenment thinkers on the American 
Revolution and framework of the American 
government (e.g., John Locke, Charles de 
Montesquieu).  
PFPS. 4. Explain how British ideas about and 
practices of government (e.g., the Magna 
Carta, the concept of habeas corpus, the 
Mayflower Compact, self-government, town 
meetings, the importance of education and 
literacy, the House of Burgesses, colonial 
legislatures, the Albany Plan of Union) 
influenced American colonists and the 


DUSPS. 4. Compare and contrast key ideas 
debated between the Federalists and Anti-
Federalists over ratification of the Constitution 
(e.g., federalism, factions, checks and balances, 
independent judiciary, republicanism, limited 
government).44 Note: Important topics of 
individual Federalist Papers: Federalist 10-factions; 
Federalist 9- strong union; Federalist 39-
republican government; Federalist 51-three 
branches of government independent of each 
other to ensure liberty; Federalist 78 -importance 
of an independent judicial branch and judicial 
review.  
DUSPS. 5. Summarize the Preamble and each 
article in the Constitution, and the rights 
enumerated in the Bill of Rights; explain the 
reasons for the addition of the Bill of Rights to the 
Constitution in 1791. 
Institutions of United States Government Power 
Standards (IUSGPS) 
Supporting Question: How do the institutions of 
the U.S. political system work?  
IUSGPS. 1. Distinguish the three branches of 
government (separation of powers):  Congress as 
the legislative branch the Presidency and the 
executive agencies as the executive branch and 
the Supreme Court and other federal inferior 
courts as the judicial branch  
IUSGPS. 2. Examine the interrelationship of the 
three branches (the checks and balance system).  
Congress: enumerated powers, general powers, 
limits on power, checks on other two branches; 
roles of political parties in the organization of 
Congress; roles within the legislative branch, such 







 
14
0 


 


political institutions that developed in colonial 
America.  
PFPS. 5. Analyze the evidence for arguments 
that the principles of government of the 
United States were influence by the 
governments of Native Peoples (e.g. the 
Iroquois Confederacy). 
Development of the United States Power 
Standards (DUSPS)  
Supporting Question: How did the framers of 
the Constitution attempt to address issues of 
power and freedom in the design of the new 
political system?  
DUSPS. 1. Apply knowledge of the history of 
the American Revolutionary period to 
determine the experiences and events that 
led the colonists to declare independence; 
explain the key ideas about equality, 
representative government, limited 
government, rule of law, natural rights, 
common good, and the purpose of 
government in the Declaration of 
Independence.  
  


as the Speaker of the House, the President of the 
Senate, minority party leaders; the system for 
accomplishing legislation, including committees, 
hearings and legislative procedures. 
the Presidency: roles, powers and limits, checks 
on other two branches, role of the Cabinet, such 
as the Vice President, Attorney General and 
Secretaries of State, Defense, Health and Human 
Services, Homeland Security; executive 
departments and agencies (such as the 
Department of Education, the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation, or the Food and Drug 
Administration), and branches of the military the 
Supreme Court: role and powers, checks on other 
two branches, lower courts  
IUSGPS. 3. Describe the respective roles of each of 
the branches of government.  
IUSGPS. 4. Explain the process of elections in the 
legislative and executive branches and the 
process of nomination/confirmation of individuals 
in the judicial and executive branches. Elections: 
running for legislative office (U.S. Representative – 
unlimited two-year terms, U.S. Senator – 
unlimited six-year terms), or executive office 
(President – two four-year terms and Vice 
President –unlimited four-year terms) and the 
function of the Electoral College in Presidential 
elections • Nomination by the President and 
confirmation by Congress: Supreme Court 
Justices and Secretaries/agency heads in the 
executive branch)  
5. Describe the role of political parties in elections 
at the state and national levels. 


 Rights and Responsibilities of Citizens Power 
Standards (RRCPS) 
Supporting Question: What is the role of the 
individual in maintaining a healthy democracy? 
RRCPS. 1. Explain the different ways one 
becomes a citizen of the United States.  
RRCPS. 2. Describe the rights and 
responsibilities of citizens (e.g., voting, serving 
as a juror, paying taxes, serving in the military, 
running for and holding elected office) as 
compared to non-citizens.  
RRCPS. 3. Distinguish among civic, political, 
and private life.  
RRCPS. 4. Define and provide examples of 
fundamental principles and values of American 
political and civic life (e.g., liberty, the 
common good, justice, equality, tolerance, law 
and order, due process, rights of individuals, 
diversity, civic unity, patriotism, 
constitutionalism, popular sovereignty, and 
representative democracy).  
RRCPS. 5. Describe how a democracy provides 
opportunities for citizens to participate in the 
political process through elections, political 
parties, and interest groups.  
RRCPS. 6. Evaluate information related to 
elections (e.g., policy positions and debates 
among candidates, campaign financing, 
campaign advertising, influence of news 


CASCPS. 2. Explain the historical context and 
significance of changes in the Constitution, 
including key amendments.  
Examples of amendments include the: a. 14th 
Amendment (1868): citizenship rights, equal 
protection of laws b. 19th Amendment (1920): 
women’s right to vote in federal and state 
elections c. 26th Amendment (1971): lowering the 
voting age from 21 to 18 in federal elections  
CASCPS. 3. Analyze the Constitutional issues that 
caused the Civil War and led to the eventual 
expansion of the power of the Federal 
government and individual civil rights.  
CASCPS. 4. Explain the historical context and 
significance of laws enacted by Congress that 
have expanded the civil rights and equal 
protection for race, gender, disability (e.g., the 
1964 Civil Rights Act, 1965 Voting Rights Act, 1990 
Americans with Disabilities Act, 1990 Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act), and explain how 
the evolving understanding of human rights has 
affected the movement for civil rights for all.  
CASCPS. 5. Explain the principle of judicial review 
established in Marbury v. Madison (1803) and 
explain how cases come before the Supreme 
Court, how cases are argued, and how the Court 
issues decisions and dissents.  
CASCPS. 6. Research, analyze, and report orally or 
in writing on one area (a, b, or c, below) in which 







 
14
1 


 


media and social media, and data relating to 
voter turnout in elections).  
RRCPS. 7. Apply knowledge of the meaning of 
leadership and the qualities of good leaders to 
evaluate political leaders at the community, 
the state and national levels.  
RRCPS. 8. Explain the importance of 
individuals working cooperatively with their 
elected leaders.  
RRCPS. 9. Explain the importance of public 
service, and identify career and other 
opportunities in public service at the local, 
state, and national levels.  
RRCPS. 10. Analyze issues involving liberty in 
conflict with equality or authority, individual 
rights in conflict with the common good, or 
majority rule in conflict with minority rights.  
RRCPS. 11. Examine the varied understandings 
of the role of elected representatives and 
discuss those who have demonstrated political 
courage or those whose actions have failed to 
live up to the ideals of the Constitution.  
RRCPS. 12. Examine the role of political protest 
in a democracy.  
RRCPS. 13. Examine the influence of public and 
private interest groups in a democracy, 
including policy research organizations (e.g. 
Pew Research Center, Brookings Institute, 
Heritage Foundation) in shaping debate about 
public policy. 
The Constitution, Amendments, and Supreme 
Court Decisions Power Standards (CASCPS) 
Supporting Question: How has the content 
and interpretation of the Constitution evolved 
over time?  
CASCPS. 1. Explain why the “necessary and 
proper” clause46 and why it is often referred to 
as the “elastic clause.”  
 


Supreme Court decisions have made significant 
changes over time in citizens’ lives. a. 
Interpretations of freedoms of religion, assembly, 
press, petition, and speech under the First 
Amendment; for example, Tinker v. Des Moines 
Independent Community School District (1969) The 
Court held, 7-2, that students’ right to protest is 
protected in schools. Bethel School District v. 
Fraser (1986) The Court held, 7-2, that students’ 
right to use vulgar language is not protected in 
schools. Hazelwood School District v. Kuhlmeier 
(1988) The Court ruled, 5-3, that students’ right to 
school-sponsored student speech in a school 
newspaper may be restricted with educational 
justification. Citizens United vs. Federal Election 
Commission (2010) The Court ruled, 5-4, that 
contributions by corporations and organizations 
such as unions to political campaigns are 
protected as free speech. b. Interpretations of the 
due process clause and the equal protection 
clause of the 14th Amendment, for example, Dred 
Scott v. Sandford (1857) The Court dismissed the 
case brought by Dred Scott, an African American, 
to obtain his freedom from slavery, 7-2, on the 
grounds that African Americans were not citizens, 
that the Congress could not ban slavery in federal 
territories, and that the due process clause 
prohibited the government from freeing slaves 
brought into territories. Plessy v. Ferguson (1896) 
The Court upheld, 7-1, the ruling that racial 
segregation was constitutional under the 
“separate but equal” doctrine. Brown v. Board of 
Education of Topeka (1954). The Court 
unanimously overturned the “separate but equal” 
doctrine, ruling that state laws establishing 
separate schools for white and black students 
were unconstitutional. Mapp v. Ohio (1961).  


 The Court, redefined, 6-3, the implementation 
of the exclusionary rule (evidence collected in 
violation of an individual’s Fourth Amendment 
rights is inadmissible for a criminal prosecution 
in a court of law) to apply to states. Loving v. 
Virginia (1967) The Court unanimously 
recognized the right to interracial marriage 
and declared race-based restrictions on 
marriage unconstitutional. Romer v. Evans 
(1996). The Court determined, 6-3, that the 
Equal Protection Clause prevents states from 
denying civil rights protections to sexual 
minorities, including lesbian, gay, and bisexual 
people. Obergefell v. Hodges (2015) The Court 
held, 5-4, that same sex marriage is protected 
under the 14th Amendment. c. Interpretations 
in cases where individual rights and perceived 
community or national interests were in 
conflict, for example, The United States Flag 
and the Pledge of Allegiance Minersville 
School District v. Gobitis (1940) The Court held, 
8-1, that the state’s interest in national unity 
allowed school boards to require students to 


Massachusetts State and Local Government 
Structure Power Standards (MSLGSPS)  
Supporting Question: What is the role of state and 
local government in the U.S. political system?  
MSLGSPS. 1. Compare and contrast the functions 
of state government and national government.  
MSLGSPS 2. Describe provisions of the United 
States Constitution and the Massachusetts 
Constitution that define and distribute powers and 
authority of the federal or state government.  
MSLGSPS. 3. Distinguish among the enumerated 
and implied powers in the United States 
Constitution and the Massachusetts Constitution. 
MSLGSPS. 4. Compare core documents associated 
with the protection of individual rights, including 
the Bill of Rights, the 14th Amendment to the 
United States Constitution, and Article I of the 
Massachusetts Constitution.  
MSLGSPS. 5. Explain why the Tenth Amendment 
to the United States Constitution is important to 
state government and identify the powers granted 
to states by the Tenth Amendment and the limits 
to state government outlined in it.  







 
14
2 


 


salute the flag. West Virginia State Board of 
Education v. Barnette (1943) Court held, 6-3, 
that students are protected from having to 
salute the flag or recite the Pledge of 
Allegiance through the free exercise clause of 
the First Amendment. Texas v. Johnson (1989) 
The Court held, 5-4, that an individual has a 
right to burn the flag under the First 
Amendment free expression clause. School 
Prayer Engel v. Vitale (1962) The Court held, 6-
2, that requiring school prayer in public 
schools was a violation of the First 
Amendment establishment clause. National 
Security Korematsu v. United States (1944) The 
Court held, 6-3, that a government order 
during World War II sending Japanese-
Americans to internment camps, rather than 
allowing them to remain in their homes, was 
constitutional. Clapper v. Amnesty 
International (2012) The Court, 5-4, dismissed a 
challenge to the government’s power to 
conduct surveillance on international phone 
calls and emails under the Foreign Intelligence 
Surveillance Courts. Gun Control District of 
Columbia v. Heller (2008) The Court, 5-4, 
upheld the right of individuals to own guns 
under the Second Amendment and found the 
District of Columbia’s ban on owning 
handguns to be unconstitutional. 
  


MSLGSPS. 6. Identify additional protections 
provided by the Massachusetts Constitution that 
are not provided by the U.S. Constitution.  
MSLGSPS 7. Contrast the responsibilities of 
government at the federal, state, and local levels 
(e.g., protection of individual rights and the 
provision of services such as law enforcement, 
welfare payments, and the building and funding of 
schools).  
MSLGSPS 8. Explain the leadership structure of the 
government of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts and the function of each branch a. 
the executive branch (governor and agencies) b. 
the legislative branch (state representatives and 
state senators) c. courts of law (Supreme Judicial 
Court, lower court system)  
MSLGSPS 9. Give examples of tax-supported 
facilities and services provided by the 
Massachusetts state government and by local 
governments.  
MSLGSPS 10. Explain the major components of 
local government in Massachusetts, including the 
roles and functions of mayors, city councils, and 
school committees in cities; town managers, 
select boards, representative and open town 
meetings and school committees, in towns, and 
courts and sheriff’s departments in counties 


 Freedom of the Press and News/Media 
Literacy Power Standards (FPNMPS) 
Supporting Question: How does a free press 
support a democratic government?  
FPNMPS. 1. Explain why freedom of the press 
was included as a right in the First 
Amendment to the United States Constitution 
and in Article 16 of the Massachusetts 
Constitution; explain that freedom of the press 
means the right to express and publish views 
on politics and other topics without 
government sponsorship, oversight, control, or 
censorship.  
FPNMPS 2. Give examples of how a free press 
can provide competing information and views 
about government and politics.  
FPNMPS 3. Explain the different functions of 
news articles, editorials, editorial cartoons, and 
“op-ed” commentaries.  
FPNMPS 4. Evaluate the benefits and 
challenges of digital news and social media to 
a democratic society.  
FPNMPS 5. Explain methods for evaluating 
information and opinion in print and online 
media (e.g., determining the credibility of 
news articles; analyzing the messages of 
editorials and op-ed commentaries; assessing 
the validity of claims and sufficiency of 
evidence). 
FPNMPS 6. Analyze the point of view and 
evaluate the claims of an editorial, editorial 
cartoon, or op-ed commentary on a public 


 







 
14
3 


 


policy issue at the local, state, or national level 
(e.g., a mayoral or school committee decision, 
an action by a state legislature or Governor, a 
vote in Congress or an action by the 
President). 


 


GRADE 8 
SCIENCE 
INTEGRATION 
 


Earth and Space Sciences Power Standards 
(ESSPS) 
Earth’s Place in the Universe 
ESSPS. 1. Develop and use a model of the 
Earth-Sun system to explain the cyclical 
pattern of seasons, which includes Earth’s tilt 
and differential intensity of sunlight on 
different areas of Earth across the year. 
Clarification Statement: Examples of models 
can be physical or graphical.  
ESSPS. 2. Explain the role of gravity in ocean 
tides, the orbital motions of planets, their 
moons, and asteroids in the solar system. State 
Assessment Boundary: Kepler’s laws of orbital 
motion or the apparent retrograde motion of 
the planets as viewed from Earth are not 
expected in state assessment. 
Earth’s Systems Power Standards (ESPS) 
ESPS. 1. Use a model to illustrate that energy 
from Earth’s interior drives convection that 
cycles Earth’s crust, leading to melting, 
crystallization, weathering, and deformation of 
large rock formations, including generation of 
ocean sea floor at ridges, submergence of 
ocean sea floor at trenches, mountain building, 
and active volcanic chains.  
ESPS. 2. Interpret basic weather data to 
identify patterns in air mass interactions and 
the relationship of those patterns to local 
weather. Data includes temperature, pressure, 
humidity, precipitation, and wind. Examples of 
patterns can include air masses flow from 
regions of high pressure to low pressure, and 
how sudden changes in weather can result 
when different air masses collide. Data can be 
provided to students (such as in weather maps, 
data tables, diagrams, or visualizations) or 
obtained through field observations or 
laboratory experiments. State Assessment 
Boundary: Specific names of cloud types or 
weather symbols used on weather maps are 
not expected in state assessment. 
ESPS. 3. Describe how interactions involving 
the ocean affect weather and climate on a 
regional scale, including the influence of the 
ocean temperature as mediated by energy 
input from the Sun and energy loss due to 
evaporation or redistribution via ocean 
currents. A regional scale includes a state or 
multi-state perspective.  
Earth and Human Activity Power Standards 
(EHAPS) 
EHAPS. 1. Analyze and interpret data to explain 
that the Earth’s mineral and fossil fuel 
resources are unevenly distributed as a result 


EHAPS. 2. Examine and interpret data to describe 
the role that human activities have played in 
causing the rise in global temperatures over the 
past century. Clarification Statements: Examples 
of human activities include fossil fuel 
combustion, deforestation, and agricultural 
activity. Examples of evidence can include tables, 
graphs, and maps of global and regional 
temperatures; atmospheric levels of gases such 
as carbon dioxide and methane; and the rates of 
human activities. 
 
Life Science Power Standards (LSPS) 
From Molecules to Organisms: Structures and 
Processes  
LSPS. 1. Construct an argument based on 
evidence for how environmental and genetic 
factors influence the growth of organisms. 
Clarification Statements: Examples of 
environmental conditions could include 
availability of food, light, space, and water. 
Examples of genetic factors could include the 
genes responsible for size differences in different 
breeds of dogs, such as Great Danes and 
Chihuahuas. Examples of environmental factors 
could include drought decreasing plant growth, 
fertilizer increasing plant growth, and fish 
growing larger in large ponds than they do in 
small ponds. Examples of both genetic and 
environmental factors could include different 
varieties of plants growing at different rates in 
different conditions.  
LSPS. 2. Use informational text to describe that 
food molecules, including carbohydrates, 
proteins, and fats, are broken down and 
rearranged through chemical reactions forming 
new molecules that support cell growth and/or 
release of energy.  
Heredity: Inheritance and Variation of Traits 
Power Standards (HPS) 
HPS. 1. Develop and use a model to describe that 
structural changes to genes (mutations) may or 
may not result in changes to proteins, and if 
there are changes to proteins there may be 
harmful, beneficial, or neutral changes to traits. 
Clarification Statements: An example of a 
beneficial change to the organism may be a 
strain of bacteria becoming resistant to an 
antibiotic. A harmful change could be the 
development of cancer; a neutral change may 
change the hair color of an organism with no 
direct consequence.  
HPS. 2. Construct an argument based on 
evidence for how asexual reproduction results in 
offspring with identical genetic information and 







 
14
4 


 


of geologic processes. Clarification Statement: 
Examples of uneven distributions of resources 
can include where petroleum is generally found 
(locations of the burial of organic marine 
sediments and subsequent geologic traps), and 
where metal ores are generally found (locations 
of past volcanic and hydrothermal activity).  


sexual reproduction results in offspring with 
genetic variation. Compare and contrast 
advantages and disadvantages of asexual and 
sexual reproduction. Clarification Statements: 
Examples of an advantage of sexual reproduction 
can include genetic variation when the 
environment changes or a disease is introduced, 
while examples of an advantage of asexual 
reproduction can include not using energy to find  


 a mate and fast reproduction rates. Examples 
of a disadvantage of sexual reproduction can 
include using resources to find a mate, while a 
disadvantage in asexual reproduction can be 
the lack of genetic variation when the 
environment changes or a disease is 
introduced.  
HPS. 3. Communicate through writing and in 
diagrams that chromosomes contain many 
distinct genes and that each gene holds the 
instructions for the production of specific 
proteins, which in turn affects the traits of an 
individual.  
HPS. 4. Develop and use a model to show that 
sexually reproducing organisms have two of 
each chromosome in their cell nuclei, and 
hence two variants (alleles) of each gene that 
can be the same or different from each other, 
with one random assortment of each 
chromosome passed down to offspring from 
both parents. Clarification Statement: 
Examples of models can include Punnett 
squares, diagrams (e.g., simple pedigrees), and 
simulations.  
Biological Evolution: Unity and Diversity 
Power Standards (BEPS) 
BEPS. 1. Use a model to describe the process 
of natural selection, in which genetic variations 
of some traits in a population increase some 
individuals’ likelihood of surviving and 
reproducing in a changing environment. 
Provide evidence that natural selection occurs 
over many generations. Clarification 
Statements: The model should include simple 
probability statements and proportional 
reasoning. Examples of evidence can include 
Darwin’s finches, necks of giraffes, and 
peppered moths.  
BEPS. 2. Synthesize and communicate 
information about artificial selection, or the 
ways in which humans have changed the 
inheritance of desired traits in organisms. 
Clarification Statement: Emphasis is on the 
influence of humans on genetic outcomes in 
artificial selection (such as genetic 
modification, animal husbandry, and gene 
therapy). 
Physical Science Power Standards (PSPS) 
Matter and Its Interactions  
PSPS. 1. Develop a model to describe that (a) 
atoms combine in a multitude of ways to 
produce pure substances which make up all of 
the living and nonliving things that we 


PSPS. 2. Analyze and interpret data on the 
properties of substances before and after the 
substances interact to determine if a chemical 
reaction has occurred. Clarification Statements: 
Examples of reactions could include burning 
sugar or steel wool, fat reacting with sodium 
hydroxide, and mixing zinc with hydrochloric 
acid. Properties of substances include density, 
melting point, boiling point, solubility, 
flammability, and odor. 
PSPS. 3. Develop a model that describes and 
predicts changes in particle motion, relative 
spatial arrangement, temperature, and state of a 
pure substance when thermal energy is added or 
removed. Clarification Statements: Emphasis is 
on qualitative molecular-level models of solids, 
liquids, and gases to show that adding or 
removing thermal energy increases or decreases 
kinetic energy of the particles until a change of 
state occurs. Examples of models could include 
drawings and diagrams. Examples of pure 
substances could include water, carbon dioxide, 
and helium.  
PSPS. 4. Use a model to explain that atoms are 
rearranged during a chemical reaction to form 
new substances with new properties. Explain that 
the atoms present in the reactants are all present 
in the products and thus the total number of 
atoms is conserved. Clarification Statement: 
Examples of models can include physical models 
or drawings, including digital forms, that 
represent atoms.  
Motion and Stability: Forces and Interactions 
Power Standards (MSPS)  
MSPS. 1. Develop a model that demonstrates 
Newton’s third law involving the motion of two 
colliding objects.  
MSPS. 2. Provide evidence that the change in an 
object’s speed depends on the sum of the forces 
on the object (the net force) and the mass of the 
object. Clarification Statement: Emphasis is on 
balanced (Newton’s first law) and unbalanced 
forces in a system, qualitative comparisons of 
forces, mass, and changes in speed (Newton’s 
second law) in one dimension.  
Technology/Engineering Power Standards (TEPS) 
Materials, Tools, and Manufacturing  
TEPS. 1. Use informational text to illustrate that 
materials maintain their composition under 
various kinds of physical processing; however, 
some material properties may change if a process 
changes the particulate structure of a material. 
Clarification Statements: Examples of physical 







 
14
5 


 


encounter, (b) atoms form molecules and 
compounds that range in size from two to 
thousands of atoms, and (c) mixtures are 
composed of different proportions of pure 
substances. Clarification Statement: Examples 
of molecular-level models could include 
drawings, three-dimensional ball and stick 
structures, and computer representations 
showing different molecules with different 
types of atoms.  


processing can include cutting, forming, 
extruding, and sanding. Examples of changes in 
material properties can include a non-magnetic 
iron material becoming magnetic after 
hammering and a plastic material becoming rigid 
(less elastic) after heat treatment.  
 


 TEPS. 2. Present information that illustrates 
how a product can be created using basic 
processes in manufacturing systems, 
including forming, separating, conditioning, 
assembling, finishing, quality control, and 
safety. Compare the advantages and 
disadvantages of human vs. computer control 
of these processes. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







d. Guidance and Counseling Programs: Found on page 50

Application is attached below.

We are looking forward to working together collaboratively in the coming years. 

Please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions. 

Warmly,

Esther Concepción, M.Ed. 
Founder, Drake Academy of Excellence

" We rise by lifting others." Robert Ingersoll

To make a donation, click here.

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fgivebutter.com%2fDRAKEACADEMY&c=E,1,1o9MpPJ_qb1e9-AbvvFOPrNpVoSe9h646iQcZGq1hP53CWtUkDrIJcDng16xNvmh7rKNTOnr6d62_y62q2UEb-pKdFCRNAv-jsqUlgVG2IcsdWdJfP2B0pQ,&typo=1


From: Cohen, Paul
To: King, Dennis; Moses, John; Santos, Maria; Mackinnon, Susan; Lebeaux, Diana
Cc: Lang, Jay; Johnson-Collins, Joanna
Subject: Tri-Board Budgetary Meeting Dates
Date: Tuesday, September 9, 2025 2:24:55 PM

School Committee Members,

With the impending significant FY27 budgetary challenges, the Select Board and I feel that
it would be beneficial to hold Tri-Board budgetary meetings on Monday, November 10 and
on Monday, December 8 at 6:00 p.m. at the Chelmsford Public Schools Administrative
Offices. 

Holding meetings in November and December would allow for additional time to consider
FY27 budgetary options.

Please contact me if there are conflicts with these two meeting dates.

Sincerely,

Paul E. Cohen
Town Manager
Town of Chelmsford
50 Billerica Road
Chelmsford, MA 01824
978-250-5202

Chelmsford Town Offices Hours:
Monday, Wednesday, Thursday: 8:30 AM – 4:00 PM
Tuesday: 8:30 AM – 7:00 PM
Friday: 8:30 AM – 1:00 PM

Please be advised that the Secretary of the Commonwealth has determined that
all email messages and attached content sent from and to this email address
are public records unless qualified as an exemption under the Massachusetts
Public Records Law (MGLc.4,§7(26).

mailto:pcohen@chelmsfordma.gov
mailto:kingd@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:mosesj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:santosm@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:mackinnons@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:lebeauxd@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:langj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us
mailto:johnsoncollinsj@chelmsford.k12.ma.us


1 

CHELMSFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Office of Human Resources  

230 North Road, Chelmsford, MA 01824 
Telephone: (978) 251-5100     Fax: (978) 251-5110 

To: Dr. Jay Lang, Superintendent of Schools  

From: Robyn Corbett, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

Date: September 12, 2025 

Re:  Personnel Report – August 2025 

Please see the attached Personnel Report which includes retirements, resignations, new hires 
and assignment changes.  Thank you for sharing this report with members of the Chelmsford 
School Committee. 



2 

Personnel Report – August 2025 

New Hires 
Amma, Vinitha 

Paraprofessional 
Parker Middle School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Agrawal, Sweety 
Interim Paraprofessional 
Harrington Elementary School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Alto, Sydney 
Paraprofessional 
Chelmsford High School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Britz, Stephanie 
Secretary of Information 
Chelmsford High School 
Effective date: 8/12/25 

Burke, Joseph 
Lunch/Recess Aide 
Byam Elementary School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Caldeira Pacheco, Roshelle 
Paraprofessional 
Parker Middle School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

D’Alessio, Caitlin 
Special Education Teacher (SAIL Program) 
Parker Middle School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Daly, Maureen 
Interim ABA Paraprofessional (STRIVE Program) 
Parker Middle School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Dearborn, April 
Interim ABA Paraprofessional 
Harrington Elementary School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 



3 
 

 
Ferreira, Kayleigh 
 Interim Paraprofessional 
 Harrington Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Firicano, Natalia 
 Interim ABA Paraprofessional 
 Chelmsford Integrated Preschool (CHIPs) 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Friscia, Kayla 
 Paraprofessional (SAIL Program) 
 Parker Middle School 
 Effective date: 9/2/25 
 
Gibson, Grace 
 Paraprofessional 
 Byam Elementary School 
 Effective date: 9/2/25 
 
Gleason, Ryan 

Paraprofessional 
 Harrinton Elementary School 
 Effective date: 9/2/25 
 
Guertin, Chantal 
 Interim Preschool Paraprofessional 
 Chelmsford Integrated Preschool (CHIPs) 
 Effective dated: 8/25/25 
 
Halder, Madhabi 
 Preschool Paraprofessional 
 Chelmsford Integrated Preschool (CHIPs) 
 Effective dated: 8/25/25 
 
Harriman, Kimberly 
 Paraprofessional 
 South Row Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Hauser, Jessica 
 Lunch/Recess Aide 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
 



4 
 

 
Indeglia, Nicholas 
 1:1 LPN Nurse 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 9/2/25 
 
Kasozi-Nkugwa, Suubi 
 Paraprofessional (STRIVE Program) 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 9/2/25 
 
Kearney, Olivia 
 Paraprofessional 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Koehane, Andrea 
 Lunch/Recess Aide 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Khandelwal, Ayushi 
 Lunch/Recess Aide 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Khemmalay, Alina 
 Interim Paraprofessional 
 Byam Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Kirk, Clayton 
 Paraprofessional 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Kohls, Erin 
 Lunch/Recess Aide 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Larson, Brooke, 
 Grade 4 Teacher 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
 



5 

Lebel, Linda 
Interim Paraprofessional  
Chelmsford Integrated Preschool (CHIPs) 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Lehan, Catherine 
Paraprofessional 
Chelmsford Integrated Preschool (CHIPs) 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Lyons, James 
Lunch/Recess Aide 
Harrington Elementary School 
Effective date: 9/2/25 

MacDonald, Jessica 
Paraprofessional 
Harrington Elementary School 
Effective date: 9/8/25 

Mackay, Cori 
Paraprofessional 
South Row Elementary School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

MacMullin, Kelly 
Math Teacher 
Chelmsford High School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Manmode, Snehal 
Paraprofessional 
Byam Elementary School 
Effective date: 9/15/25 

Meier, Lindsay 
Interim ABA Paraprofessional 
Harrington Elementary School 
Effective date: 8/25/25 

Royer, Mykah 
Grade 7 Science Teacher 
McCarthy Middle School 
Effective date: 9/15/25 



6 
 

 
Schwanz, Febie Ann 
 Paraprofessional (SAIL Program) 
 Parker Middle School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
  
Stonehouse, Jennifer 
 Paraprofessional 
 Byam Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Thompson, Pamela 
 Paraprofessional 
 Parker Middle School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Whalen, Lilie 
 Grade 6 Math/Science Teacher 
 Parker Middle School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Wilkinson, Laura 
 Paraprofessional 
 Harrington Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Witt, Josh 
 High School Substitute Coordinator 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 8/20/25 
 
 
Resignations: 
Calobrisi, Kerry Ann 
 Assistant Principal 
 McCarthy Middle School 
 Effective date: 8/22/25 
 
Chagnon, Katharine 
 Athletic Trainer 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 8/19/25 
  
Chronopoulos, Christopher 
 Paraprofessional 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 6/17/25 



7 

Cohen-Laffont, Caroline 
ABA Paraprofessional 
Harrington Elementary School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Cook, Kate 
Paraprofessional 
Byam Elementary School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Conley, Martin 
Grade 5 Teacher 
Parker Middle School 
Effective date: 8/7/25 

Cote, Macayla 
ABA Paraprofessional 
South Row Elementary School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Familia, Eliana Fernandez 
ABA Paraprofessional 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Gomez, Elizabeth 
ABA Paraprofessional 
McCarthy Middle School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Kamel, Nancy 
ABA Paraprofessional 
Chelmsford High School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Kapopoulos, Christine 
Lunch/Recess Aide 
Byam Elementary School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 

Komperda, Joseph 
Paraprofessional 
McCarthy Middle School 
Effective date: 6/17/25 



8 
 

 
Mason, Marcy 
 House Secretary 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 9/3/25 
 
Roeder, Amanda 
 Art Teacher 
 Chelmsford High School 
 Effective date: 6/30/26 
 
Sorrows, Elisabeth 
 Grade 7 Teacher 
 McCarthy Middle School 
 Effective date: 6/18/25 
 
Vu, Jessica 
 Grade 6 Teacher 
 Parker Middle School 
 Effective date; 6/18/25 
 
Retirements: 
Tice, Lisa 
 Grade 4 Teacher 
 South Row Elementary 
 Effective date: 8/4/25 
  
Assignment Changes:  
Berglund, Catherina (formerly Paraprofessional @ Center Elementary School) 
 Library Assistant 
 Center Elementary School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Olsson, Mary Ellen (formerly Grade 4 Teacher @ Center Elementary School) 
 Grade 5 English/Social Studies Teacher 
 Parker Middle School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 
 
Lane, Deanna (formerly School Nutrition @ McCarthy Middle School) 
 Paraprofessional 
 McCarthy Middle School 
 Effective date: 8/25/25 



Central Administration 
11 Executive Park Drive, N. Billerica, MA 01862꘡Tel: (978) 528-7826 ꘡ www.valleycollaborative.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Valley Collaborative Board of Directors 
From:  Dr. Chris A. Scott, Ph.D., Executive Director 
Date:  September 11, 2025 
Re: Quarterly Reports on Collaborative Business – FY25 Fourth Quarter 

As per 603CMR 50.00: Educational Collaboratives – Education Laws and Regulations and in accordance with the 
provisions of  M.G.L. c. 40, § 4E, please find below Valley Collaborative Quarterly Reports on Collaborative 
Business: 

1. quarterly information and updates to the programs and services provided by the collaborative and any
regional collaborative efforts;

• Please find Valley Collaborative’s Summer Newsletter attached

• Please find Valley Collaborative’s Treasurer Report attached

2. a report on significant changes in programs, services, budgets, and property as they arise;

• Please find attached the Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

3. a copy of the collaborative agreement and any amendments;

• Please find attached the Valley Collaborative’s Articles of Agreement Amended and Restated
Articles of Agreement (approved on June 13, 2013)

4. a copy of the annual budget and tuition rate;

• Please find attached the calendar of Valley Collaborative Board of Director meetings.  Please
note, Valley Collaborative’s proposed FY27 budget will be presented and discussed at the
December 11, 2025 meeting.  Also noteworthy, the Board of Directors meeting on January 8,
2026 will be Valley Collaborative’s stakeholder meeting.



  Volume 13, Issue 4  News for the extended Valley Collaborative community Summer 2025

 Valley 
COLLABORAT IVE

We are:  On the Move

▪ Page 3 Students in Valley 
Middle School’s Alternative 
and Transitional Programs had 
a year that was as busy as it 
was fantastic.

We are: Showing our Pride 

▪ Page 8 Five individuals in 
Valley’s Adult Program went to 
an Assistive Technology Fair to 
learn about devices that can 
help people with disabilities.

We are: Adaptive

▪ Page 2 Students at Valley 
Elementary School are wrap-
ping up a very active year.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DR. CHRIS SCOTT GIVING RAY BUSBY GOLDEN KEYS TO VALLEY 
COLLABORATIVE. A VALLEY VETERAN, RAY JOINED THE ADULT PROGRAM IN 1994.

Dear Valley Community: Valley’s 
focus on high quality leadership 
makes the difference.  Each year 
the Dr. Anthony Bent Leadership 
Award is given to a Valley employee 
who exemplifies leadership qualities 
and has made a significant differ-
ence to the climate and culture of 
the collaborative. This award is 
named in honor of Dr. Anthony 
Bent.  Dr. Bent is a dedicated educa-
tor who held central office positions 
in Watertown and was superin-
tendent in Shrewsbury for fifteen 
years.  In 2008-2009, Dr. Bent was 
president of the Massachusetts As-
sociation of School Superintendents 
(MASS).  Having previously served 

(2012-2014) on the Valley Collab-
orative Board of Directors during 
his interim superintendency at 
Groton-Dunstable Regional School 
District, Dr. Bent has been a long-
time supporter and advocate for the 
great work done at Valley Collab-
orative.  For over a decade, Dr. Bent 
has facilitated Valley’s “Leadership 
at Every Level” professional devel-
opment series.  This coming year we 
will, once again, welcome Dr. Bent 
to share his knowledge and exper-
tise with Valley Administrators and 
future Administrators. 

			   »continued  on page 10

At Valley, We Love What We Do!



Valley COLLABORATIVE

2

Elementary School: What a Year!
It’s  been quite a year at Valley 

Elementary. From adventurous 
field trips to new clubs and more 

spirit weeks than we can count, we’re 
ending the 2024-2025 school year on 
a high note. Here’s a look at some of 
the highlights.

January 10th: Roller Kingdom. 
The school participated in a field trip 
to a roller rink in Tyngsboro, giving 
students the opportunity to practice 
perseverance as they learned how to 
skate.
February 10th: Acton Discovery 
Center Event: The Acton Discovery 
Center Traveling Science Program 
returned to Valley to run hands-on 
science workshops. 
February 10th-14th: Love and 
Kindness Spirit Week–Valley’s 
annual celebration of all things kind-
ness.
March 3rd-7th: Read Across 
America Week. We celebrated 
Read Across America Week with a 
reading themed spirit week, door 
decorating, guest readers, book fair, 
and other activities to celebrate and 
promote literacy.
April 4th: Skateboard Phys-
ics Assembly. A follow-up to our 
popular presentation on the physics 
of motion as demonstrated through 
skateboarding!
April 14th-17th: Autism Accep-
tance Spirit Week. We capped off 
the week with our annual Autism 
Acceptance Walk.
May 5th: Rock Out for Reading - 
an assembly geared towards inspir-
ing students to pursue reading as a 
lifelong adventure through songs and 
stories.   
May 12th-16th: Mental Health 
Awareness Spirit Week. We cele-
brated our coping skills and explored 
new skills, encouraging self-care and 

emotional regulation. 

Fishing Club
Thanks to paraprofessional Nick 
Cote Valley Elementary has a 
popular new Fishing Club. Students 
explore local waterways, gain knowl-
edge about different fish species, and 
develop essential skills like casting, 
knot tying, and understanding water 
ecosystems. “Most of them never 
expected there could be big fish lurk-
ing just beneath the surface, so when 
they feel that tug on the line, it’s a 
thrilling surprise,” says Nick, who 
founded and runs the club. “The look 
on their faces when they reel in a big 
bass is priceless—pure excitement 
and pride.” Beyond learning fishing 
techniques, the club fosters team-
work, patience, and environmental 
awareness, while also creating lasting 
memories and friendships. Whether 
it’s a quiet afternoon by the water or 
the rush of landing a big catch, the 
Valley Collaborative Fishing Club 
offers an unforgettable experience 
where kids build confidence and a 
deeper connection to nature. ▪

FIRST GRADER CARTER LEWIS SHOWS OFF 
HIS CATCH.

JASON KATMADEU-WENDEU, THIRD 
GRADER, AT WE ROCK THE SPECTRUM.

A few of our favorite 
things

Louis Lorino, sixth grade, “Legos 
and friends.”
Brian Bolcome, fourth grade, 
“Fishing Club and field trips.”
William Desousa-Diaz, fourth 
grade, “Fishing, camping, hiking 
and Mr. Matt!”
Nate Skuse, fourth grade, “Using 
computers and playing games 
with friends.”
Marnie Stone, fifth grade, “Ev-
erything is fun and educational!”
Sophia Stewart, fourth grade, 
“My Friends.”
CJ Lillie, third grade, “Basketball 
and football.”
Colton Tyler, first grade, “Pizza, 
trade-in, friends and teachers.”
Lindsey Lavanga, fifth grade, 
“Horseback riding and swim-
ming. Swimming is fun. I like it.”
David Makayi, first grade, “Go-
ing out in the nice weather and 
bug hunting.”



Valley COLLABORATIVE

3

Valley Middle School:  A Busy Year, 
A Fantastic Year

The 2024-2025 school year 
kept students in the Middle 
School’s Alternative Pro-

gram busy both academically and 
while in the community. In their 
core academic classes, students 
were challenged across all content 
areas. Students solved a 13-year old 
mystery while reading “The Curious 
Vanishing of Beatrice Willoughby” by 
G.Z. Schmidt and gained a better un-
derstanding of the parts of the plot in 
books. They even learned to identify 
the parts independently in their own 
books! Mysteries were a huge hit 
this year. In Science class, students 
had the opportunity to participate in 
a STEM project each week! Alka-
Seltzer lava lamps and the Egg Drop 
competition were highlights. Many of 
our budding engineers’ eggs survived 
the drop off the school roof. Students 
were able to use coordinates to plot 
mystery pictures in math as well 
as participate in a mock restaurant 
where orders were taken, bills paid 
and everyone got a little hungry. 
In History class, there was a heavy 
focus on civics this year. Students 

were challenged to create their own 
countries including laws, flags, and 
citizen’s rights.

When not in core classes, stu-
dents enjoyed electives such as 
basketball, soccer, Geoguesser, 
and cooking (always with delicious 
results)! Students even got to ad-
venture out into the community for 
fun, educational trips at Metro Rock, 
Altitude Trampoline Park, Honey Pot 
Hill Orchards, In the Game, the Illu-
sion Museum, Franklin Park Zoo and 
others! “Valley is the best school. We 
have fun and we love getting outside! 
My favorite trip this year was Alti-
tude and I really liked going fishing”, 
stated 7th grader, Anthony Estrada.

The Outdoor Education Club 
made a resurgence and the club sum-
mited mountains such as Mt. Watat-
ic, Mt. Wachusett, North Mountain, 
Prospect Hill and even Mt. Monad-
nock! Way to go, team!  Sixth grader, 
Colton Knowlton shared that, “The 
staff are nice and the best part is the 
school store and the trips! I really 
liked going hiking with Pete and 
Aidan.” 

As always, the holidays played 
a large part in the middle school 
community. At Halloween, students 
showed off their costumes, raced 
to eat donuts on a string, and did a 
mummy race. At Thanksgiving, the 
program celebrated with a dinner 
served by teachers and administra-
tors.  Students even wrote what they 
were thankful for and decorated our 
Thankful Tree. During the winter 
holidays, students decorated the 
Christmas tree, participated in the 
gingerbread house competition, and 
made gifts for loved ones at You’re 
Fired. Students were certainly busy 
learning and growing! Let’s do it 
again next year!

Students in the Middle School’s 
Transitional Program had a fantastic 
and busy school year as well. Here 
are some of the highlights that the 
students wanted to share. In Shana 
Dunlevy’s classroom, students raved 
about the field trips. The group sled-
ding trip was an absolute blast. “My 
favorite was sledding and going fast. 
We built a giant jump and all had 
so much fun”, exclaimed 8th grader 
Keegan Graham when asked to share 
a highlight from the year. In Victoria 
Clauson’s class, one of the favorite 
activities this school year was cook-
ing class. Seventh grader Eli Sanchez 
shared, “My favorite memory that 
I made this year was cooking class, 
especially when I got to cook with my 
friends”. Students in Dana Watford 
and Tina Carrabba’s class shared that 
they had fun making Mother’s Day 
gifts, which tied a Science lesson into 
an art project. Roman Beyer-Beck-
ford exclaims, “Mom is going to love 
my plant!” We are looking forward 
to more fun and adventure in the 
upcoming school year. ▪VICTORIA CLAUSON’S STUDENTS ENJOYING THE TREATS MADE IN COOKING 

CLASS. FROM LEFT TO RIGHT: ANDRES DIAZ, LUCHIEN MOORE, ARIANNA ARIAS, 
LIANNA WARNER, GABE DUENAS, DENIS MORIS



Valley COLLABORATIVE

4

Valley Transitional High School, Transitional
Programs: Independence, Here We Come!

BRANDON TAIPE IN THE KITCHEN AT THE 
99 RESTAURANT IN BILLERICA.

Vocational 
Placement Sites

99 Restaurant, Billerica MA
Merrimack Valley Truck Service, 
Tyngsboro MA
Shaws, Hudson MA 
Dynamic Computers, Medford 
MA
Ocean State Job Lot, Tewksbury 
and North Reading MA
Strongwater Farm, Tewksbury 
MA
Mem Tea, Wakefield MA
Pro-Fitness, Billerica MA
Trader Joes, Nashua NH
Bitty and Beaus, Cambridge MA
Tewksbury Auto, Tewksbury MA
Market Basket, Billerica MA

The theme at Valley Transi-
tional High School this year 
has been ‘independence.’ 

Thanks to the hard work of Voca-
tional Coordinator, Scott Morin, 
more students are being placed in 
internships that correspond to their 
interests. Scott says that the surge in 
placements reflects both the rebound 
of Valley’s vocational programming 
after COVID and the students’ hard 
work. “We have a number of students 
who’ve been in classes for a few years 
and have shown a lot of growth,” says 
Scott. “They’re gaining in confidence 
and independence and were ready to 
take the next step.” The next step is 
going from working on a vocational 
jobsite with a job coach to having an 
internship in the community utiliz-
ing the supervisor of the company 
or business as the natural support. 
They are working independently in 
the surrounding communities gain-
ing experience for when they leave 
Valley. 

Kai Steil-Ng is one of them. Dur-
ing his time at the Transitional High 
School, Kai demonstrated a passion 
for all things mechanical and a real 
desire to be challenged. Once Kai 
settled on diesel engine repair as 
something he was eager to try, Scott 
reached out to a local repair shop to 
try to get him an internship. “He’s 
been there almost six months and 
it has worked out really well,” says 
Scott. “Now they’re looking to hire 
him part time.”

Brandon Taipe discovered his 
love of cooking while working at the 
Bistro downstairs at Valley. After he 
decided that it was time to expand 
his culinary skills, Scott reached out 
on his behalf to the manager of the 

99 Restaurant nearby. One 
thing led to another and be-
fore long Brandon had been 

granted an internship in the 
kitchen, assisting with prep, 
and a chef’s coat to match. 
“He told his parents and the 
rest of the team that he abso-
lutely loves going to work,” 
says Scott.

Nathan Dunham is yet 
another success story. After he 
indicated his desire to work 
independently, Scott and 
other team members began 
searching for possible posi-
tions near Nathan’s home in 
Hudson. These days, Nathan 
takes his electric scooter to a 
nearby Shaws, where he works 
during the week as well as on 
the weekends. While he began 
with janitorial work, manag-
ers at the store have indicated 
that there are opportunities 
for advancement. 

While Scott’s tireless advocacy is 
a major reason for these successful 
placements, he’s quick to credit all of 
the other staffers at Valley who are 
part of its unique team-based ap-
proach. Vocational staff, therapists 
and teachers work together to assess 
students’ readiness for vocational 
next steps. Some students know 
exactly what they’d like to do, says 
Scott, in which case it’s time to begin 
reaching out to employers.  For those 
students who aren’t yet settled on a 
particular field or position, the team 
presents them with opportunities. 
Scott also credits community part-
ners who’ve bought into the mission 
at Valley for being willing to consider 
student interns. “They want to see 
the kids be successful,” says Scott. 
“They also appreciate that we’re 
there to provide supports and guid-
ance if the student needs them.”

However the process plays out, 
it’s working–and so are a growing 
number of Valley students. ▪



Valley COLLABORATIVE

5
VOCATIONAL STUDENT MADISON MURRAY 
WILL LEAVE VALLEY PREPARED TO BEGIN A 
NURSING CAREER.

Valley Transitional High School,  Alternative 
Programs: Many Paths to Success

The Transitional High School 
Alternative Programs are 
celebrating another success-

ful year, as students in all three of 
our sites are finding their way and 
planning for the future. Here’s a look 
at three students who exemplify Val-
ley’s individualized approach.
Career readiness in action

Madison Murray, an eleventh 
grader in the Vocational Program, 
represents a Valley first: dual en-
rollment in the nursing program at 
Northern Essex Community College. 
“I’ve always been interested in nurs-
ing,” says Madison. “I brought it up 
to the staff at Valley and they helped 
me figure out how to do it.” Combin-
ing course work at Valley and NECC, 
Madison is now about to take her 
CNA test. Most importantly, she’ll be 
closing out her time at Valley ready 
to have a career.

“Our vocational program is all 
about career readiness,” explains 

Principal Nick LeClair. 
“This experience means 
that when Madison 
leaves Valley she’ll be 
able to live indepen-
dently.”
Choosing a path

While some students 
arrive at Valley with a 
clear sense of what they 
want to do after gradua-
tion, the majority do not. 
The unique structure 
of the program helps 
facilitate a process of 
exploration. In addition to the voca-
tional program where students can 
try their hands at a variety of occupa-
tions, including carpentry, landscap-
ing, culinary arts and digital media. 
Two sites, Psi for underclassmen and 
Delta for eleventh and twelfth grad-
ers, help students choose a path for 
high school and what comes after.

Matt Maille is currently a Psi 
tenth grader and is already think-
ing ahead to life after school. “When 
students pick a site for eleventh 
and twelfth grade, we’re focused on 
what feels right for them, here at 
Valley and in the future,” explains 
Nick. Matt is considering moving 
into the vocational program because 
a hands-on job in a field such as 
construction appeals to him. He also 
likes the teachers in the program. 
“The staff and student personalities 
mesh well,” says Matt, singling out 
one staff member for special praise. 
“Daniel MacDonald is a real one.” 
Nick says that the staff think just as 
highly of Matt. “He’s a quiet leader 
and beloved on his site.” And while 
Matt still hasn’t made a final decision 
about a site for the next school year, 
the decision making process is part 
of what makes Valley’s approach so 
effective, says Nick. “Students in all 

of our programs have access to the 
same opportunities. The question is 
what is going to be best for the indi-
vidual student?”
A better fit–and a hit

Billy Cochran started at Valley’s 
Transitional High School but was 
convinced that the school’s alterna-
tive programming would be a better 
fit for him. Fast forward a year and 
that assessment has proven correct. 
A 10th grader in the Delta Program, 
Billy is excelling at his academics and 
has already made the high honor roll 
three times. He’s especially passion-
ate about physics and STEM, and 
has already started to think about 
where he might like to go to college. 
His proudest accomplishment this 
school year has been back in Dra-
cut, his home school district, where 
Billy tried out for and made the high 
school baseball team. “My first time 
at bat I got a hit,” says Billy. “We’re 
very proud of him,” says Nick. “Billy 
is a great friend to everyone on his 
site, and to see him doing so well in 
his classes and now on the baseball 
field is really something.” ▪

BILLY COCHRAN RECENTLY MADE THE 
DRACUT HIGH SCHOOL BASEBALL TEAM.



6

Valley COLLABORATIVE

Valley School Trip, 2025
Destination: Montreal, Canada

On May 12, 2025,  our Valley 
travelers hopped on a bus 
and started their journey 

on their 11th annual adventure.  
This time our final destination was 
Montreal, Canada!  A total of twenty-
eight individuals from Valley’s Adult 
Program and Transitional High 
School made the trek across the 
northern border. It was truly a trip 
for all interests.

We spent the week learning about 
Montreal’s history. We found the 
Pointe-a-Calliere, the Archaeologi-
cal Museum, quite interesting. We 
learned about North America’s first 
collector sewer and the people who 
lived in Montreal during the 1830’s.  
St. Patrick’s church and Notre Dame 
Basilica were exquisite sights to see.    

We enjoyed the many picture tak-
ing viewpoints, especially at the top 

of Mount Royal, the highest 
point in Montreal.  Our ghost 

AMONG THE HIGHLIGHTS OF VALLEY’S SCHOOL TRIP TO MONTREAL: LEARNING ABOUT GRAFFITI AND DESIGNING OUR OWN HATS.

tour was a fun way to see Old Mon-
treal’s sites too. When asking Nora 
Bailey about her favorite moments 
on the trip, she exclaimed, “ The 
ghost tour!  I liked learning about the 
history and I have watched videos 
about other ghost stories too”.

Montreal’s Science Centre, Bio 
Dome and Rio Tinto Alcan Planetar-
ium were a big hit with our travel-
ers.  We especially liked the Science 
Centre as it gave us the opportunity 
to learn with our hands and explore 
life science, human evolution and 
participate in an immersive quest of 
the Great Canadian North. Student 
Dylan Tran said, “I liked seeing the 
fish at the Bio Dome.”  

We got to express ourselves and 
show our creativity through graf-
fiti.  We learned how to do different 
techniques and create graffiti on our 
very own hats.

			   »continued  on next page  

2025 Valley School Trip 
by the Numbers

Number of Valley sites that par-
ticipated in the trip: 2

Number of travelers: 28

Distance from Valley to Mon-
treal, Canada: 295 miles

Top elevation of Mount Royal: 
768 feet

Year that the first collector sewer 
for rainwater was constructed in 
Montreal: 1832

Number of trips taken by Valley 
travelers: 11.



Valley COLLABORATIVE

	 »continued  from previous  page 

The individuals and students 
especially enjoyed this activity and 
proudly wore their hats the rest of 
the trip. 

The Sugar Shack or La Sucrerie 
de la Montagne was another great 
way to immerse ourselves in French 
Canadian culture.  We learned how 
maple syrup is made and enjoyed 
French Canadian folk music and 
traditional cuisine.  Nora Bailey said 
“The Sugar Shack’s pancakes and 
maple syrup were so good!”  We got 
to participate in traditional French 
Canadian music and were given a 
lesson on playing wooden spoons 

Valley School Trip, 2025
Destination: Montreal, Canada

THE BELL CENTRE OF THE MONTREAL CANADIENS HOCKEY TEAM WAS A FAN FAVORITE FOR THE VALLEY TRAVELERS

during a song.  
Lastly, touring the Bell Centre 

of the Montreal Canadiens hockey 
team was a fan favorite.  We got to 
go behind the scenes and tour the 
Canadiens’ locker room, learn how 
the ice is made and how the venue 
sets up for concerts. Our group was 
very engaged with our tour guide and 
was even able to give them remind-
ers that we are big BRUINS fans!  
Being one of our sports super fans, 
student Kayden Bovardi said without 
a doubt that, “the Bell Centre was my 
favorite.”  

Overall, it was a great historical 
and cultural experience that they will 
never forget.  ▪

2025 Valley School Trip 
Highlights

Touring the Bell Center of the 
Montreal Canadiens hockey 
team.

The Sugar Shack or La Sucrerie 
de la Montagne for pancakes.

Montreal’s Science Centre, Bio 
Dome and Rio Tinto Alcan 
Planetarium

Pointe-a-Calliere Archaeological 
Museum

Mount Royal, the highest point in 
Montreal

7



Adult Services: Exploring  Assistive Technology

FIVE INDIVIDUALS FROM VALLEY’S ADULT PRO-
GRAM RECENTLY TRAVELED TO DANVERS TO AT-
TEND NORTHEAST ARC’S ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY 
FAIR IN BACK: BRIAN, GREG AND JACOB. IN FRONT: 
JENILEE AND KAITLYN.

The Valley Collaborative Adult 
Program is regularly seek-
ing out opportunities for the 

individuals to learn about new tech-
nology and initiatives that can help 
them with every day life, while also 
learning about new and exciting ways 
to receive standardized, on-going 
support. Recently, five individuals at-
tended an Assistive Technology Fair 
hosted by the Northeast Arc at the 
Liberty Tree Mall. This event gave 
the individuals the chance to learn 
about a range of assistive technology 
products from 30 vendors.

Northeast Arc, a nonprofit which 
helps people with disabilities become 
full participants in the community; 
choosing for themselves how to live, 
learn, work, socialize and play, sees 
Assistive Technology enabling people 
to live productive, meaningful, and 
dignified lives. According to the 

group, “Assistive Technology can 
enhance an individual’s ability to 
perform daily tasks, facilitate in-
dependent living, and contribute 
to a higher quality of life.” 

The individuals who attended 
the event got the chance to see 
and learn about medication 
management devices, commu-
nication devices and software, 
mobility aids, smart home 
technology, remote supports, 
adaptive gaming and recreation, 
and more.

Jenilee Lopez was one of the 
Valley individuals who made 
the trip to Danvers, said that 
she was impressed by what she 
saw at the Assistive Technology 
Fair. “It was pretty cool. I saw a 
lot of different things and it was 
very interesting. I liked seeing all 
the technology and how it will help 
all the individuals,” says Jenilee. “I 
like how everything there could help 
people be more independent. Even 
for people who can’t speak they 
had a bunch of different things that 
could help them communicate.”

While not every individual 
served by Valley Collaborative uses 
Assistive Technology in their every-
day life, new and creative ideas are 
regularly being introduced to the 
populations served by DDS and can 
create a drastic change in an indi-
vidual’s life. As an example, Valley 
supports an individual who utilizes 
remote check-ins with an outside 
agency through smart home tech-
nology. This allows for a new level 
of independence for the individual 
as they receive necessary supports 
through a remote system and 
therefore is able to operate with a 
new level of independence while still 

having regular check-ins to ensure 
safety and care.

Many of the initiatives presented 
at the Assistive Technology Fair are 
still in their infancy. However, the 

more awareness that can be brought 
to them and the more opportunity 
the individuals and their families 
have to access these products and 
services, the more personal growth 
that can be achieved. This happens 
through providing individuals with 
tools necessary to operate at their 
highest level without compromising 
the level of support they receive.

Services provided for Adults with 
Disabilities have come a long way 
over the years, but it is never enough 
to get complacent and be satisfied 
with the supports out there. It is 
imperative that individuals and their 
support teams continue to advocate 
for new and creative ways to help 
individuals maximize their potential 
while getting their specific needs 
met. The DDS Assistive Technology 
Fair was a great way to facilitate this 
process.▪

INDIVIDUALS IN VALLEY’S ADULT PRO-
GRAMS CHECK OUT SOME OF THE OFFER-
INGS ON DISPLAY AT THE NORTHEAST ARC 
ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY FAIR.

Valley COLLABORATIVE

8



9

Valley COLLABORATIVE

Valley Collaborative 2024-2025:
Our Year in Pictures

VALLEY MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS LOGAN STURGIS 
AND COLTON KNOWLTON ON A WINTER HIKE.

MIKE KOCZAN AND RENEE BOYDEN,ON 
THE JOB AT  CHELMSFORD HIGH 
SCHOOL.

STUDENT ERIK REGO COOKING UP TURKEY 
WITH CHEF BRIDGET FOR FRIENDSGIVING.

4TH GRADER NELSON 
LOZADA WITH VISIT-
ING BARBER PHILL 
MCNULTY

MORE THAN 50 FAMILY MEMBERS ATTENDED 
VALLEY ELEMENTARY’S ANNUAL COMMUNITY 
BREAKFAST.

STUDENT TONY ESTRADA SHOWS OFF HIS 
BIG CATCH.



»continued  from cover

The 2025 Dr. Anthony Bent Lead-
ership Award will be presented to 
Heather MacKay, Valley Elementary 
School Principal. Previous award 
winners include:
2016 - Joia Mercurio, Deputy Direc-
tor
2019 - Kari Morrin, Director of Hu-
man Resources
2020 – Sandra Morency, Lead Cus-
todian
2021 – Jessica Scalzi, Lead Nurse
2022 – Nicole Noska, Valley Middle 
School & Valley Transitional High 
School Principal
2023 – Matthew Gentile, Director of 
DDS & MassAbility
2024 – Mazyar Moshtaghi, Chief 
Technology Officer

The School Spirit Award 2025
Deven Beltran (Valley Transitional 
High School – Transitional Pro-
gramming)

Everett V. Olsen, Jr. Award for 
Highest Academic Honors 2025
Felicite Kodak, (Valley Transitional 
High School – Alternative Program-
ming)

The Community Partner Award 
2025
Billerica Town Hall

Valley Collaborative Retirees
We would like to thank our retirees 
for their many years of dedication 
and service to Valley’s mission.

Vivi Leighton – 18 Years of service 
at Valley Elementary School as the 
Culinary Manager

Christopher Woodward -  5.5 Years 
of service at Valley Adult Program as 
Job Placement Specialist 

At each of Valley Collab-
orative’s Board of Director’s 

At Valley, We Love What We Do!
meeting throughout the school year, 
we recognize students, individuals, 
and staff of the month who demon-
strate Valley’s core values.  Below 
please find a comprehensive list of 
these awards recipients for the 2024 
– 2025 school year- congratulations 
to all!

September 2024
Staff Making a Difference Awards
Technology Department: Mazyar 
Moshtaghi & Francisco Laureano 
Maintenance/Facilities Department: 
Renato Silva, Sandra Morency, Fabio 
Agostinho, William G. Hernandez, 
Nobelia Bento

October 2024
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Patrick Car-
rier 
Staff of the Month: Noah Colon 

Valley Middle School 
Student of the Month: Ivy Lefebvre 
Staff of the Month: Rajeswari Ravi-
chandran 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Alternative Programming 
Student of the Month: Robert Pirnie 
Staff of the Month: Brittany Maiuri 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Transitional Programming 
Student of the Month: Brandon 
Taipe 
Staff of the Month: Madison Watford 

Valley Adult Services 
DDS/MRC Adult Program Partici-
pant: Jennifer Glidden 
Staff of the Month: Rebecca Thi-
bedore 

Valley Collaborative – District Wide 
Staff of the Month: Kari Morrin 

December 2024
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Lindsey 

Lavanga 
Staff of the Month: Erin Frazier 

Valley Middle School 
Student of the Month: Dinitri Scott 
Staff of the Month: Kali Rowe 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Alternative Programming 
Student of the Month: Tyler March-
and 
Staff of the Month: Jake Smith 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Transitional Programming 
Student of the Month: Jack Murphy 
Staff of the Month: Haley Parker 

Valley Adult Services 
DDS/MRC Adult Program Partici-
pant: Sharifah Namigadde 
DDS Staff of the Month: Simeon 
Zorokong 
MRC Staff of the Month: Dayse 
Doliver 

Valley Collaborative – District Wide 
Staff of the Month: Joia Mercurio, 
Nicole Noska, Nick LeClair, Heather 
Mackay, Kathleen Diaz, Donna 
Driscoll

January 2025
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Ethan Leon-
ardo 
Staff of the Month: Katelyn Rose 

Valley Alternative Programming 
High School 
Student of the Month: Felicite Kodak 
Staff of the Month: Katharine Werner 

Valley Transitional Programming 
Middle School 
Student of the Month: Gabriella Rat-
tanavong 
Staff of the Month: Faithe Shatford 

Valley Transitional Programming 
High School 
Student of the Month: Luke Murphy 
Staff of the Month: Leslie Ayers	

			   »continued  on next page10

Valley COLLABORATIVE



»continued  from previous page

Valley Adult Services 
Individual of the month: Jenna 
Boudrot 
Staff of the Month: Maureen Lydon

April 2025
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Brody Ro-
mano 
Staff of the Month: Rebecca Valcanas 

Valley Middle School 
Student of the Month: Rose Morin 
Staff of the Month: Jaclyn Squeglia 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Alternative Programming 
Student of the Month: Madison 
Murray 
Staff of the Month: Christine Bren-
nick 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Transitional Programming 
Student of the Month: Sean McCar-
thy 
Staff of the Month: Molly Doctor 

Valley Adult Services 
DDS/MRC Adult Program Partici-
pant: Rose Chen 
Staff of the Month: Romario Hon-
orat 

Valley Collaborative – District Wide 
Staff of the Month: Ian MacAulay, 
Fabio Agostinho, Sandra Morency, 
Francisco Laureano, Matthew 
Gentile, Holly Tierney, Benjamin 
Morrison, Maureen Lydon, Jessica 
Marcotte

June 2025
Valley Elementary School
Student of the Month: Michael 
Sheehan
Staff of the Month: Nicole Rosa, 
Kathryn Richard, Renee Christian
Student of the Year: Louis Lourino

Valley Alternative Programming 
High School
Student of the Month: Phillip D. 
Hoffman IV
Staff of the Month: Vlad Stoicescu
 
Valley Transitional Programming 
Middle School
Student of the Month: Lexi Fuentes
Staff of the Month:  Joanna Bazzi-
notti

Valley Transitional Programming 
High School
Student of the Month: Brittany 
Dorney
Staff of the Month: Scott Morin

Valley Adult Services
Individual of the Month:  Jeremy 
Cyr
Staff of the Month:  Ashlee Hamel

We are finalizing Valley’s 2026-2031 
District Improvement Plan facilitat-
ed by Dr. Lori Likis, Consultant with 
Creative Coaching.  Dr. Lori Likis 
was the DESE consultant for school 
improvement planning.  Prior to 
retirement, Dr. Likis was responsible 
for developing the school and district 
improvement planning protocols for 
the Massachusetts Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Educa-
tion.  Valley was one of the original 
pilot sites for these protocols a 
decade ago.  Valley was honored 
when Dr. Likis agreed to come out 
of retirement to help Valley develop 
its 2026-2031 five year District 
Improvement Plan.  A great deal of 
work was accomplished this past 
school year and we are energized 
about executing the goals embedded 
in our new plan.

In order to obtain some baseline 
data for this five year plan, we sur-
veyed Valley’s 38 member Leader-
ship Team and Valley’s Member 
District Special Education Directors. 

A special thank you to all 
of our charitable donors

$5000.00 - Enterprise Bank, Mr. 
George Duncan Chairman 
$2000.00 - The Torrice Family 
Charitable Trust 	
$1500.00 - Charities Aid Founda-
tions of America
$500.00 - Powell Controls Inc
$500.00 - Fritz Deguglielmo, 
LLC
$300.00 - Marathas, Barrow & 
Weatherhead LLP
$200.00 - Mary T. Conway
$100.00 – Dr. Anthony J. Bent
$100.00 - J.P. O’Connor Hard-
ware, Inc
$100.00 - Camelia and Florin 
Rosca
$25.00 - Chip-In Farm, Inc

In Kind Donations:
Market Basket - $25.00 Gift 
Cards (2) 

This feedback along with the recent 
FY24 surveys for students, staff, and 
adult services participants gives us a
great baseline for the new plan. I 
proudly share the results with you in 
this newsletter.

I wish you all a fun filled and safe 
summer.  As you are aware, Valley 
doors are open 12 months of the year 
and we are looking forward to kick-
ing off summer school on July 7th – 
see you then!

My door is always open,

Chris A. Scott, Ph. D.
Executive Director

11

At Valley, We Love What We Do!
Valley COLLABORATIVE



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Discussion of Status of  Valley’s Culture

12



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Member District Special Education Directors 
Satisfaction Survey

13



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Member District Special Education Directors 
Satisfaction Survey

14



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Member District Special Education Directors 
Satisfaction Survey

15



Valley Collaborative Leadership Team

Kari Morrin

Director of HR, Title IX and 
504 Coordinator
kmorrin@valleycollaborative.org

Joia Mercurio 

Deputy Director
jmercurio@valleycollaborative.org

James George

Business Manager/Accountant
jgeorge@valleycollaborative.org

Chris A. Scott, PhD

Executive Director,
Finance and Operations
cscott@valleycollaborative.org

Nicole Noska

Principal,Valley Middle School
Valley Transitional High School
Transitional Programming
nnoska@valleycollaborative.org

Nick LeClair

Principal, Valley Transitional 
High School
Alternative Programming

nleclair@valleycollaborative.org

Jessica Marcotte

Lead Nurse

jscalzi@valleycollaborative.org

Heather Mackay

Principal, Valley 
Elementary School
hmackay@valleycollaborative.org

Matthew Gentile

Director of DDS & MRC 
Services
mgentile@valleycollaborative.org

Mazyar Moshtaghi

Chief Technology Officer
mmoshtaghi@valleycollaborative org

Valley Collaborative Board
Dr. Jay Lang, chair

Superintendent, Chelmsford 
Public Schools

Dr. Kerry Clery

Superintendent, Billerica Public 
Schools

Mr. Steven Stone

Superintendent, Dracut Public 
Schools

Dr. Geoff Bruno

Superintendent, Groton-
Dunstable Regional School 
District

Dr. Denise Pigeon

Superintendent, Nashoba Valley 
Technical School District

Mr. Brad Morgan

Superintendent, North 
Middlesex Regional School 
District

Ms. Brenda 
Theriault-Regan

Superintendent, Tewksbury 
Public Schools

Dr. Michael Flanagan

Superintendent, 
Tyngsborough Public Schools

Dr. Christopher 
Chew

Superintendent, Westford Public 
Schools

Valley Collaborative partners with families, districts, and the community to provide innovative programming 
that empowers all students and adults to discover their diverse individual strengths, interests, and abilities. In 
doing so, those we serve become self-actualized members of society who contribute in a responsible manner.

Renato Silva

School Safety & Facilities 
Manager

rsilva@valleycollaborative.org



 Beginning 
Balance Receipts Payroll

 Accounts 
Payable Earnings Transfers

 Ending 
Balance 

ENTERPISE BANK ACCOUNTS

Operating a/c 493426 4,539,987.34$     1,439,193.13$   (239,505.01)$       (1,316,000.00)$   4,423,675.46$     

Payroll a/c 795823 192,033.96$         (1,410,004.61)$   1,320,000.00$     102,029.35$         

Joe's Bistro a/c 531401 4,323.92$             1,608.25$           (4,000.00)$           1,932.17$             

ICS MMDA a/c 856490 4,774.85$             2.02$                   4,776.87$             

Capital Reserve a/c 4063467 1,500,000.00$     1,500,000.00$     

Independence Project a/c 821315 114.36$                -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                      114.36$                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE BANK ACCOUNTS 6,241,234.43$     1,440,801.38$   (1,410,004.61)$   (239,505.01)$       2.02$                   -$                      6,032,528.21$     

MMDT a/c 0044263747 1,148,388.73$     -$                     -$                      -$                      4,366.67$           -$                      1,152,755.40$     

Total Unrestricted Cash 7,389,623.16$     1,440,801.38$   (1,410,004.61)$   (239,505.01)$       4,368.69$           -$                      7,185,283.61$     

PARS OPEB Trust 7,782,791.87$     -$                     -$                      (2,087.71)$           243,309.21$      -$                      8,024,013.37$     

TOTAL CASH 15,172,415.03$   1,440,801.38$   (1,410,004.61)$   (241,592.72)$       247,677.90$      -$                      15,209,296.98$   

VALLEY COLLABORATIVE
TREASURER'S REPORT

MAY 31, 2025



 Beginning 
Balance Receipts Payroll

 Accounts 
Payable Earnings Transfers

 Ending 
Balance 

ENTERPISE BANK ACCOUNTS

Operating a/c 493426 4,423,675.46$     2,911,488.21$   (169,567.18)$       (2,750,000.00)$   4,415,596.49$     

Payroll a/c 795823 102,029.35$         (2,046,719.96)$   2,750,000.00$     805,309.39$         

Joe's Bistro a/c 531401 1,932.17$             2,109.98$           4,042.15$             

ICS MMDA a/c 856490 4,776.87$             1.96$                   4,778.83$             

Capital Reserve a/c 4063467 1,500,000.00$     1,500,000.00$     

Independence Project a/c 821315 114.36$                -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                      114.36$                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE BANK ACCOUNTS 6,032,528.21$     2,913,598.19$   (2,046,719.96)$   (169,567.18)$       1.96$                   -$                      6,729,841.22$     

MMDT a/c 0044263747 1,152,755.40$     -$                     -$                      -$                      4,225.02$           -$                      1,156,980.42$     

Total Unrestricted Cash 7,185,283.61$     2,913,598.19$   (2,046,719.96)$   (169,567.18)$       4,226.98$           -$                      7,886,821.64$     

PARS OPEB Trust 8,024,013.37$     -$                     -$                      (2,147.58)$           260,918.31$      -$                      8,282,784.10$     

TOTAL CASH 15,209,296.98$   2,913,598.19$   (2,046,719.96)$   (171,714.76)$       265,145.29$      -$                      16,169,605.74$   

VALLEY COLLABORATIVE
TREASURER'S REPORT

JUNE 30, 2025



 Beginning 
Balance Receipts Payroll

 Accounts 
Payable Earnings Transfers

 Ending 
Balance 

ENTERPISE BANK ACCOUNTS

Operating a/c 493426 4,415,596.49$     2,654,686.92$   (874,300.34)$       (1,370,000.00)$   4,825,983.07$     

Payroll a/c 795823 805,309.39$         (1,946,122.10)$   1,370,000.00$     229,187.29$         

Joe's Bistro a/c 531401 4,042.15$             1,648.00$           5,690.15$             

ICS MMDA a/c 856490 4,778.83$             2.02$                   4,780.85$             

Capital Reserve a/c 4063467 1,500,000.00$     1,500,000.00$     

Independence Project a/c 821315 114.36$                -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                      114.36$                

TOTAL ENTERPRISE BANK ACCOUNTS 6,729,841.22$     2,656,334.92$   (1,946,122.10)$   (874,300.34)$       2.02$                   -$                      6,565,755.72$     

MMDT a/c 0044263747 1,156,980.42$     -$                     -$                      -$                      4,381.53$           -$                      1,161,361.95$     

Total Unrestricted Cash 7,886,821.64$     2,656,334.92$   (1,946,122.10)$   (874,300.34)$       4,383.55$           -$                      7,727,117.67$     

PARS OPEB Trust 8,282,784.10$     -$                     -$                      (2,206.31)$           49,076.86$         -$                      8,329,654.65$     

TOTAL CASH 16,169,605.74$   2,656,334.92$   (1,946,122.10)$   (876,506.65)$       53,460.41$         -$                      16,056,772.32$   

VALLEY COLLABORATIVE
TREASURER'S REPORT

JULY 31, 2025



 Beginning 
Balance Receipts Payroll

 Accounts 
Payable Earnings Transfers

 Ending 
Balance 

ENTERPISE BANK ACCOUNTS

Operating a/c 493426 4,825,983.07$     678,601.71$      (483,059.43)$      (1,395,000.00)$       3,626,525.35$     

Payroll a/c 795823 229,187.29$         (1,449,728.97)$   1,400,000.00$        179,458.32$         

Joe's Bistro a/c 531401 5,690.15$             949.66$              (5,000.00)$               1,639.81$             

ICS MMDA a/c 856490 4,780.85$             2.02$                   4,782.87$             

Capital Reserve a/c 4063467 1,500,000.00$     1,500,000.00$     

Independence Project a/c 821315 114.36$                 -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                          114.36$                 

TOTAL ENTERPRISE BANK ACCOUNTS 6,565,755.72$     679,551.37$      (1,449,728.97)$   (483,059.43)$      2.02$                   -$                          5,312,520.71$     

MMDT a/c 0044263747 1,161,361.95$     -$                     -$                      -$                      4,393.34$           -$                          1,165,755.29$     

Total Unrestricted Cash 7,727,117.67$     679,551.37$      (1,449,728.97)$   (483,059.43)$      4,395.36$           -$                          6,478,276.00$     

PARS OPEB Trust 8,329,654.65$     -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                          8,329,654.65$     as of July 31, 2025

TOTAL CASH 16,056,772.32$   679,551.37$      (1,449,728.97)$   (483,059.43)$      4,395.36$           -$                          14,807,930.65$   

VALLEY COLLABORATIVE
TREASURER'S REPORT

AUGUST 31, 2025



Valley Collaborative

Interim Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Period Ending June 30, 2025 

210 of 210 (100%) School Days 

AMENDED

BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES

    Services 22,045,706$           22,197,833$           

    State Contracts 4,500,000 4,483,224               

    Other 649,609 692,920                  

    Interest 55,000 54,508                     

  Total Revenues 27,250,315             27,428,485             101%

EXPENSES

    Salaries 18,094,418 18,016,511             

    Employee Benefits 3,425,027 3,251,631               

    Operating Expenses 2,615,800 2,978,119               

    Leases & Rentals 593,247 608,161                  

    Depreciation 751,000 909,123

  Total Expenses 25,479,492             25,763,545             101%

Change in Net Assets - Operating 1,770,823$             1,664,940$             

Non Operating Activities

    Return to Member Districts -                          

    Non-Operating Expenses  (1) (1,000,000)             -                              

    Change in Net Assets 770,823$                1,664,940$             

  

Substantially all disclosures and the Statement of Cash Flows required by GAAP are omitted. No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

UNAUDITED



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VALLEY COLLABORATIVE 
 

Amended and Restated Articles of Agreement 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Valley Collaborative (MSEC) on June 13, 
2013 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PREAMBLE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

Page 

1 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

Membership 
 

1 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

Mission, Objectives, Focus, and Purpose 
 

2 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

Programs and Services Offered 
 

3 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

Governance and Powers and Duties of the Board 
 

3 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

Responsibilities of Individual Board Members 
 

9 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

Indemnification 
 

11 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

Finance 
 

12 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

Procedure for Termination of the Collaborative 
 

17 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

Procedure for Withdrawal of Member Districts 
 

18 
 

ARTICLE X 
 

Procedure for Admitting New Member Districts 
 

20 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 

Procedure for Amending this Collaborative Agreement 
 

21 
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

Non-Discrimination 
 

22 
 

APPROVAL BY THE MEMBER DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEES 23 



1  

PREAMBLE 

This agreement constitutes the amended and restated Articles of Agreement (the 

“Collaborative Agreement”) of the Valley Collaborative (the “Collaborative”) which is 

established and exists pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 4E, as 

amended from time to time, and 603 CMR 50.00. This Collaborative Agreement and any 

subsequent amendments hereto, shall not take effect until approved by the school committees of 

the Collaborative’s member districts and the Massachusetts Board of Elementary and Secondary 

Education, upon recommendation by the Commissioner of the Department of Elementary and 

Secondary Education (“DESE”).  This Collaborative Agreement amends and restates the 

Collaborative Articles of Agreement dated July 1, 2007 entered into by the certain school 

committees listed in Article I (the “member districts”). 

ARTICLE I 

Membership 
 

The membership of the Collaborative, as of the effective date of this Collaborative 

Agreement, includes the school committees from the following member districts, as 

memorialized by the signatures of the chairs of the school committees: 

• School Committee for Billerica Public Schools 
 

• School Committee for Chelmsford Public Schools 
 

• School Committee for Dracut Public Schools 
 

• School Committee for Groton-Dunstable Regional School District 
 

• School Committee for Nashoba Valley Technical School 
 

• School Committee for North Middlesex Regional School District 
 

• School Committee for Tewksbury Public Schools 



2  

• School Committee for Tyngsborough Public Schools 
 

• School Committee for Westford Public Schools 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

Mission, Objectives, Focus, and Purpose 
 

The mission of the Collaborative is to conduct educational programs and/or services for 

member districts in a cost-effective manner and to increase educational opportunities and to 

improve educational outcomes for its students. The purpose of the Collaborative is to provide 

high quality intensive educational, therapeutic and transitional programs and related services to 

individuals with disabilities referred by member districts, non-member districts and social 

service agencies, including both children and adults, and to provide professional development to 

educators. The focus of the Collaborative is the provision of special education, transitional, 

occupational, and therapeutic programs and services in the least restrictive environment and 

comprehensive professional development within the local communities of the member districts. 

The overall objectives of the Collaborative include improving the academic achievement and/or 

occupational skills of students and individuals with disabilities in the least restrictive 

environment through high quality programs and services; offering a variety of high quality 

professional development opportunities to general and special education teachers and related 

service providers; and offering its programs and services in a cost-effective manner. 



3  

ARTICLE III 
 

Programs and Services Offered 
 

The Collaborative offers the following programs and services, which complement and 

augment the educational programs and services of the member districts in a cost-effective 

manner: 

• Day school placements and other programs and services, including 
educational, therapeutic, transitional, and occupational programs and services 
for students and individuals with disabilities. 

• Professional development programs for general and special educators. 
• Other appropriate services and programs as may be established and approved 

by the Board of Directors of the Collaborative, as permitted by Massachusetts 
General Laws Chapter 40, Section 4E. 

 

 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

Governance and Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors 
 

1. The Board of Directors of the Collaborative (the “Board”) shall consist of one 

representative from each member district. Each member district shall annually appoint either a 

member of its school committee or its superintendent of schools as its appointed representative 

on the Board.  Each Board Member shall have one (1) vote with respect to matters before the 

Board.  No such appointed Board Member may serve on the board of directors or as an officer or 

employee of a related for-profit or non-profit organization. No Board Member shall receive an 

additional salary or stipend for his or her service to the Collaborative. The Board also shall 

consist of an appointee by the DESE Commissioner, who shall serve as a voting Board Member 

and who shall be entitled to one (1) vote with respect to matters before the Board.  No employee 

of the Collaborative may serve as a Board Member, and no Board Member shall be eligible to 

serve concurrently as the Executive Director or Treasurer of the Collaborative, or the 



4  

Collaborative’s business manager or employee with responsibilities similar to those of a town 

accountant. 

2. The Board shall be responsible for providing fiduciary and management oversight 

and accountability over the operation and management of the Collaborative. The Board shall 

have all the powers and duties conferred and imposed upon educational collaborative boards by 

law, including without limitation those powers and duties conferred and imposed upon the 

Collaborative and the Board by this Collaborative Agreement, Massachusetts General Laws 

Chapter 40, Section 4E, 603 CMR 50.00, and all acts and regulations amendatory thereof. The 

Board is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of policies and procedures to support 

the effective and economical operation of the Collaborative and to oversee the operation of the 

Collaborative to the end that the educational needs of the students enrolled in its programs are 

met in a cost-effective way.  In addition to other requirements of law, at a minimum, the Board 

shall develop and maintain policies relative to personnel, students, finance and internal controls, 

and health and nursing.  The policies and procedures formulated or adopted by the Board shall 

comply with the pertinent policies and guidelines of the DESE, as amended. The Board shall 

review the effectiveness of its policies and procedures from time to time to ensure currency and 

appropriateness.  The Board shall also establish a process to provide to member district school 

committees, students, parents, guardians, and the general public all information required by law 

and regulation. 

3. The Collaborative, acting by and through the Board, may adopt by-laws 

consistent with law and with this Collaborative Agreement to govern the day to day operation or 

other appropriate matters of the Collaborative.  If a particular matter is not covered by such a 



5  

document, if any, then any such matter will be handled as the Board deems appropriate by a 

majority vote of the Board Members unless otherwise provided in this Collaborative Agreement. 

4. The Board shall meet no less than six (6) times during each school year, and shall 

conduct all such additional meetings as are appropriate to carry out the purpose and objectives of 

the Collaborative. Prior to the commencement of any school year, the Board shall post its 

regularly scheduled meetings for such school year on the Collaborative’s website. Special or 

emergency meetings may be held upon request, which shall be called by the Board’s 

Chairperson.  Public notice shall be given of the date, time, and location of all Board meetings, 

accurate records of every Board meeting shall be kept, and all meetings of the Board shall be 

held in compliance with the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law. 

5. A quorum of the Board shall consist of a majority of the voting Board Members, 

and the Board may act by a simple majority vote of the Board Members present unless otherwise 

provided in this Collaborative Agreement. The vote of each Board Member shall have equal 

weight. 

6. The Board shall, annually during the final meeting of the school year, organize 

itself by electing a Chairperson and any other Board positions deemed appropriate by the Board. 

The Chairperson, with the majority vote of the Board, may appoint such committees and 

subcommittees of the Board as will facilitate its duties and responsibilities. 

7. The Board shall hire or appoint an Executive Director, to serve under its general 

direction, to manage and supervise the Collaborative, oversee the day to day operation of its 

programs and services, and implement the policies of the Board. The Executive Director shall 

have the authority granted by Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40, Section 4E.  The Board 

shall annually evaluate the Executive Director’s effectiveness in implementing the programs, 



6  

policies, and goals of the Collaborative.  The Executive Director shall not serve concurrently (i) 

as a Board Member or the Treasurer of the Collaborative, (ii) as the Collaborative’s business 

manager or employee with responsibilities similar to those of a town accountant, or (iii) as a 

board member, officer, or employee of any related for-profit or non-profit organization. 

8. The Board shall hire or appoint a business manager or employee with 

responsibilities similar to those of a town accountant who shall be subject to Massachusetts 

General Laws Chapter 41, Section 52.  The business manager or employee with responsibilities 

similar to those of a town accountant may not serve concurrently as a Board Member, the 

Treasurer, or the Executive Director of the Collaborative. The Board shall annually evaluate the 

performance and effectiveness of its business manager or employee with responsibilities similar 

to those of a town accountant. 

9. The Board shall hire or appoint a Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible 

for the oversight and certification of all receipts and disbursements related to the Collaborative’s 

funds, and shall perform such duties as are required by the Board and authorized by 

Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40, Section 4E and its regulations, and any amendments 

thereof.   The Treasurer shall not serve concurrently as a Board Member, the Executive Director, 

or the Collaborative’s business manager or employee with responsibilities similar to those of a 

town accountant. The Treasurer shall be compensated in such amount as to be set from time to 

time by the Board. The Treasurer shall give bond annually for the faithful performance of his or 

her duties in a form and amount approved by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department 

of Revenue and the Board.  The Board may hire or appoint a treasurer of a member district city, 

town or regional school district to serve as its Treasurer. The Board shall annually evaluate the 

Treasurer’s performance and effectiveness. 



7  

10. The Board shall hire or appoint one or more registered nurse(s) as a school nurse 

and shall provide such nurses with the proper facilities to ensure that the health needs of the 

Collaborative students are met. 

11. The Collaborative shall be considered a government entity and public employer 

and the Collaborative, by and through its Board of Directors, may employ or appoint such other 

qualified personnel as may be required to fulfill its duties and responsibilities and the 

Collaborative’s mission, purpose, and objectives, subject to the requirements of Massachusetts 

General Laws Chapter 40, Section 4E and its regulations, and any amendments thereof. 

Collaborative employees shall be considered public employees subject to all applicable laws, 

including without limitation Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 268A. 

12. The Board shall ensure that an annual report is prepared for each fiscal year, 

which shall, upon approval of such report by the Board, and no later than January 1, be submitted 

to the DESE Commissioner and the chair of the school committee of each member district. The 

Collaborative’s annual report shall be made available to the public on the Collaborative’s  

website and in hard copy to the public upon a request consistent with the Massachusetts Public 

Records Law. 

13. The Board shall ensure that annual financial statements are prepared, including (a) 

a statement of net assets; (b) a statement of activities; (c) a governmental funds balance sheet; (d) 

a governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance; (e) a 

general fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance; (f) a statement of 

fiduciary net assets; (g) a statement of changes in fiduciary fund net assets; and (h) a capital plan 

identifying current capital obligations or future planned capital projects. 



8  

14. The Board shall ensure that an independent audit of the Collaborative is 

completed annually in accordance with 603 CMR 50.08, and upon approval by the Board, and no 

later than January 1, submit the audit report for the preceding fiscal year to the chair of the 

school committee of each member district, the DESE Commissioner, and the Massachusetts 

Office of the State Auditor. 

15. The Board shall ensure that the Collaborative adopts and maintains a financial 

accounting system, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by 

the governmental accounting standards board and any supplemental requirements prescribed 

jointly by the DESE Commissioner and the Commissioner of Revenue. The Collaborative’s 

financial accounting system shall delineate, at a minimum: (a) administration and overhead; (b) 

rental of real property; (c) program costs; (d) capital expenditures, including fixed assets, real 

property or the improvement of real property; (e) debt payments; (f) deposits into a capital 

reserve; and (g) all additional disclosures required in 630 CMR 50.08(2). 

16. The Collaborative, acting by and through the Board, may, subject to 

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 30B, enter into contracts for the purchase of supplies, 

materials, and services and for the purchase or leasing of land, buildings, and equipment as 

deemed appropriate by the Board. 

17. The Board shall ensure that the Collaborative establishes and maintains a website, 

which shall include, among other things: (a) a list of the appointed representatives on the Board; 

(b) copies of the approved and released minutes of the open meetings held by the Board; (c) a 

copy of this Collaborative Agreement and any amendments; (d) a copy of its annual report and 

independent audit report; and (e) contact information for key Collaborative personnel. 



9  

ARTICLE V 
 

Responsibilities of Individual Board Members 
 

1. Each member district shall annually appoint either a member of its school 

committee or its superintendent of schools to be its appointed representative on the Board. Prior 

to the first regularly scheduled Collaborative Board meeting of the school year, each member 

district shall deliver to the Collaborative an executed appointment letter confirming the identity 

of its appointed representative and the date(s) of such appointment. 

2. Each Board Member shall attend and complete training required by the DESE, as 

set forth in Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 4E and 603 CMR 50.05. Should a 

Board Member fail to complete the required training within the timelines set by law and 

regulations, the Board Member shall automatically become an inactive Board Member, shall not 

count towards a quorum, and shall not have voting rights on the Board, but shall continue to have 

all other rights and obligations of membership. The Board Member shall become an active 

member and voting rights shall be reinstated once the appointed representative completes the 

required training and provides certificates of proof thereof.  A Board Member may meet one or 

more of the training requirements through an alternative means by providing a description of the 

training and a certification of completion, which upon determination by the DESE, may satisfy 

certain training requirements. 

3. Each Board Member shall be an active and engaged voting Board Member.   All 

Board Members shall attend scheduled meetings and fulfill all duties required of the Board by 

law and this Collaborative Agreement. Each Board Member is expected to attend every Board 

meeting.  When a Board Member has missed one-half (1/2) of the Board meetings within a fiscal 

year, the Chairperson of the Board shall inform the chair of the Board Member’s appointing 



10  

member district of the absences.  A Board Member who misses more than two-thirds (2/3) of the 

Board meetings within a fiscal year will no longer be considered an appointed representative 

Board Member, in which case, the Board will notify the respective school committee that the 

seat will remain vacant until such time as the member district, by appropriate vote, appoints a 

new representative Board Member. When a Board seat becomes vacant, the member district 

shall automatically become an inactive member of the Board, shall not count towards a quorum, 

and shall not have voting rights on the Board, but shall continue to have all other rights and 

obligations of membership. 

4. As appointed representatives of their respective member districts, each Board 

Member shall be responsible for providing the following information to his or her respective 

member district: (a) quarterly information and updates to the school committee on the programs 

and services provided by the Collaborative; (b) quarterly financial information of the 

Collaborative; (c) a copy of this Collaborative Agreement and any amendments; (d) a copy of the 

annual budget and tuition rates; (e) a copy of the annual report and financial audit; (f)  

notification of applications for real estate mortgages; (g) a copy of any capital plan approved by 

the Board; and (h) any additional information as may be requested by a vote of the school 

committee of the member district. 

5. No Board Member shall delegate his or her duties or powers or send a 

representative in his or her place as a voting Board Member and no member district shall 

delegate the rights, responsibilities, or duties of its appointed representative Board Member to 

any other individual, unless the member district is replacing the appointed representative Board 

Member with that individual. 



11  

ARTICLE VI 
 

Indemnification 
 

Neither the Executive Director nor any Board Member shall be liable to the Collaborative 

for any act or omission of the Executive Director or any Board Member or be held personally 

liable in connection with the affairs of the Collaborative except only liability arising out of his or 

her own willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence, or reckless disregard of duty to the 

Collaborative or its members districts. 

Neither the Executive Director nor any Board Member shall be personally liable for any 

debt, claim, demand, judgment, decree, liability or obligation of any kind of, against, or with 

respect to the Collaborative or arising out of any action taken or omitted for or on behalf of the 

Collaborative and the Collaborative shall be solely liable therefore and resort shall be had 

exclusively to the Collaborative property for the payment or performance thereof, and the 

Executive Director and each Board Member shall be entitled to full indemnity and full 

reimbursement out of Collaborative property, including, without limitation, fees and 

disbursements of counsel, if, contrary to the provisions hereof, the Executive Director or such 

Board Member shall be held personally liable. 

The Executive Director and his or her legal representatives and each Board Member and 

his or her legal representatives shall be indemnified by the Collaborative against all liabilities 

and expenses, exclusive of amounts paid to the Collaborative, including judgments, fines, 

penalties, amounts paid in settlement and counsel fees, incurred in reasonable settlement of any 

action, suit or proceeding to which the Executive Director or such Board Member or his or her 

legal representatives may be made a party or otherwise involved by reason of his or her capacity 

as the Executive Director or a Board Member, except only liabilities and expenses arising out of 



12  

his or her own willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of duty to 

the Collaborative as finally adjudged in such action or, in the event of settlement or termination 

of such action without final adjudication, as determined by independent counsel for the 

Collaborative.  Said right of indemnification shall be in addition to any other rights to which the 

Executive Director or such Board Member may be entitled as a matter of law or which may be 

lawfully granted to him or her. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

Finance 
 

1. The Collaborative’s fiscal year shall commence on July 1 and end on June 30 of 

the following year. All funds of the Collaborative shall be deposited into and shall comprise the 

Valley Collaborative Fund (the “Collaborative Fund”). All monies paid by the member and non-

member districts and social agencies, and all grants or donations from the federal government, 

state government, charitable foundations, private corporations, or any other source shall be paid 

to the Board and deposited into the Collaborative Fund. The Treasurer of the Collaborative, 

subject to the direction of the Board, shall have the authority to receive and disburse funds 

without further appropriation. 

2. Revenues of the Collaborative shall be derived from the following sources: 
 

A. Program Tuition:  The costs of the Collaborative’s programs, as determined by 
the Executive Director and approved by the Board, shall be assessed to the 
member and non-member districts based on the combined cost of providing such 
programs to the Collaborative's students and the number of students enrolled in 
the Collaborative’s programs from the respective member and non-member 
districts. A non-member surcharge may be assessed to a non-member district 
based on each student enrolled from such non-member district, at the 
recommendation of the Executive Director, and by an annual vote of the Board. 

 
B. Fees for Services. The Collaborative may charge a fee, as determined by the 

Executive Director and approved by the Board, for contracted services to be 
provided by the Collaborative. 



13  

 

C. Donations, Grants, and Contributions:  The Executive Director may, with the 
approval of the Board, from time to time accept donations, grants or contributions 
from governmental and private sources, whether in cash or in kind, which will 
further the purpose of the Collaborative. 

 
3. The Board shall approve on or before December 15 the program tuition rates and 

fees-for-services for the next fiscal year beginning on July 1. 

4. Annual Budget, Assessment of Costs, and Payment of Tuition and Fees 
 

The Board shall annually determine the Collaborative budget consistent with the 

timelines, terms, and requirements set forth in Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 

4E, regulations promulgated by the DESE, and this Collaborative Agreement.  The Board shall 

propose a budget for the upcoming fiscal year by December 15 of the preceding fiscal year. The 

proposed budget shall identify all of the programs and services to be offered by the Collaborative 

and the corresponding costs, and contain all planned financial activity for the upcoming fiscal 

year.  Expenditures from grant funds, the Collaborative Fund, and other funds not designated as 

general funds that by law may be expended by the Board without further appropriation shall be 

segregated in the budget. The general fund budget shall segregate all operating expenditures, 

capital expenditures, debt service payments and deposits to capital reserve. 

The proposed budget shall include the methodology used to determine tuition rates and 

fees-for-services to be paid by member and non-member districts, which shall be based on the 

combined cost of providing such programs and services. A non-member surcharge may be 

assessed on non-member districts based on each student enrolled from a non-member district, at 

the recommendation of the Executive Director, and by an annual vote of the Board. Tuition 

costs and fees-for-services shall be paid by member and non-member districts on a monthly basis 

as invoiced by the Collaborative. 



14  

The proposed budget shall be discussed at a public meeting of the Board and notice shall 

be provided to each member district at least fourteen (14) calendar days before the date of the 

Board meeting at which the proposed budget will be discussed. The Board shall adopt the final 

budget by an affirmative majority vote at a subsequent meeting no earlier than ten (10) business 

days following the Board meeting at which the budget was first proposed.  The Treasurer shall 

certify and transmit the budget and tuition rates and fees-for-services for the upcoming fiscal 

year to each member district no later than February 1 of the preceding fiscal year. 

All budget amendments after certification and transmission by the Treasurer shall be 

proposed at a public meeting of the Board, and must be approved by a majority vote of the Board 

to take effect.  Any amendment to the budget that results in an increase in tuitions rates or fees- 

for-services must (a) be provided to the member districts within thirty (30) calendar days of the 

public meeting of the Board at which such amendment is first proposed; (b) voted on by the 

Board at a public meeting of the Board not more than fourteen (14) calendar days after the Board 

meeting at which such amended was first proposed; and (c) certified and transmitted by the 

Treasurer to the member districts within thirty (30) calendar days following the effective date of 

such amendment.  The Board has the authority to reduce tuition rates and fees-for-services to 

member and non-member districts when doing so is determined to be in the best interest of the 

Collaborative. 

5. Borrowing, Loans, and Mortgages 
 

The Board may authorize the borrowing of funds or enter into short or long-term 

agreements or mortgages, and acquire or improve real property to support Collaborative 

operations.  All borrowing, loans, and mortgages shall be discussed at a public meeting of the 

Board. The Board shall investigate options related to borrowing, loans, and mortgages in order 



15  

to determine that the terms related to any borrowing, loans and mortgages are the most favorable 

available at the time of the application. The Board shall determine, at a public meeting, through 

a majority vote, that the terms related to borrowing, loans, and mortgages are (a) cost-effective; 

(b) necessary to carry out the purpose and objectives for which the Collaborative is established; 
 

(c) in the best interests of the Collaborative and its member districts; (d) consistent with this 

Collaborative Agreement; and (e) consistent with standard lending practices.  When the 

borrowing or short or long-term agreements or mortgages are for the approved acquisition or 

improvement of real property, the Board shall (a) provide notice to each member district within 

thirty (30) calendar days of applying for real estate mortgages; and (b) discuss its intent to apply 

for a real estate mortgage at a public meeting of the Board prior to the meeting of the Board at 

which the final vote is taken. 

6. Surplus Funds 
 

At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended general funds, as defined by 603 CMR 50.07, 

plus any previous year’s remaining surplus funds, as determined through the Collaborative’s 

financial statements, will be considered cumulative surplus funds. On an annual basis, the Board 

shall, upon review of the Collaborative’s audit results for the previous fiscal year, determine by a 

majority vote the final dollar amount of cumulative surplus funds. Surplus funds shall not 

include funds deposited in a capital reserve as provided for in 603 CMR 50.07(10), funds 

deposited in trust in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 32B, Section 20, or 

any amounts prepaid for tuition or services in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, 

Chapter 40, Section 4E.  As set forth in 603 CMR 50.07(9), in no event shall cumulative surplus 

funds exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the previous fiscal year’s general expenditures from 

the Collaborative Fund. 



16  

Cumulative surplus funds may, at the discretion of the Board, be retained and carried 

forward in subsequent budget cycles to fund its operations or may be distributed to member 

districts.  The Board shall vote annually to determine whether cumulative surplus funds will be 

retained by the Collaborative or whether all or some percentage of such funds will be distributed 

to the member districts or credited to support programs and services offered to member districts. 

In the event an amount of cumulative surplus funds is to be distributed or credited to the member 

districts, each member district’s share will be apportioned in accordance to its tuition payments 

to the Collaborative for the previous fiscal year. 

7. Capital Reserve Fund 
 

The Collaborative may create a capital reserve fund to support costs associated with the 

acquisition, maintenance, and improvement of fixed assets, including real property, pursuant to a 

capital plan.  Funds in a capital reserve account may be used only for the project or purpose for 

which the account is established.  The establishment or revision of a capital reserve shall be 

subject to the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the member school committees.  Any request for 

approval of a capital reserve fund must state the reason for the reserve and a limit on the balance 

that may be held in the reserve.  Deposits into the capital reserve shall be proposed and approved 

through the budget process.  In the event that the purpose for which the capital reserve was 

created requires modification, the Board shall revise its capital plan and provide notice to all 

member districts.  If any member district does not vote to disapprove the revised capital plan 

within a forty-five (45) calendar day period, that member district shall be deemed to have 

approved the revised capital plan. 



17  

ARTICLE VIII 
 

Procedure for Termination of the Collaborative 
 

A member district may request that the Board initiate proceedings to terminate the 

Collaborative by giving notice to all other member districts and the Executive Director at least 

nine (9) months prior to the end of the fiscal year.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of such 

request, the Board shall meet to discuss the request to terminate the Collaborative and determine 

necessary steps with respect to such proposed termination.  A majority vote of the Collaborative 

Board is required to terminate the Collaborative, which termination shall only be effective at the 

end of the fiscal year during which such vote is taken. Any vote to terminate the Collaborative 

must be taken by the Board no less than one hundred eighty (180) calendar days prior to end of 

the fiscal year in which such vote is taken. Following an affirmative vote by the Board to 

terminate the Collaborative, the Executive Director shall, within thirty (30) calendar days of such 

vote, provide written notice of such termination to the member districts and non-member districts 

served by the Collaborative, as well as the DESE.  Upon termination of the Collaborative, its 

unencumbered net liabilities and assets, including cumulative surplus funds, capital assets and 

reserve funds, equipment, materials and supplies shall be distributed to member districts on a 

pro-rata basis, based on average enrollment for the preceding three (3) years of the member 

districts in the Collaborative’s programs and services. Prior to the effective termination of the 

Collaborative, the Board shall have a final independent financial audit of the Collaborative 

prepared, including an accounting of assets and liabilities, a copy of which shall be made 

available to each member district. 

Upon a vote to terminate the Collaborative, the Board shall prepare a closing plan to be 

shared with each member district, which also shall be submitted to the DESE. The closing plan 

documents shall include without limitation: 



18  

1. A process for determining the appropriate disposition of federal/state funds, 
equipment, and supplies. 

 
2. Identification of the member district(s) responsible for maintaining all fiscal 

records upon termination of the Collaborative. 
 

3. Identification of the member district(s) responsible for maintaining student, 
employee, and program records upon termination of the Collaborative. 

 
4. The plans of the member districts to accommodate the programs and services 

formerly provided by the Collaborative. 
 

5. A process for determining the appropriate disposition of all assets of the 
Collaborative, including capital property owned by the Collaborative. 

 
6. A process for meeting all liabilities of the Collaborative, including obligations for 

post-employment benefits. 
 

7. Copies of the minutes of the meetings of the Board and the member districts’ 
recording of the vote to terminate the Collaborative. 

 
8. The effective date of the termination. 

 
9. A copy of the final independent financial audit of the Collaborative, including an 

accounting of assets and liabilities of the Collaborative and the disposition of 
same. 

 
In the event that the Collaborative receives notice from the DESE of its intent to revoke 

its approval of this Collaborative Agreement, the Collaborative shall initiate the process of the 

termination of the Collaborative. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

Procedure for Withdrawal of Member Districts 
 

A member district may withdraw from the Collaborative as of the end of any fiscal year 

upon a vote of its school committee, provided that such member district school committee 

provides advance written notice of its intention to withdraw by December 31 of such fiscal year, 

with an effective withdrawal date of June 30, and provided that all approvals for such 

withdrawal, including the approval of the Board and the Massachusetts Board of Elementary and 



19  

Secondary Education, have been obtained by April 30 of such fiscal year.  Written notification of 

a member district’s intent to withdraw from the Collaborative shall include (a) notification 

addressed to the Chairperson of the Board and the Executive director that the member district has 

voted to withdraw from the Collaborative as of June 30 of the fiscal year, and (b) a copy of the 

minutes from the school committee meeting in which the member district voted to withdraw 

from the Collaborative. 

Within thirty (30) days of notification of a member district’s intent to withdraw from the 

Collaborative, an amendment shall be prepared to reflect such withdrawal.  This Collaborative 

Agreement shall then be amended to reflect such withdrawal, subject to and in accordance with 

Article XI. 

Upon withdrawal from the Collaborative, a former member district shall not be entitled to 

any assets or portion of assets of the Collaborative, including any capital assets, reserve funds, 

equipment, materials and supplies; provided, however, that within sixty (60) calendar days after 

the annual independent financial audit of the Collaborative is submitted to and approved by the 

Board for the fiscal year at the end of which the withdrawal was effective, the Board shall 

conduct a vote to determine if cumulative surplus funds, if any, for the fiscal year in which the 

member district withdrew will be distributed to the withdrawing member district.  If approved by 

a majority vote of the Board, the Collaborative shall distribute to the withdrawing member 

district a pro-rata share of any such cumulative surplus funds , if any, for programs in which its 

students enrolled and for which it paid program tuition, based upon the average student 

enrollment of such member district of the programs of the Collaborative for the preceding three 

(3) years. A withdrawing member district shall remain responsible for any financial 



20  

commitments or obligations to the Collaborative existing as of the end of the fiscal year, as well 

as the liabilities of the withdrawing member, if any, arising in the course of its membership. 

The withdrawal of any member district at any time shall not affect the status of the 

Collaborative under Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 4E, except that, if after 

the withdrawal of a member district, less than two member districts remain, the Board shall 

initiate termination proceedings as set forth in Article VIII. 

ARTICLE X 
 

Procedure for Admitting New Member Districts 
 

A school committee for any town, city, or regional school district may seek membership 

of the Collaborative through a majority vote of such school committee. Notice of request for 

admission to the Collaborative must be received by the Executive Director or the Board’s 

Chairperson no later than December 31 of the fiscal year preceding the fiscal year for which such 

school committee seeks admission.  Upon receipt of the prospective school committee’s 

notification, the Board will consider the request at its next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

Upon a majority affirmative vote by the Board to admit any new school committee, this 

Collaborative Agreement shall be amended subject to and in accordance with Article XI to 

reflect said school committee as a member district of the Collaborative. 

New member districts shall be effectively admitted as of July 1 of the fiscal year 

provided that all required approvals, including that of the Board and the Massachusetts Board of 

Elementary and Secondary Education, are obtained by April 30 of the fiscal year prior to the 

fiscal year in which the new member is to be admitted to the Collaborative. The authorizing 

votes of the Collaborative Board may provide for the deferral of said admission until July 1st of 

the subsequent fiscal year.  Following approval for admission to the Collaborative and 



21  

continuing until the actual date of admission, an incoming member district may designate a non- 

voting representative to the Board. 

ARTICLE XI 
 

Procedure for Amending this Collaborative Agreement 
 

The Collaborative Agreement of the Valley Collaborative may be amended from time to 

time, as needed, pursuant to the following procedure: 

1. Any member district, Board Member, or the Executive Director may propose an 
amendment to this Collaborative Agreement. 

 
2. The proposed amendment shall be presented in writing to the Executive Director 

and the Chairperson of the Board no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to a 
scheduled meeting of the Board at which it shall first be discussed. No less than 
ten (10) business days prior to the Board meeting at which the amendment is to be 
first discussed, the Executive Director shall cause copies thereof to be sent to all 
Board Members and the chairs of the school committees of the member districts, 
together with notice as to the time and place of the first reading of the proposed 
amendment. 

 
3. Following the first reading of any proposed amendment and any changes as 

requested by the Board, the Executive Director shall, upon approval of the Board, 
submit the proposed amendment to the DESE for initial review. 

 
4. Following the initial review by the DESE, the Executive Director shall make such 

changes, if any, to the proposed amendment as the DESE requires. 
 

5. No less than ten (10) business days prior to the next scheduled Board meeting at 
which the proposed amendment is to be discussed a second time, the Executive 
Director shall cause copies thereof to be sent to all Board Members and the chairs 
of the school committees of the member districts, together with notice as to the 
time and place of the second reading of the proposed amendment. 

 
6. The proposed amendment shall be read a second time at the next scheduled Board 

meeting subsequent to the DESE review, at which time, in order to be approved, 
there must be a majority vote of the Board in favor of the amendment. Following 
approval by the Board, the amended Collaborative Agreement shall be submitted 
by the Chairperson of the Board and the Executive Director to the chairs of the 
school committees of the member districts for a vote to approve the amended 
agreement. 

 
7. If approved by a majority of the member districts, and once the member districts 

have signed the amended Collaborative Agreement, the Executive Director shall 



22  

submit the signed amended Collaborative Agreement, consistent with 603 CMR 
50.03, to the Commissioner of the DESE for approval by the Massachusetts 
Board of Elementary and Secondary Education . 

 
8. The amended Collaborative Agreement shall become effective as of the date of 

approval by the school committees of the Collaborative’s member districts and 
the Massachusetts Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. 

 
ARTICLE XII 

 

Non-Discrimination 
 

The Valley Collaborative does not discriminate in its programs, activities, 

facilities, employment, or educational opportunities on the basis of race, color, creed, age, 

disability, gender, gender identity, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual orientation, 

genetic information, or any other protected class, under state or federal law, and does not 

tolerate any form of discrimination, intimidation, threat, coercion, and/or harassment that 

insults the dignity of others by interfering with their freedom to learn and work. 



23  

APPROVAL BY THE 
MEMBER DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEES 

 
This Amended and Restated Collaborative Agreement shall take effect upon the date of 

approval of the Massachusetts Board of Elementary and Secondary Education, as indicated by 

the signature of the Commissioner of the DESE below, and shall continue until terminated, 

revoked or amended. This Amended and Restated Collaborative Agreement is authorized by a 

vote of each of the Member District School Committees, signed by the chair of each Member 

District School Committee, and signed by the Commissioner of the DESE. 

 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Black – Signature Pages to Follow] 























Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5   1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

27 28 29 30 31 24/31 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 31  23/30 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 24/31 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

     

October 2025

22

November 2025

April 2026

16

May 2026

20

June 2026

*Professional Development Day All Staff - No School for Students
Early Release - Professional Development for staff 
(specific number of PD days will vary by position)

No School/Holiday/School Vacation
Board of Directors Meeting (Regular School Day for 
Staff and Students)

Professional Development Day for Professional Staff - No School 
for Students

Early Release

Last Day of School Year (0 snow days used) Early Release - High School Graduation Day

16

December 2025

First/Last Day of Summer Program First/Last Day of School Year (5 snow days used)

 

January 2026

19

February 2026

15

March 2026

               2025 - 2026 Academic Calendar

July 2025

19

August 2025

11

September 2025



  Volume 13, Issue 4  News for the extended Valley Collaborative community Summer 2025

 Valley 
COLLABORAT IVE

We are:  On the Move

▪ Page 3 Students in Valley 
Middle School’s Alternative 
and Transitional Programs had 
a year that was as busy as it 
was fantastic.

We are: Showing our Pride 

▪ Page 8 Five individuals in 
Valley’s Adult Program went to 
an Assistive Technology Fair to 
learn about devices that can 
help people with disabilities.

We are: Adaptive

▪ Page 2 Students at Valley 
Elementary School are wrap-
ping up a very active year.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DR. CHRIS SCOTT GIVING RAY BUSBY GOLDEN KEYS TO VALLEY 
COLLABORATIVE. A VALLEY VETERAN, RAY JOINED THE ADULT PROGRAM IN 1994.

Dear Valley Community: Valley’s 
focus on high quality leadership 
makes the difference.  Each year 
the Dr. Anthony Bent Leadership 
Award is given to a Valley employee 
who exemplifies leadership qualities 
and has made a significant differ-
ence to the climate and culture of 
the collaborative. This award is 
named in honor of Dr. Anthony 
Bent.  Dr. Bent is a dedicated educa-
tor who held central office positions 
in Watertown and was superin-
tendent in Shrewsbury for fifteen 
years.  In 2008-2009, Dr. Bent was 
president of the Massachusetts As-
sociation of School Superintendents 
(MASS).  Having previously served 

(2012-2014) on the Valley Collab-
orative Board of Directors during 
his interim superintendency at 
Groton-Dunstable Regional School 
District, Dr. Bent has been a long-
time supporter and advocate for the 
great work done at Valley Collab-
orative.  For over a decade, Dr. Bent 
has facilitated Valley’s “Leadership 
at Every Level” professional devel-
opment series.  This coming year we 
will, once again, welcome Dr. Bent 
to share his knowledge and exper-
tise with Valley Administrators and 
future Administrators. 

			   »continued  on page 10

At Valley, We Love What We Do!



Valley COLLABORATIVE

2

Elementary School: What a Year!
It’s  been quite a year at Valley 

Elementary. From adventurous 
field trips to new clubs and more 

spirit weeks than we can count, we’re 
ending the 2024-2025 school year on 
a high note. Here’s a look at some of 
the highlights.

January 10th: Roller Kingdom. 
The school participated in a field trip 
to a roller rink in Tyngsboro, giving 
students the opportunity to practice 
perseverance as they learned how to 
skate.
February 10th: Acton Discovery 
Center Event: The Acton Discovery 
Center Traveling Science Program 
returned to Valley to run hands-on 
science workshops. 
February 10th-14th: Love and 
Kindness Spirit Week–Valley’s 
annual celebration of all things kind-
ness.
March 3rd-7th: Read Across 
America Week. We celebrated 
Read Across America Week with a 
reading themed spirit week, door 
decorating, guest readers, book fair, 
and other activities to celebrate and 
promote literacy.
April 4th: Skateboard Phys-
ics Assembly. A follow-up to our 
popular presentation on the physics 
of motion as demonstrated through 
skateboarding!
April 14th-17th: Autism Accep-
tance Spirit Week. We capped off 
the week with our annual Autism 
Acceptance Walk.
May 5th: Rock Out for Reading - 
an assembly geared towards inspir-
ing students to pursue reading as a 
lifelong adventure through songs and 
stories.   
May 12th-16th: Mental Health 
Awareness Spirit Week. We cele-
brated our coping skills and explored 
new skills, encouraging self-care and 

emotional regulation. 

Fishing Club
Thanks to paraprofessional Nick 
Cote Valley Elementary has a 
popular new Fishing Club. Students 
explore local waterways, gain knowl-
edge about different fish species, and 
develop essential skills like casting, 
knot tying, and understanding water 
ecosystems. “Most of them never 
expected there could be big fish lurk-
ing just beneath the surface, so when 
they feel that tug on the line, it’s a 
thrilling surprise,” says Nick, who 
founded and runs the club. “The look 
on their faces when they reel in a big 
bass is priceless—pure excitement 
and pride.” Beyond learning fishing 
techniques, the club fosters team-
work, patience, and environmental 
awareness, while also creating lasting 
memories and friendships. Whether 
it’s a quiet afternoon by the water or 
the rush of landing a big catch, the 
Valley Collaborative Fishing Club 
offers an unforgettable experience 
where kids build confidence and a 
deeper connection to nature. ▪

FIRST GRADER CARTER LEWIS SHOWS OFF 
HIS CATCH.

JASON KATMADEU-WENDEU, THIRD 
GRADER, AT WE ROCK THE SPECTRUM.

A few of our favorite 
things

Louis Lorino, sixth grade, “Legos 
and friends.”
Brian Bolcome, fourth grade, 
“Fishing Club and field trips.”
William Desousa-Diaz, fourth 
grade, “Fishing, camping, hiking 
and Mr. Matt!”
Nate Skuse, fourth grade, “Using 
computers and playing games 
with friends.”
Marnie Stone, fifth grade, “Ev-
erything is fun and educational!”
Sophia Stewart, fourth grade, 
“My Friends.”
CJ Lillie, third grade, “Basketball 
and football.”
Colton Tyler, first grade, “Pizza, 
trade-in, friends and teachers.”
Lindsey Lavanga, fifth grade, 
“Horseback riding and swim-
ming. Swimming is fun. I like it.”
David Makayi, first grade, “Go-
ing out in the nice weather and 
bug hunting.”



Valley COLLABORATIVE

3

Valley Middle School:  A Busy Year, 
A Fantastic Year

The 2024-2025 school year 
kept students in the Middle 
School’s Alternative Pro-

gram busy both academically and 
while in the community. In their 
core academic classes, students 
were challenged across all content 
areas. Students solved a 13-year old 
mystery while reading “The Curious 
Vanishing of Beatrice Willoughby” by 
G.Z. Schmidt and gained a better un-
derstanding of the parts of the plot in 
books. They even learned to identify 
the parts independently in their own 
books! Mysteries were a huge hit 
this year. In Science class, students 
had the opportunity to participate in 
a STEM project each week! Alka-
Seltzer lava lamps and the Egg Drop 
competition were highlights. Many of 
our budding engineers’ eggs survived 
the drop off the school roof. Students 
were able to use coordinates to plot 
mystery pictures in math as well 
as participate in a mock restaurant 
where orders were taken, bills paid 
and everyone got a little hungry. 
In History class, there was a heavy 
focus on civics this year. Students 

were challenged to create their own 
countries including laws, flags, and 
citizen’s rights.

When not in core classes, stu-
dents enjoyed electives such as 
basketball, soccer, Geoguesser, 
and cooking (always with delicious 
results)! Students even got to ad-
venture out into the community for 
fun, educational trips at Metro Rock, 
Altitude Trampoline Park, Honey Pot 
Hill Orchards, In the Game, the Illu-
sion Museum, Franklin Park Zoo and 
others! “Valley is the best school. We 
have fun and we love getting outside! 
My favorite trip this year was Alti-
tude and I really liked going fishing”, 
stated 7th grader, Anthony Estrada.

The Outdoor Education Club 
made a resurgence and the club sum-
mited mountains such as Mt. Watat-
ic, Mt. Wachusett, North Mountain, 
Prospect Hill and even Mt. Monad-
nock! Way to go, team!  Sixth grader, 
Colton Knowlton shared that, “The 
staff are nice and the best part is the 
school store and the trips! I really 
liked going hiking with Pete and 
Aidan.” 

As always, the holidays played 
a large part in the middle school 
community. At Halloween, students 
showed off their costumes, raced 
to eat donuts on a string, and did a 
mummy race. At Thanksgiving, the 
program celebrated with a dinner 
served by teachers and administra-
tors.  Students even wrote what they 
were thankful for and decorated our 
Thankful Tree. During the winter 
holidays, students decorated the 
Christmas tree, participated in the 
gingerbread house competition, and 
made gifts for loved ones at You’re 
Fired. Students were certainly busy 
learning and growing! Let’s do it 
again next year!

Students in the Middle School’s 
Transitional Program had a fantastic 
and busy school year as well. Here 
are some of the highlights that the 
students wanted to share. In Shana 
Dunlevy’s classroom, students raved 
about the field trips. The group sled-
ding trip was an absolute blast. “My 
favorite was sledding and going fast. 
We built a giant jump and all had 
so much fun”, exclaimed 8th grader 
Keegan Graham when asked to share 
a highlight from the year. In Victoria 
Clauson’s class, one of the favorite 
activities this school year was cook-
ing class. Seventh grader Eli Sanchez 
shared, “My favorite memory that 
I made this year was cooking class, 
especially when I got to cook with my 
friends”. Students in Dana Watford 
and Tina Carrabba’s class shared that 
they had fun making Mother’s Day 
gifts, which tied a Science lesson into 
an art project. Roman Beyer-Beck-
ford exclaims, “Mom is going to love 
my plant!” We are looking forward 
to more fun and adventure in the 
upcoming school year. ▪VICTORIA CLAUSON’S STUDENTS ENJOYING THE TREATS MADE IN COOKING 

CLASS. FROM LEFT TO RIGHT: ANDRES DIAZ, LUCHIEN MOORE, ARIANNA ARIAS, 
LIANNA WARNER, GABE DUENAS, DENIS MORIS



Valley COLLABORATIVE

4

Valley Transitional High School, Transitional
Programs: Independence, Here We Come!

BRANDON TAIPE IN THE KITCHEN AT THE 
99 RESTAURANT IN BILLERICA.

Vocational 
Placement Sites

99 Restaurant, Billerica MA
Merrimack Valley Truck Service, 
Tyngsboro MA
Shaws, Hudson MA 
Dynamic Computers, Medford 
MA
Ocean State Job Lot, Tewksbury 
and North Reading MA
Strongwater Farm, Tewksbury 
MA
Mem Tea, Wakefield MA
Pro-Fitness, Billerica MA
Trader Joes, Nashua NH
Bitty and Beaus, Cambridge MA
Tewksbury Auto, Tewksbury MA
Market Basket, Billerica MA

The theme at Valley Transi-
tional High School this year 
has been ‘independence.’ 

Thanks to the hard work of Voca-
tional Coordinator, Scott Morin, 
more students are being placed in 
internships that correspond to their 
interests. Scott says that the surge in 
placements reflects both the rebound 
of Valley’s vocational programming 
after COVID and the students’ hard 
work. “We have a number of students 
who’ve been in classes for a few years 
and have shown a lot of growth,” says 
Scott. “They’re gaining in confidence 
and independence and were ready to 
take the next step.” The next step is 
going from working on a vocational 
jobsite with a job coach to having an 
internship in the community utiliz-
ing the supervisor of the company 
or business as the natural support. 
They are working independently in 
the surrounding communities gain-
ing experience for when they leave 
Valley. 

Kai Steil-Ng is one of them. Dur-
ing his time at the Transitional High 
School, Kai demonstrated a passion 
for all things mechanical and a real 
desire to be challenged. Once Kai 
settled on diesel engine repair as 
something he was eager to try, Scott 
reached out to a local repair shop to 
try to get him an internship. “He’s 
been there almost six months and 
it has worked out really well,” says 
Scott. “Now they’re looking to hire 
him part time.”

Brandon Taipe discovered his 
love of cooking while working at the 
Bistro downstairs at Valley. After he 
decided that it was time to expand 
his culinary skills, Scott reached out 
on his behalf to the manager of the 

99 Restaurant nearby. One 
thing led to another and be-
fore long Brandon had been 

granted an internship in the 
kitchen, assisting with prep, 
and a chef’s coat to match. 
“He told his parents and the 
rest of the team that he abso-
lutely loves going to work,” 
says Scott.

Nathan Dunham is yet 
another success story. After he 
indicated his desire to work 
independently, Scott and 
other team members began 
searching for possible posi-
tions near Nathan’s home in 
Hudson. These days, Nathan 
takes his electric scooter to a 
nearby Shaws, where he works 
during the week as well as on 
the weekends. While he began 
with janitorial work, manag-
ers at the store have indicated 
that there are opportunities 
for advancement. 

While Scott’s tireless advocacy is 
a major reason for these successful 
placements, he’s quick to credit all of 
the other staffers at Valley who are 
part of its unique team-based ap-
proach. Vocational staff, therapists 
and teachers work together to assess 
students’ readiness for vocational 
next steps. Some students know 
exactly what they’d like to do, says 
Scott, in which case it’s time to begin 
reaching out to employers.  For those 
students who aren’t yet settled on a 
particular field or position, the team 
presents them with opportunities. 
Scott also credits community part-
ners who’ve bought into the mission 
at Valley for being willing to consider 
student interns. “They want to see 
the kids be successful,” says Scott. 
“They also appreciate that we’re 
there to provide supports and guid-
ance if the student needs them.”

However the process plays out, 
it’s working–and so are a growing 
number of Valley students. ▪



Valley COLLABORATIVE

5
VOCATIONAL STUDENT MADISON MURRAY 
WILL LEAVE VALLEY PREPARED TO BEGIN A 
NURSING CAREER.

Valley Transitional High School,  Alternative 
Programs: Many Paths to Success

The Transitional High School 
Alternative Programs are 
celebrating another success-

ful year, as students in all three of 
our sites are finding their way and 
planning for the future. Here’s a look 
at three students who exemplify Val-
ley’s individualized approach.
Career readiness in action

Madison Murray, an eleventh 
grader in the Vocational Program, 
represents a Valley first: dual en-
rollment in the nursing program at 
Northern Essex Community College. 
“I’ve always been interested in nurs-
ing,” says Madison. “I brought it up 
to the staff at Valley and they helped 
me figure out how to do it.” Combin-
ing course work at Valley and NECC, 
Madison is now about to take her 
CNA test. Most importantly, she’ll be 
closing out her time at Valley ready 
to have a career.

“Our vocational program is all 
about career readiness,” explains 

Principal Nick LeClair. 
“This experience means 
that when Madison 
leaves Valley she’ll be 
able to live indepen-
dently.”
Choosing a path

While some students 
arrive at Valley with a 
clear sense of what they 
want to do after gradua-
tion, the majority do not. 
The unique structure 
of the program helps 
facilitate a process of 
exploration. In addition to the voca-
tional program where students can 
try their hands at a variety of occupa-
tions, including carpentry, landscap-
ing, culinary arts and digital media. 
Two sites, Psi for underclassmen and 
Delta for eleventh and twelfth grad-
ers, help students choose a path for 
high school and what comes after.

Matt Maille is currently a Psi 
tenth grader and is already think-
ing ahead to life after school. “When 
students pick a site for eleventh 
and twelfth grade, we’re focused on 
what feels right for them, here at 
Valley and in the future,” explains 
Nick. Matt is considering moving 
into the vocational program because 
a hands-on job in a field such as 
construction appeals to him. He also 
likes the teachers in the program. 
“The staff and student personalities 
mesh well,” says Matt, singling out 
one staff member for special praise. 
“Daniel MacDonald is a real one.” 
Nick says that the staff think just as 
highly of Matt. “He’s a quiet leader 
and beloved on his site.” And while 
Matt still hasn’t made a final decision 
about a site for the next school year, 
the decision making process is part 
of what makes Valley’s approach so 
effective, says Nick. “Students in all 

of our programs have access to the 
same opportunities. The question is 
what is going to be best for the indi-
vidual student?”
A better fit–and a hit

Billy Cochran started at Valley’s 
Transitional High School but was 
convinced that the school’s alterna-
tive programming would be a better 
fit for him. Fast forward a year and 
that assessment has proven correct. 
A 10th grader in the Delta Program, 
Billy is excelling at his academics and 
has already made the high honor roll 
three times. He’s especially passion-
ate about physics and STEM, and 
has already started to think about 
where he might like to go to college. 
His proudest accomplishment this 
school year has been back in Dra-
cut, his home school district, where 
Billy tried out for and made the high 
school baseball team. “My first time 
at bat I got a hit,” says Billy. “We’re 
very proud of him,” says Nick. “Billy 
is a great friend to everyone on his 
site, and to see him doing so well in 
his classes and now on the baseball 
field is really something.” ▪

BILLY COCHRAN RECENTLY MADE THE 
DRACUT HIGH SCHOOL BASEBALL TEAM.



6

Valley COLLABORATIVE

Valley School Trip, 2025
Destination: Montreal, Canada

On May 12, 2025,  our Valley 
travelers hopped on a bus 
and started their journey 

on their 11th annual adventure.  
This time our final destination was 
Montreal, Canada!  A total of twenty-
eight individuals from Valley’s Adult 
Program and Transitional High 
School made the trek across the 
northern border. It was truly a trip 
for all interests.

We spent the week learning about 
Montreal’s history. We found the 
Pointe-a-Calliere, the Archaeologi-
cal Museum, quite interesting. We 
learned about North America’s first 
collector sewer and the people who 
lived in Montreal during the 1830’s.  
St. Patrick’s church and Notre Dame 
Basilica were exquisite sights to see.    

We enjoyed the many picture tak-
ing viewpoints, especially at the top 

of Mount Royal, the highest 
point in Montreal.  Our ghost 

AMONG THE HIGHLIGHTS OF VALLEY’S SCHOOL TRIP TO MONTREAL: LEARNING ABOUT GRAFFITI AND DESIGNING OUR OWN HATS.

tour was a fun way to see Old Mon-
treal’s sites too. When asking Nora 
Bailey about her favorite moments 
on the trip, she exclaimed, “ The 
ghost tour!  I liked learning about the 
history and I have watched videos 
about other ghost stories too”.

Montreal’s Science Centre, Bio 
Dome and Rio Tinto Alcan Planetar-
ium were a big hit with our travel-
ers.  We especially liked the Science 
Centre as it gave us the opportunity 
to learn with our hands and explore 
life science, human evolution and 
participate in an immersive quest of 
the Great Canadian North. Student 
Dylan Tran said, “I liked seeing the 
fish at the Bio Dome.”  

We got to express ourselves and 
show our creativity through graf-
fiti.  We learned how to do different 
techniques and create graffiti on our 
very own hats.

			   »continued  on next page  

2025 Valley School Trip 
by the Numbers

Number of Valley sites that par-
ticipated in the trip: 2

Number of travelers: 28

Distance from Valley to Mon-
treal, Canada: 295 miles

Top elevation of Mount Royal: 
768 feet

Year that the first collector sewer 
for rainwater was constructed in 
Montreal: 1832

Number of trips taken by Valley 
travelers: 11.



Valley COLLABORATIVE

	 »continued  from previous  page 

The individuals and students 
especially enjoyed this activity and 
proudly wore their hats the rest of 
the trip. 

The Sugar Shack or La Sucrerie 
de la Montagne was another great 
way to immerse ourselves in French 
Canadian culture.  We learned how 
maple syrup is made and enjoyed 
French Canadian folk music and 
traditional cuisine.  Nora Bailey said 
“The Sugar Shack’s pancakes and 
maple syrup were so good!”  We got 
to participate in traditional French 
Canadian music and were given a 
lesson on playing wooden spoons 

Valley School Trip, 2025
Destination: Montreal, Canada

THE BELL CENTRE OF THE MONTREAL CANADIENS HOCKEY TEAM WAS A FAN FAVORITE FOR THE VALLEY TRAVELERS

during a song.  
Lastly, touring the Bell Centre 

of the Montreal Canadiens hockey 
team was a fan favorite.  We got to 
go behind the scenes and tour the 
Canadiens’ locker room, learn how 
the ice is made and how the venue 
sets up for concerts. Our group was 
very engaged with our tour guide and 
was even able to give them remind-
ers that we are big BRUINS fans!  
Being one of our sports super fans, 
student Kayden Bovardi said without 
a doubt that, “the Bell Centre was my 
favorite.”  

Overall, it was a great historical 
and cultural experience that they will 
never forget.  ▪

2025 Valley School Trip 
Highlights

Touring the Bell Center of the 
Montreal Canadiens hockey 
team.

The Sugar Shack or La Sucrerie 
de la Montagne for pancakes.

Montreal’s Science Centre, Bio 
Dome and Rio Tinto Alcan 
Planetarium

Pointe-a-Calliere Archaeological 
Museum

Mount Royal, the highest point in 
Montreal

7



Adult Services: Exploring  Assistive Technology

FIVE INDIVIDUALS FROM VALLEY’S ADULT PRO-
GRAM RECENTLY TRAVELED TO DANVERS TO AT-
TEND NORTHEAST ARC’S ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY 
FAIR IN BACK: BRIAN, GREG AND JACOB. IN FRONT: 
JENILEE AND KAITLYN.

The Valley Collaborative Adult 
Program is regularly seek-
ing out opportunities for the 

individuals to learn about new tech-
nology and initiatives that can help 
them with every day life, while also 
learning about new and exciting ways 
to receive standardized, on-going 
support. Recently, five individuals at-
tended an Assistive Technology Fair 
hosted by the Northeast Arc at the 
Liberty Tree Mall. This event gave 
the individuals the chance to learn 
about a range of assistive technology 
products from 30 vendors.

Northeast Arc, a nonprofit which 
helps people with disabilities become 
full participants in the community; 
choosing for themselves how to live, 
learn, work, socialize and play, sees 
Assistive Technology enabling people 
to live productive, meaningful, and 
dignified lives. According to the 

group, “Assistive Technology can 
enhance an individual’s ability to 
perform daily tasks, facilitate in-
dependent living, and contribute 
to a higher quality of life.” 

The individuals who attended 
the event got the chance to see 
and learn about medication 
management devices, commu-
nication devices and software, 
mobility aids, smart home 
technology, remote supports, 
adaptive gaming and recreation, 
and more.

Jenilee Lopez was one of the 
Valley individuals who made 
the trip to Danvers, said that 
she was impressed by what she 
saw at the Assistive Technology 
Fair. “It was pretty cool. I saw a 
lot of different things and it was 
very interesting. I liked seeing all 
the technology and how it will help 
all the individuals,” says Jenilee. “I 
like how everything there could help 
people be more independent. Even 
for people who can’t speak they 
had a bunch of different things that 
could help them communicate.”

While not every individual 
served by Valley Collaborative uses 
Assistive Technology in their every-
day life, new and creative ideas are 
regularly being introduced to the 
populations served by DDS and can 
create a drastic change in an indi-
vidual’s life. As an example, Valley 
supports an individual who utilizes 
remote check-ins with an outside 
agency through smart home tech-
nology. This allows for a new level 
of independence for the individual 
as they receive necessary supports 
through a remote system and 
therefore is able to operate with a 
new level of independence while still 

having regular check-ins to ensure 
safety and care.

Many of the initiatives presented 
at the Assistive Technology Fair are 
still in their infancy. However, the 

more awareness that can be brought 
to them and the more opportunity 
the individuals and their families 
have to access these products and 
services, the more personal growth 
that can be achieved. This happens 
through providing individuals with 
tools necessary to operate at their 
highest level without compromising 
the level of support they receive.

Services provided for Adults with 
Disabilities have come a long way 
over the years, but it is never enough 
to get complacent and be satisfied 
with the supports out there. It is 
imperative that individuals and their 
support teams continue to advocate 
for new and creative ways to help 
individuals maximize their potential 
while getting their specific needs 
met. The DDS Assistive Technology 
Fair was a great way to facilitate this 
process.▪

INDIVIDUALS IN VALLEY’S ADULT PRO-
GRAMS CHECK OUT SOME OF THE OFFER-
INGS ON DISPLAY AT THE NORTHEAST ARC 
ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY FAIR.

Valley COLLABORATIVE

8



9

Valley COLLABORATIVE

Valley Collaborative 2024-2025:
Our Year in Pictures

VALLEY MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS LOGAN STURGIS 
AND COLTON KNOWLTON ON A WINTER HIKE.

MIKE KOCZAN AND RENEE BOYDEN,ON 
THE JOB AT  CHELMSFORD HIGH 
SCHOOL.

STUDENT ERIK REGO COOKING UP TURKEY 
WITH CHEF BRIDGET FOR FRIENDSGIVING.

4TH GRADER NELSON 
LOZADA WITH VISIT-
ING BARBER PHILL 
MCNULTY

MORE THAN 50 FAMILY MEMBERS ATTENDED 
VALLEY ELEMENTARY’S ANNUAL COMMUNITY 
BREAKFAST.

STUDENT TONY ESTRADA SHOWS OFF HIS 
BIG CATCH.



»continued  from cover

The 2025 Dr. Anthony Bent Lead-
ership Award will be presented to 
Heather MacKay, Valley Elementary 
School Principal. Previous award 
winners include:
2016 - Joia Mercurio, Deputy Direc-
tor
2019 - Kari Morrin, Director of Hu-
man Resources
2020 – Sandra Morency, Lead Cus-
todian
2021 – Jessica Scalzi, Lead Nurse
2022 – Nicole Noska, Valley Middle 
School & Valley Transitional High 
School Principal
2023 – Matthew Gentile, Director of 
DDS & MassAbility
2024 – Mazyar Moshtaghi, Chief 
Technology Officer

The School Spirit Award 2025
Deven Beltran (Valley Transitional 
High School – Transitional Pro-
gramming)

Everett V. Olsen, Jr. Award for 
Highest Academic Honors 2025
Felicite Kodak, (Valley Transitional 
High School – Alternative Program-
ming)

The Community Partner Award 
2025
Billerica Town Hall

Valley Collaborative Retirees
We would like to thank our retirees 
for their many years of dedication 
and service to Valley’s mission.

Vivi Leighton – 18 Years of service 
at Valley Elementary School as the 
Culinary Manager

Christopher Woodward -  5.5 Years 
of service at Valley Adult Program as 
Job Placement Specialist 

At each of Valley Collab-
orative’s Board of Director’s 

At Valley, We Love What We Do!
meeting throughout the school year, 
we recognize students, individuals, 
and staff of the month who demon-
strate Valley’s core values.  Below 
please find a comprehensive list of 
these awards recipients for the 2024 
– 2025 school year- congratulations 
to all!

September 2024
Staff Making a Difference Awards
Technology Department: Mazyar 
Moshtaghi & Francisco Laureano 
Maintenance/Facilities Department: 
Renato Silva, Sandra Morency, Fabio 
Agostinho, William G. Hernandez, 
Nobelia Bento

October 2024
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Patrick Car-
rier 
Staff of the Month: Noah Colon 

Valley Middle School 
Student of the Month: Ivy Lefebvre 
Staff of the Month: Rajeswari Ravi-
chandran 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Alternative Programming 
Student of the Month: Robert Pirnie 
Staff of the Month: Brittany Maiuri 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Transitional Programming 
Student of the Month: Brandon 
Taipe 
Staff of the Month: Madison Watford 

Valley Adult Services 
DDS/MRC Adult Program Partici-
pant: Jennifer Glidden 
Staff of the Month: Rebecca Thi-
bedore 

Valley Collaborative – District Wide 
Staff of the Month: Kari Morrin 

December 2024
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Lindsey 

Lavanga 
Staff of the Month: Erin Frazier 

Valley Middle School 
Student of the Month: Dinitri Scott 
Staff of the Month: Kali Rowe 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Alternative Programming 
Student of the Month: Tyler March-
and 
Staff of the Month: Jake Smith 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Transitional Programming 
Student of the Month: Jack Murphy 
Staff of the Month: Haley Parker 

Valley Adult Services 
DDS/MRC Adult Program Partici-
pant: Sharifah Namigadde 
DDS Staff of the Month: Simeon 
Zorokong 
MRC Staff of the Month: Dayse 
Doliver 

Valley Collaborative – District Wide 
Staff of the Month: Joia Mercurio, 
Nicole Noska, Nick LeClair, Heather 
Mackay, Kathleen Diaz, Donna 
Driscoll

January 2025
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Ethan Leon-
ardo 
Staff of the Month: Katelyn Rose 

Valley Alternative Programming 
High School 
Student of the Month: Felicite Kodak 
Staff of the Month: Katharine Werner 

Valley Transitional Programming 
Middle School 
Student of the Month: Gabriella Rat-
tanavong 
Staff of the Month: Faithe Shatford 

Valley Transitional Programming 
High School 
Student of the Month: Luke Murphy 
Staff of the Month: Leslie Ayers	

			   »continued  on next page10

Valley COLLABORATIVE



»continued  from previous page

Valley Adult Services 
Individual of the month: Jenna 
Boudrot 
Staff of the Month: Maureen Lydon

April 2025
Valley Elementary School 
Student of the Month: Brody Ro-
mano 
Staff of the Month: Rebecca Valcanas 

Valley Middle School 
Student of the Month: Rose Morin 
Staff of the Month: Jaclyn Squeglia 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Alternative Programming 
Student of the Month: Madison 
Murray 
Staff of the Month: Christine Bren-
nick 

Valley Transitional High School – 
Transitional Programming 
Student of the Month: Sean McCar-
thy 
Staff of the Month: Molly Doctor 

Valley Adult Services 
DDS/MRC Adult Program Partici-
pant: Rose Chen 
Staff of the Month: Romario Hon-
orat 

Valley Collaborative – District Wide 
Staff of the Month: Ian MacAulay, 
Fabio Agostinho, Sandra Morency, 
Francisco Laureano, Matthew 
Gentile, Holly Tierney, Benjamin 
Morrison, Maureen Lydon, Jessica 
Marcotte

June 2025
Valley Elementary School
Student of the Month: Michael 
Sheehan
Staff of the Month: Nicole Rosa, 
Kathryn Richard, Renee Christian
Student of the Year: Louis Lourino

Valley Alternative Programming 
High School
Student of the Month: Phillip D. 
Hoffman IV
Staff of the Month: Vlad Stoicescu
 
Valley Transitional Programming 
Middle School
Student of the Month: Lexi Fuentes
Staff of the Month:  Joanna Bazzi-
notti

Valley Transitional Programming 
High School
Student of the Month: Brittany 
Dorney
Staff of the Month: Scott Morin

Valley Adult Services
Individual of the Month:  Jeremy 
Cyr
Staff of the Month:  Ashlee Hamel

We are finalizing Valley’s 2026-2031 
District Improvement Plan facilitat-
ed by Dr. Lori Likis, Consultant with 
Creative Coaching.  Dr. Lori Likis 
was the DESE consultant for school 
improvement planning.  Prior to 
retirement, Dr. Likis was responsible 
for developing the school and district 
improvement planning protocols for 
the Massachusetts Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Educa-
tion.  Valley was one of the original 
pilot sites for these protocols a 
decade ago.  Valley was honored 
when Dr. Likis agreed to come out 
of retirement to help Valley develop 
its 2026-2031 five year District 
Improvement Plan.  A great deal of 
work was accomplished this past 
school year and we are energized 
about executing the goals embedded 
in our new plan.

In order to obtain some baseline 
data for this five year plan, we sur-
veyed Valley’s 38 member Leader-
ship Team and Valley’s Member 
District Special Education Directors. 

A special thank you to all 
of our charitable donors

$5000.00 - Enterprise Bank, Mr. 
George Duncan Chairman 
$2000.00 - The Torrice Family 
Charitable Trust 	
$1500.00 - Charities Aid Founda-
tions of America
$500.00 - Powell Controls Inc
$500.00 - Fritz Deguglielmo, 
LLC
$300.00 - Marathas, Barrow & 
Weatherhead LLP
$200.00 - Mary T. Conway
$100.00 – Dr. Anthony J. Bent
$100.00 - J.P. O’Connor Hard-
ware, Inc
$100.00 - Camelia and Florin 
Rosca
$25.00 - Chip-In Farm, Inc

In Kind Donations:
Market Basket - $25.00 Gift 
Cards (2) 

This feedback along with the recent 
FY24 surveys for students, staff, and 
adult services participants gives us a
great baseline for the new plan. I 
proudly share the results with you in 
this newsletter.

I wish you all a fun filled and safe 
summer.  As you are aware, Valley 
doors are open 12 months of the year 
and we are looking forward to kick-
ing off summer school on July 7th – 
see you then!

My door is always open,

Chris A. Scott, Ph. D.
Executive Director

11

At Valley, We Love What We Do!
Valley COLLABORATIVE



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Discussion of Status of  Valley’s Culture

12



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Member District Special Education Directors 
Satisfaction Survey

13



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Member District Special Education Directors 
Satisfaction Survey

14



Valley COLLABORATIVE

Member District Special Education Directors 
Satisfaction Survey

15



Valley Collaborative Leadership Team

Kari Morrin

Director of HR, Title IX and 
504 Coordinator
kmorrin@valleycollaborative.org

Joia Mercurio 

Deputy Director
jmercurio@valleycollaborative.org

James George

Business Manager/Accountant
jgeorge@valleycollaborative.org

Chris A. Scott, PhD

Executive Director,
Finance and Operations
cscott@valleycollaborative.org

Nicole Noska

Principal,Valley Middle School
Valley Transitional High School
Transitional Programming
nnoska@valleycollaborative.org

Nick LeClair

Principal, Valley Transitional 
High School
Alternative Programming

nleclair@valleycollaborative.org

Jessica Marcotte

Lead Nurse

jscalzi@valleycollaborative.org

Heather Mackay

Principal, Valley 
Elementary School
hmackay@valleycollaborative.org

Matthew Gentile

Director of DDS & MRC 
Services
mgentile@valleycollaborative.org

Mazyar Moshtaghi

Chief Technology Officer
mmoshtaghi@valleycollaborative org

Valley Collaborative Board
Dr. Jay Lang, chair

Superintendent, Chelmsford 
Public Schools

Dr. Kerry Clery

Superintendent, Billerica Public 
Schools

Mr. Steven Stone

Superintendent, Dracut Public 
Schools

Dr. Geoff Bruno

Superintendent, Groton-
Dunstable Regional School 
District

Dr. Denise Pigeon

Superintendent, Nashoba Valley 
Technical School District

Mr. Brad Morgan

Superintendent, North 
Middlesex Regional School 
District

Ms. Brenda 
Theriault-Regan

Superintendent, Tewksbury 
Public Schools

Dr. Michael Flanagan

Superintendent, 
Tyngsborough Public Schools

Dr. Christopher 
Chew

Superintendent, Westford Public 
Schools

Valley Collaborative partners with families, districts, and the community to provide innovative programming 
that empowers all students and adults to discover their diverse individual strengths, interests, and abilities. In 
doing so, those we serve become self-actualized members of society who contribute in a responsible manner.

Renato Silva

School Safety & Facilities 
Manager

rsilva@valleycollaborative.org


	SC Meeting Agenda
	SC Meeting Minutes - September 2, 2025
	Discussion on AI Guidelines and Policy Development
	Memo - FY2024 MA DESE End-of-Year Audit Report
	Memo - Recommended FY2026 Budget Transfers
	Memo - MSBA Designer Selection Process: Parker Middle School Building Project
	Update: Private School Approval Process and Request for Consideration - Drake Academy
	Tri-Board Meeting Dates
	Memo - Personnel Report: August 2025
	Valley Collaborative Quarterly Report - FY2025 (4th Quarter)



